
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD A
MEETING AT THE GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST
ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING
BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV).  THE MEETING IS
ALSO TELEVISED TO THE GILA COUNTY TOMMIE CLINE MARTIN COMPLEX, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS'
CONFERENCE ROOM, 707 S. COLCORD ROAD, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE MEETING ROOMS WILL
BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AT 9:00 A.M.

Citizens may watch the Board meeting live-streamed at:  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live

Citizens may submit written comments related to the April 2nd Regular Meeting agenda by
no later than 5 p.m. on Monday, April 1st, by emailing the Deputy Clerk of the Board at
strimble@gilacountyaz.gov or calling 928-402-8757.  Citizens may also submit written
comments during the meeting through YouTube.  Please include the meeting date, agenda
item number, your name, and your residence address in the email.

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2024 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Public recognition of fifteen employees through the County's
Spotlight on Employees Program, as follows: Patricia
Johnson, Manuel Riddle, Taylor Perez, Carrie Bartling,
Darryl Griffin, Dave Rogers, Lisa Modglin, Danny Irish,
Gabriel Scales, Kassandra Navarro, Zackary Pearson, Aaron
Myers, Carter Tatum, Chance Creasy and Nick
Montague.  (Erica Raymond)

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to review the goals,
objectives, and policies of the Gila County Public Housing
Authority (PHA); and authorize the Chairman's signature on
the various required forms related to the Gila County
PHA's FY 2024 Annual Plan certifications.  (Stella Gore)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live


B.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
24-04-02 to name South Rolling Rock Way in the Payson
area. (Homero Vela)

 

4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No.
1 to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan
Partners, LLC to extend the term of the contract through
June 30, 2025; and to increase the contract by $19,940.90.
(David LaForge)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No.
1 to Contract No. 012023 with D2 Surveying LLC to renew
the contract for an additional year through April 17, 2025,
with a not-to-exceed amount of $100,000. (Homero Vela)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No.
3 to Contract No. 110520 with Hawker & Evans Asphalt
Co. which extends the contract through February 15, 2025,
with a not-to-exceed amount of $392,938. (Homero Vela)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Purchase
Agreement No. 031824 with Metalcraft Marine US, Inc. in
the amount of $95,000 plus tax in the amount of $9,405
for a total purchase price of $104,405, for the purchase of a
2024 Stanley 21’ welded aluminum boat with F250 Yamaha
motor, associated police equipment and trailer. (Sarah
White)
 
 

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action regarding premium rates in
the Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust for
Gila County's employee insurance and benefit plans to be
effective July 1, 2024, as follows: Adopt Schedule A -
Employee Insurance Contributions FY 2025 attached to
this agenda item. (Maryn Belling)



 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No.
2024-01 proclaiming April 2024 as National County
Government Month in Gila County with this year's theme of
"ForwardTogether" to showcase how the County achieves
healthy, safe, and vibrant communities. (James Menlove)

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 030324 - 
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. (Carl Melford)

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Policy No.
BOS-HRS-018 - Employee Tuition Reimbursement
Policy. (Michael O'Driscoll)

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of the
State of Arizona Contract Agreement No. CTR061840 with
The SJ Anderson Company in the amount of $118,963.71
for the Fairgrounds Roll-Up Doors project. (Joseph
Dickison) 

 

J.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an architectural
and design concept for the Gila County Go Kart
Track. (Joseph Dickison)

 

K.   Information/Discussion/Action to review the bid submitted
for Request for Qualifications No. 120423 - Professional
Consulting Firms Specializing in Solid Waste Operations;
and award Contract No. 120423 to  Blue Ridge Services,
Montana, Inc. in the amount of $65,510. (Melanie Mendez)

 

L.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Economic
Development  Agreement No.031424 between Gila County
and Strawberry Patchers, Inc. in the amount of $250 to
sponsor Strawberry Patchers' 26th Annual Quilt Show,
which the Board has determined to be for the benefit of the
public. (Stephen Christensen)



 

M.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for
the purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 207-05-003B
and, if accepted, authorize the Chairman's signature on the
Quit Claim Deed. (Samantha Trimble)

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of an Extension of Premises/Patio Permit
Application submitted by Katie Lynn Parks to temporarily
extend the premises from May 18, 2024, through
September 30, 2024, where liquor is permitted to be served
at Bandits Restaurant & the Dirty Cowboy Saloon located
in Strawberry.

 

B.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No.
CTR059323 with San Tan Ford Partners, LLC to extend the
contract through April 30, 2024. 

 

C.   Approval to appoint Mr. David E. Wolak as Superior Court
Judge Pro Tempore for the period from July 1, 2024, to
June 30, 2025.

 

D.   Acknowledgment of the February 2024 monthly activity
report submitted by the Recorder's Office. 

 

E.   Acknowledgment of February 2024 monthly activity report
submitted by Globe Regional Constable's Office.

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the February 2024 monthly activity



G.   Acknowledgment of the February 2024 monthly activity
report submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the February 2024 monthly activity
report submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the
Peace's Office.

 

I.   Approval of the monthly activity reports submitted by the
Human Resources Department for January 2024.

 

J.   Approval of the monthly activity reports submitted by the
Human Resources Department for February 2024.

 

K.   Approval of the Board of Supervisors' February 20, 2024
meeting minutes.

 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for
public benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §
38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors
may respond to criticism made by those who have
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or
may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the
County Manager may present a brief summary of current
events.  No action may be taken on the information
presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)



IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-8647     Presentation     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr. 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.
Department: Human Resources 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Spotlight on Employees Program for April 2024.

Background Information

The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the following
qualities: teamwork, quality, morale building, integrity, customer service, and
initiative.

Evaluation

N/A

Conclusion

N/A

Recommendation

The Human Resources Department staff would like to publicly recognize fifteen
employees through the County's Spotlight on Employees Program.

Suggested Motion
Public recognition of fifteen employees through the County's Spotlight on
Employees Program, as follows: Patricia Johnson, Manuel Riddle, Taylor
Perez, Carrie Bartling, Darryl Griffin, Dave Rogers, Lisa Modglin, Danny
Irish, Gabriel Scales, Kassandra Navarro, Zackary Pearson, Aaron Myers,
Carter Tatum, Chance Creasy and Nick Montague. (Erica Raymond)

Attachments
Patricia Johnson



Manuel Riddle
Taylor Perez
IT Team
Carter Tatum
Chance Creasy
Nick Montague



         
                                         Employee Name 

 SPOTLIGHT
on Employees 

   
 
 

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 
 

Example:                 

                  

                  

                   

 

                

Supervisor                            Date 







         
                                         Employee Name 

 SPOTLIGHT
on Employees 

   
 
 

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 
 

Example:                 

                  

                  

                   

 

                

Supervisor                            Date 







         
                                         Employee Name 

 SPOTLIGHT
on Employees 

   
 
 

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 
 

Example:                 

                  

                  

                   

 

                

Supervisor                            Date 



From: Austin Wilbanks   
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2023 7:40 PM 
To: Garrett, Jake <jgarrett@gilacountyaz.gov> 
Subject: Re: Taylor Compliment 
  

CAUTION: Please VERIFY the actual email address matches sender name to avoid phishing 
attempts. Since this email originated from outside of Gila County, please be careful when 
deciding to click links or open attachments.  
  
Hello Jake,  
We just wanted to send our compliments to Taylor Perez. She has always provided fantastic customer 
service and always goes above and beyond. She is always very helpful and easy to work with. She is 
friendly and responsive to all questions. Even with being brand new to her position and area she has 
been fantastic to work with. We hope this makes it to her supervisors as well as her to show how much 
her professionalism and customer service is appreciated. 
Sincerely, 
Austin 
Wilbanks Excavating 
  
 



Employee Name 

SPOTLIGHT
on Employees

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 

Example: 

Supervisor Date 







         
                                         Employee Name 

 SPOTLIGHT
on Employees 

   
 
 

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 
 

Example:                 

                  

                  

                   

                   

                   

 

                

Supervisor                            Date 



   

ARF-8578   Public Hearing     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  

Submitted For: Josh Beck, Director 
Submitted By: Patricia Campos, Section 8 Housing Program Administrator
Department: Community Services
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Information
Request/Subject
Request for authorization for the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors to sign the
Civil Rights Certification (HUD form HUD-50077-CR), Certification by State or Local
Official of Public Housing Authority (PHA) Plans Consistency with Consolidated Plan or
State Consolidated Plan (HUD form 50077-SL), and PHA Certification of Compliance
with PHA Plan and Related Regulations(Small PHAs) (HUD form 50077-CRT-SM)
form(s) related to the Gila County Public Housing Authority (PHA) Annual Plan (Fiscal
Year 2024).

Background Information
Each year the Gila County PHA, which is administered by the Gila County Public
Health and Community Services Department, is required to submit an update of its
Annual Plan certifications for the upcoming fiscal year to the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

Evaluation
The Housing and Economic Recovery Act (HERA), Title VII, Small Public Housing
Authorities Paperwork Reduction Act exempted qualified PHAs from the annual plan
requirement.

A qualified PHA is a PHA that:
1.  has a combined unit total of 550 or less public housing units and section 8
vouchers; and
2.  is not designated trouble under section 6(j)(2) of the 1937 Act, the Public Housing
Assessment System (PHAS), as a troubled public housing agency during the prior 12
months; and does not have a failing score under the Section 8 Management
Assessment Program (SEMAP) during the prior 12 months.

The Gila County PHA was recently informed that it is one of the qualified Arizona
Housing Authorities that is not required to submit an Annual PHA Plan; however, a
Civil Rights Certification (HUD form HUD-50077-CR), Certification by State or Local
Official of PHA Plans Consistency with Consolidated Plan or State Consolidated Plan
(HUD form 50077-SL), and PHA Certification of Compliance with PHA Plan and related
regulations(Small PHAs) (HUD form 50077-CRT-SM) are required to be signed by the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors (BOS) upon the approval of the BOS and
submitted to HUD.



Conclusion
In order for the Gila County PHA to meet its requirements related to the PHA FY 2024
Annual Plan, the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors needs to sign the Civil Rights
Certification (HUD form HUD-50077-CR), Certification by State or Local Official of PHA
Plans Consistency with Consolidated Plan or State Consolidated Plan (HUD form
50077-SL), and PHA Certification of Compliance with PHA Plan and related
regulations(Small PHAs) (HUD form 50077-CRT-SM) form which must be submitted to
HUD.

Recommendation
The Public Health and Community Services Department Director recommends that the
Board of Supervisors authorize the Chairman's signature on the Civil Rights
Certification (HUD form HUD-50077-CR), Certification by State or Local Official of PHA
Plans Consistency with Consolidated Plan or State Consolidated Plan (HUD form
50077-SL), and PHA Certification of Compliance with PHA Plan and Related
Regulations(Small PHAs) (HUD form 50077-CRT-SM) which will be submitted to the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development by the Gila County PHA.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review the goals, objectives, and policies of the Gila
County Public Housing Authority (PHA); and authorize the Chairman's signature on
the various required forms related to the Gila County PHA's FY 2024 Annual Plan
certifications. (Stella Gore)

Attachments
Public Notice
Resolution No. 24-04-01
Certification of Compliance
Civil Rights Certification
HUD form 50077-SL



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Gila County Housing Authority will be holding a Public Hearing to 

review all goals, objectives, and policies for the current Gila 

County Public Housing Authority Agency’s (PHA) Annual Plan 

for the Fiscal Year 2024.   The Annual plan and its supporting 

documents are available for review at the Gila County Community 

Services Housing Department, located at 5515 S. Apache Ave., 

Suite 200 Globe, Arizona from Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m.  

to 5:00 p.m.   Residents and public comments should be submitted 

to the Gila County Community Services Housing Department, 

faxed to 928-425-9468 or emailed to pcampos@gilacountyaz.gov 

by Friday March 22, 2024.  The Public Hearing will be held on 

Tuesday April 2, 2024, at 10:00 a.m., at the Gila County 

Courthouse, Board of Supervisors’ Hearing Room located at 1400 

E. Ash Street Globe, Arizona 85501 

 

Persons requiring reasonable accommodations should contact 

(928)425-7631. 

 
Gila County Housing Authority Section 8-Housing Choice Voucher Program is a federally funded program 

through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 

 

 

mailto:pcampos@gilacountyaz.gov


 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-04-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE GILA COUNTY PUBLIC HOUSING 
AUTHORITY TO SUBMIT ITS ANNUAL PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2024 
TO THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development requires Housing 
Agencies to update their Agency’s Annual Plan for FY 2024; and,  
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held to receive public comment on the Gila County Public 
Housing Authority’s Annual Plan for FY 2024; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Public Housing Authority’s Annual Plan for FY 2024 has also 
been reviewed by the Section 8 Resident Advisory Board. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS that: 
 

• The Gila County Public Housing Authority’s Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2024 
• is hereby approved. 

 
• The Chairman of the Gila County Board of Supervisors is authorized and directed to 

execute the required certifications of compliance associated with the Gila County 
Housing Authority’s Annual Plan for FY 2024 and related regulations. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of April 2024, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________________ ______________________________ 
Stephen Christensen, Chairman    James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 
       
Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 



 
                                                               Page 1 of 3              form HUD-50077-CRT-SM  

Certifications of Compliance with 
PHA Plan and Related Regulations 
(Small PHAs) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housing 

OMB No. 2577-0226 
 

 
                    

PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations                            
including PHA Plan Elements that Have Changed 

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairperson or other 
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the___ 5-Year and/or X Annual PHA 
Plan, hereinafter referred to as” the Plan”,  of which this document is a part, and make the following certification and agreements 
with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the PHA fiscal year beginning 7/2024 in which the PHA receives 
assistance under 42 U.S.C. 1437f and/or 1437g in connection with the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:  

1. The Plan is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating 
such strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located (24 CFR § 91.2).  

2. The Plan contains a certification by the appropriate State or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the 
applicable Consolidated Plan, which includes a certification that requires the preparation of an Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (AI) or Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) as applicable, for the PHA's 
jurisdiction and a description of the manner in which the PHA Plan is consistent with the applicable Consolidated 
Plan (24 CFR §§ 91.2, 91.225, 91.325, and 91.425).  

3. The PHA has established a Resident Advisory Board or Boards, the membership of which represents the residents 
assisted by the PHA, consulted with this Board or Boards in developing the Plan, and considered the 
recommendations of the Board or Boards (24 CFR § 903.13). The PHA has included in the Plan submission a 
copy of the recommendations made by the Resident Advisory Board or Boards and a description of the manner in 
which the Plan addresses these recommendations.  

4. The PHA certifies that the following policies, programs, and plan components have been revised since submission 
of its last     

              Annual PHA Plan (check all policies, programs, and components that have been changed): 
___ 903.7a Housing Needs 
___ 903.7b Deconcentration and Other Policies Governing Eligibility, Selection, Occupancy, and Admissions 
Policies 
___ 903.7c Financial Resources 
___ 903.7d Rent Determination Policies 
___ 903.7h Demolition and Disposition 
___ 903.7k Homeownership Programs 
___ 903.7r Additional Information  

___A. Progress in meeting 5-year mission and goals  
___B. Criteria for substantial deviation and significant amendments  
___C. Other information requested by HUD 

___1. Resident Advisory Board consultation process 
___2. Membership of Resident Advisory Board 
___3. Resident membership on PHA governing board 

The PHA provides assurance as part of this certification that: 
(i) The Resident Advisory Board had an opportunity to review and comment on the changes to the policies and 

programs before implementation by the PHA; 
(ii) The changes were duly approved by the PHA Board of Directors (or similar governing body); and  
(iii) The revised policies and programs are available for review and inspection, at the principal office of the 

PHA during normal business hours. 
5. The PHA made the proposed Plan and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public 

inspection at least 45 days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a 
hearing to discuss the Plan and invited public comment.  

6. The PHA certifies that it will carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-2000d—4), the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-19), Section 504 of 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794),  title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12101 



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                    Page 2 of 3                                        form HUD-50077-CRT-SM  

et seq.), and other applicable civil rights requirements and that it will affirmatively further fair housing in the 
administration of the program. In addition, if it administers a Housing Choice Voucher Program, the PHA 
certifies that it will administer the program in conformity with the Fair Housing Act, title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and 
other applicable civil rights requirements, and that it will affirmatively further fair housing in the administration 
of the program.  

7. The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing, which means that it will take meaningful actions to further the 
goals identified in the Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) conducted in accordance with the requirements of 24 
CFR § 5.150 through 5.180, that it will take no action that is materially inconsistent with its obligation to 
affirmatively further fair housing, and that it will address fair housing issues and contributing factors in its 
programs, in accordance with 24 CFR § 903.7(o)(3). The PHA will fulfill the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) 
and 24 CFR § 903.15(d). Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA will fulfill the 
requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) promulgated prior to August 17, 2015, which means that it examines its 
programs or proposed programs; identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those programs; 
addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources available; works with local 
jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that require the 
PHA’s involvement; and maintains records reflecting these analyses and actions.    

8. For a PHA Plan that includes a policy for site-based waiting lists:  
• The PHA regularly submits required data to HUD's 50058 PIC/IMS Module in an accurate, complete and 

timely manner (as specified in PIH Notice 2010-25);  
• The system of site-based waiting lists provides for full disclosure to each applicant in the selection of the 

development in which to reside, including basic information about available sites; and an estimate of the 
period of time the applicant would likely have to wait to be admitted to units of different sizes and types at 
each site;  

• Adoption of site-based waiting lists would not violate any court order or settlement agreement or be 
inconsistent with a pending complaint brought by HUD;  

• The PHA shall take reasonable measures to assure that such waiting list is consistent with affirmatively 
furthering fair housing; and 

• The PHA provides for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is consistent with civil 
rights laws and certifications, as specified in 24 CFR 903.7(c)(1). 

9. The PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975. 

10. In accordance with 24 CFR § 5.105(a)(2), HUD’s Equal Access Rule, the PHA will not make a determination of 
eligibility for housing based on sexual orientation, gender identify, or marital status and will make no inquiries 
concerning the gender identification or sexual orientation of an applicant for or occupant of HUD-assisted 
housing.  

11. The PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures 
for the Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.  

12. The PHA will comply with the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 
Employment Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 
CFR Part 135. 

13. The PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and 
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.  

14. The PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises 
under 24 CFR 5.105(a).  

15. The PHA will provide the responsible entity or HUD any documentation that the responsible entity or HUD needs 
to carry out its review under the National Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance 
with 24 CFR Part 58 or Part 50, respectively.  

16. With respect to public housing the PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD determined wage rate 
requirements under Section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act.  

17. The PHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective audit to determine 
compliance with program requirements.  

18. The PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, the Residential Lead-Based Paint 
Hazard Reduction Act of 1992, and 24 CFR Part 35.  



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                    Page 3 of 3                                        form HUD-50077-CRT-SM  

19. The PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Financial Assistance, including but not 
limited to submitting the assurances required under 24 CFR §§ 1.5, 3.115, 8.50, and 107.25 by submitting an SF-
424, including the required assurances in SF-424B or D, as applicable. 

20. The PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its Plan and 
will utilize covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the regulations and included in its 
Plan.  

21. All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the PHA 
Plan is available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public 
inspection along with the Plan and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all 
other times and locations identified by the PHA in its PHA Plan and will continue to be made available at least at 
the primary business office of the PHA. 

22. The PHA certifies that it is in compliance with applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements, 
including the Declaration of Trust(s).    

 
 
 
 
 
__Gila County Housing Authority___________   _                         AZ045___________ 
PHA Name        PHA Number/HA Code  
 
___5-Year PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20____ - 20____    Annual PHA Plan for Fiscal Year 2024  

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, 
is true and accurate. Warning:  HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or 
civil penalties.  (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802) 

Name of Executive Director:             Name of Board Chairman:  

Josh Beck, Gila County Housing Authority Director                 Stephen Christensen, Board of Supervisors Chairman 

Signature   Date                     Signature       Date  

 

 

 

 

 

The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, U.S. Code, Section 1701 
et seq., and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations.  Responses to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit or to 
retain a benefit.  The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.  This information is collected to ensure compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and related 
laws and regulations including PHA plan elements that have changed. 
 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 0.16 hours per year per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching 
existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD may not collect this information, and 
respondents are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.   

 



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Previous version is obsolete                      Page 1 of 1                                                  form HUD-50077-CR  

Civil Rights Certification 
(Qualified PHAs) 

      U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housing 

OMB Approval No. 2577-0226 

 
                    

Civil Rights Certification 

Annual Certification and Board Resolution 

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairperson or other 
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the 5-Year PHA Plan , hereinafter 
referred to as” the Plan”,  of which this document is a part, and make the following certification and agreements with the Department 
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the fiscal year beginning 07/2024 in which the PHA receives assistance under 42 
U.S.C. 1437f and/or 1437g in connection with the mission, goals, and objectives of the public housing agency and implementation 
thereof:  

The PHA certifies that it will carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-2000d—4), the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-19), Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 
12101 et seq.), and other applicable civil rights requirements and that it will affirmatively further fair housing in 
the administration of the program. In addition, if it administers a Housing Choice Voucher Program, the PHA 
certifies that it will administer the program in conformity with the Fair Housing Act, title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and 
other applicable civil rights requirements, and that it will affirmatively further fair housing in the administration 
of the program. The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing, which means that it will take meaningful 
actions to further the goals identified in the Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) conducted in accordance with 
the requirements of 24 CFR § 5.150 through 5.180, that it will take no action that is materially inconsistent with 
its obligation to affirmatively further fair housing, and that it will address fair housing issues and contributing 
factors in its programs, in accordance with 24 CFR § 903.7(o)(3). The PHA will fulfill the requirements at 24 
CFR § 903.7(o) and 24 CFR § 903.15(d). Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA 
will fulfill the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) promulgated prior to August 17, 2015, which means that it 
examines its programs or proposed programs; identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those 
programs; addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources available; works with 
local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that 
require the PHA’s involvement; and maintains records reflecting these analyses and actions.  
 
Gila County Housing Authority AZ045 
_________________________________________  __________________________________________ 
PHA Name        PHA Number/HA Code  

I hereby certify that all the statement above, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning:  HUD will prosecute 
false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.  (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)  

Name of Executive Director:      Name of Board Chairperson: 

Josh Beck, Gila County Housing Authority Director                                             Stephen Christensen, Board of Supervisors Chairman  

Signature     Date   Signature    Date 

The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to collect the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, U.S. Code, Section 1701 et seq., 
and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations.  Responses to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit.  
The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.  The information is collected to ensure that PHAs carry out applicable civil rights requirements. 

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 0.16 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD may not collect this information, and respondents are not 
required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.   



 

                                                                                                 Page 1 of 1                                      form HUD-50077-SL  

Certification by State or Local U. S Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Official of PHA Plans Consistency  Office of Public and Indian Housing 
with the Consolidated Plan or                                                                    OMB No. 2577-0226 
State Consolidated Plan  
(All PHAs)  

Certification by State or Local Official of PHA Plans  
Consistency with the Consolidated Plan or State Consolidated Plan 

I, __    Stephen Christensen __         _, the          Board of Supervisors Chairman___ 
                         Official’s Name                                                    Official’s Title 
 
certify that the 5-Year PHA Plan for fiscal years and/or Annual PHA Plan for fiscal year 2024 
of the ____Gila County Housing Authority__  
                                          PHA Name                                                   
 
is consistent with the Consolidated Plan or State Consolidated Plan including the Analysis of 
Impediments (AI) to Fair Housing Choice or Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) as applicable to 
the 
 
 
 
 
 __________________________Gila County _______________ _________________________ 

Local Jurisdiction Name 
 
pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91 and 24 CFR §§ 903.7(o)(3) and 903.15. 
 
Provide a description of how the PHA Plan’s contents are consistent with the Consolidated Plan or 
State Consolidated Plan. 
Gila County is consistent with the Consolidated Plan with Fair Housing and provides guidance on  
affordable housing. 
 

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning:  HUD will 
prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.  (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802) 

       
Name of Authorized Official:                     Title: 
 
Stephen Christensen  Board of Supervisors Chairman 
 
 
Signature:                       Date: 
 
 
The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, U.S. 
Code, Section 1701 et seq., and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations.  Responses to the collection of information 
are required to obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit.  The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.  This information is collected to 
ensure consistency with the consolidated plan or state consolidated plan. 
 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 0.16 hours per year per response, including the time for reviewing 
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD 
may not collect this information, and respondents are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.   



   
ARF-8665   Public Hearing     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Tom Homan, GIS Supervisor 
Submitted By: Tom Homan, GIS Supervisor
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 24-04-02 to name a section of road in Payson as South
Rolling Rock Way

Background Information
Two Minor Land Divisions (3365 in 2007 and 4528 in 2015) created 7
parcels from the parent which is accessed from a single road. These
parcels are located of the northwest corner of Geronimo Estates but are
not part of any of the subdivisions and is in an unincorporated area of
Gila County. Recent applications for development have created the need
for road naming and subsequent addressing of the properties.

Evaluation
Rolling Rock Way branches off of Control Road at approximately milepost
5.2 and is in section 20 of T11.5N R10E.

Section 805 of the Addressing Ordinance limits similar sounding names
within the County. The name Rolling Rock is not used elsewhere in Gila
County, so the name selection is satisfied.

The site plans, area maps, and public notices are attached.

Conclusion
Naming this road in the Payson area is supported by the Gila County
Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance Number 2022-06.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 24-04-02 naming a road in the Payson
area as South Rolling Rock Way.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 24-04-02 to name
South Rolling Rock Way in the Payson area. (Homero Vela)

Attachments
Resolution No. 24-04-02
Public Notice Cover Letter
Area Map
Public Notice



After Recording, Please Return to:  
Samantha Trimble - BOS 

   

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-04-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA NAMING A ROAD IN THE PAYSON, ARIZONA 
AREA AS SOUTH ROLLING ROCK WAY. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County Street 
Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on August 2, 
2022; and,  

 
WHEREAS, street names are assigned to implement the uniform assignment of property 
numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the safety of Gila 
County residents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Article 8, Section 805, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 
limits name duplication within the County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Article 8, Section 807, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 
provides guidelines for naming or renaming new or existing streets; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the following street names and locations substantially comply with the provisions 
of Article 8 of the Ordinance: 

 
SOUTH ROLLING ROCK WAY – Section 20 T11.5N R10E 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 
officially recognize the street name set forth above to become effective in conjunction with the 
numbering of properties along said streets and directs the appropriate County departments to 
incorporate these street names uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of April 2024, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 
 
Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________  ____________________________ 
James Menlove, Clerk of the Board Stephen Christensen, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_______________________________ 
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 



Voice: (928) 402-8597 addressing@gilacountyaz.gov 
 

++ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
February 22, 2024 
 
Dear Gila County Resident: 
 
Gila County is in the process of naming a road in the area where you own property.  Our purpose is to comply 
with the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance No. 2022-06 and the Gila County 
Enhanced 911 Telephone System Plan. 
 
Based upon the information we received from the initial mailing we are moving forward.  To date we have received 
75% consensus on a road name per the Ordinance.  We are suggesting the name S Rolling Rock Way to the Board 
of Supervisors.  The formal Public Notice is issued with this letter with the following timeline: 
 

• February 22, 2024 – Public Notice Issued and mailed to property Owners. 
• March 15, 2024 – Deadline for objections to the road name 
• April 2, 2024 – Board of Supervisors hearing to name the road. 

 
If no objections are received in writing that brings the name approval below the 75% threshold by close of business 
on Friday, March 15, 2024, the Rural Addressing Department will assign the road a name and it will be sent to 
the County Attorney’s Office for review, then to the Board of Supervisors for approval.  If there are multiple name 
suggestions, then further discussion would occur to reach a consensus and a new approval date generated. 
 
Please feel free to contact our Rural Addressing Office at (928) 402-8597 with any questions or concerns.  Our 
offices are open from 7:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.   
 
Thank you for taking the time to review this letter.   
 
Respectfully, 

 
Patricia Valenzuela 
GIS Rural Addressing Technician 
Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attachments:   Public Notice 
                        Road Name Petition Form 

• Administration 
• Consolidated Roads 
• Engineering Services 
• Floodplain Management 
• General Services  
• Recycling & Landfill Management 
• Addressing & GIS Services 
• Survey Services 
 

 

Homero Vela, Director 
hvela@gilacountyaz.gov 

 
 

745 N. Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, Arizona 85501 
Phone (928) 402-8502  

Fax (928) 425-8104 
www.gilacountyaz.gov 

 

Public Works Department 





PUBLIC NOTICE 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will hold a 
public hearing for the naming of a road in the Payson area. 

Record of Survey 3365 and Record of Survey 4528 created the initial access easement for several 
new parcels.  Discussions with the property owners have resulted in the selection of a road named 
S Rolling Rock Way.  

To file an objection to the proposed name, residents must file an alternative petition in writing to 
the Rural Addressing Department by Friday, March 15, 2024, at 5:00 p.m., per Gila County Street 
Naming Ordinance No. 2022-06.  Petitions can be obtained through the Rural Addressing 
Department upon request or via the Gila County web site. 

The public hearing to name the road is scheduled for Tuesday, April 2, 2024, at 10:00 a.m., or 
thereafter, located at the Gila County Courthouse, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ.  If you wish 
to speak at the public hearing, please attend in Globe or Payson.  In Payson the hearing is located 
at the Tommie Cline Martin Complex, 707 S. Colcord Road, Payson AZ 85541. 

Inquiries and objections may be directed to: 
Tom Homan, GIS/Addressing Supervisor  
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ  85501 
(928) 402-8597 

 

 
Proposed Road Name Highlighted 



   
ARF-8659   Regular Agenda Item     4. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: David LaForge, Public Works General Services Manager 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2024 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

08-02-22 to 06-30-25 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan
Partners, LLC.

Background Information
On August 2, 2022 the Board of Supervisors approved State Contract
Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan Ford Partners, LLC for the
purchase of Eight (8) New Ford Expeditions.

It is the intent of this solicitation to establish a request of approval to add
sales tax costs to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan Ford
Partners, LLC for the purchase of 8 (eight) new Ford Expeditions; and to
extend the term of the contract through June 30, 2025, due the needed
time for delivery of the vehicles.

The original quotes received from San Tan Ford Partners, LLC did not
have sales tax included and the vehicles were budgeted for $80,000.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan
Partners, LLC for the purchase of eight (8) new Ford Expeditions extends
the term of the contract through June 30, 2025; and increases the
contract by $19,940.90 for a not to exceed contract amount of
$659,940.90.

Conclusion



The Public Works Department Director wishes to execute Amendment No.
1 to State Contract No. CTR059323 with San Tan Partners, LLC. to
extend the term of the contract through June 30, 2025; and to increase
the contract by $19,940.90 for a not to exceed contract amount of
$659,940.90.

The Ford Expeditions mentioned above would allow the Sheriff's Office to
update their fleet of vehicles.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No.
CTR059323 with San Tan Partners, LLC to extend the term of the
contract through June 30, 2025; and to increase the contract by
$19,940.90 for a not to exceed contract amount of $659,940.90.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract
Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan Partners, LLC to extend the
term of the contract through June 30, 2025; and to increase the contract
by $19,940.90. (David LaForge)

Attachments
8/8/22 Staff Report and Proposal
Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement CTR059323
State CTR059323





































































































































































































DocuSign Envelope ID: 7AE6D603-F496-4243-9920-A7948B4C771C

 March17th 22

 CTR059323

3/10/2022



Rev. 04/2020 

 

                         
 

Procurement 
 

STATE OF ARIZONA 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

1739 W. Jackson St., Ste. A 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

 
 
 
 
SOLICITATION NUMBER:  BPM004157 
 
DESCRIPTION: New Vehicle Purchases  
 
QUESTIONS:  Inquiries regarding the solicitation are to be submitted online through the State’s e-Procurement 
system, Arizona Procurement Portal (APP) (https://app.az.gov/) using the Discussion Forum tab. 
 

OFFERORS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  
Thomas Kornell 
Procurement Officer 
Phone:  602-712-8520 
Email: Tkornell@azdot.gov     
 

 
This solicitation is issued in accordance with A.R.S. §41-2534 and A.A.C. R2-7-C301 et seq., Competitive Sealed 
Proposals. 

 
 
 
 

“An Equal Opportunity Agency” 
 
The Arizona Department of Transportation, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252.42 U.S.C. §§ 
2000d-4) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into 
pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this 
invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
Persons that require a reasonable accommodation based on language or disability should contact ADOT’s Procurement Office by phone (602) 
712-2089. Requests should be made as early as possible to ensure the State has an opportunity to address the accommodation. 
 
Las personas que requieran asistencia (dentro de lo razonable) ya sea por el idioma o discapacidad deben ponerse en contacto con ADOT (602) 
712-2089. 

 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 2 of 81 

 

Procurement 

SECTION          PAGE 
 
 Notice 1 

 Table of Contents 2 

Scope of Work 3 

 Special Terms and Conditions 7 

 Uniform Terms and Conditions 19 

 Federal Provisions 29 

 

EXHIBITS  

 1 -  Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances Appendix A 73 
 2 -  Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances Appendix E 74 

 3-    Usage Report Exhibit 3 75 
4-    On-site Manufacturer inspection Compliance Certification Exhibit 4  76 
5-     Pre-Award Audit and Certification Exhibit 5   77 

 6-   Purchaser’s Pre-Award Requirements Certification Exhibit 6  78  
 7-    Post-Award Certification and Requirements Exhibit 7 79 
 8-    Purchaser’s Post-Award Requirements Certification Exhibit 8  81  
   

 

  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SCOPE OF WORK  

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 3 of 81 

 

Procurement 

1. Statement of Need 
 

1.1. Pursuant to the Arizona Procurement Code, A.R.S. §41-2501 et seq., the State of Arizona 
Department of Transportation (Department), has a requirement for New Vehicle Purchase.  

 
2. Introduction and Background 

 

2.1 The State of Arizona Department of Transportation (Department) is seeking to contract with a 
qualified vendor(s) who can provide new vehicles (all fuel types, hybrid, and full electric) including 
but not limited to: Sedans, Trucks up to 19,500 GVWR, Vans, Sport Utility Vehicles (SUVs), and 
Crossovers for the State of Arizona and participating Eligible Agencies. These vehicles will be used to 
support official organizational goals. These vehicles will be used on highways, city/county roads and 
shall be designed to operate under typical Arizona ambient temperatures.  

 

2.2 Background: The State and its Eligible Agencies currently spend an estimated twenty-one million 
dollars in the purchase of new vehicles annually.  

 
2.3 The following are the Three Categories covered in this Scope of Work: 

 Category One: Phase One (1) Vehicle Purchases 

 Category Two: Phase Two (2) Vehicle Purchases 

 Category Three: FTA Funded Vehicles 
 

3 General Requirements 

3.1  Vehicles shall be new and supplied with all equipment and accessories indicated as standard 
equipment in the manufacturer’s published literature (or website). Optional equipment necessary 
to meet the minimum requirements shall be included.  

3.2  All vehicles ordered through Phase 1 (off the line) shall be Manufacturer's current year models in 
production throughout the term of this contract and shall be serviced completely by the vendor 
before delivery and ready in all respects for use. For the initial contract period; vehicles shall be 
new model year 2022 or greater.  

3.3  Vehicles ordered through Phase 2 (on the lot) shall have less than 100 original odometer miles and 
be new (have never been previously owned) unless pre-approved in writing by the Eligible Agency.  

3.4  All vehicles shall meet requirements of applicable Arizona Motor Vehicle laws and all other 
applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (including the Federal Bridge Formula), 
whether or not such requirements are specified in detail.  

3.5  For Phase Two (2) vehicles, the Contractor shall supply a quote within five (5) calendar days after 
receiving a request from the Eligible Agency. The quotation shall include but not be limited to the 
following information: State contract number, vehicle availability and delivery lead-time, Vehicle 
Identification Number (VIN), dealer stock number, vehicle base bid price, itemized options, 
applicable tax, delivery cost, total price, and point of contact. For vehicles requiring up-
fit/modifications, all applicable cost may be included in quotation or as a separate quotation. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SCOPE OF WORK  

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 4 of 81 

 

Procurement 

3.6  Delivery location shall be identified on the issuing agency purchase order. Deliveries shall be made 
within 120 days of receipt of purchase orders, unless factory delays make this impossible. Dealer 
shall notify the ordering agency of such delays along with a revised delivery estimate from the 
factory immediately after it becomes known. If the manufacturer has a website available to check 
order status, this information will be shown in space provided on Offer Response Form. 

3.7  All deliveries shall be made Monday through Friday from 8:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M. The Contractor 
shall be required to give the using agency a minimum of 24-hour notification prior to delivery with 
the anticipated time of delivery and number of units to be delivered.  

3.8  All vehicles shall be delivered with four (4) entrance tools and a full tank(s) of fuel, less delivery 
fuel.  

3.9  The following documents shall be provided upon delivery of the vehicle(s):  

3.9.1 M.S.O. (Manufacturer Statement of Origin) that includes the odometer statement  
3.9.2 Warranty Document  
3.9.3 Manufacturers unaltered invoice  
3.9.4 Delayed warranty / in service start request form (if requested by ordering entity)  
3.9.5 Level 1 Inspection if applicable, completed before delivery  

3.10  For Phase One (1) the Contractor shall provide the Eligible Agency copies of the manufacturer's 
vehicle identification numbers (VIN#) to confirm vehicles have been ordered unless impossible 
due to manufacture delay within ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of a purchase order. If 
confirmation of manufacturer’s VIN #(s) is not received within this timeframe the Eligible Agency 
has the option to award to the second lowest bidder meeting specifications. This shall be 
considered a mandatory requirement and the timeframe must be met unless there is a 
manufacture delay. Failure to provide this document for each vehicle ordered may be cause for 
determination of default of contract. 

 
4 Specific Requirements 

4.1  The Contractors are encouraged to provide a full line of new vehicles (gasoline, hybrid, full 
electric) including but not limited to the following categories: Sedans, Trucks up to 19,500 GVWR, 
Vans (cargo, passenger, transit, etc.), Sport Utility Vehicles (SUVs), and Crossovers. Eligible 
Agencies throughout the State will have varying vehicle needs. Contractors are to provide a full 
line of manufactured new vehicles and all subsequent variants of each vehicle; including but not 
be limited to: models and manufacturer options, trim package, etc. to meet each need of an 
Eligible Agency.  

4.2  As new model year vehicles become available, vendor shall submit pricing at either the same rate 
as the previous model, or submit a request for an increase or decrease based only on the 
manufacturer’s increase or decrease. Documentation must be submitted to the Procurement 
Officer within 30 days of the effective date of change. New model year vehicles cannot be offered 
without approval from the Procurement Officer.  

4.3  The following fuel types are allowable under this contract are to include but are not limited too.  

4.3.1 Flexible Fuel Vehicles (FFV) also called Ethanol or E85  
4.3.2 Diesel  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SCOPE OF WORK  

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 5 of 81 

 

Procurement 

4.3.3 Gasoline  
4.3.4 Compressed Natural Gas (CNG): CNG systems must be O.E.M. or O.E.M. approved  
4.3.5 Hybrid-Electric Vehicles (HEV)  
4.3.6 Plug-in Hybrid Electric Vehicles (PHEV)  
4.3.7 Electric Vehicles (EV) also called Battery Electric Vehicles (BEV)  
4.3.8 Fuel Cell Vehicles (FCV)  

4.4 Vehicle Up-fit / Modifications  

4.4.1 The Eligible Agency may request the awarded Contractor(s) to up-fit/modify any vehicle for 
specific organizational needs. For example, the cab and chassis of ½ ton, ¾ ton, and/or up to 
19,500 GVW trucks may require a specialized body (i.e.: dump body, landscape body, etc.). 
Other vehicles may require interior and/or exterior modifications per the individual Eligible 
Agency.  

4.4.2 The Eligible Agency will supply all up-fit/modification requests to the Contractor. The 
Contractor shall identify any conditions that apply to the up-fit/modification on a quotation 
to the Eligible Agency for review before any work commences.  

4.5 Minimum Vehicle Requirements: All prices shall include the following equipment: 
 

4.5.1 All standard factory equipment  

4.5.2 Automatic transmission [maximum towing/payload capacity shall be provided upon request)  

4.5.3 Bluetooth capabilities  

4.5.4 AM/FM radio  

4.5.5 Cruise Control  

4.5.6 Power Door Locks/Power Windows  
4.5.7 Power Mirrors when available  

4.5.8 Four (4) entrance tools (in any combination allowed; keyless entry remotes, integrated or 
smart keys, standard cut keys) per vehicle.  
a. Type of keys to be provided shall be indicated on quote.  

4.5.9 Air conditioning  
a. Rear air conditioning on all vehicles, when available  

4.5.10 Cloth seats  

4.5.11 Rear view mirrors including on driver and passenger doors  
a.  FOR TRUCKS: Rear view mirrors on driver front and passenger front doors, largest 

available without upgrading vehicle options package.  

b. Back up Camera 

4.5.12 Spare tire  
a.  Full size standard steel wheel with matching Original Equipment Manufacturer spare tire 

identical to standard equipment with the trim level of the delivered vehicle.  

b. If full spare is not available due to space or manufacturer standards, an alternative shall 
be provided and noted on quote provided.  

4.5.13 Floor Mats  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SCOPE OF WORK  

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 6 of 81 

 

Procurement 

a.  O.E.M. floor mat sets installed in all seating rows where the vehicle comes with 
carpeted floors.  

b. Fixed driver floor mat  

4.5.14 Arizona legal tinted glass  

4.5.15 Minimum of 2 USB charging Ports 

4.6 Specific Requirements for Trucks (when available)  
4.6.1 Anti-slip differential for two-wheel drive pickup trucks, ¾ ton, up to 19,500 GVW.  

4.6.2 Skid plate package and anti-slip differential for four-wheel drive vehicles  

4.6.3 Front tow hooks 

 
5 Contractor’s Responsibilities 

Contractor shall be responsible for processing the registration, licensing, title and plating of all new 
vehicles ordered only if requested by the Eligible Agency. 

6 Department’s Responsibilities 

The Eligible Agencies will provide final acceptance and approval of any equipment and services delivered 

 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 7 of 81 

 

Procurement 

1. CONTRACT TERM 
 
The term of any resultant contract shall commence on the effective day of award and shall continue for 
a period of twelve months (12) thereafter, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise 
provided herein. 
 

2. CONTRACT EXTENSION 
 
By mutual written contract amendment, any resultant contract may be extended for supplemental 
periods of up to a maximum of forty-eight (48) months. 
 

3. ELIGIBLE AGENCIES 
 
This contract shall be for the use of all State of Arizona departments, agencies and boards. In addition, 
eligible universities, political subdivisions and nonprofit educational or public health institutions may 
participate at their discretion. In order to participate in any resultant contract, a university, political 
subdivision or nonprofit educational or public health institution must have entered into a cooperative 
purchasing agreement with the State Procurement Office as required by Arizona Revised Statutes §41-
2632. 
 

4. NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT 
 
This contract shall be for the sole convenience of the Department. The Department reserves the right to 
obtain like goods or services from another source when necessary. The Off-Contract Purchase 
Authorization and subsequent procurement shall be consistent with the Arizona Procurement Code. 
 

5. ORDERING PROCESS 
 
The Department shall issue a purchase order to the Contractor. Each purchase order must cite the 
contract number. This purchase order shall be the only document required for the Department to order 
and the Contractor to deliver the material and/or service. 
 
Any attempts to represent any material and/or service not specifically awarded as being under contract 
is a breach of the contract and a violation of the Arizona Procurement Code. Any such action is subject 
to the legal and contractual remedies available to the State inclusive of but not limited to contract 
cancellation, suspension and/or debarment of the Contractor. 
 

6. SHIPPING TERMS 
 
Delivery shall be F.O.B. Destination to the location designated herein. Contractor shall retain title and 
control of all goods until they are delivered. All risk of transportation and related charges shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the 
Contractor. The Department will notify the Contractor promptly of any damaged goods and shall assist 
the Contractor in arranging for inspection. 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 8 of 81 

 

Procurement 

7. DELIVERY 

Contract prices shown for each vehicle include delivery cost within a sixty (60) mile radius of Phoenix.  

For the purpose of this contract, the address used for mapping the radius within Phoenix will be as 
follows:  

Equipment services shop/ADOT 
2225 S 22nd Ave, Phoenix, AZ 85009 

 

Delivery costs for each county outside of the Phoenix area shall be indicated on Offer Response form. 

This will be an added cost to the contract price.  

Deliveries shall be completed In accordance with the requirements of the contract.  
Delivery of the product does not constitute acceptance. 
 

8. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE 
 
Each item delivered shall be subject to a complete inspection by the Department within 10 days after 
delivery. Inspection criteria shall include, but not be limited to, conformity to the specifications, 
workmanship, quality and materials. 
 
If the delivered product is not accepted and returned for corrective action, an additional fifteen (15) 
calendar days shall be allowed for inspection of the corrected or replacement product. 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for the transport of the material to and from the Department for the 
correction of items or workmanship not in compliance with the specifications. 
 
Product returned for corrective action may delay payment. Invoices will be processed for payment only 
after the product is accepted. 
 

9. INVOICING and PAYMENT 
 
Contractor shall submit all billing notices or invoices to the Eligible Agency or Co-Op Buyer at the address 
Indicated on the applicable Order document.  
 
Separate invoices are required for each shipment of product or delivery of service and shall include at a 
minimum: 
 

 Department Location’s Name and Address 

 Vendor Name, Remit to Address and Contact Information 

  Contract Number 

 Purchase Order Number 

 Invoice Number and Date 

 Date the items were shipped to the Department 

 Applicable payment terms 

 Contract Line Item Number 

 Line Item Description or Item or Service 

 Quantity Purchased 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 9 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 Line Item Unit of Measure 

 Price per Unit and Total per Unit 

 Catalog or Other Discount (if applicable) 

 Net Unit Price and Total per Unit (if applicable) 

 Applicable taxes (as a separate invoice line item) 

 Applicable Shipping/Freight Charges etc. (as a separate invoice line item) Materials only. 

 Total Invoice Amount Due 
 
Invoices not sent to the proper address, or not containing the necessary and required information may 
delay payment. A Contractor whose payments are delayed due to improper invoicing shall make no claim 
against the Department or the State for late or finance charges. 
 
The Department will make every effort to process payment for the purchase of product within thirty (30) 
calendar days after the Department has conducted the necessary reviews, inspections and acceptance as 
described herein.  
 
The department acceptance date will be the valid date for starting the thirty (30) calendar day payment 
period. 
 
Payment due dates, including discount periods, will be computed from the date of acceptance or date of 
correct invoice (whichever is later) to the date the Department’s warrant is mailed. 
 

10. ESTIMATED USAGE 
 
The Department anticipates considerable usage under this contract. The Department reserves the right 
to increase or decrease actual quantities ordered as circumstances may require. No guarantees are 
made concerning actual purchases under this contract. 
 

11. PRICING 

1 Phase 1 and 2 pricing for vehicles shall be a minimum Percentage off MSRP, less the manufacturer’s 
rebates and any additional discounts available for that model/power-train combination. 

  
a. Contractor shall provide a copy of manufacturer’s invoice to the ordering agency upon request. 

The manufacturer’s invoice shall be unaltered to include original pricing from the manufacturer.  
b.  Transportation costs to transfer a vehicle from another dealer for a Phase 2 or purchase from 

stock may be added to the cost of the vehicle. The justification for this cost is at the discretion of 
the Eligible Agency.  

c.  Any reference to Phase 1 pricing shall be in reference to vehicles ordered prior to the factory 
cut-off date.  

d.  Any reference to Phase 2 pricing shall be in reference to vehicles purchased from stock or “on 
the lot”.  

e.  Phase 2 pricing shall receive the same cost considerations as Phase 1 pricing, all discounts and 
rebates should be passed onto the Eligible Agency. 

f.  All vehicles are to be billed at prices in effect at the time of order, not the date of shipment.  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 10 of 81 

 

Procurement 

g. Pricing for vehicles shall include all discounts and deductions, less Federal and State taxes. 
Pricing shall be firm for life of contract unless amended by way of contract change order.  

 
 

2 CONTRACTOR’S BEST PRICING: Supplier warrants that, for the term of the Contract, the prices and 
discounts set out in the Pricing Documents, including any subsequent agreed amendment to it (the 
“Contract Pricing”), will be equal to or better than the lowest prices and largest discounts, both 
separately and in combination, at which Contractor sells equivalent items of equipment and 
materials. 

  
2.1 That price-plus-discount equivalence (“Contractor’s Best Pricing”) is intended to be irrespective 

of whether or not those other sales have special purchase terms, conditions, rebates or 
allowances.  

2.2 If Contractor’s Best Pricing for equivalent items of equipment and materials is better than the 
Contract Pricing, then Contractor agrees to adjust the Contract Pricing to match the Contractor’s 
Best Pricing for all sales related to the Contractor made after the date when the Contractor’s 
Best Pricing was first better than the Contract Pricing.  

2.3  For clarification of intent, that date is intended to be the date when the difference first 
occurred, which might have been before the difference was first identified. If it was before, then 
Supplier agrees to charge at less than the Contract Pricing until the extended difference that 
would have been realized (i.e., if the Contractor’s Best Pricing had been applied when it should 
have been) has been settled.  

 
3 PRICING-ALL-INCLUSIVE: Pricing is all-inclusive, including any ancillary fees and costs required to 

accomplish the Scope of Work and all aspects of Contractor’s offer as accepted by State. Details of 
service not explicitly stated in the Scope of Work or in Contractor’s Offer, but necessarily a part of, 
are deemed to be understood by Contractor and included herein. All administrative, reporting, or 
other requirements, all overhead costs and profit and any other costs toward the accomplishment 
of the requirements in the Contract are included in the pricing provided. 

 
4 LARGE VOLUME DISCOUNT PRICING: An Eligible Agency may seek to obtain additional volume 

discount pricing for large orders provided Contractor is willing to offer additional discounts for large 
volume orders. No amendment to this Contract is necessary for Contractor to offer discount pricing 
to an Eligible Agency for large volume purchases. 

 
5  A price reduction adjustment may be offered at any time during the term of a contract and shall 

become effective upon notice through a written contract amendment. 
 
 

12. PRICE INCREASE  
 
The Department will review fully documented requests for price increases for any contract which will or 
has been in effect for twelve (12) months. The request shall be submitted no less than 60 days prior to 
the contract renewal date. The Contractor shall provide fully documented information which supports 
the price increase request. Fully documented means that the request shall present detailed information 
and calculations that make it clear how the claimed increase has an impact on the contract unit prices. 
All assumptions regarding cost factors that have an impact on the requested increase shall also be 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 11 of 81 

 

Procurement 

clearly identified and justified. The requested price increase must be based upon a cost increase that 
was clearly unpredictable at the time of the offer and can be shown to directly affect the price of the 
item concerned. Any price increase adjustment request prior to the time of contract extension will be a 
factor in the extension review process. The Department will determine whether the requested price 
increase or an alternate option, is in the best interest of the State. All pricing should reflect the 
minimum percentage of MSRP. 
 

13. SAFETY STANDARDS 
 

Items supplied under this contract shall comply with all current applicable safety standards and 
regulations including the Occupational Safety and Health Standards of the State of Arizona Industrial 
Commission, the National Electric Code and the National Fire Protection Association Standards. 
 

14. WARRANTY 
 
The Contractor warrants: 
 
1. That all services performed hereunder shall conform to the requirements of this contract and shall be 

performed by qualified personnel in accordance with the highest professional standards. 
 

2  At a minimum all equipment supplied under these specifications shall be fully warranted by the 
vehicle manufacturer against mechanical and electrical defects for a minimum period of thirty-six 
(36) months from the date vehicle is placed in service. 

3  This warranty shall cover such items as actual repair labor, parts, and shipping charges to and from 
the nearest service facility or other designated repair depot.  

4 Any defects of design, workmanship or material, shall be fully corrected by the vendor without cost 
to the state agency or political subdivision.  

5  The written warranty shall be included with the delivered vehicles to the Eligible Agency. The 
warranty terms shall be stated on Attachment 3-A, where indicated. Failure to provide this general 
information may result in the offer being rejected.  

6 Hybrid / Electric Vehicle Warranty: Hybrid-related components including catalytic convertor, 
electronic control unit, onboard emissions diagnostic device, high voltage battery, transmission, 
DC/DC convertor for hybrid vehicles shall be covered for 8 years/100,000 miles, battery for electric 
vehicles shall be 8/years/100,000 miles and bidder shall indicate limitation of warranty due to 
voltage and amps. The warranty terms shall be stated where indicated on Attachment 3-A. Failure to 
provide this general information may result in the bid being rejected.  

15. CURRENT PRODUCTS 
 
All products supplied under this contract shall be in current and ongoing production; shall have been 
formally announced for general marketing purposes; shall be a model or type currently functioning in a user 
(paying customer) environment and capable of meeting or exceeding all specifications and requirements set 
forth in the contract. 
 

16. PRODUCT DISCONTINUANCE 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 12 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
In the event that a product or model is discontinued by the manufacturer, the Department at its sole 
discretion may allow the Contractor to provide a substitute for the discontinued item. The Contractor 
shall request authorization to substitute a new product or model and provide the following: 
 
1. A formal announcement from the manufacturer that the product or model has been 

discontinued. 
 
2. Documentation from the manufacturer that names the replacement product or model. 
 
3. Documentation that provides clear and convincing evidence that the replacement meets or 

exceeds all specifications required by the original solicitation. 
 
4. Documentation that provides clear and convincing evidence that the replacement will be 

compatible with all the functions or uses of the discontinued product or model. 
 
5. Documentation confirming that the price for the replacement is the same as or less than the 

discontinued product or model. 
 

17. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The Contractor shall contact the assigned Procurement Officer for guidance or direction in matters of 
contract interpretation or questions regarding the terms, conditions or scope of the contract.  
 

18. NOTICES 
 
All notices, requests, demands, consents, approvals, and other communications which may or are 
required to be served or given hereunder (for the purposes of this provisions collectively called 
“Notices”), shall be in writing and shall be sent by certified United States mail, return receipt requested, 
or by any other method that provides evidence of receipt, addressed to the party or parties to receive 
such notice as follows: 
 
A. If intended for the State, to: 
 

Arizona Department of Transportation, Procurement Group 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007-3276 

 
B. If intended for the Contractor, to the address as identified in the Contractor’s electronic vendor 

profile. Or to such other address as either party may from time to time furnish in writing to the other 
by notice hereunder. Any notice so mailed shall be deemed to have been given as of the date such 
notice is received as shown on the return receipt. Furthermore, such notice may be given by 
delivering personally such notice, if intended for the State, to the Arizona Department of 
Transportation, Procurement Officer and, if intended for the Contractor, to the person named on the 
Offer & Contract Award of this contract, or to such other person as either party may from time to 
time furnish in writing to the other by notice hereunder. Any notice so delivered shall be deemed to 
have been given as of the date such notice is personally delivered to the other party. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 13 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
19. CANCELLATION FOR POSSESSION OF WEAPONS ON ADOT PROPERTY 

 
This contract may be cancelled if Contractor or any subcontractors or others in the employ or under the 
supervision of the Contractor or subcontractors is found to be in possession of weapons. 
 
Possession of weapons (firearms, explosive device, knife or blade of more than three inches, or any 
other instrument designed for lethal or disabling use) is prohibited on ADOT property. 
 
Further, if the Contractor or any subcontractors or others in the employ or under the supervision of the 
Contractors or subcontractors are asked by an ADOT official to leave the ADOT property, they are 
advised that failure to comply with such a request shall result in cancellation of the contract and anyone 
who refuses, whether armed or not, is subject to prosecution under A.R.S. § 13-1502, "Criminal trespass 
in the third degree; classification."  
 

20. INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE 

  
 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State 

of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim 
processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal 
injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be 
caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its 
owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or subcontractors. This indemnity includes any claim or 
amount arising out of, or recovered under, the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure 
of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state, or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, or 
court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except 
for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified 
by Contractor from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that Contractor will be responsible for 
primary loss investigation, defense, and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable. In 
consideration of the award of this contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation 
against the State of Arizona, its officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from the work 
performed by the Contractor for the State of Arizona. This indemnity shall not apply if the contractor or 
sub-contractor(s) is/are an agency, board, commission or university of the State of Arizona. 
 

21. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

21.1 Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain, until all of their obligations have 
been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract, insurance against claims 
for injury to persons or damage to property arising from, or in connection with, the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees 
or subcontractors. 
 

21.2 The Insurance Requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way 
limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract. The State of Arizona in no way 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 14 of 81 

 

Procurement 

warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the Contractor 
from liabilities that arise out of the performance of the work under this Contract by the 
Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, and the Contractor is 
free to purchase additional insurance. 
 

21.3 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of 
liability not less than those stated below. 
 
21.3.1 Commercial General Liability (CGL) – Occurrence Form 

  The Contractor shall furnish Certificate(s) of Insurance inclusive of the following 
requirements to the Department.  Certificate(s) shall be received within 10 calendar 
days of notification of contract award by the Procurement Officer. 

 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, and broad form 

 
contractual liability coverage. 
 
• General Aggregate $2,000,000 
• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
• Damage to Rented Premises $50,000 
• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 
 
a. The policy shall be endorsed, as required by this written agreement, 
to include the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, 
commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees 
as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the 
activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement, as required 
by this written agreement, in favor of the State of Arizona, and its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, 
officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 
 

21.3.2 Business Automobile Liability 
 

Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or non-owned 
automobiles used in the performance of this Contract. 
 
• Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 
 
a. Policy shall be endorsed, as required by this written agreement, to 
include the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, 
commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees 
as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the 
activities performed by, or on behalf of, the Contractor involving 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 15 of 81 

 

Procurement 

automobiles owned, hired and/or non-owned by the Contractor. 
 
b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement as required 
by this written agreement in favor of the State of Arizona, and its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, 
officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 
 

21.3.3 Workers’ Compensation and Employers' Liability 
• Workers' Compensation                                       Statutory 
• Employers' Liability 
o Each Accident                                                  $1,000,000 
o Disease – Each Employee                              $1,000,000 
o Disease – Policy Limit                                     $1,000,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement, as required by this written 
agreement, in favor of the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, 
commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses arising 
from work performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 
 

b. This requirement shall not apply to each Contractor or subcontractor that is exempt 
under A.R.S. § 23-901, and when such Contractor or subcontractor executes the 
appropriate waiver form (Sole Proprietor or Independent Contractor).  
 

21.4 Additional Insurance Requirements The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, as 
required by this written agreement, the following provisions:  

 
21.4.1 The Contractor's policies, as applicable, shall stipulate that the insurance afforded the 

Contractor shall be primary and that any insurance carried by the Department, its 
agents, officials, employees or the State of Arizona shall be excess and not contributory 
insurance, as provided by A.R.S. § 41-621 (E).  

21.4.2 Insurance provided by the Contractor shall not limit the Contractor’s liability assumed 
under the indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
21.5   Notice of Cancellation Applicable to all insurance policies required within the Insurance 

Requirements of this Contract, Contractor’s insurance shall not be permitted to expire, be 
suspended, be canceled, or be materially changed for any reason without thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the State of Arizona. Within two (2) business days of receipt, Contractor 
must provide notice to the State of Arizona if they receive notice of a policy that has been or 
will be suspended, canceled, materially changed for any reason, has expired, or will be 
expiring. Such notice shall be sent directly to the Department and shall be mailed, emailed, 
hand delivered or sent by facsimile transmission to (State Representative’s Name, Address & 
Fax Number). 

 
21.6   Acceptability of Insurers Contractor’s insurance shall be placed with companies licensed in the 

State of Arizona or hold approved non-admitted status on the Arizona Department of 
Insurance List of Qualified Unauthorized Insurers. Insurers shall have an “A.M. Best” rating of 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 16 of 81 

 

Procurement 

not less than A- VII. The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the above-required minimum 
insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
21.7   Verification of Coverage Contractor shall furnish the State of Arizona with certificates of 

insurance (valid ACORD form or equivalent approved by the State of Arizona) evidencing that 
Contractor has the insurance as required by this Contract. An authorized representative of the 
insurer shall sign the certificates. 

 
21.7.1 All such certificates of insurance and policy endorsements must be received by the 

State before work commences. The State’s receipt of any certificates of insurance or 
policy endorsements that do not comply with this written agreement shall not waive 
or otherwise affect the requirements of this agreement.  

 
21.7.2 Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at, or prior to, 

commencement of work under this Contract. Failure to maintain the insurance 
policies as required by this Contract, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material 
breach of contract. 

 
21.7.3 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to the Department. The 

State of Arizona project/contract number and project description shall be noted on 
the certificate of insurance. The State of Arizona reserves the right to require 
complete copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract at any time. 

 
21.8 Subcontractors Contractor’s certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its 

policies or Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring and/or verifying that all subcontractors 
have valid and collectable insurance as evidenced by the certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to the 
minimum Insurance Requirements identified above. The Department reserves the right to 
require, at any time throughout the life of the Contract, proof from the Contractor that its 
subcontractors have the required coverage. 

 
21.9 Approval and Modifications the Contracting Agency, in consultation with State Risk, reserves 

the right to review or make modifications to the insurance limits, required coverages, or 
endorsements throughout the life of this contract, as deemed necessary. Such action will not 
require a formal Contract amendment but may be made by administrative action. 

 
21.10 Exceptions In the event the Contractor or subcontractor(s) is/are a public entity, then the 

Insurance Requirements shall not apply. Such public entity shall provide a certificate of self-
insurance. If the Contractor or subcontractor(s) is/are a State of Arizona agency, board, 
commission, or university, none of the above shall apply. 

 
22. USAGE REPORT 

 
The Contractor shall furnish Two (2) Usage reports, the first to the Department on a quarterly basis 
showing purchasing activity under this contract.  This usage report shall be provided in a form 
substantially equivalent to Exhibit 03.  Usage reports shall be submitted to the Procurement Officer no 
later than 30 days after the end of each quarter. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 17 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
Usage report quarters shall be defined as follows: 

 January through March – Report due April 30 

 April through June – Report due July 30 

 July through September – Report due October 30 

 October through December – Report due January 30 
 
Contractor shall submit the second to the State documenting all Contract sales to both Eligible Agencies 
and Co-Op Buyers, itemized separately. A Quarterly Usage Report shall still be submitted; even if there 
have been no sales to either Eligible Agencies and/or Co-Op Buyers. Contractor shall further itemize 
divisions, groups or areas within a given Eligible Agency if they place Orders independently of each 
other. Failure to submit the report is a material breach of contract, and will entitle State to its remedies 
under Article 8 and its right to terminate for default under Article 9. Contractor shall submit the report 
using the forms and following the instructions on the State Procurement Office website:  
 

https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee 
 

23. CONTRACT ORDER OF PRECEDENCE  
 
In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the Contract, as accepted by the Department and as 
they may be amended, the following shall prevail in the order set forth below:  

 Federal Provisions 

 Special Terms and Conditions 

 Uniform Terms and Conditions 

 Statement or Scope of Work 

 Specifications 

 Attachments 

 Exhibits 

 Special Instructions to Offerors 

 Uniform Instructions to Offerors 

 Other documents referenced or included in the Solicitation 

24. LICENSES, PERMITS, CERTIFICATIONS  
 
Contractor, at their expense, shall maintain in current status without any violations, complaints, or 
suspensions during the term of this contract all Federal, State and Local licenses, permits and 
certifications required for the operation of a business conducted by the Contractor. 
 

25. CO-OP USAGE 
 

Contractor shall verify if an ordering entity is a bona fide Co-Op Buyer before selling Materials to or 
providing Services for them under the Contract. The current list of Co-Op Buyers is available on the State 
Procurement Office website: 
 

https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee 

https://app.az.gov/
https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee
https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 18 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
Contractor shall sell to Co-Op Buyers at the same price, and with the same lead times and other terms 
and conditions under which it sells to Eligible Agencies. With the sole exception of any legitimate 
additional costs for extraordinary shipping, or delivery requirements, if the Co-Op Buyer is having 
Materials delivered or installed or Services performed at locations not contemplated in the contracted 
pricing (e.g. delivery to a location outside Arizona). 
 
Contractor shall acknowledge each Order from Co-Op Buyers in conformance with each buyer’s 
instructions given at the time of ordering or in any supplemental participating agreement Contractor 
might have with them. Orders from Co-Op Buyers create no obligation on State’s part, since they are 
entirely between the Co-Op Buyer and Contractor. That notwithstanding, Contractor’s obligation under 
the Contract is to service Co-Op Buyers commercially as though they were with an Eligible Agency, and 
Contractor’s refusal to do so would be a material breach of the Contract. 
 
 

26. POST AWARD MEETING 
 
At the discretion of the Department, the Contractor, at their expense, shall attend and participate in 
post award meetings as scheduled by the Procurement Officer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 19 of 81 

 

Procurement 

1. Definition of Terms 

As used in this Solicitation and any resulting Contract, the terms listed below are defined as 
follows: 

 1.1. “Attachment” means any item the Solicitation requires the Offeror to submit as part of 
the Offer. 

1.2. “Contract” means the combination of the Solicitation, including the Uniform and Special 
Instructions to Offerors, the Uniform and Special Terms and Conditions, and the 
Specifications and Statement or Scope of Work; the Offer and any Best and Final Offers; 
and any Solicitation Amendments or Contract Amendments. 

1.3. "Contract Amendment" means a written document signed by the Procurement Officer 
that is issued for the purpose of making changes in the Contract. 

1.4. “Contractor” means any person who has a Contract with the State. 

1.5. “Days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 

1.6. “Exhibit” means any item labeled as an Exhibit in the Solicitation or placed in the 
Exhibits section of the Solicitation.   

1.7. “Gratuity” means a payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services, or 
anything of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of 
substantially equal or greater value is received. 

1.8. “Materials” means all property, including equipment, supplies, printing, insurance and 
leases of property but does not include land, a permanent interest in land or real 
property or leasing space. 

1.9. “Procurement Officer” means the person, or his or her designee, duly authorized by the 
State to enter into and administer Contracts and make written determinations with 
respect to the Contract. 

1.10. “Services” means the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a contractor or subcontractor 
which does not involve the delivery of a specific end product other than required 
reports and performance, but does not include employment agreements or collective 
bargaining agreements. 

1.11. “Subcontract” means any Contract, express or implied, between the Contractor and 
another party or between a subcontractor and another party delegating or assigning, in 
whole or in part, the making or furnishing of any material or any service required for the 
performance of the Contract. 

1.12. “State” means the State of Arizona and Department or Agency of the State that 
executes the Contract. 

1.13. “State Fiscal Year” means the period beginning with July 1 and ending June 30.  

2. Contract Interpretation 

2.1. Arizona Law.  The Arizona law applies to this Contract including, where applicable, the 
Uniform Commercial Code as adopted by the State of Arizona and the Arizona 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 20 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Procurement Code, Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) Title 41, Chapter 23, and its 
implementing rules, Arizona Administrative Code (A.A.C.) Title 2, Chapter 7. 

2.2. Implied Contract Terms.  Each provision of law and any terms required by law to be in 
this Contract are a part of this Contract as if fully stated in it. 

2.3. Contract Order of Precedence.  In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the 
Contract, as accepted by the State and as they may be amended, the following shall 
prevail in the order set forth below: 

 Federal Provisions 

 Special Terms and Conditions 

 Uniform Terms and Conditions 

 Statement or Scope of Work 

 Specifications 

 Attachments 

 Exhibits 

 Special Instructions to Offerors 

 Uniform Instructions to Offerors 

 Other documents referenced or included in the Solicitation 

2.4. Relationship of Parties.  The Contractor under this Contract is an independent 
Contractor. Neither party to this Contract shall be deemed to be the employee or agent 
of the other party to the Contract. 

2.5. Severability.  The provisions of this Contract are severable.  Any term or condition 
deemed illegal or invalid shall not affect any other term or condition of the Contract. 

2.6. No Parole Evidence.  This Contract is intended by the parties as a final and complete 
expression of their agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no 
usage of the trade shall supplement or explain any terms used in this document and no 
other understanding either oral or in writing shall be binding. 

2.7. No Waiver.  Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition 
of the Contract shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party 
accepting or acquiescing in the nonconforming performance knows of the nature of the 
performance and fails to object to it. 

3. Contract Administration and Operation 

3.1. Records.  Under A.R.S. § 35-214 and § 35-215, the Contractor shall retain and shall 
contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data and other “records” relating 
to the acquisition and performance of the Contract for a period of five years after the 
completion of the Contract.  All records shall be subject to inspection and audit by the 
State at reasonable times.  Upon request, the Contractor shall produce a legible copy of 
any or all such records. 

3.2. Non-Discrimination.  The Contractor shall comply with State Executive Order No. 2009-
09 and all other applicable Federal and State laws, rules and regulations, including the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 21 of 81 

 

Procurement 

3.3. Audit.  Pursuant to ARS § 35-214, at any time during the term of this Contract and five 
(5) years thereafter, the Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s books and records shall be 
subject to audit by the State and, where applicable, the Federal Government, to the 
extent that the books and records relate to the performance of the Contract or 
Subcontract. 

3.4. Facilities Inspection and Materials Testing.  The Contractor agrees to permit access to its 
facilities, subcontractor facilities and the Contractor’s processes or services, at 
reasonable times for inspection of the facilities or materials covered under this Contract.  
The State shall also have the right to test, at its own cost, the materials to be supplied 
under this Contract.  Neither inspection of the Contractor’s facilities nor materials 
testing shall constitute final acceptance of the materials or services.  If the State 
determines non-compliance of the materials, the Contractor shall be responsible for the 
payment of all costs incurred by the State for testing and inspection. 

3.5. Notices.  Notices to the Contractor required by this Contract shall be made by the State 
to the person indicated on the Offer and Acceptance form submitted by the Contractor 
unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  Notices to the State required by the Contract 
shall be made by the Contractor to the Solicitation Contact Person indicated on the 
Solicitation cover sheet, unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  An authorized 
Procurement Officer and an authorized Contractor representative may change their 
respective person to whom notice shall be given by written notice to the other and an 
amendment to the Contract shall not be necessary. 

3.6. Advertising, Publishing and Promotion of Contract.  The Contractor shall not use, 
advertise or promote information for commercial benefit concerning this Contract 
without the prior written approval of the Procurement Officer. 

3.7. Property of the State.  Any materials, including reports, computer programs and other 
deliverables, created under this Contract are the sole property of the State.  The 
Contractor is not entitled to a patent or copyright on those materials and may not 
transfer the patent or copyright to anyone else.  The Contractor shall not use or release 
these materials without the prior written consent of the State. 

3.8. Ownership of Intellectual Property.  Any and all intellectual property, including but not 
limited to copyright, invention, trademark, trade name, service mark, and/or trade 
secrets created or conceived pursuant to or as a result of this contract and any related 
subcontract (“Intellectual Property”), shall be work made for hire and the State shall be 
considered the creator of such Intellectual Property.  The agency, department, division, 
board or commission of the State of Arizona requesting the issuance of this contract 
shall own (for and on behalf of the State) the entire right, title and interest to the 
Intellectual Property throughout the world.  Contractor shall notify the State, within 
thirty (30) days, of the creation of any Intellectual Property by it or its subcontractor(s). 
Contractor, on behalf of itself and any subcontractor(s), agrees to execute any and all 
document(s) necessary to assure ownership of the Intellectual Property vests in the 
State and shall take no affirmative actions that might have the effect of vesting all or 
part of the Intellectual Property in any entity other than the State. The Intellectual 
Property shall not be disclosed by contractor or its subcontractor(s) to any entity not the 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 22 of 81 

 

Procurement 

State without the express written authorization of the agency, department, division, 
board or commission of the State of Arizona requesting the issuance of this contract.  

3.9. Federal Immigration and Nationality Act.  The contractor shall comply with all federal, 
state and local immigration laws and regulations relating to the immigration status of 
their employees during the term of the contract. Further, the contractor shall flow down 
this requirement to all subcontractors utilized during the term of the contract. The State 
shall retain the right to perform random audits of contractor and subcontractor records 
or to inspect papers of any employee thereof to ensure compliance. Should the State 
determine that the contractor and/or any subcontractors be found noncompliant, the 
State may pursue all remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to; suspension 
of work, termination of the contract for default and suspension and/or debarment of 
the contractor. 

 
3.10 E-Verify Requirements.  In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor warrants 

compliance with all Federal immigration laws and regulations relating to employees and 
warrants its compliance with Section A.R.S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
3.11 Offshore Performance of Work Prohibited. 

Any services that are described in the specifications or scope of work that directly serve 
the State of Arizona or its clients and involve access to secure or sensitive data or 
personal client data shall be performed within the defined territories of the United 
States. Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications, this paragraph does not 
apply to indirect or 'overhead' services, redundant back-up services or services that are 
incidental to the performance of the contract.  This provision applies to work performed 
by subcontractors at all tiers. 

4. Costs and Payments 

4.1. Payments.  Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Titles 35 and 41, Net 
30 days.  Upon receipt and acceptance of goods or services, the Contractor shall submit 
a complete and accurate invoice for payment from the State within thirty (30) days. 

4.2. Delivery.  Unless stated otherwise in the Contract, all prices shall be F.O.B. Destination 
and shall include all freight delivery and unloading at the destination. 

4.3. Applicable Taxes. 

4.3.1. Payment of Taxes.  The Contractor shall be responsible for paying all applicable 
taxes. 

4.3.2. State and Local Transaction Privilege Taxes.  The State of Arizona is subject to all 
applicable state and local transaction privilege taxes.  Transaction privilege taxes 
apply to the sale and are the responsibility of the seller to remit.  Failure to 
collect such taxes from the buyer does not relieve the seller from its obligation 
to remit taxes. 

4.3.3. Tax Indemnification.  Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay all Federal, 
state and local taxes applicable to its operation and any persons employed by 
the Contractor.  Contractor shall, and require all subcontractors to hold the 
State harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 23 of 81 

 

Procurement 

applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or state and local laws 
and regulations and any other costs including transaction privilege taxes, 
unemployment compensation insurance, Social Security and Worker’s 
Compensation. 

4.3.4. IRS W9 Form.  In order to receive payment the Contractor shall have a current 
I.R.S. W9 Form on file with the State of Arizona, unless not required by law. 

4.4. Availability of Funds for the Next State fiscal year.  Funds may not presently be available 
for performance under this Contract beyond the current state fiscal year.  No legal 
liability on the part of the State for any payment may arise under this Contract beyond 
the current state fiscal year until funds are made available for performance of this 
Contract.   

4.5. Availability of Funds for the current State fiscal year.  Should the State Legislature enter 
back into session and reduce the appropriations or for any reason and these goods or 
services are not funded, the State may take any of the following actions:   

4.5.1. Accept a decrease in price offered by the contractor;   

4.5.2. Cancel the Contract; or  

4.5.3. Cancel the contract and re-solicit the requirements.  

5. Contract Changes 

5.1. Amendments.  This Contract is issued under the authority of the Procurement Officer 
who signed this Contract.  The Contract may be modified only through a Contract 
Amendment within the scope of the Contract.  Changes to the Contract, including the 
addition of work or materials, the revision of payment terms, or the substitution of work 
or materials, directed by a person who is not specifically authorized by the procurement 
officer in writing or made unilaterally by the Contractor are violations of the Contract and 
of applicable law.  Such changes, including unauthorized written Contract Amendments 
shall be void and without effect, and the Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim 
under this Contract based on those changes. 

5.2. Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract under this Contract for 
the performance of this contract without the advance written approval of the 
Procurement Officer.  The Contractor shall clearly list any proposed subcontractors and 
the subcontractor’s proposed responsibilities.  The Subcontract shall incorporate by 
reference the terms and conditions of this Contract.  

5.3. Assignment and Delegation.  The Contractor shall not assign any right nor delegate any 
duty under this Contract without the prior written approval of the Procurement Officer.  
The State shall not unreasonably withhold approval. 

6. Risk and Liability 

6.1.  Risk of Loss:  The Contractor shall bear all loss of conforming material covered under this 
Contract until received by authorized personnel at the location designated in the 
purchase order or Contract.  Mere receipt does not constitute final acceptance.  The risk 
of loss for nonconforming materials shall remain with the Contractor regardless of 
receipt. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 24 of 81 

 

Procurement 

6.2. Indemnification 

6.2.1. Contractor/Vendor Indemnification (Not Public Agency)  The parties to this 
contract agree that the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards and 
commissions shall be indemnified and held harmless by the contractor for the 
vicarious liability of the State as a result of entering into this contract.  However, 
the parties further agree that the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, 
boards and commissions shall be responsible for its own negligence.  Each party 
to this contract is responsible for its own negligence.  

6.2.2. Public Agency Language Only  Each party (as 'indemnitor') agrees to indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the other party (as 'indemnitee') from and against 
any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable 
attorney's fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as 'claims') arising out of 
bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage but only to the 
extent that such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the 
indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other 
fault of the indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees, or volunteers." 

6.3. Indemnification - Patent and Copyright. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the State against any liability, including costs and expenses, for infringement of 
any patent, trademark or copyright arising out of Contract performance or use by the 
State of materials furnished or work performed under this Contract.  The State shall 
reasonably notify the Contractor of any claim for which it may be liable under this 
paragraph.  If the contractor is insured pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-621 and § 35-154, this 
section shall not apply. 

6.4. Force Majeure. 

6.4.1 Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor 
deemed in default under this Contract if and to the extent that such party’s 
performance of this Contract is prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term 
“force majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party 
affected and occurs without its fault or negligence.  Without limiting the 
foregoing, force majeure includes acts of God; acts of the public enemy; war; 
riots; strikes; mobilization; labor disputes; civil disorders; fire; flood; lockouts; 
injunctions-intervention-acts; or failures or refusals to act by government 
authority; and other similar occurrences beyond the control of the party 
declaring force majeure which such party is unable to prevent by exercising 
reasonable diligence. 

6.4.2. Force Majeure shall not include the following occurrences:   

6.4.2.1. Late delivery of equipment or materials caused by congestion at a 
manufacturer’s plant or elsewhere, or an oversold condition of the 
market;   

6.4.2.2. Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a 
force majeure occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term 
and condition; or 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 25 of 81 

 

Procurement 

6.4.2.3. Inability of either the Contractor or any subcontractor to acquire or 
maintain any required insurance, bonds, licenses or permits. 

6.4.3. If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force 
majeure, the delayed party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay, 
as soon as is practicable and no later than the following working day, of the 
commencement thereof and shall specify the causes of such delay in such 
notice.  Such notice shall be delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and 
shall make a specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions.  
The delayed party shall cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and 
shall notify the other party in writing when it has done so.  The time of 
completion shall be extended by Contract Amendment for a period of time 
equal to the time that results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party 
from performing in accordance with this Contract. 

6.4.4. Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute 
default hereunder or give rise to any claim for damages or loss of anticipated 
profits if, and to the extent that such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

6.5. Third Party Antitrust Violations.  The Contractor assigns to the State any claim for 
overcharges resulting from antitrust violations to the extent that those violations 
concern materials or services supplied by third parties to the Contractor, toward 
fulfillment of this Contract. 

7. Warranties 

7.1. Liens.  The Contractor warrants that the materials supplied under this Contract are free 
of liens and shall remain free of liens. 

7.2. Quality.  Unless otherwise modified elsewhere in these terms and conditions, the 
Contractor warrants that, for one year after acceptance by the State of the materials, 
they shall be:   

7.2.1. Of a quality to pass without objection in the trade under the Contract 
description;   

7.2.2. Fit for the intended purposes for which the materials are used;   

7.2.3. Within the variations permitted by the Contract and are of even kind, quantity, 
and quality within each unit and among all units;   

7.2.4. Adequately contained, packaged and marked as the Contract may require; and   

7.2.5. Conform to the written promises or affirmations of fact made by the Contractor. 

7.3. Fitness.  The Contractor warrants that any material supplied to the State shall fully 
conform to all requirements of the Contract and all representations of the Contractor, 
and shall be fit for all purposes and uses required by the Contract. 

7.4. Inspection/Testing.  The warranties set forth in subparagraphs 7.1 through 7.3 of this 
paragraph are not affected by inspection or testing of or payment for the materials by 
the State. 

7.5. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The materials and services supplied under this 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 26 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Contract shall comply with all applicable Federal, state and local laws, and the 
Contractor shall maintain all applicable license and permit requirements. 

7.6. Survival of Rights and Obligations after Contract Expiration or Termination. 

7.6.1. Contractor's Representations and Warranties.  All representations and 
warranties made by the Contractor under this Contract shall survive the 
expiration or termination hereof.  In addition, the parties hereto acknowledge 
that pursuant to A.R.S.  § 12-510, except as provided in A.R.S.  § 12-529, the 
State is not subject to or barred by any limitations of actions prescribed in 
A.R.S., Title 12, Chapter 5. 

7.6.2. Purchase Orders.  The Contractor shall, in accordance with all terms and 
conditions of the Contract, fully perform and shall be obligated to comply with 
all purchase orders received by the Contractor prior to the expiration or 
termination hereof, unless otherwise directed in writing by the Procurement 
Officer, including, without limitation, all purchase orders received prior to but 
not fully performed and satisfied at the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 

8. State's Contractual Remedies 

8.1. Right to Assurance.  If the State in good faith has reason to believe that the Contractor 
does not intend to, or is unable to perform or continue performing under this Contract, 
the Procurement Officer may demand in writing that the Contractor give a written 
assurance of intent to perform.  Failure by the Contractor to provide written assurance 
within the number of Days specified in the demand may, at the State’s option, be the 
basis for terminating the Contract under the Uniform Terms and Conditions or other 
rights and remedies available by law or provided by the contract. 

8.2. Stop Work Order.   

8.2.1. The State may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the 
Contractor to stop all or any part, of the work called for by this Contract for 
period(s) of days indicated by the State after the order is delivered to the 
Contractor.  The order shall be specifically identified as a stop work order issued 
under this clause.  Upon receipt of the order, the Contractor shall immediately 
comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence 
of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the period of work 
stoppage. 

8.2.2. If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled or the period of the 
order or any extension expires, the Contractor shall resume work.  The 
Procurement Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the delivery 
schedule or Contract price, or both, and the Contract shall be amended in 
writing accordingly. 

8.3. Non-exclusive Remedies.  The rights and the remedies of the State under this Contract 
are not exclusive. 

8.4. Nonconforming Tender.  Materials or services supplied under this Contract shall fully 
comply with the Contract.  The delivery of materials or services or a portion of the 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 27 of 81 

 

Procurement 

materials or services that do not fully comply constitutes a breach of contract.  On 
delivery of nonconforming materials or services, the State may terminate the Contract 
for default under applicable termination clauses in the Contract, exercise any of its 
rights and remedies under the Uniform Commercial Code, or pursue any other right or 
remedy available to it. 

8.5. Right of Offset.  The State shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the 
Contractor, any expenses or costs incurred by the State, or damages assessed by the 
State concerning the Contractor’s non-conforming performance or failure to perform 
the Contract, including expenses, costs and damages described in the Uniform Terms 
and Conditions. 

9. Contract Termination 

9.1. Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the State may cancel 
this Contract within three (3) years after Contract execution without penalty or further 
obligation if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting 
or creating the Contract on behalf of the State is or becomes at any time while the 
Contract or an extension of the Contract is in effect an employee of or a consultant to 
any other party to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract.  The 
cancellation shall be effective when the Contractor receives written notice of the 
cancellation unless the notice specifies a later time.  If the Contractor is a political 
subdivision of the State, it may also cancel this Contract as provided in A.R.S. § 38-511. 

9.2. Gratuities.  The State may, by written notice, terminate this Contract, in whole or in 
part, if the State determines that employment or a Gratuity was offered or made by the 
Contractor or a representative of the Contractor to any officer or employee of the State 
for the purpose of influencing the outcome of the procurement or securing the 
Contract, an amendment to the Contract, or favorable treatment concerning the 
Contract, including the making of any determination or decision about contract 
performance.  The State, in addition to any other rights or remedies, shall be entitled to 
recover exemplary damages in the amount of three times the value of the Gratuity 
offered by the Contractor. 

9.3. Suspension or Debarment.  The State may, by written notice to the Contractor, 
immediately terminate this Contract if the State determines that the Contractor has 
been debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully prohibited from participating in any 
public procurement activity, including but not limited to, being disapproved as a 
subcontractor of any public procurement unit or other governmental body.  Submittal of 
an offer or execution of a contract shall attest that the contractor is not currently 
suspended or debarred.  If the contractor becomes suspended or debarred, the 
contractor shall immediately notify the State. 

9.4. Termination for Convenience.  The State reserves the right to terminate the Contract, in 
whole or in part at any time when in the best interest of the State, without penalty or 
recourse.  Upon receipt of the written notice, the Contractor shall stop all work, as 
directed in the notice, notify all subcontractors of the effective date of the termination 
and minimize all further costs to the State.  In the event of termination under this 
paragraph, all documents, data and reports prepared by the Contractor under the 
Contract shall become the property of and be delivered to the State upon demand.  The 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 28 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for work in 
progress, work completed and materials accepted before the effective date of the 
termination.  The cost principles and procedures provided in A.A.C. R2-7-701 shall apply. 

9.5. Termination for Default. 

9.5.1. In addition to the rights reserved in the contract, the State may terminate the 
Contract in whole or in part due to the failure of the Contractor to comply with 
any term or condition of the Contract, to acquire and maintain all required 
insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits, or to make satisfactory progress 
in performing the Contract.  The Procurement Officer shall provide written 
notice of the termination and the reasons for it to the Contractor. 

9.5.2. Upon termination under this paragraph, all goods, materials, documents, data 
and reports prepared by the Contractor under the Contract shall become the 
property of and be delivered to the State on demand. 

9.5.3. The State may, upon termination of this Contract, procure, on terms and in the 
manner that it deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those under 
this Contract.  The Contractor shall be liable to the State for any excess costs 
incurred by the State in procuring materials or services in substitution for those 
due from the Contractor. 

9.6. Continuation of Performance Through Termination.  The Contractor shall continue to 
perform, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract, up to the date of 
termination, as directed in the termination notice. 

10. Contract Claims 

All contract claims or controversies under this Contract shall be resolved according to A.R.S. Title 
41, Chapter 23, Article 9, and rules adopted thereunder. 

11. Arbitration 

The parties to this Contract agree to resolve all disputes arising out of or relating to this contract 
through arbitration, after exhausting applicable administrative review, to the extent required by 
A.R.S. § 12-1518, except as may be required by other applicable statutes (Title 41).   

12. Comments Welcome 

The State Procurement Office periodically reviews the Uniform Terms and Conditions and 
welcomes any comments you may have. Please submit your comments to: State Procurement 
Administrator, State Procurement Office, 100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201, Phoenix, Arizona, 
85007. 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 29 of 81 

 

Procurement 

1. INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS 
 

The following provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, 
whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions 
required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220 available at: 
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-
guidance are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, 
all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions 
contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or 
refuse to comply with any (name of grantee) requests which would cause (name of grantee) to be 
in violation of the FTA terms and conditions. 

 
The Federal Terms and Conditions under this Contract shall be incorporated in any sub-contractor, 
or lower-tier agreement for any federally-funded task assignment / project awarded under this 
Contract. 

 
2. NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS TO THIRD PARTIES 

 
The Department and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence b 
the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, 
absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a 
party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Department, 
Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter 
resulting from the underlying contract. 

 

The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part 
with Federal assistance provided by Federal Funding Agency. It is further agreed that the clause 
shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 

 
3. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS 

 
Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as 
amended, 31 USC 3801 et seq. and USDOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR 31, 
apply to its actions pertaining to this project. 

 

Upon execution of the underlying contract, contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and 
accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to 
the underlying contract or FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In 
addition to other penalties that may be applicable, contractor further acknowledges that if it 
makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submittal, or 
certification, the US Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud 
Civil Remedies Act (1986) on contractor to the extent the US Government deems appropriate. 

https://app.az.gov/
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 30 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a 
contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance 
originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the 
right to impose the penalties of  18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) (5323(I)) on the 
Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. 

 
Contractor shall include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part 
with FTA assistance. The clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who 

will be subject to the provisions. 
 

4. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS 
 

The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract: 
 

1. Where the Purchaser is not a State but a local government and is the FTA Recipient or a 
subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C. F. R. 18.36(i), the Contractor shall - 
provide the Purchaser, the FTA, the US Comptroller General or their authorized representatives 
access to any books, documents, papers and contractor records which are pertinent to this 
contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. 
Contractor shall also , pursuant to 49 C. F. R. 633.15, provide authorized FTA representative 
including any PMO Contractor access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining 
to a capital project, defined at 49 
U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 
5307, 5309 or 5311. 

 

2. Where the Purchaser is a State and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in 
accordance with 49 C.F.R. 633.15, Contractor shall provide the Purchaser, authorized FTA 
representatives, including any PMO Contractor, access to the Contractor's records and 
construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which 
receives FTA assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311. By 
definition, a major capital project excludes contracts of less than the simplified acquisition 
threshold currently set at 
$250,000.00. 

 
3. Where the Purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or 

under the simplified acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital 
or other non- profit organization and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient 
in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 19.48, Contractor shall provide the Purchaser, FTA, the US 
Comptroller General or their authorized representatives with access to any books, documents, 
papers and record of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the 
purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 31 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

4. Where a Purchaser which is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient 
in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project 
or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1) through other than competitive 
bidding, the Contractor shall make available records related to the contract to the 
Purchaser, the Secretary of USDOT and the US Comptroller General or any 
authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an 
audit and inspection. 

 

5. Contractor shall permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means 
whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 

 
6. The Contractor shall retain, and shall require its subcontractors at all tiers, all 

books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of 
not less than five years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, 
except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the 
performance of this contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same 
until the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of 
their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, 
claims or exceptions related thereto. Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11). 

 

5. TERMS OF THE MASTER AGREEMENT AND COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable Federal Funding Agency laws, 
regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those 
listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement, available at 
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/sample-fta- agreements/fta-
grant-agreements, between the Department and FTA, as they may be amended or 
promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. This Master 
Agreement does not have an Expiration Date. This Master Agreement continues to 
apply to the Recipient and its Underlying Agreement, until modified or superseded by 
a more recently enacted or issued applicable federal law, regulation, requirement, or 
guidance, or amendment to this Master Agreement or the Underlying Agreement. To 
assure compliance the Recipient must take measures to assure that other participants 
in its Underlying Agreements (e.g., Third Party Participants) comply. Contractor's 
failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract. 

 

All contractual provisions required by the U.S. Department of Transportation are 
hereby incorporated by reference. In the event of additional funding provided by 
FHWA, the applicable requirements of the Stewardship Agreement, available at 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/federalaid/stewardship, between the Department and 
FHWA are incorporated by reference. 

 

6. CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 
 

The AGENCY is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the AGENCY agrees to comply 

https://app.az.gov/
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/sample-fta-agreements/fta-grant-agreements
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/sample-fta-agreements/fta-grant-agreements
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/sample-fta-agreements/fta-grant-agreements
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/federalaid/stewardship


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 32 of 81 

 

Procurement 

with all applicable Federal civil rights laws and implementing regulations. Apart from 
inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the AGENCY 
agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(h) (3) by not using any 
Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or 
discriminatory specifications. 

 
Under this Agreement, the Contractor shall at all times comply with the following 
requirements and shall include these requirements in each subcontract entered into 
as part thereof. 

 
Equal Employment Opportunity 

 

1. Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 
42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 
42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 
U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees 
that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex(including sexual orientation 
and gender identity), age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to 
comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing 
requirements Federal Funding Agency may issue. 

 

2. Race, Color, religion, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 
5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment 
opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, 
"Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, 
Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive 
Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive 
Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal 
Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable 
Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in 
the future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project. 
The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to 
their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include, but 
not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In 
addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements 
Federal Funding Agency may issue. 

 
3. Age - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 

1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the 
Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective 
employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with 
any implementing requirements Federal Funding Agency may issue. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 33 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

4. Disabilities - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as 
amended, 42 
U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the 
Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. 
Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, the 
Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements Federal Funding 
Agency may issue. 

 
The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided, modified only if 
necessary to identify the affected parties. 

 
7. TERMINATION 

 

Termination of the contract shall be in accordance with the Uniform Terms and 
Conditions, Section 9., paragraph 9.1 through 9.6. 

 
8. DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION 

 
This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, the 
contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals, as defined at 
49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified 
as defined at 49 CFR 29.940and 29.945. The contractor is required to comply with 49 
CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, 
Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 

 

As such, the Contractor shall verify that its principals, affiliates, and subcontractors are 
eligible to participate in this federally funded contract and are not presently declared 
by any Federal department or agency to be: 

 
a) Debarred from participation in any federally assisted Award; 

b) Suspended from participation in any federally assisted Award; 

c) Proposed for debarment from participation in any federally assisted Award; 

d) Declared ineligible to participate in any federally assisted Award; 

e) Voluntarily excluded from participation in any federally assisted Award; or 

f) Disqualified from participation in ay federally assisted Award. 
 

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows: 
 

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the 
Department. If it is later determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered 
an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to the Department, the 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 34 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to 
suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the 
requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the 
period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further 
agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered 
transactions. 

 
8.1  GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT) 

 
The Contractor agrees to the following: 

 

(1) It will comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subpart C, as 
adopted and supplemented by U.S. DOT regulations at 2 C.F.R. part 1200, 
which include the following: 

 
(a) It will not enter into any arrangement to participate in the development or 

implementation of the Project with any Third Party Participant that is 
debarred or suspended except as authorized by: 1 U.S. DOT regulations, 
“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” 2 C.F.R. part 1200, 2 
U.S. OMB, “Guidelines to Agencies on Government wide Debarment and 
Suspension (Nonprocurement),” 2 C.F.R. part 180, including any 
amendments thereto, and 3 Executive Orders Nos. 12549 and 12689, 
“Debarment and Suspension,” 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, 

 

(b) It will review the U.S. GSA “System for Award Management,” 
https://www.sam.gov, if required by U.S. DOT regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 
1200, and 

 
(c) It will include, and require each of its Third Party Participants to include, a 

similar provision in each lower tier covered transaction, ensuring that each 
lower tier Third Party Participant: 

 
(1) Will comply with Federal debarment and suspension 

requirements, and 2 Reviews the “System for Award 
Management” at https://www.sam.gov, if necessary to 
comply with U.S. DOT regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 1200, and 

 

If the Department suspends, debars, or takes any 
similar action against a Third Party Participant or 
individual, the Department will provide immediate 
written notice to the: 

 

(a) FTA Regional Counsel for the Region in which 
the Recipient is located or implements the 
Project, 

(b) FTA Project Manager if the Project is 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.sam.gov/
http://www.sam.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 35 of 81 

 

Procurement 

administered by an FTA Headquarters Office, 
or 

(c) FTA Chief Counsel. 

9. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER 

POLLUTION CONTROL ACT Clean Water 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC 1251 et seq. 
Contractor shall report each violation to the recipient and understands and agrees 
that the recipient shall, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the 
appropriate EPA Regional Office. Contractor shall include these requirements in each 
subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance. 

 
Clean Air 

1) Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
pursuant to the Clean Air Act, 42 USC 7401 et seq. Contractor shall report each 
violation to the recipient and understands and agrees that the recipient will, in 
turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA 
Regional Office. 

 

2) Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding 
$150,000 financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance. 

 
10. BUY AMERICA 

 
In any task assignment / project for construction, acquisition of goods, or rolling stock 
valued at more than $150,000, the contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) 
and 49 C.F.R. part 661, which provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless 
all steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA funded projects are produced in 
the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to 
a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. § 661.7. Separate 
requirements for rolling stock are set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 C.F.R. § 
661.11. 

 

Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5323(j) and 49 CFR 661, stating that Federal funds 
may not be obligated unless steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA-
funded projects are  produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted 
by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 
CFR 661.7, and include software, microcomputer equipment and small purchases 
(currently less than $150,000) made with capital, operating, or planning funds. 
Separate requirements for rolling stock are stated at 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 CFR 
661.11. Rolling stock must be manufactured in the US and have a minimum 65% 
domestic content for FY2019 and a minimum 70% domestic content for FY2020 and 
beyond. A bidder or offeror shall submit appropriate Buy America certification to the 
recipient with all bids on FTA-funded contracts, except those subject to a general 
waiver. Proposals not accompanied by a completed a certification shall be rejected as 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 36 of 81 

 

Procurement 

nonresponsive. This requirement does not apply to lower tier subcontractors. 
 

11. BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and 
remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No 
action or failure to act by the (Recipient), (Architect) or Contractor shall constitute a 
waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any 
such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach 
thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

 

Disputes arising in the performance of this contract which are not resolved by 
agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the Department. This decision 
shall be final and conclusive unless within ten days from the date of receipt of its copy, 
contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the Department. In 
connection with such appeal, contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard 
and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the Department shall 
be binding upon contractor and contractor shall abide by the decision. FTA has a 
vested interest in the settlement of any violation of Federal law including the False 
Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729. 

 
Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by the recipient, contractor 
shall continue performance under this contract while matters in dispute are being 
resolved. Claims for Damages - Should either party to the contract suffer injury or 
damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of 
its employees, agents or others for whose acts it is legally liable, a claim for damages 
therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within ten days after the first 
observance of such injury or damage. 

 
Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes 
and other matters in question between the Department and contractor arising out of 
or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties 
mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the residing State. 

 

Rights and Remedies - Duties and obligations imposed by the contract documents and 
the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a 
limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or 
available by law. No action or failure to act by the Department or contractor shall 
constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the contract, nor 
shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any 
breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

 

12. LOBBYING 
 

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Title 31, U.S. C 1352 as 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 37 of 81 

 

Procurement 

amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 
U.S.C. 1601, et seq.] and (Public Law 101.121) as codified in Title 48, Federal 
Acquisition Regulations Subpart 3.8 and Subpart 52.203-11. The legislation prohibits 
Federal funds from being expended by a recipient or any lower tier sub- recipients of 
a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence a Federal agency or Congress in connection 
with the award of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant or loan, or 
entering into any cooperative agreement, including the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or 
cooperative agreement. All disclosure statements are to be furnished to the 
Department. 

 
Contractors who apply or propose/bid for an award of $100,000 or more in value shall 
file the attached Lobbying Certification {01Lobbying Certification document} required 
by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier above 
that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or 
organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any 
other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any 
registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts 
on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or 
award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up 
to the recipient. 

 
13. FLY AMERICA 

 
The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the "Fly America" Act) in 
accordance with the General Services Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part 
301-10, which provide that recipients of Federal funds and their contractors are 
required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S Government- financed international air 
travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such 
service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as 
defined by the Fly America Act. The Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier 
was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why 
service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not  
available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, 
provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. The 
Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that 
may involve international air transportation. 

 
14. ENERGY CONSERVATION 

 
The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to 
energy efficiency, stated in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance 
with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 38 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

15. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST / EMPLOYMENT OF FEDERAL PERSONNEL 
 

Contractors will maintain a written code of standards of conduct governing the 
performance of their employees engaged in the award and administration of 
contracts. No employee, officer or agent of the Department or the Federal funding 
agency shall participate in selection, or in the award or administration of a contract 
supported by Federal funds if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be 
involved. Such a conflict would arise when: The employee, officer or agent, any 
member of his immediate family, His or her partner, or an organization which 
employs, or is about to employ, any of the above, has a financial or other interest in 
the firm selected for award. Department officers, employees or agents will neither 
solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors, 
potential contractors, or parties to subagreements. 

 
16. COPYRIGHT AND PATENT 

 
To the extent permitted by A.R.S. § 41-621 and § 35-154, the Contractor shall 
indemnify and hold harmless ADOT against any liability, including costs and expenses, 
for infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright arising out of this contract 
performance or use by ADOT of materials furnished or work performed under this 
contract. ADOT shall reasonably notify the Contractor of any claim for which it may be 
liable under this paragraph. 

 
Copyrights pursuant to 23 CFR 420.121 (b): The Department, as a State DOT may 
copyright any books, publications, or other copyrightable materials developed in the 
course of the project, and does herein exercise that right. The federal funding agency 
reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or 
otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the work for Government purposes. 

 

Patents pursuant to 23 CFR 420.121 (i): The Department, as a State DOT is subject to 
the provisions of  37 CFR part 401 governing patents and inventions and must include 
or cite the standard patent rights clause at 37 CFR 401.14, except for §401.14(g), in all 
subgrants or contracts. In addition, State DOTs must include the following clause, 
suitably modified to identify the parties, in all subgrants or contracts, regardless of 
tier, for experimental, developmental or research work: “The subgrantee or contractor 
will retain all rights provided for the State in this clause, and the State will not, as part 
of the consideration for awarding the subgrant or contract, obtain rights in the 
subgrantee's or contractor's subject inventions.” 
 
Standard Patent Rights required pursuant to 37 CFR 401.14: 

 

(a) Definitions 

 
(1) Invention means any invention or discovery which is or may be patentable or 
otherwise protectable under Title 35 of the United States Code, or any novel variety of 
plant which is or may be protected under the Plant Variety Protection Act (7 U.S.C. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 39 of 81 

 

Procurement 

2321 et seq.). 
 

(2) Subject invention means any invention of the contractor conceived or first actually 
reduced to practice in the performance of work under this contract, provided that in 
the case of a variety of plant, the date of determination (as defined in section 41(d) of 
the Plant Variety Protection Act, 7 U.S.C. 2401(d)) must also occur during the period of 
contract performance. 

 
(3) Practical Application means to manufacture in the case of a composition or 
product, to practice in the case of a process or method, or to operate in the case of a 
machine or system; and, in each case, under such conditions as to establish that the 
invention is being utilized and that its benefits are, to the extent permitted by law or 
government regulations, available to the public on reasonable terms. 

 
(4) Made when used in relation to any invention means the conception or first actual 
reduction to practice of such invention. 

 
(5) Small Business Firm means a small business concern as defined at section 2 of Pub. L. 

85-536 (15 
U.S.C. 632) and implementing regulations of the Administrator of the Small Business 
Administration. For the purpose of this clause, the size standards for small business 
concerns involved in government procurement and subcontracting at 13 CFR 121.3-8 
and 13 CFR 121.3-12, respectively, will be used. 

 
(6) Nonprofit Organization means a university or other institution of higher education 
or an organization of the type described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954 (26 U.S.C. 501(c) and exempt from taxation under section 501(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (25 U.S.C. 501(a)) or any nonprofit scientific or educational 
organization qualified under a state nonprofit organization statute. 

 
(7) The term statutory period means the one-year period before the effective filing 
date of a claimed invention during which exceptions to prior art exist per 35 U.S.C. 
102(b) as amended by the Leahy-Smith America Invents Act, Public Law 112-29. 

 
(8) The term contractor means any person, small business firm or nonprofit 
organization, or, as set forth in section 1, paragraph (b)(4) of Executive Order 12591, 
as amended, any business firm regardless of size, which is a party to a funding 
agreement. 

 
(b) Allocation of Principal Rights 

 
The Contractor may retain the entire right, title, and interest throughout the world to 
each subject invention subject to the provisions of this clause and 35 U.S.C. 203. With 
respect to any subject invention in which the Contractor retains title, the Federal 
government shall have a nonexclusive, nontransferable, irrevocable, paid-up license to 
practice or have practiced for or on behalf of the United States the subject invention 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 40 of 81 

 

Procurement 

throughout the world. 

 
(c) Invention Disclosure, Election of Title and Filing of Patent Application by Contractor 

 
(1) The contractor will disclose each subject invention to the Federal Agency within 
two months after the inventor discloses it in writing to contractor personnel 
responsible for patent matters. The disclosure to the agency shall be in the form of a 
written report and shall identify the contract under which the invention was made and 
the inventor(s). It shall be sufficiently complete in technical detail to convey a clear 
understanding to the extent known at the time of the disclosure, of the nature, 
purpose, operation, and the physical, chemical, biological or electrical characteristics 
of the invention. The disclosure shall also identify any publication, on sale or public use 
of the invention and whether a manuscript describing the invention has been 
submitted for publication and, if so, whether it has been accepted for publication at 
the time of disclosure. In addition, after disclosure to the agency, the Contractor will 
promptly notify the agency of the acceptance of any manuscript describing the 
invention for publication or of any on sale or public use planned by the contractor. 

 
(2) The contractor will elect in writing whether or not to retain title to any such 
invention by notifying the Federal agency within two years of disclosure to the Federal 
agency. However, in any case where a patent, a printed publication, public use, sale, 
or other availability to the public has initiated the one year statutory period wherein 
valid patent protection can still be obtained in the United States, the period for 
election of title may be shortened by the agency to a date that is no more than 60 
days prior to the end of the statutory period. 

 
(3) The contractor will file its initial patent application on a subject invention to which 
it elects to retain title within one year after election of title or, if earlier, prior to the 
end of any statutory period wherein valid patent protection can be obtained in the 
United States after a publication, on sale, or public use. If the contractor files a 
provisional application as its initial patent application, it shall file a non-provisional 
application within 10 months of the filing of the provisional application. The contractor 
will file patent applications in additional countries or international patent offices 
within either ten months of the first filed patent application or six months from the 
date permission is granted by the Commissioner of Patents to file foreign patent 
applications where such filing has been prohibited by a Secrecy Order. 

 
(4) For any subject invention with Federal agency and contractor co-inventors, where 
the Federal agency employing such co-inventor determines that it would be in the 
interest of the government, pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 207(a)(3), to file an initial patent 
application on the subject invention, the Federal agency employing such co-inventor, 
at its discretion and in consultation with the contractor, may file such application at its 
own expense, provided that the contractor retains the ability to elect title pursuant to 
35 U.S.C. 202(a). 

 
(5) Requests for extension of the time for disclosure, election, and filing under 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 41 of 81 

 

Procurement 

paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) of this clause may, at the discretion of the Federal agency, 
be granted. When a contractor has requested an extension for filing a non-provisional 
application after filing a provisional application, a one-year extension will be granted 
unless the Federal agency notifies the contractor within 60 days of receiving the 
request. 

 
(d) Conditions When the Government May Obtain Title 

 
The contractor will convey to the Federal agency, upon written request, title to any subject 
invention— 

 

(1) If the contractor fails to disclose or elect title to the subject invention within the 
times specified in paragraph (c) of this clause, or elects not to retain title. 

 
(2) In those countries in which the contractor fails to file patent applications within the 
times specified in paragraph (c) of this clause; provided, however, that if the 
contractor has filed a patent application in a country after the times specified in 
paragraph (c) of this clause, but prior to its receipt of the written request of the 
Federal agency, the contractor shall continue to retain title in that country. 

 
(3) In any country in which the contractor decides not to continue the prosecution of 
any non- provisional patent application for, to pay a maintenance, annuity or renewal 
fee on, or to defend in a reexamination or opposition proceeding on, a patent on a 
subject invention. 

 
(e) Minimum Rights to Contractor and Protection of the Contractor Right to File 

 
(1) The contractor will retain a nonexclusive royalty-free license throughout the world 
in each subject invention to which the Government obtains title, except if the 
contractor fails to disclose the invention within the times specified in (c), above. The 
contractor's license extends to its domestic subsidiary and affiliates, if any, within the 
corporate structure of which the contractor is a party and includes the right to grant 
sublicenses of the same scope to the extent the contractor was legally obligated to do 
so at the time the contract was awarded. The license is transferable only with the 
approval of the Federal agency except when transferred to the sucessor of that party 
of the contractor's business to which the invention pertains. 

 
(2) The contractor's domestic license may be revoked or modified by the funding 
Federal agency to the extent necessary to achieve expeditious practical application of 
the subject invention pursuant to an application for an exclusive license submitted in 
accordance with applicable provisions at 37 CFR part 404 and agency licensing 
regulations (if any). This license will not be revoked in that field of use or the 
geographical areas in which the contractor has achieved practical application and 
continues to make the benefits of the invention reasonably accessible to the public. 
The license in any foreign country may be revoked or modified at the discretion of the 
funding Federal agency to the extent the contractor, its licensees, or the domestic 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 42 of 81 

 

Procurement 

subsidiaries or affiliates have failed to achieve practical application in that foreign 
country. 

 
(3) Before revocation or modification of the license, the funding Federal agency will 
furnish the contractor a written notice of its intention to revoke or modify the license, 
and the contractor will be allowed thirty days (or such other time as may be 
authorized by the funding Federal agency for good cause shown by the contractor) 
after the notice to show cause why the license should not be revoked or modified. The 
contractor has the right to appeal, in accordance with applicable regulations in 37 CFR 
part 404 and agency regulations (if any) concerning the licensing of Government-
owned inventions, any decision concerning the revocation or modification of the 
license. 

 

(f) Contractor Action to Protect the Government's Interest 

 
(1) The contractor agrees to execute or to have executed and promptly deliver to the 
Federal agency all instruments necessary to (i) establish or confirm the rights the 
Government has throughout the world in those subject inventions to which the 
contractor elects to retain title, and (ii) convey title to the Federal agency when 
requested under paragraph (d) above and to enable the government to obtain patent 
protection throughout the world in that subject invention. 

 
(2) The contractor agrees to require, by written agreement, its employees, other than 
clerical and nontechnical employees, to disclose promptly in writing to personnel 
identified as responsible for the administration of patent matters and in a format 
suggested by the contractor each subject invention made under contract in order that 
the contractor can comply with the disclosure provisions of paragraph (c) of this 
clause, to assign to the contractor the entire right, title and interest in and to each 
subject invention made under contract, and to execute all papers necessary to file 
patent applications on subject inventions and to establish the government's rights in 
the subject inventions. This disclosure format should require, as a minimum, the 
information required by paragraph (c)(1) of this clause. The contractor shall instruct 
such employees through employee agreements or other suitable educational 
programs on the importance of reporting inventions in sufficient time to permit the 
filing of patent applications prior to U.S. or foreign statutory bars. 

 
(3) For each subject invention, the contractor will, no less than 60 days prior to the 
expiration of the statutory deadline, notify the Federal agency of any decision: Not to 
continue the prosecution of a non- provisional patent application; not to pay a 
maintenance, annuity or renewal fee; not to defend in a reexamination or opposition 
proceeding on a patent, in any country; to request, be a party to, or take action in a 
trial proceeding before the Patent Trial and Appeals Board of the U.S. Patent and 
Trademark Office, including but not limited to post-grant review, review of a business 
method patent, inter partes review, and derivation proceeding; or to request, be a 
party to, or take action in a non-trial submission of art or information at the U.S. 
Patent and Trademark Office, including but not limited to a pre-issuance submission, a 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 43 of 81 

 

Procurement 

post-issuance submission, and supplemental examination. 

 
(4) The contractor agrees to include, within the specification of any United States 
patent applications and any patent issuing thereon covering a subject invention, the 
following statement, “This invention was made with government support under 
(identify the contract) awarded by (identify the Federal agency). The government has 
certain rights in the invention.” 

 
(g) Subcontracts 

 
(1) The contractor will include this clause, suitably modified to identify the parties, in 
all subcontracts, regardless of tier, for experimental, developmental or research work 
to be performed by a subcontractor.. The subcontractor will retain all rights provided 
for the contractor in this clause, and the contractor will not, as part of the 
consideration for awarding the subcontract, obtain rights in the subcontractor's 
subject inventions. 

 

(2) The contractor will include in all other subcontracts, regardless of tier, for 
experimental developmental or research work the patent rights clause required by 
(cite section of agency implementing regulations or FAR). 

 
(3) In the case of subcontracts, at any tier, when the prime award with the Federal 
agency was a contract (but not a grant or cooperative agreement), the agency, 
subcontractor, and the contractor agree that the mutual obligations of the parties 
created by this clause constitute a contract between the subcontractor and the 
Federal agency with respect to the matters covered by the clause; provided, however, 
that nothing in this paragraph is intended to confer any jurisdiction under the Contract 
Disputes Act in connection with proceedings under paragraph (j) of this clause. 

 
(h) Reporting on Utilization of Subject Inventions 

 
The Contractor agrees to submit on request periodic reports no more frequently than 
annually on the utilization of a subject invention or on efforts at obtaining such 
utilization that are being made by the contractor or its licensees or assignees. Such 
reports shall include information regarding the status of development, date of first 
commercial sale or use, gross royalties received by the contractor, and such other data 
and information as the agency may reasonably specify. The contractor also agrees to 
provide additional reports as may be requested by the agency in connection with any 
march-in proceeding undertaken by the agency in accordance with paragraph (j) of 
this clause. As required by 35 U.S.C. 202(c)(5), the agency agrees it will not disclose 
such information to persons outside the government without permission of the 
contractor. 

 
(i) Preference for United States Industry 

 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this clause, the contractor agrees that neither 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 44 of 81 

 

Procurement 

it nor any assignee will grant to any person the exclusive right to use or sell any subject 
inventions in the United States unless such person agrees that any products 
embodying the subject invention or produced through the use of the subject invention 
will be manufactured substantially in the United States. However, in individual cases, 
the requirement for such an agreement may be waived by the Federal agency upon a 
showing by the contractor or its assignee that reasonable but unsuccessful efforts 
have been made to grant licenses on similar terms to potential licensees that would be 
likely to manufacture substantially in the United States or that under the 
circumstances domestic manufacture is not commercially feasible. 

 
(j) March-in Rights 

 
The contractor agrees that with respect to any subject invention in which it has 
acquired title, the Federal agency has the right in accordance with the procedures in 
37 CFR 401.6 and any supplemental regulations of the agency to require the 
contractor, an assignee or exclusive licensee of a subject invention to grant a 
nonexclusive, partially exclusive, or exclusive license in any field of use to a responsible 
applicant or applicants, upon terms that are reasonable under the circumstances, and 
if the contractor, assignee, or exclusive licensee refuses such a request the Federal 
agency has the right to grant such a license itself if the Federal agency determines 
that: 

 
(1) Such action is necessary because the contractor or assignee has not taken, or is not 
expected to take within a reasonable time, effective steps to achieve practical 
application of the subject invention in such field of use. 

 
(2) Such action is necessary to alleviate health or safety needs which are not 
reasonably satisfied by the contractor, assignee or their licensees; 

 
(3) Such action is necessary to meet requirements for public use specified by Federal 
regulations and such requirements are not reasonably satisfied by the contractor, 
assignee or licensees; or 

 
(4) Such action is necessary because the agreement required by paragraph (i) of this 
clause has not been obtained or waived or because a licensee of the exclusive right to 
use or sell any subject invention in the United States is in breach of such agreement. 

 
(k) Special Provisions for Contracts with Nonprofit Organizations 
 
If the contractor is a nonprofit organization, it agrees that: 
 
(1) Rights to a subject invention in the United States may not be assigned without the 
approval of the Federal agency, except where such assignment is made to an 
organization which has as one of its primary functions the management of inventions, 
provided that such assignee will be subject to the same provisions as the contractor; 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 45 of 81 

 

Procurement 

(2) The contractor will share royalties collected on a subject invention with the 
inventor, including Federal employee co-inventors (when the agency deems it 
appropriate) when the subject invention is assigned in accordance with 35 U.S.C. 
202(e) and 37 CFR 401.10; 

 
(3) The balance of any royalties or income earned by the contractor with respect to 
subject inventions, after payment of expenses (including payments to inventors) 
incidental to the administration of subject inventions, will be utilized for the support 
of scientific research or education; and 

 
(4) It will make efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to attract 
licensees of subject inventions that are small business firms and that it will give a 
preference to a small business firm when licensing a subject invention if the contractor 
determines that the small business firm has a plan or proposal for marketing the 
invention which, if executed, is equally as likely to bring the invention to practical 
application as any plans or proposals from applicants that are not small business firms; 
provided, that the contractor is also satisfied that the small business firm has the 
capability and resources to carry out its plan or proposal. The decision whether to give 
a preference in any specific case will be at the discretion of the contractor. However, 
the contractor agrees that the Federal agency may review the contractor's licensing 
program and decisions regarding small business applicants, and the contractor will 
negotiate changes to its licensing policies, procedures, or practices with the Federal 
agency when the Federal agency's review discloses that the contractor could take 
reasonable steps to implement more effectively the requirements of this paragraph 
(k)(4). In accordance with 37 CFR 401.7, the Federal agency or the contractor may 
request that the Secretary review the contractor's licensing program and decisions 
regarding small business applicants. 

 
17. RECOVERED MATERIALS 

 
The Contractor agrees to provide a preference for those products and services that 
conserve natural resources, protect the environment, and are energy efficient by 
complying with and facilitating compliance with Section 6002 of the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6962, and U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), “Comprehensive Procurement Guideline for Products 
Containing Recovered Materials,” 40 C.F.R. part 247. 

 

18. SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES 
 

a. Seat Belt Use. The Recipient agrees to implement Executive Order No. 13043, 
“Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States,” April 16, 1997, 23 U.S.C. § 402 note, 
(62 Fed. Reg. 19217), by: 

 
(1) Adopting and promoting on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for 
its employees and other personnel that operate company-owned vehicles, 
company-rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles, and 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 46 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

(2) Including a “Seat Belt Use” provision in each third party agreement related to the 
Award. 

 
b. Distracted Driving, Including Text Messaging While Driving. The Recipient agrees to comply 

with: 
 

(1) Executive Order No. 13513, “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text 
Messaging While Driving,” October 1, 2009, 23 U.S.C. § 402 note, (74 Fed. 
Reg. 51225), 

 

(2) U.S. DOT Order 3902.10, “Text Messaging While Driving,” December 30, 2009, and 
 

(3) The following U.S. DOT Special Provision pertaining to Distracted Driving: 
 

(a) Safety. The Recipient agrees to adopt and enforce workplace 
safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, 
including policies to ban text messaging while using an electronic 
device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns 
or rents, a vehicle Recipient owns, leases, or rents, or a privately-
owned vehicle when on official business in connection with the 
Award, or when performing any work for or on behalf of the Award, 

 

(b) Recipient Size. The Recipient agrees to conduct workplace safety 
initiatives in a manner commensurate with its size, such as 
establishing new rules and programs to prohibit text messaging while 
driving, re-evaluating the existing programs to prohibit text messaging 
while driving, and providing education, awareness, and other outreach 
to employees about the safety risks associated with texting while 
driving, and 

 

(c) Extension of Provision. The Recipient agrees to include the 
preceding Special Provision of section 34.b(3)(a) – (b) of this Master 
Agreement in its third party agreements, and encourage its Third Party 
Participants to comply with this Special Provision, and include this 
Special Provision in each third party subagreement at each tier 
supported with federal assistance. 

 

19. CERTIFICATION AND ASSURANCES 
 

The FTA Certifications and Assurances are incorporated herein by reference. Upon 
award or contract renewal, the Contractor must agree to comply with the most 
current FTA Certifications and Assurances by signing and submitting the signature 
page provided by the Department. In the event FTA issues new Certifications and 
Assurances, the Department reserves the right to require submission of a new 
signature page agreeing to comply; to be added to the terms and conditions by 
Amendment. All such requests are a condition of continued award. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 47 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
20. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES 

 
1.0 Policy: 

 
The Arizona Department of Transportation (hereinafter the Department) has 
established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program in accordance with 
the regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT), 49 CFR Part 26. The 
Department has received Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of 
Transportation and as a condition of receiving this assistance, the Department has 
signed an assurance that it will comply with 49 CFR Part 26. 

 

It is the policy of the Department to ensure that DBEs, as defined in Part 26, have an 
equal opportunity to receive and participate in USDOT-assisted contracts. It is also the 
policy of the Department: 

 
1. To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-assisted 

contracts; 
2. To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for USDOT-assisted 

contracts; 
3. To ensure that the DBE program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable law; 
4. To ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR Part 26 eligibility standards 

are counted as DBEs; 

5. To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in USDOT-assisted contracts; 
6. To assist in the development of firms that can compete successfully in the 

market place outside the DBE program; and 

7. To promote the use of DBEs in all types of federally-assisted contracts and 
procurement activities. 

 

It is also the policy of the Department to facilitate and encourage participation of 
Small Business Concerns (SBCs), as defined herein, in USDOT-assisted contracts. The 
Department encourages contractors to take reasonable steps to eliminate obstacles to 
SBCs’ participation and to utilize SBCs in performing contracts. 

 
2.0 Assurances of Non-Discrimination: 

 
The contractor, subrecipient, or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of 
race, color, sex or national origin in the performance of this contract. The contractor 
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and 
administration of DOT assisted contracts. Failure by  the contractor to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination 
of this contract or such other remedy as the Department deems appropriate, which 
may include, but are not limited to: 

 
1. Withholding monthly progress payments; 
2. Assessing sanctions; 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 48 of 81 

 

Procurement 

3. Liquidated damages; 
4. Suspension or Debarment per Uniform Terms and Conditions Paragraph 9.3 of 

the contractor from future bidding; and/or 
5. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part. 

 
The contractor, subrecipient, or subcontractor shall ensure that all subcontract 
agreements contain this non-discrimination assurance. 

 
3.0 Definitions: 

 
(A) Commercially Useful Function (CUF): Commercially Useful Function is 

defined fully in 49 CFR 26.55, which definition is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
(B) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE): a for-profit small business 

concern which meets both of the following requirements: 
 

(1) Is at least 51 percent owned by one or more socially and economically 
disadvantaged individuals or, in the case of any publicly owned 
business, at least 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more 
such individuals; and, 

 

(2) Whose management and daily business operations are controlled by 
one or more of the socially and economically disadvantaged 
individuals who own it.  

(C) NAICS Code: The North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) is 
the standard used by Federal statistical agencies in classifying business 
establishments for the purpose of collecting, analyzing, and publishing 
statistical data related to the U.S. business economy. 

 
(D) Non-DBE: any firm that is not a DBE. 

 
(E) Race-Conscious (RC): a measure or program focused specifically on 

assisting only DBEs, including women-owned DBEs. 
 

(F) Race-Neutral (RN): a measure or program used to assist all small 
businesses. For the purposes of this part, race-neutral includes gender-
neutrality. 

 

(G) Small Business Concern (SBC): a business that meets all of the following 
conditions: 

 
(1) Operates as a for-profit business registered to do business in Arizona; 

 
(2) Operates a place of business primarily within the U.S., or makes a 

significant contribution to the U.S. economy through payment of taxes 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 49 of 81 

 

Procurement 

or use of American products, materials, or labor; 
 

(3) Is independently owned and operated; 
 

(4) Is not dominant in its field on a national basis; and 
 

(5) Does not have annual gross receipts that exceed the Small Business 
Administration size standards average annual income criteria for its 
primary North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code. 

 
(H) Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals: any individual who 

is a citizen (or lawfully admitted permanent resident) of the United States 
and who is: 

 

(1) Any individual who is found to be a socially and economically 
disadvantaged individual on a case-by-case basis. 

 
(2) Any individual in the following groups, members of which are 

rebuttably presumed to be socially and economically disadvantaged: 
 

(i) "Black Americans," which includes persons having origins in any of 
the Black racial groups of Africa; 

 
(ii) "Hispanic Americans," which includes persons of Mexican, Puerto 

Rican, Cuban, Dominican, Central or South American, or other 
Spanish or Portuguese culture or origin, regardless of race; 

 

(iii) "Native Americans," which includes persons who are enrolled 
members of federally or State recognized Indian tribe, Alaskan 
Natives or Native Hawaiians; 

 

(iv) “Asian-Pacific Americans,” which includes persons whose origins 
are from Japan, China, Taiwan, Korea, Burma (Myanmar), 
Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia (Kampuchea), Thailand, Malaysia, 
Indonesia, the Philippines, Brunei, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust 
Territories of the Pacific Islands (Republic of Palau), the Republic 
of the Northern Marianas Islands, Macao, Fiji, Tonga, Kiribati, 
Tuvalu, Nauru, Federated States of Micronesia, or Hong Kong; 

 
(v) “Subcontinent Asian Americans,” which includes persons whose 

origins are from India, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Bhutan, the Maldives 
Islands, Nepal or Sri Lanka; 

 

(vi) "Women;" 
 

(vii) Any additional groups whose members are designated as socially 
and economically disadvantaged by the Small Business 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 50 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Administration (SBA), at such time as the SBA designation 
becomes effective. 

 
4.0 Working with DBEs: 

 
The Department works with DBEs and assists them in their efforts to participate in the 
highway construction. All proposers should contact the Department’s Business 
Engagement and Compliance Office (BECO) by phone, through email, or at the address 
shown below, for assistance in their efforts to use DBEs in the highway construction 
industry. BECO contact information is as follows: 

 

Arizona Department of 
Transportation Business 
Engagement and Compliance 
Office 1801 W. Jefferson St., 
Ste. 101, Mail Drop 154A 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Phone (602) 712-7761 
FAX (602) 712-8429 
Email: contractorcompliance@azdot.gov Website: www.azdot.gov/bec 

 

4.01 Mentor-Protégé Program: 
 

The Department has established a Mentor- Protégé program as an initiative to 
encourage and develop disadvantaged businesses in the highway construction 
industry. The program encourages prime contractors to provide certain types of 
assistance to certified DBE subcontractors. ADOT encourages contractors and certified 
DBE subcontractors to engage in a Mentor-Protégé agreement under certain 
conditions. Such an agreement must be mutually beneficial to both parties and to 
ADOT in fulfilling requirements of 49 CFR Part 23. For guidance regarding this program 
refer to the Mentor-Protégé Program Guidelines available on the BECO website. 

 

The Mentor-Protégé program is intended to increase legitimate DBE activities. The 
program does not diminish the DBE rules or regulations, and participants may not 
circumvent these rules. 

 
5.0 Applicability: 

 
The Department has established an overall annual goal for DBE participation on 
Federal aid contracts. The Department intends for the goal to be met with a 
combination of race conscious efforts and race neutral efforts. Race conscious 
participation occurs when the contractor uses a percentage of DBEs, as defined herein, 
to meet the contract specified goal. Race neutral efforts are those that are, or can be, 
used to assist all small businesses or increase opportunities for all small businesses. 
The regulation, 49 CFR 26, defines race neutral as when a DBE wins a prime contract 
through customary competitive procurement procedures or is awarded a subcontract 

https://app.az.gov/
mailto:contractorcompliance@azdot.gov
http://www.azdot.gov/bec


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 51 of 81 

 

Procurement 

on a prime contract that does not carry a DBE contract goal. 
 

Prime contractors are encouraged to obtain DBE participation even if a DBE goal was 
not established on a contract. 

 
The DBE provisions are applicable to all contractors including DBE contractors. 

 
6.0 Certification and Registration: 

 

6.1 DBE Certification: 
 

Certification as a DBE shall be predicated on: 
 

(1) The completion and execution of an application for certification as a "Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise". 

 
(2) The submission of documents pertaining to the firm(s) as stated in the application(s), 

including but not limited to a statement of social disadvantage and a personal financial 
statement. 

 

(3) The submission of any additional information which the Department or the applicable 
Arizona Unified Certification (UCP) agency may require to determine the firm's 
eligibility to participate in the DBE program. 

 
(4) The information obtained during the on-site visits to the offices of the firm and to active 

job-sites. 
 

Applications for certification may be filed online with the Department or the 
applicable UCP agency at any time through the Arizona Unified Transportation 
Registration and Certification System (AZ UTRACS) website at 
http://www.azutracs.com. 

  

DBE firms and firms seeking DBE certification shall cooperate fully with requests for 
information relevant to the certification process. Failure or refusal to provide such 
information is a ground for denial or removal of certification. 

 

ADOT is a member of the AZ Unified Certification Program (AZUCP). Only DBE firms 
that are certified by the AZUCP are eligible for credit on ADOT projects. A list of DBE 
firms certified by AZUCP is available on the internet at http://www.azutracs.com/. The 
list will indicate contact information and specialty for each DBE firm, and may be 
sorted in a variety of ways. However, ADOT does not guarantee the accuracy and/or 
completeness of this information, nor does ADOT represent that any licenses or 
registrations are appropriate for the work to be done. 

 
The Department’s certification of a DBE is not a representation of qualifications and/or 
abilities nor does it mean that a DBE firm is guaranteed or entitled to receive or be 
awarded a contract. Being certified simply means that a firm has met the criteria for 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.azutracs.com/
http://www.azutracs.com/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 52 of 81 

 

Procurement 

DBE certification as outlined in 49 CFR Part 26. The contractor bears all risks of 
ensuring that DBE firms selected by the contractor are able to perform the work. 

 

6.2 SBC Registration: 
 

To comply with 49 CFR Part 26.39, ADOT’s DBE Program incorporates contracting 
requirements to facilitate participation by Small Business Concerns (SBCs) in federally 
assisted contracts. SBCs are for- profit businesses authorized to do businesses in 
Arizona that meet the Small Business Administration (SBA) size standards for average 
annual revenue criteria for its primary North American Industry Classification System 
(NAICS) code. 

 

While the SBC component of the DBE program does not require utilization of goals on 
projects, ADOT strongly encourages contractors to utilize small businesses that are 
registered in AZ UTRACS on their contracts, in addition to DBEs meeting the 
certification requirement. The contractor may use the AZ UTRACS website to search 
for certified DBEs and registered SBCs that can be used on the contract. However, 
SBCs that are not DBEs will not be counted toward DBE participation. 

 

SBCs can register online at the AZ UTRACS website. 
 

The Department’s registration of SBCs is not a representation of qualifications and/or 
abilities nor does it mean that an SBC firm is guaranteed or entitled to receive or be 
awarded a contract. Being SBC registered simply means that a firm has met the 
criteria for SBC registration as outlined in 49 CFR Part 
26. The contractor bears all risks of ensuring that SBC firms selected by the contractor 
are able to perform the work. 

 

7.0 DBE Financial Institutions: 
 

The Department thoroughly investigates the full extent of services offered by financial 
institutions owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged 
individuals in its service area and makes reasonable efforts to use these institutions. 
The Department encourages prime contractors to use such institutions on USDOT 
assisted contracts. However, use of DBE financial institutions will not be counted 
toward DBE participation. 

 
The Department encourages prime contractors to research the Federal Reserve Board 
website at www.federalreserve.gov to identify minority-owned banks in Arizona 
derived from the Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income filed quarterly by 
banks (FFIEC 031 and 041) and from other information on the Board’s National 
Information Center database. 

 

8.0 Time is of the Essence: 
 

TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN RESPECT TO THE DBE PROVISIONS. 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.federalreserve.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 53 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
9.0 Computation of Time: 

 
In computing any period of time described in this DBE special provision, such as 
calendar days, the day from which the period begins to run is not counted, and when 
the last day of the period is a Saturday, Sunday, or Federal or State holiday, the period 
extends to the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or Federal or State holiday. In 
circumstances where the Department’s offices are closed for all or part of the last day, 
the period extends to the next day on which the Department’s offices are open. 

 
10.0 Contractor and Subcontractor Requirements: 

 
10.1 General: 

 
Each contractor shall establish a program that will ensure nondiscrimination in the 
award and administration of contracts and subcontracts. 

 

Agreements between the bidder and a DBE in which the DBE promises not to provide 
subcontracting quotations to other bidders are prohibited. 

 
10.2 DBE Liaison: 

 
The contractor shall designate a DBE Liaison responsible for the administration of the 
contractor’s DBE program. The name of the designated DBE Liaison shall be included in 
the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Summary. 

 

11.0 DBE Goals 
 

The Department has not established contract goals for DBE participation in this contract. 
 

Contractors are still encouraged to employ reasonable means to obtain DBE 
participation. Contractors must retain records in accordance with these DBE 
specifications. The contractor is notified that this record keeping is important to the 
Department so that it can track DBE participation where only race neutral efforts are 
employed. 

 
11.1 Race Neutral Contract (With No DBE Goal) 

 
The Department has established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program 
in accordance with the regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT), 
49 CFR Part 26. ADOT has received federal financial assistance from the USDOT and as 
a condition of receiving this assistance, ADOT has  signed an assurance that it shall 
comply with 49 CFR Part 26. 

 

It is ADOT’s policy to ensure that DBEs, as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, have an equal 
opportunity to receive and participate in federally-funded contracts. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 54 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
NO CONTRACT DBE GOAL HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED FOR DBE PARTICIPATION ON THIS 
CONTRACT. 

 
Contractors are still encouraged to employ reasonable means to obtain DBE 
participation. Contractors must retain records in accordance with these DBE 
specifications. The consultant is notified that this record keeping is important to the 
Department so that it can track DBE participation where only race neutral efforts are 
employed. 

 

12.0 Bidders/Proposers List and AZ UTRACS Registration Requirement: 
 

Under Title 49 CFR of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26.11, DOTs are required 
to collect certain information from all contractors and subcontractors who seek to 
work on federally-assisted contracts in order to set overall and contract DBE goals. 
ADOT collects this information when firms register their companies on the Arizona 
Unified Transportation Registration and Certification System (AZ UTRACS) web portal 
at http://www.azutracs.com/ a centralized database for companies that seek to do 
business with ADOT. This information will be maintained as confidential to the extent 
allowed by federal and state law. 

 

Prime contractors and all subcontractors, including DBEs listed in the offer must be 
registered in AZUTRACS. Proposers may verify that their firm and each subcontractor 
is registered using the AZUTRACS website. 

 
Proposers may obtain additional information at the AZ UTRACS website or by contacting BECO.  
 

All proposers shall create a Bidders/Proposers list in the AZ UTRACS by selecting all 
firms, service providers, and vendors that expressed interest or submitted proposals 
or quotes for this contract. The Bidders/Proposers List form must be complete and 
must include the names for all subcontractors, service providers, and vendors that 
submitted proposals or quotes on this project regardless of the proposer’s intentions 
to use the those firms on the project. 

 

All proposers must complete and submit the Bidders/Proposers List online at AZ 
UTRACS prior to Offer submittal. A confirmation email will be generated by the 
system. This email confirmation shall be submitted with the Offer. 

 
13.0 Payment Reporting: 

 
The contractor shall report on a monthly basis indicating the amounts paid to all 
subcontractors, of all tiers, working on the project. Reporting shall be in accordance 
with below. 

 
Subcontracts: 

 

a. Sub-Contract Terms: 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.azutracs.com/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 55 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
1. The Contractor agrees to execute a written Contract with all Subcontractors 

for work to be completed under this Contract. The executed Contract shall 
include Subcontractor’s Scope of Work and all the Uniform Terms and 
Conditions set forth in this Contract. 

 
2. The Contractor shall provide electronic copies of signed subcontract 

agreements with all Subcontractors to ADOT Business Engagement and 
Compliance Office (BECO) by uploading them to the BECO’s online DBE 
Contract & Labor Compliance Management System (DBE System) at 
https://adot.dbesystem.com. Subcontract agreements shall include all 
required assurances and required clauses as outlined in this Contract. Each 
agreement and required attachment shall be dated and signed by the 
Subcontractor in order for the subcontract to be considered valid. 

 
3. The Contractor may be in breach of this Contract if the Contractor materially 

modifies the federal regulations and State statutes in its subcontract 
agreements terms and conditions with its Subcontractors. Deviations from 
the terms of this Contract may result in termination of the Contract, or any 
other such remedy as deemed appropriate by the Department. 

 

b. Sub-Contract Payments 
 

1. Retention: If the prime contract does not provide for retention, the 
contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall not withhold retention 
on any subcontract. If the prime contract provides for retention, the prime 
contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall not retain a higher 
percentage than the Department may retain under the prime contract. 
Retainage shall be paid to the subcontractor within 7 days of satisfactory 
completion of the work performed by the subcontractor. 

 
2. No Set-offs Arising from Other Contracts: If a subcontractor is performing 

work on multiple contracts for the same contractor or subcontractor of any 
tier, the contractor or  subcontractor of any tier shall not withhold or reduce 
payment from its subcontractors on the contract because of disputes or 
claims on another contract. 

 
3. Partial Payment: The contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall 

make prompt partial payments to its subcontractors within seven days of 
receipt of payment from the Department. Notwithstanding any provision of 
Arizona Revised Statutes Section 28-411, the parties may not agree 
otherwise. 

 
4. Final Payment: The contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall make 

prompt final payment to each of its subcontractors. The contractor and each 
subcontractor of any tier shall pay all monies, including retention, due to its 
subcontractor within seven days of receipt of payment. Notwithstanding any 
provision of Arizona Revised Statutes Section 28-411, the parties may not 
agree otherwise. 

 
5. Payment Reporting: For the purposes of this subsection “Reportable 

Contracts” means any subcontract, of any tier, DBE or non-DBE, by which 
work shall be performed on behalf of the contractor and any contract of any 

https://app.az.gov/
https://adot.dbesystem.com/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 56 of 81 

 

Procurement 

tier with a DBE material or service supplier. 
 

The requirements of this subsection apply to all Reportable Contracts. 
 

Payment Reporting for all Reportable Contracts shall be done through the 
Department’s web- based DBE System. The DBE System can be accessed 
from the Department’s BECO website. No later than fifteen calendar days 
after the Notice to Proceed is issued, the contractor shall log into the 
Department’s web based DBE System and enter or verify the name, contact 
information, and subcontract amounts for Reportable Contracts on the 
project. As Reportable Contracts are approved over the course of the 
contract, the contractor shall enter them in the system. Reportable 
contracts shall be entered into the system no later than five calendar days 
after approval by the Department. 

 
The contractor shall report on a monthly basis indicating the amounts 
actually paid and the dates of each payment under any Reportable Contract 
on the project. In addition, the contractor shall require that all participants 
in any Reportable Contract electronically verify receipt of payment on the 
contract by the last day of the month and the contractor shall actively 
monitor the Department’s DBE System to ensure that the verifications are 
input. The contractor shall proactively work to resolve any payment 
discrepancies in the DBE System between payment amounts it reports and 
payment confirmation amounts reported by others. 

 

The contractor shall ensure that all Reportable Contract activity is reported 
to the Department. This includes all lower-tier Reportable Contracts, 
regardless of whether a DBE is involved or not. 

 
The contractor shall maintain records for each payment explaining the 
amount requested by the subcontractor, and the amount actually paid 
pursuant to the request, which may include but are not limited to, 
estimates, invoices, pay requests, copies of checks or wire transfers, and lien 
waivers in support of the monthly payments in the DBE System. 

 
The contractor shall provide information for payments made on all 
Reportable Contracts during the previous month by the 15th day of the 
current month. In the event that no payments were made during a given 
month, the contractor shall identify that by entering a dollar value of zero. If 
the contractor does not pay the full amount of any invoice from a 
subcontractor, the contractor shall note that and provide the reasons in the 
comment section of the Monthly Payment Audit of the DBE System. 

 
For each Reportable Contract on which the contractor fails to submit timely 
payment information the Department will retain $1,000.00 as liquidated 
damages, from the monies due to the contractor. Liquidated damages will 
be deducted each month for each Reportable Contract on which the 
contractor fails to submit payment information until the contractor provides 
the required information as described herein. After 90 consecutive days of 
non- reporting, the liquidated damages will increase to $2,000.00 for each 
subsequent month, for each Reportable Contract on which the contractor 
fails to report until the information is provided. These liquidated damages 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 57 of 81 

 

Procurement 

shall be in addition to all other retention or liquidated damages provided for 
elsewhere in the contract. 

 

Payment reporting requirements apply to all contracts, federal and non-federal 
funded. 

 
The contractor shall ensure that a copy of this Subsection is included in 
every Reportable Contract of every tier. 

 

(a) Sanctions for Inadequate Reporting: 
 

For each Reportable Contract on which the contractor fails to submit timely 
and complete payment information the Department will retain $1,000.00 as 
liquidated damages, from the monies due to the contractor. Liquidated 
damages will be deducted each month for each Reportable Contract on 
which the contractor fails to submit payment information until the 
contractor provides the required information as described herein. After 90 
consecutive days  of non-reporting, the liquidated damages will increase to 
$2,000.00 for each subsequent month, for each Reportable Contract on 
which the contractor fails to report until the information is provided. These 
liquidated damages shall be in addition to all other retention  or liquidated 
damages provided for elsewhere in the contract. 

 
6. Completion of Work: A subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed 

when all the tasks called for in the subcontract have been accomplished, 
documented, and accepted by the Department. 

 

7. Disputes: If disputes arise regarding payment of subcontractors, the 
contractor shall immediately provide the ADOT Project Manager with a 
written, verifiable explanation if: 

 

 The contractor does not pay the full amount of any invoice from a 
subcontractor within seven days of receipt of a progress payment from 
the Department, or 

 The monthly estimate does not include all work claimed by a 
subcontractor to have been performed. 

 
The Department will determine whether the contractor has acted in good 
faith concerning any such explanations. The Department reserves the right 
to request and receive documents from the contractor and all 
subcontractors of any tier, in order to determine whether termination 
requirements were met. The contractor shall implement and use the dispute 
resolution process outlined in the subcontract, as described in Uniform 
Terms and Conditions Paragraph, to resolve payment disputes. 

 
8. Non-Compliance: Failure to make prompt partial payment or prompt final 

payment including any retention, within the time frames established in this 
contract, will result in remedies, as the Department deems appropriate, 
which may include, but are not limited to: 

 

 Liquidated Damages: These liquidated damages shall be in addition to all 
other retention or liquidated damages provided for elsewhere in the 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 58 of 81 

 

Procurement 

contract. 
 

(i) The Department will withhold two times the disputed dollar 
amount not paid to each subcontractor. 

(ii) If full payment is made within 30 days of the Department’s 
payment to the contractor, the amount withheld by the 
Department will be released. 

(iii) If full payment is made after 30 days of the Department’s 
payment to the contractor, the Department will release 75 
percent of the funds withheld. The Department will retain 25 
percent of the monies withheld as liquidated damages. 

 

 Additional Remedies: If the contractor fails to make prompt payment for 
three consecutive months, or any four months over the course of one 
project, or if the contractor fails to make prompt payment on two or 
more contracts within 24 months, the Department may, in addition, 
invoke the following remedies: 

 
(i) Withhold monthly progress payments until the issue is resolved 

and full payment has been made to all subcontractors and 
vendors subject to the requirements outlined under “Liquidated 
Damages” above, 

(ii) Terminate the contract for default in accordance with this Contract, 
and/or 

(iii) Suspension or Debarment per Uniform Terms and Conditions 
Paragraph 9.3 of the contractor from future bidding temporarily 
or permanently, depending on the number and severity of 
violation. 

(iv) Reflect the contractor’s performance in submitting payment 
reports and making subcontractor payments utilizing the 
Department’s Vendor Performance Report. 

 

14.0 Crediting DBE Participation: 
 

14.01 General Requirements: 
 

To count toward DBE participation, the DBE firms must be certified at the time of Offer 
submission in each NAICS code applicable to the kind of work the firm will perform on 
the contract. NAICS for each DBE can be found on the AZ UTRACS website. General 
descriptions of all NAICS codes can be found at http://www.naics.com/search/. 

 

Credit is given only after the DBE has been paid for the work performed. 
 

The entire amount of a contract that is performed by the DBE’s own forces, including 
the cost of supplies and materials purchased by the DBE for the work on the contract 
and equipment leased by the DBE will be credited toward DBE participation. Supplies 
and equipment the DBE subcontractor purchases or leases from the prime contractor 
or its affiliate will not be credited toward DBE participation. 

 
The contractor bears the responsibility to determine whether the DBE possesses the 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.naics.com/search/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 59 of 81 

 

Procurement 

proper contractor’s license(s) to perform the work and, if DBE credit is requested, that 
the DBE subcontractor is certified for the requested type of work. 

 
The Department’s certification is not a representation of a DBE’s qualifications and/or 
abilities. The contractor bears all risks that the DBE may not be able to perform its 
work for any reason. 

 
A DBE may participate as a prime contractor, subcontractor, or as a vendor of 
materials or supplies. The dollar amount of work to be accomplished by DBEs, 
including partial amount of a lump sum or other similar item, shall be on the basis of 
subcontract, purchase order, hourly rate, rate per ton, etc., as agreed to between 
parties. 

 
DBE credit may be obtained only for specific work done for the project, supply of 
equipment specifically for physical work on the project, or supply of materials to be 
incorporated in the work. DBE credit will not be allowed for costs such as overhead 
items, capital expenditures (for example, purchase of equipment), and office items. 

 

The contractor may credit second-tier subcontracts issued to DBEs by non-DBE 
subcontractors. Any second-tier subcontract to a DBE must meet the requirements of 
a first-tier DBE subcontract. 

 
A prime contractor may credit the entire amount of that portion of a contract that is 
performed by the DBE’s own forces. The cost of supplies and materials obtained by 
the DBE for the work of the contract can be included so long as that cost is reasonable. 
Leased equipment may also be included. No credit is permitted for supplies purchased 
or equipment leased from the prime contractor or its affiliate(s). 

 

When a DBE subcontracts a part of the work of its contract to another firm, the value 
of the subcontract may be credited towards DBE participation only if the DBE’s 
subcontractor is itself a DBE and performs the work with its own forces. Work that a 
DBE subcontracts to a non-DBE firm does not count toward DBE participation. 

 

A prime contractor may credit the entire amount of fees or commissions charged by a 
DBE firm for providing a bona fide service, such as professional, technical, consulting, 
or managerial services, or for providing bonds or insurance specifically required for the 
performance of a USDOT-assisted contract, provided the fees are reasonable and not 
excessive as compared with fees customarily allowed for similar services. 

 
14.02 DBE Prime Contractor: 

 

When a certified DBE firm proposes on a contract/Task Assignment all the work that is 
performed by the DBE contractor or any other DBE subcontractors and DBE suppliers 
will count toward DBE participation. 

 
14.03 Effect of Loss of DBE Eligibility: 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 60 of 81 

 

Procurement 

For On-Call Task Assignment contracts, if a DBE is deemed ineligible (decertified) or 
suspended by ADOT or one of its UCP Partner Agencies in accordance with 49 CFR 
26.87 and 26.88, the DBE may not be count toward DBE participation on a new Task 
Assignment, but may be considered for the contract/Task Assignment DBE 
participation if a subcontract or contract modification for the work to be completed on 
the Task Assignment was executed before the DBE suspension or decertification is 
effective. 

 

A subcontract or contract modification for work on the task assignment means, any 
subcontract or agreement for the task assignment, which includes a specific ADOT 
TRACS/Project Number, defined scope, duration and budget for the work to be 
completed under the Task Assignment that is duly signed by the contractor/contractor 
and subcontractor/subcontractor. 

 
When the contractor/contractor intents to use an ineligible DBE firm or ADOT made a 
commitment to use an ineligible DBE prime contractor/contractor, but a subcontract 
or Contract Modification for the work to be completed on the Task Assignment has 
not been executed before a decertification notice is issued to the DBE firm by its 
certifying agency, the ineligible firm does not count toward DBE participation. When a 
subcontract or contract modification is executed with the DBE firm for the work to be 
completed on the Task Assignment before ADOT notified the firm of its ineligibility, 
the DBE’s work on the Task Assignment may continue to be credited toward DBE 
participation for the firm’s work. 

 

14.04 Notifying the Contractor of DBE Certification Status: 
 

Each DBE contract at any tier shall require any DBE subcontractor or supplier that is 
either decertified or certified during the term of the contract to immediately notify the 
contractor and all parties to the DBE contract in writing, with the date of 
decertification or certification. The contractor shall require that this provision be 
incorporated in any contract of any tier in which a DBE is a participant. 

 

14.05 Commercially Useful Function: 
 

A prime contractor can credit expenditures to a DBE subcontractor only if the DBE 
performs a Commercially Useful Function (CUF). 

 
A DBE performs a CUF when it is responsible for execution of the work of a contract 
and carries out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising 
the work involved. To perform a commercially useful function, the DBE must also be 
responsible, with respect to materials and supplies on the contract, for negotiating 
price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material, and installing (where 
applicable) and paying for the material itself that it uses on the project. To determine 
whether a DBE is performing a commercially useful function, the Department will 
evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry practices, whether the amount 
the firm is to be paid under the contract is commensurate with the work it is actually 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 61 of 81 

 

Procurement 

performing and the DBE credit claimed for its performance of the work, and other 
relevant factors. 

 

A DBE will not be considered to perform a commercially useful function if its role is 
limited to that of an extra participant in a transaction, contract, or project through 
which funds are passed in order to obtain the appearance of DBE participation. In 
determining whether a DBE is such an extra participant, the Department will examine 
similar transactions, particularly those in which DBEs do not participate. 

 
If a DBE does not perform or exercise responsibility for at least 30 percent of the total 
cost of  its contract with its own work force, or if the DBE subcontracts a greater 
portion of the work of a contract than would be expected on the basis of normal 
industry practice for the type of work involved, the Department will presume that the 
DBE is not performing a commercially useful function. 

 
When a DBE is presumed not to be performing a commercially useful function as 
provided above, the DBE may present evidence to rebut this presumption. The 
Department will determine if the firm is performing a CUF given the type of work 
involved and normal industry practices. 

 
The Department will notify the contractor, in writing, if it determines that the 
contractor’s DBE subcontractor is not performing a CUF. The contractor will be 
notified within seven calendar days of the Department’s decision. 

 

Decisions on CUF may be appealed to the Chief Procurement Officer (CPO). The appeal 
must be in writing and personally delivered or sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the CPO. The appeal must be received by the CPO no later than seven 
calendar days after the decision of BECO. BECO’s decision remains in place unless and 
until the CPO reverses or modifies BECO’s decision. CPO will promptly consider any 
appeals under this subsection and notify the contractor of CPO’s findings and 
decisions. Decisions on CUF matters are not administratively appealable to USDOT. 

 
The BECO may conduct project site visits on the contract to confirm that DBEs are 
performing a CUF. The contractor shall cooperate during the site visits and the BECO’s 
staff will make every effort not to disrupt work on the project. 

 

15.0 Required Provisions for DBE Subcontracts: 
 

All subcontracts of any tier, all supply contracts, and any other contracts in which a 
DBE is a participant shall include as a physical attachment, DBE Subcontractor 
Compliance Assurances refer to the Federal Attachments and Exhibits. 

 
Contractors executing agreements with subcontractors, DBE or non-DBE, that 
materially modify federal regulation and state statutes such as, prompt payment and 
retention requirements, through subcontract terms and conditions will be found in 
breach of contract which may result in termination of the contract, or any other such 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 62 of 81 

 

Procurement 

remedy as the deemed appropriate as outlined in DBE Subsection 2.0 of these DBE 
provisions. 

 

The Department reserves the right to conduct random reviews of DBE and non-DBE 
subcontract documentation to ensure compliance with federal requirements. 

 
The contractor shall ensure that all subcontracts or agreements with DBEs to supply 
labor or materials require that the subcontract and all lower tier subcontracts be 
performed in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26 provisions. 

 
The Contractor shall provide electronic copies of subcontract agreements with all 
Subcontractors by uploading them within 15 calendar days of an executed contract to 
the ADOT DBE System. Subcontract agreements shall include all required assurances 
and clauses as outlined in DBE Subcontractor Compliance Assurances refer to the 
Federal Attachments and Exhibits of the Contract. Each agreement and required 
attachment shall be dated and signed by the Subcontractor in order for the 
subcontract to be considered valid. 

 

The Contractor shall be in breach of this Contract if the Contractor materially modifies 
the federal regulations and State statutes in its subcontract agreements terms and 
conditions with its Subcontractors. Deviations from the terms of this Contract may 
result in termination of the Contract, or any other such remedy as deemed 
appropriate by the Department 

 

16.0 Certification of Final DBE Payments: 
 

DBE participation on the contract is measured by actual payments made to the DBEs. 
The contractor shall submit the “Certification of Final DBE Payments” form for each 
DBE firm working on the contract. This form shall be signed by the contractor and the 
relevant DBE, and submitted to the Engineer no later than 30 days after the DBE 
completes its work. 

 
The contractor will not be released from the obligations of the contract until the 
”Certification of Final DBE Payments” forms are received and deemed acceptable by 
the Engineer and BECO. 

 

17.0 False, Fraudulent, or Dishonest Conduct: 
 

In addition to any other remedies or actions, the Department will bring to the 
attention of the US Department of Transportation any appearance of false, fraudulent, 
or dishonest conduct in connection with the DBE program, so that USDOT can take 
steps such as referral to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral to 
the USDOT Inspector General for possible initiation of suspension and debarment 
proceedings against the offending parties or application of “Program Fraud and Civil 
Penalties” rules provided in 49 CFR Part 31. 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 63 of 81 

 

Procurement 

21. NONDISCRIMINATION 
 

1. During the performance of this Contract, the Consultant, for itself, its 
Subconsultants, assignees and successors shall: 

 
a. Not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex and shall 

carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the performance of this 
Contract. Failure by the Consultant to carry out these requirements is a 
material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this 
Contract, disqualification from proposing on other Contracts or other remedy 
as the State deems appropriate. 

 
b. Comply with Executive Order 2009-09, "Prohibition of Discrimination in 

Employment by Government Contractors and Subcontractors," which is 
hereby included in its entirety by reference and considered a part of this 
Contract. 

 

c. Comply with the provisions of Executive Order 11246, entitled "Equal 
Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as 
supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Part 60). Said 
provisions are made applicable by reference and are hereinafter considered a 
part of this Contract. 

 
d. Post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 

employment, the following notice: 
 

“It is the policy of this company not to discriminate against any employee, or 
applicant for employment, because of race, color, religion, creed, national 
origin, sex, age, handicapped, or disabled veterans and Vietnam era 
veterans. Such actions shall include, but are not limited to: employment, 
upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment, or recruitment advertising; 
laying- off or termination; rates of pay or other compensation; and selection 
for training, and on-the- job training. Also, it is the policy to ensure and 
maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation and 
coercion.” 

 

e. Comply with the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted 
programs of the 
U.S. Department of Transportation (hereinafter USDOT), 49 CFR Part 21, as 
they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the 
Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of 
this Contract. 

 
 

f. Not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the 
selection and retention of Subconsultants, including procurement of materials 
and leases of equipment. The Consultant shall not participate either directly or 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 64 of 81 

 

Procurement 

indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, 
including employment practices. 

 

g. In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the 
Consultant for work to be performed under a subcontract, including 
procurement of materials or leases of equipment, notify each potential 
Subconsultant or supplier of the Consultant’s obligations under this Contract 
and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the ground of race, color, 
or national origin. 

 
h. Provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives 

issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined 
by the State to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, 
orders and instructions. Where any information required of a Consultant is in 
the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this 
information, the Consultant shall so certify to the State as appropriate, and 
shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

 
2. In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with the NONDISCRIMININATION 

provision (Section A) of this Contract, the State shall impose such Contract 
sanctions as the State or FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including but 
not limited to: 

 

a. Withholding of payments to the Consultant under the Contract until the 
Consultant complies, 

 
and/or; 

 
b. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part. 

 

3. The Consultant shall include the provisions of paragraph 1.a. through 1.h. in every 
subcontract with Subconsultants, DBEs and non-DBEs, including procurement of 
materials and equipment leases, unless exempt by the Regulations or directives 
issued pursuant thereto. 

 
4. The Consultant shall take such action with respect to any Subconsultants or 

procurement as the State or the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), FHWA and 
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, however, that in the 
event the Consultant becomes involved in or is threatened with litigation with a 
Subconsultant or supplier as a result of such direction, the Consultant may request 
the State to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State, and in 
addition, the Consultant may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 65 of 81 

 

Procurement 

22. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 
 

Contractor shall take the following affirmative action steps with respect to securing 
supplies,  equipment, or services under the terms of this contract: 

 
a. Include qualified firms owned by socially and economically disadvantaged 

individuals on solicitation lists. 
 

b. Assure that firms owned by socially and economically disadvantaged 
individuals are solicited whenever they are potential sources. 

 
c. When economically feasible, divide total requirements into smaller tasks 

or quantities so as to permit maximum participation by firms owned by 
socially and economically disadvantaged individuals. 

 

d. Where the requirement permits, establish delivery schedules which will 
encourage participation by firms owned by socially and economically 
disadvantaged individuals. 

 
e. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, the 

Office of Minority Business Enterprise of the Department of Commerce, 
and the Community Services Administration, as required. 

 
 

 

23. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT 
 

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid contract in an amount in excess of 
$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses 
required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers 
and mechanics include watchmen and guards. 

 
Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of 
the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or 
mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in 
which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 
forty hours in such workweek. 

 

Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation 
of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, the contractor and any 
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, 
such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of 
work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such  District or 
to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 66 of 81 

 

Procurement 

with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, 
employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, in the 
sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted 
to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section. 

 

Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The FHWA or the contacting 
agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 
representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any 
moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor 
under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime 
contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such 
sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor 
or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause 
set forth in paragraph (2.) of this section. 

 
Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the 
clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) through (4.) of this section and also a clause 
requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. 
The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or 
lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1.) through (4.) of 
this section. 

 

24. FEDERAL CHANGES 
 

The Contactor and its sub-contractors shall comply with all applicable FTA regulations, 
policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or 
by reference in the Master Agreement between the Department and FTA, as they be 
amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of the contract. 
Contractor’s failure to comply shall constitute a material breach of the contract. 

 
25. PROMPT PAY 

 
The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for 
satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 30 days from the receipt of each 
payment the prime contract receives from the Recipient. The prime contractor agrees 
further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within 30 days after the 
subcontractors work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of 
payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause 
following written approval of the Recipient. This clause applies to both DBE and non-
DBE subcontracts. 

 

26. FULL AND OPEN COMPETITION 
 

In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5325(h) all procurement transactions shall be 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 67 of 81 

 

Procurement 

conducted in a manner that provides full and open competition. 
 

27. PROHIBITION AGAINST EXCLUSIONARY OR DISCRIMINATORY SPECIFICATIONS 
 

Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal statute or regulations, the 
contractor shall comply with the requirements of 49 USC 5323(h)(2) by refraining from 
using any FTA assistance to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory 
specifications. 

 
28. CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHITECTURE 

 
Contractor shall conform, to the extent applicable, to the National Intelligent 
Transportation Standards architecture as required by SAFETEA-LU Section 5307(c), 23 
U.S.C. Section 512 note and follow the provisions of FTA Notice, “FTA National 
Architecture Policy on Transit Projects,” 66 Fed. Reg.1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and 
any other implementing directives FTA may issue at a later date, except to the extent 
FTA determines otherwise in writing. 

 
29. ACCESS REQUIREMENTS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

 
Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5301(d), stating Federal policy that the elderly 
and persons with disabilities have the same rights as other persons to use mass 
transportation services and facilities and that special efforts shall be made in planning 
and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy. 

 
Contractor shall also comply with all applicable requirements of Sec. 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act (1973), as amended, 29 USC 794, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of handicaps, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as 
amended, 42 USC 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services 
be made available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments 
thereto. 

 
 

30. NOTIFICATION OF FEDERAL PARTICIPATION 
 

To the extent required by law, in the announcement of any third party contract award 
for goods and services (including construction services) having an aggregate value of 
$500,000 or more, contractor shall specify the amount of Federal assistance to be 
used in financing that acquisition of goods and services and to express that amount of 
Federal assistance as a percentage of the total cost of the third party contract. 

 

31. INTEREST OF MEMBERS OR DELEGATES TO CONGRESS 
 

No members of, or delegates to, the US Congress shall be admitted to any share or 
part of this contract nor to any benefit arising therefrom. 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 68 of 81 

 

Procurement 

32. INELIGIBLE CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

Any name appearing upon the Comptroller General’s list of ineligible contractors for 
federally-assisted contracts shall be ineligible to act as a subcontractor for contractor 
pursuant to this contract. If contractor is on the Comptroller General’s list of ineligible 
contractors (https://www.sam.gov/SAM/) for federally financed or assisted 
construction, the recipient shall cancel, terminate or suspend this contract. 

 
33. OTHER CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

 
To the extent not inconsistent with the foregoing Federal requirements, this contract 
shall also include those standard clauses attached hereto, and shall comply with the 
recipient’s Procurement Guidelines, available upon request from the Department. 

 
34. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REGULATIONS 

 
Any contract entered pursuant to this solicitation shall contain the following 
provisions: All USDOT- required contractual provisions, as set forth in FTA Circular 
4220, are incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, 
FTA mandated terms shall control in the event of a conflict with other provisions 
contained in this Agreement. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any 
act, or refuse to comply with any grantee request that would cause the recipient to be 
in violation of FTA terms and conditions. Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including, without limitation, 
those listed directly or incorporated by reference in the Master Agreement between 
the recipient and FTA, as may be amended or promulgated from time to time during 
the term of this contract. Contractor’s failure to so comply shall constitute a material 
breach of this contract. 

 
35. REAL PROPERTY 

 
Any contract entered into shall contain the following provisions: Contractor shall at all 
times comply with all applicable statutes and USDOT regulations, policies, procedures 
and directives governing the acquisition, use and disposal of real property, including, 
but not limited to, 49 CFR 18.31-18.34, 49 CFR 19.30-19.37, 49 CFR Part 24, 49 CFR 
5326 as amended by Map-21, 49 CFR part 18 or 19, 49 USC 5334, applicable FTA 
Circular 5010, and FTA Master Agreement, as they may be amended or promulgated 
during the term of this contract. Contractor’s failure to so comply shall constitute a 
material breach of this contract. 

 

36. ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY 
 

To the extent applicable and except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in 
writing, the Recipient agrees to comply with the policies of Executive Order No. 13166, 
"Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency," 42 U.S.C. § 
2000d 1 note, and with the provisions of U.S. DOT Notice, “DOT Guidance to 
Recipients on Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient (LEP) 

https://app.az.gov/
https://www.sam.gov/SAM/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 69 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Beneficiaries,” 70 Fed. Reg. 74087, December 14, 2005. 
  

37. ENVIROMENTAL JUSTICE 
 

Except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient 
agrees to promote environmental justice by following: (1) Executive Order No. 12898, 
“Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-
Income Populations,” February 11, 1994, 42 
U.S.C. § 4321 note, as well as facilitating compliance with that Executive Order, and (2) 
DOT Order 5610.2, “Department of Transportation Actions To Address Environmental 
Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations,” 62 Fed. Reg. 18377, 
April 15, 1997, and (3) The most recent and applicable edition of FTA Circular 4703.1, 
“Environmental Justice Policy Guidance for Federal Transit Administration Recipients,” 
August 15, 2012, to the extent consistent with applicable Federal laws, regulations, 
and guidance, 

 

38. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIONS 
 

Compliance is required with any applicable Federal laws imposing environmental and 
resource conservation requirements for the project. Some, but not all, of the major 
Federal laws that may affect the project include: the National Environmental Policy Act 
of 1969; the Clean Air Act; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; the 
comprehensive Environmental response, Compensation and  Liability Act; as well as 
environmental provisions with Title 23 U.S.C., and 49 U.C. chapter 53. The U.S. EPA, 
FHWA and other federal agencies may issue other federal regulations and directives 
that may affect the project. Compliance is required with any applicable Federal laws 
and regulations in effect now or that become effective in the future. 

 
39. GEORGRAPHIC INFORMATION RELATED TO SPATIAL DATA 

 
Any project activities involving spatial data or geographic information systems 
activities financed with Federal assistance are required to be consistent with the 
National Spatial Data Infrastructure promulgated by the Federal Geographic Data 
Committee, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. 

 
40. GEOGRAPHIC PREFERENCE 

 
Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.319(b), all procurements must be conducted in a manner that 
prohibits the use of statutorily or administratively imposed state, local, or tribal 
geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases 
where applicable Federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic preference. 
Nothing in this section preempts state licensing laws. When contracting for architectural 
and engineering (A/E) services, geographic location may be a selection criterion provided 
its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given the nature and size 

of the project, to compete for the contract). 
  

41. ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 70 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

The Recipient agrees that it will not enter into a procurement that involves a real or 
apparent organizational conflict of interest described as follows: 

 
(1) When It Occurs. An organizational conflict of interest occurs when the Project work, 

without appropriate restrictions on certain future activities, results in an unfair 
competitive advantage: 

 
(a) To that Third Party Participant or another Third Party Participant performing 

the Project work, and 
(b) That impairs that Third Party Participant’s objectivity in performing the Project 

work, or 
 

(2) Other. An organizational conflict of interest may involve other situations resulting in 
fundamentally unfair competitive conditions, 

 
(3) Disclosure Requirements. Consistent with FTA policies, the Recipient must disclose to 

FTA, and each of its Subrecipients must disclose to the Recipient: 
 

(a) Any instances of organizational conflict of interest, or 
(b) Violations of federal criminal law, involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity 

violations potentially affecting the federal award, and 
 

(4) Failure to Disclose. Failure to make required disclosures can result in remedies for 
noncompliance, including debarment or suspension. 

 
42. VETRANS PREFERENCE 

 
As provided by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(k), to the extent practicable, the Recipient agrees and 
assures that each of its Subrecipients: 

 
(1) Will give a hiring preference to veterans, as defined in 5 U.S.C. § 2108, who have the 

skills and abilities required to perform construction work required under a third party 
contract in connection with a Capital Project supported with federal assistance 
appropriated or made available for 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, and 

(2) Will not require an employer to give a preference to any veteran over any equally 
qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an 
individual with a disability, or a former employee. 

 

43. CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE  (CFDA) IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 
 

The municipal project sponsor is required to identify in its accounts all Federal awards 
received and expended, and the Federal programs under which they were received. 
Federal program and award identification shall include, as applicable, the CFDA title 
and number, award number and year, name of the Federal agency, and name of the 
pass-through entity. 

  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 71 of 81 

 

Procurement 

44.  AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 
 
The contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301 (d), which 
states the Federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities have the same 
right as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special 
efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to 
implement that policy. The contractor also agrees to comply with all applicable 
requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 
794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which requires 
that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, 
including any subsequent amendments to that Act, and with the Architectural Barriers 
act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and 
public accommodations be accessible to persons with disabilities, including any 
subsequent amendments to that Act. In addition, the contractor agrees to comply with 
any and all applicable requirements issued by the FTA, DOT, DOJ, U.S. GSA, U.S. EEOC, 
U.S. FCC, any subsequent amendments thereto and any other nondiscrimination 
statute(s) that may apply to the Project. 
 

45.   BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT 
 
Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required 
certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used 
Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in 
connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 
31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with nonfederal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are 
forwarded from tier to tier up to the Agency.” 

 
46. NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES 

 
The Agency and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by 
the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying Contract, 
absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not 
a party to this Contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Agency, 
Contractor or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter 
resulting from the underlying Contract. The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in 
each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by the FTA. It is 
further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who 
will be subject to its provisions. 

 
44.    BUS TESTING 

 
The operator of the bust testing facility is required to provide the resulting test report 
to the entity that submits the bus for testing.  The manufacturer or dealer of a new bus 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 72 of 81 

 

Procurement 

model or a bus produced with a major change in component or configuration is 
required to provide a copy of the corresponding full bus testing report and any 
applicable partial testing report(s) to the Agency during the point in the procurement 
process specified by the Agency, but in all cases before final acceptance of the first bus 
by the Agency.  The complete bus testing report requirements are provide in 49 C.F.R. 
§ 665.11. 
 

45. CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
The contractor agrees: 
 

a. to use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 
50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry 
cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, 
material, or commodities pursuant to the underlying contract to the extent 
such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag 
commercial vessels; 

 
b. to furnish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments 

originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the 
date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible 
copy of a rated, "onboard" commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each 
shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of 
National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, 
Washington, DC 20590 and to the FTA Recipient (through the contractor in the 
case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.); and 

 
c.   to include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this 

contract when the   subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, 
material, or commodities by ocean vessel. 

 
46. PRE-AWARD AND POST-DELIVERY AUDITS OF ROLLING STOCK PURCHASES 

 
The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5323(m) and FTA's implementing regulation at 
49 C.F.R. part 663. The Contractor shall comply with the Buy America certification(s) submitted 
with its proposal/bid. The Contractor agrees to participate and cooperate in any pre-award and 
post-delivery audits performed pursuant to 49 C.F.R. part 663 and related FTA guidance. 

 
 
 

 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  1 
Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances 

Appendix A 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 73 of 81 

 

Procurement 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
(hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 
 
1. Compliance with Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Acts 

and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, as they may be amended from time to time, which are 
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

 
2. Non-discrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performance by it during the contract, will not 

discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of 
subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor will not 
participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including 
employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 
49 CFR Part 21. 

 
3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations, 

either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a 
subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or 
supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Acts 
and Regulations relative to Non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

 
4. Information and Reports: The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the 

Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, 
other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Recipient or the Federal 
Highway Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and 
instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who 
fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the Recipient or the Federal 
Highway Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the 
information. 

 
5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non-discrimination 

provisions of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Highway 
Administration ,may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

 
a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; 

and/or 
b. cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 
 

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every 
subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the 
Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor will take action with request to any 
subcontract or procurement as the Recipient or the Federal Highway Administration may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor becomes 
involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor or supplier because of such direction, the 
contractor may request the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the Recipient. In 
addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the 
United States. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  2 
Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances 

Appendix E 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 74 of 81 

 

Procurement 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
(hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes 
and authorities; including but not limited to: 
 
Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities: 
• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on 

the basis of race, color, national origin): and 49 CFR Part 21. 
 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), 
(prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or 
Federal-aid programs and projects); 

 

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 etseq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex); 
 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination 
on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 

 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age); 

 

•  Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 

 

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of 
the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such 
programs or activities are Federally funded or not); 

 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability 
in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public 
accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of 
Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38; 

 

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low- 
Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, 
policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on 
minority and low-income populations; 

 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and 
resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English 
proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP 
persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating 
because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1687 et. seq).

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  3 
ADOT Procurement Quarterly Usage Report 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 75 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
This exhibit outlines the content required for the quarterly usage report. Usage reports will be submitted to the appropriate Procurement Officer in accordance with the 

requirements specified in Special Terms and Conditions. The Department reserves the right to make additions, deletions and changes as deemed necessary. 

    Reporting Period:  

      

Contract ID/Code:  Contact Name:  Alternate Contact Name:  

Contract 
Label/Description: 

 Contact Phone 
Number: 

 Alternate Contact Phone 
Number: 

 

Contractor:  Contact Email:  Alternate Contact Email:  

Contractor Address:      

      

 

Agency/Org/Unit 
Customer 

Name 
Delivery Address 

PO Number 
or Identify as 

“P-Card” 

Order 
Date 

Contract 
Item 

Number 

Contract Item 
Description 

Quantity 
Unit of 

Measure 

Contract 
Unit 
Price 

Contract 
Extended 

Price 

Invoice 
Number 

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            
            

            

            

            

            

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  4 
ON-SITE MANUFACTURER INSPECTION 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 76 of 81 

 

Procurement 

(Post-Delivery purchaser’s requirement, in compliance with the federal requirements of 49 U.S.C. Section 
5323(m)) 
 
ON-SITE MANUFACTURER INSPECTION COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 
 
(Rolling Stock Procurements for more than 10 vehicles for areas >200,000 in population) 
 
As required by 49 CFR Part 663Subpart C, the 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Recipient’s name) 
Certifies that a resident inspector, 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of inspector) 
Was at 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(the manufacturer’s) 
 
manufacturing site during the period of manufacture of the buses,  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(description of buses). 
 
The inspector visually inspecting the buses, the _________________________________________ (the 
recipient) has reviewed the inspection documentation, maintains a copy of this report, and certifies that the 
buses meet the contract specifications. 
 
ON-SITE MANUFACTURER INSPECTION COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 
 
(Rolling Stock Procurements for more than 20 vehicles for areas < 200,000 in population) 
 
As required by 49 CFR Part 663 Subpart C, the 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Recipient’s name) 
Certifies that a resident inspector, 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of inspector) 
Was at 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(the manufacturer’s) 
 
manufacturing site during the period of manufacture of the buses,  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(description of buses). 
The inspector visually inspecting the buses, the 
_____________________________________________________ (the recipient) has reviewed the inspection 
documentation, maintains a copy of this report, and certifies that the buses meet the contract specifications. 
 
Signature _________________________________________________ Date ______/ ______/ ______ 

Title ______________________________________________________________________________

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  5 
PRE-AWARD AUDIT AND CERTIFICATION 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 77 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT 6       
PURCHASER'S PRE-AWARD REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 78 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT 7 
PURCHASER'S POST-AWARD REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 79 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT 7 
PURCHASER'S POST-AWARD REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 80 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT 8 
PURCHASER'S POST-AWARD REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFICATION 
 

Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at 
https://app.az.gov/ 

Page 81 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

https://app.az.gov/


             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  One (1) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchase 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

Pursuant to the Uniform Instructions to Offerors, Item B.6, Solicitation Amendments, the above referenced 
solicitation shall be amended as follows: 
 

1. The solicitation due date has been changed from January 17, 2022 at 3:00 PM MST to January 19, 2022 
at 3:00 PM MST. 
 

2. All other terms, conditions and provisions of this solicitation remain unchanged. 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 



             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Two (2) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

Pursuant to the Uniform Instructions to Offerors, Item B.6, Solicitation Amendments, the above referenced 
solicitation shall be amended as follows: 
 

1. Specifications 
The following sections are hereby modified to read: 
 

a. Paragraph 2.1 “The State of Arizona Department of Transportation (Department) is seeking to 
contract with a qualified vendor(s) who can provide new vehicles (all fuel types, hybrid, and full 
electric) including but not limited to: Sedans, Trucks up to 19,500 GVWR, Vans, Sport Utility 
Vehicles (SUVs), and Crossovers for the State of Arizona and participating Eligible Agencies. 
These vehicles will be used to support official organizational goals. These vehicles will be used 
on highways, city/county roads and shall be designed to operate under typical Arizona ambient 
temperatures.” 

b. Paragraph 3.3.1, 3.5.1 and 3.5.2 is hereby removed.  
c. Paragraph 4.1: “The Contractors are encouraged to provide a full line of new vehicles (gasoline, 

hybrid, full electric) including but not limited to the following categories: Sedans, Trucks up to 
19,500 GVWR, Vans (cargo, passenger, transit, etc.), Sport Utility Vehicles (SUVs), and 
Crossovers. Eligible Agencies throughout the State will have varying vehicle needs. Contractors 
are to provide a full line of manufactured new vehicles and all subsequent variants of each 
vehicle; including but not be limited to: models and manufacturer options, trim package, etc. to 
meet each need of an Eligible Agency.” 

d. Paragraph 4.1.1 is hereby removed.  
e. Paragraph 4.4.1:” The Eligible Agency may request the awarded Contractor(s) to up-fit/modify 

any vehicle for specific organizational needs. For example, the cab and chassis of ½ ton, ¾ ton, 
and/or up to 19,500 GVW trucks may require a specialized body (i.e.: dump body, landscape 
body, etc.). Other vehicles may require interior and/or exterior modifications per the individual 
Eligible Agency. “ 

f. Paragraph 4.6.1: ” Anti-slip differential for two-wheel drive pickup trucks, ¾ ton, up to 19,500 
GVW.”   

 
 

2. Special Terms and Conditions 
 
The following sections are hereby modified to read: 
 
a. Paragraph 11.1, (a-g): “Phase 1 and 2 pricing for vehicles shall be a minimum Percentage off MSRP, 
less the manufacturer’s rebates and any additional discounts available for that model/power-train 
combination. 

a. Contractor shall provide a copy of manufacturer’s invoice to the ordering agency upon 
request. The manufacturer’s invoice shall be unaltered to include original pricing from the 
manufacturer.  



             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Three (3) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

Pursuant to the Uniform Instructions to Offerors, Item B.6, Solicitation Amendments, the above referenced 
solicitation shall be amended as follows: 
 

1. Specifications 
The following sections are hereby modified to read: 
 

a. Paragraph 3.5 “For Phase Two (2) vehicles, the Contractor shall supply a quote within five (5) 
calendar days after receiving a request from the Eligible Agency. The quotation shall include but 
not be limited to the following information: State contract number, vehicle availability and 
delivery lead-time, Vehicle Identification Number (VIN), dealer stock number, vehicle base bid 
price, itemized options, applicable tax, delivery cost, total price, and point of contact. For 
vehicles requiring up-fit/modifications, all applicable cost may be included in quotation or as a 
separate quotation.” 
 

b. Paragraph 3.10: “For Phase One (1) the Contractor shall provide the Eligible Agency copies of 
the manufacturer's vehicle identification numbers (VIN#) to confirm vehicles have been ordered 
unless impossible due to manufacture delay within ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of a 
purchase order. If confirmation of manufacturer’s VIN #(s) is not received within this timeframe 
the Eligible Agency has the option to award to the second lowest bidder meeting specifications. 
This shall be considered a mandatory requirement and the timeframe must be met unless there 
is a manufacture delay. Failure to provide this document for each vehicle ordered may be cause 
for determination of default of contract.” 

 
 

2. All other terms, conditions and provisions of this solicitation remain unchanged. 
 



             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Two (2) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

b.  Transportation costs to transfer a vehicle from another dealer for a Phase 2 or purchase 
from stock may be added to the cost of the vehicle. The justification for this cost is at the 
discretion of the Eligible Agency.  

c.  Any reference to Phase 1 pricing shall be in reference to vehicles ordered prior to the 
factory cut-off date.  

d.  Any reference to Phase 2 pricing shall be in reference to vehicles purchased from stock or 
“on the lot”.  

e.  Phase 2 pricing shall receive the same cost considerations as Phase 1 pricing, all discounts 
and rebates should be passed onto the Eligible Agency. 

f.  All vehicles are to be billed at prices in effect at the time of order, not the date of 
shipment.  

g. Pricing for vehicles shall include all discounts and deductions, less Federal and State taxes. 
Pricing shall be firm for life of contract unless amended by way of contract change order. “ 

 
b. Paragraph 22 is hereby replaced with the following:  “The Contractor shall furnish Two (2) Usage 
reports, the first to the Department on a quarterly basis showing purchasing activity under this contract.  
This usage report shall be provided in a form substantially equivalent to Exhibit 03.  Usage reports shall 
be submitted to the Procurement Officer no later than 30 days after the end of each quarter. 

 
Usage report quarters shall be defined as follows: 

 January through March – Report due April 30 

 April through June – Report due July 30 

 July through September – Report due October 30 

 October through December – Report due January 30 
 
Contractor shall submit the second to the State documenting all Contract sales to both Eligible 
Agencies and Co-Op Buyers, itemized separately. A Quarterly Usage Report shall still be 
submitted; even if there have been no sales to either Eligible Agencies and/or Co-Op Buyers. 
Contractor shall further itemize divisions, groups or areas within a given Eligible Agency if they 
place Orders independently of each other. Failure to submit the report is a material breach of 
contract, and will entitle State to its remedies under Article 8 and its right to terminate for 
default under Article 9. Contractor shall submit the report using the forms and following the 
instructions on the State Procurement Office website:  
 

https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee” 
 
 
c. Paragraph 25: Co-op administrative fee has hereby been removed.   
 
 
 

https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee


             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Two (2) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

3. Offer Response Form is hereby replaced with Revision Two (2) attachment. 
 

4. All other terms, conditions and provisions of this solicitation remain unchanged. 
 



             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Three (3) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

Pursuant to the Uniform Instructions to Offerors, Item B.6, Solicitation Amendments, the above referenced 
solicitation shall be amended as follows: 
 

1. Specifications 
The following sections are hereby modified to read: 
 

a. Paragraph 3.5 “For Phase Two (2) vehicles, the Contractor shall supply a quote within five (5) 
calendar days after receiving a request from the Eligible Agency. The quotation shall include but 
not be limited to the following information: State contract number, vehicle availability and 
delivery lead-time, Vehicle Identification Number (VIN), dealer stock number, vehicle base bid 
price, itemized options, applicable tax, delivery cost, total price, and point of contact. For 
vehicles requiring up-fit/modifications, all applicable cost may be included in quotation or as a 
separate quotation.” 
 

b. Paragraph 3.10: “For Phase One (1) the Contractor shall provide the Eligible Agency copies of 
the manufacturer's vehicle identification numbers (VIN#) to confirm vehicles have been ordered 
unless impossible due to manufacture delay within ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of a 
purchase order. If confirmation of manufacturer’s VIN #(s) is not received within this timeframe 
the Eligible Agency has the option to award to the second lowest bidder meeting specifications. 
This shall be considered a mandatory requirement and the timeframe must be met unless there 
is a manufacture delay. Failure to provide this document for each vehicle ordered may be cause 
for determination of default of contract.” 

 
 

2. All other terms, conditions and provisions of this solicitation remain unchanged. 
 



   
ARF-8663   Regular Agenda Item     4. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Homero Vela, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2024 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

04-18-24 to 04-17-25 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 012023 - On-Call Land Survey
Services.

Background Information
On April 18, 2023, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract No.
012023 with D2 Surveying for On-Call Land Survey Services. 

Gila County has a Survey Division within the Public Works Department
that is used for transportation purposes. However, there are times when
other County departments need land surveying for miscellaneous
projects. Due to a heavy workload, the Public Works Survey Division can’t
always accommodate requests in a timely manner.

Evaluation
Contract No. 012023 allows for 3 one-year renewals.  This would be the
first renewal for this contract.

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 012023 with D2 Surveying for On-Call
Land Survey Services renews the contract for one additional year through
April 17, 2025, with a not to exceed amount of $100,000.

Conclusion
The Public Works Director wishes to execute Amendment No. 1 to



The Public Works Director wishes to execute Amendment No. 1 to
Contract No. 012023-On-Call Surveying Services with D2 Surveying LLC
to extend the term of the contract through April 17, 2025

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 012023 with D2
Surveying LLC to renew the contract for an additional year through April
17, 2025 for a not to exceed amount of $100,000 per year per company.
Staff will not renew the contract with Civiltech at this time due to
unresponsiveness regarding another project.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract
No. 012023 with D2 Surveying LLC to renew the contract for an
additional year through April 17, 2025, with a not-to-exceed amount of
$100,000. (Homero Vela)

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 112023
Contract No. 012023 with D2 Surveying























































   
ARF-8662   Regular Agenda Item     4. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Homero Vela, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2024 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

02-16-24 to 02-15-25 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 110520 with Hawker &
Evans Asphalt Co., Inc.

Background Information
On February 16, 2021, the Board awarded Hawker & Evans Asphalt Co.
Contract No. 110520 for two types of chip seal oils. The award was for 48
months with the possibility of 4 annual renewals. This is a request to
renew the contract through February 15, 2025.

On April 5, 2022, the Board approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract
110520 with Hawker & Evans Asphalt Co. Contract No. 110520 to renew
the contract through February 15, 2023.

In December 2022, the Public Works Department reviewed cooperative
contracts and determined Hawker & Evans still had the best price.

On February 7, 2023, the Board approved Amendment No. 2 to Contract
110520 with Hawker & Evans Asphalt Co. Contract No. 110520 to extend
the contract through February 15, 2024.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 3 to Contract 110520 with Hawker & Evans Asphalt Co.



Amendment No. 3 to Contract 110520 with Hawker & Evans Asphalt Co.
extends the term of the contract through February 15, 2025, for a
not-to-exceed contract amount of $392,938.

A comparison of the 2021 bids yielded the best price for Gila County for
the chip seal projects for the next few years. The Public Works
Department anticipates using up to 450 Tons of CRS-2P or up to 350
Tons of MC-800 chip seal oil per contract year. Factors such as road
surface and location will determine the type of oil used. Oil prices may
fluctuate, and there is a provision in the contract for price adjustments in
Section 3.0 for compensation adjustment by increase or decrease based
on the Arizona Department of Transportation monthly index dollar
amount.

Conclusion
The Public Works Department Director wishes to execute Amendment No.
3 to Contract 110520 with Hawker & Evans Asphalt Co. to extend the
contract through February 15, 2025.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Roads Division Manager recommends that
the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract No.
110520 with Hawker & Evans Asphalt Co. to extend the contract through
February 15, 2025

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract
No. 110520 with Hawker & Evans Asphalt Co. which extends the contract
through February 15, 2025, with a not-to-exceed amount of $392,938.
(Homero Vela)

Attachments
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 110520
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 110520
Amendment No. 1
Contract No. 110520





























































































   
ARF-8670   Regular Agenda Item     4. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: 2024 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

04-02-24 to 03-20-25 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Purchase Agreement No. 031824 with Metalcraft Marine US,
Inc.to Purchase of Stanley 21 Fast Responder.

Background Information
On October 18, 2022, the Gila County Sheriff’s Office electronically sent a
letter requesting assistance from the Arizona Game and Fish Department
to purchase a 23’ Ranger Bay patrol boat equipped with a Mercury 250
Pro, associated police package, and trailer. The Arizona Game and Fish
Department sent the Collection Agreement to the Gila County Sheriff’s
Office on April 10, 2023, approving the funds in the amount of $92,000.
On June 6, 2023, the Board of Supervisors approved the Collection
Agreement between Arizona Game & Fish and the Gila County Sheriff’s
Office in the amount of $92,000 for the purchase of a 23' Ranger Bay
patrol boat equipped with a Mercury 250 Pro, associated police package,
and trailer.
 
The Gila County Sheriff’s Office went to the original vendor who provided
the original quote; the price had increased to $98,000 and would not
make our deadline of June 30, 2024. The Sheriff’s Office obtained 3
additional quotes that were higher and could not meet the delivery date.
 
Arizona Game and Fish gave written approval for the change in boat
manufacturer and Metalcraft Marine US, Inc. is able to provide a
comparable boat in the amount of $95,000 plus tax. The boat is available
immediately for pickup and will meet our June 30, 2024, deadline.  



Evaluation
Due to the increase in price and availability, Metalcraft Marine US, Inc. is
able to provide a comparable boat in the amount of $95,000 plus tax. The
boat is available immediately for pick up and will meet our June 30,
2024, deadline.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff’s Office will purchase a 2024 Stanley 21’ welded
aluminum boat with an F250 Yamaha motor, associated police
equipment, and trailer from Metalcraft Marine US, Inc. in the amount of
$95,000 plus tax utilizing funding from the Arizona Game and Fish
Department and the Sheriff’s Office boating funds. No General Funds will
be utilized for the purchase.
 

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the purchase of a 2024 Stanley 21’ welded
aluminum boat with F250 Yamaha motor, associated police equipment
and trailer in the amount of $95,000 plus tax of $9,405 for a total
purchase price of $104,405, from Metalcraft Marine US, Inc.
 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Purchase Agreement No.
031824 with Metalcraft Marine US, Inc. in the amount of $95,000 plus
tax in the amount of $9,405 for a total purchase price of $104,405, for the
purchase of a 2024 Stanley 21’ welded aluminum boat with F250 Yamaha
motor, associated police equipment and trailer. (Sarah White)
 
 

Attachments
Purchase Agreement No. 031824
Metalcraft Marine US Quote
Single Source Letter



























  

 

P.O. Box 311, Globe, AZ 85502 – Phone: (928)425-4449 – Toll Free: (800) 635-8017 – Fax: (928) 425-5674 

108 W. Main St., Payson, AZ 85541 – Phone: (928)474-2208 – Toll Free: (866) 866-4452 – Fax: (928) 474-0614 

 

   
 

    Office of 

    Sheriff of Gila County 

   J. Adam Shepherd 

 

Sole Source letter for the purchase of a Law Enforcement boat paid for with 

an Arizona Game and Fish Grant 
 

 

 

 

To: Finance Director Maryn Belling 

 

This letter is to confirm that the 21’ 2024 Stanley Aluminum fully up-fitted center console Law 

Enforcement boat with a single Yamaha F250 motor is a sole source product. This is the only 

boat meeting the Sheriff’s office build specifications, required delivery time, and available grant 

funding.  

 

Background information: 

On October 18, 2022, the Gila County Sheriff’s Office electronically sent a letter requesting 

assistance from the Arizona Game and Fish Department to purchase a 23’ Ranger Bay patrol 

boat equipped with a Mercury 250 Pro, associated police package, and trailer. The Arizona 

Game and Fish Department sent the Collection Agreement to the Gila County Sheriff’s Office on 

April 10, 2023, approving the funds in the amount of $92,000. On June 6, 2023, The Board of 

Supervisors the Collection Agreement between Arizona Game & Fish and the Gila County 

Sheriff’s Office in the amount of $92,000 for the purchase of a 23' Ranger Bay patrol boat 

equipped with a Mercury 250 Pro, associated police package, and trailer. 

 

The Gila County Sheriff’s Office went to the original vendor who provided the original quote, 

the price had increased to $98,000 (Plus 9.9% tax) and would not make our deadline of June 30, 

2024. The Sheriff’s Office obtained 3 additional quotes that were higher and could not meet the 

delivery date.  

 

Arizona Game and Fish gave written approval for the change in boat manufacturer and 

Metalcraft Marine US, Inc. can provide a comparable boat in the amount of $95,000 plus tax. 

The boat is available immediately for pick up and will meet our June 30, 2024.   

 

As of the time this letter was prepared Gila County Sheriff’s Office has been unable to locate any 

other vendor who can provide a similarly up-fitted Law Enforcement boat, meet the required 

delivery date, and meet or beat the cost of the listed boat.  

 

*# 

 

Mike Johnson – Chief Deputy 
Sarah White – Chief Administrative Officer 

Travis Baxley – Task Force Commander 

Tim Scott – Lt. Northern District 

Jim Lahti – Lt. Southern District 

 

Dennis Newman – Undersheriff 
Ray Fulton – Detention Commander 

Jared Osborn – Lieutenant 

Vi Worthey – Lieutenant 

Cindy Roberts – Lieutenant 

 

 

 

 



   
ARF-8614   Regular Agenda Item     4. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: James Menlove, County Manager/Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Maryn Belling, Finance Director
Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Establish employee contribution rates for employee and family coverage
for Fiscal Year 2025 for Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust
(AZLGEBT) plans. 

Background Information
Gila County joined the AZLGEBT on July 1, 1999. The AZLGEBT provides
medical, prescription, dental, vision, disability, and life insurance
coverage, as well as a wellness program for eligible Gila County employees
and dependents. Over the past 25 years, there have been various changes
and modifications to the plan and to the County’s responsibility for
administering the plan. Changes in federal law along with increasing costs
associated with changes in the industry, limited options in rural Arizona,
and specialty medications will continue to add layers of complexity to the
administration of our self-insured trust.

In FY 2015, the AZLGEBT added a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP),
Health Savings Accounts (HSAs), and a buy-up dental plan. In FY 2016,
AZLGEBT added a Flexible Spending Account (FSA) option to the plan. In
FY 22 ,there was a 2% increase in premiums. In FY 23, there was a 6%
increase in premiums. In FY24 there was a 10.71% increase to premiums. 

For FY 2024, there was 2.5% increase to premiums, which resulted in a
$1.75 per month increase in single coverage premiums for employees and
a $10.01 per month increase for family coverage premiums for employees.
There were no increases in medical deductibles or co-pays.

Evaluation
For FY 2025, there is a 2.5% increase in premiums and administration for



For FY 2025, there is a 2.5% increase in premiums and administration for
all member counties in the AZLGEBT.

Once again, open enrollment for the AZLGEBT plan will take place May 1,
2024, through May 31, 2024. It will be an ACTIVE ENROLLMENT using a
new online portal called "Plan Source."

Employees who wish to continue their benefits selections or add other
options will be able to make those changes during open enrollment.
Enrollers from the Benefit Trust will provide education sessions, digital
access to the platforms, and direct client support to Gila County's
employees during this ACTIVE ENROLLMENT period. 

A flyer will be going out to employees and offices with more information.
In addition, the Human Resources (HR) Department will be providing
information to all benefit-eligible employees about open enrollment.

Conclusion
Currently, the County subsidizes the premium costs at 90% for single
coverage and 76% for family coverage, for FY24 which includes the HRA
subsidy.

For FY 2025, staff proposes continuing to subsidize the premium costs at
90% for single coverage and 76% for family coverage. 
** Premium Reduction - As a reminder, AZLGEBT no longer ties
premium reductions solely to Health Risk Assessment participation.

The "Employee Pays" Portion of premium reflects the $20 per month
premium reduction eligibility for Employees registered in the Vitality
Wellness Tracker program with Silver status as of 5/31/2024. There
are a variety of ways to reach Silver status This information was
shared with Employees at the outset of FY24 to ensure ample
opportunity to successfully participate in the program.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the following for FY 2025: 

Medical rates will increase by $1.75 for a total for combined
medical, vision, and dental coverage of $76.03 per month for
employee-only coverage, and increase $10.01 for a total
combined medical, vision and dental coverage of $432.42 per
month for family coverage.
Establish the Gila County base contribution rates for the HSA



system (minimum per-employee per-month) at $55 per month for
single coverage and $110 per month for family coverage.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action regarding premium rates in the Arizona
Local Government Employee Benefit Trust for Gila County's employee
insurance and benefit plans to be effective July 1, 2024, as follows: Adopt
Schedule A - Employee Insurance Contributions FY 2025 attached to this
agenda item. (Maryn Belling)

Attachments
Schedule A Employee Insurance Contributions FY2025
Premium Computation



Benefit
Total 
Premium

County 
Pays*

Employee 
Pays** Total

Percentage 
County 
Pays

Medical/Rx(PPO) 720.16$    648.14$     72.02$   720.16$    90%
Medical/Rx(HDHP) 662.96$    596.66$     66.30$   662.96$    90%
County H S A Contribution 55.00$       
Dental (PPO) 31.16$      28.04$       3.12$     31.16$      90%
Dental (Open Net) 34.44$      31.00$       3.44$     34.44$      90%
Vision 8.96$        8.06$         0.90$     8.96$        90%
Short Term Disability 4.42$        4.42$         -$       4.42$        100%
Life 2.94$        2.94$         -$       2.94$        100%

Benefit
Total 
Premium

County 
Pays*

Employee 
Pays** Total

Percentage 
County 
Pays

Medical/Rx(PPO) 1,708.60$ 1,298.54$  410.06$ 1,708.60$ 76%
Medical/Rx(HDHP) 1,594.32$ 1,211.68$  382.64$ 1,594.32$ 76%
County H S A Contribution 110.00$     
Dental (PPO) 72.32$      54.96$       17.36$   72.32$      76%
Dental (Open Net) 80.60$      61.26$       19.34$   80.60$      76%
Vision 20.82$      15.82$       5.00$     20.82$      76%
Short Term Disability 4.42$        4.42$         -$       4.42$        100%
Life 2.94$        2.94$         -$       2.94$        100%

FY23 
Monthly

FY23 
Paycheck

FY24 
Monthly

FY24 
Paycheck

FY25 
Monthly

FY25 
Paycheck

FY25 - FY24 
Difference

Single PPO: Achieved 
Vitality Silver status + 
Vision & PPO Dental 67.00$      33.50$       74.28$   37.14$      76.03$      38.01$        0.87$          

Family PPO: Achieved 
Vitality Silver status + 
Vision & PPO Dental 382.00$    191.00$     422.41$ 211.21$    432.42$    216.21$      5.00$          

Total monthly cost of Single Coverage + PPO Dental + Vision = 760.28$    Employee Portion equals 10% of total Cost

Total monthly cost of Family Coverage + PPO Dental + Vision = 1,801.74$ Employee Portion equals 24% of total cost

* H S A Contributions - The Benefit Trust requires the county to pay 
$55 per month per Single Coverage employee enrolled in the HDHP with H S A. 
$110 per month per Family Coverage employee enrolled in the HDHP with H S A

Comparison FY22, FY23, and FY24 Cost to Employees

Health Insurance Benefits (2024-25 Plan Year)

Single Coverage

Family Coverage

** Premium Reduction - As a reminder, AZLGEBT no longer ties premium reductions solely to Health Risk Assessment 
participation. 

The "Employee Pays" Portion of premium reflects the $20 per month premium reduction eligibility for Employees registered 
in the Vitality Wellness Tracker program with Silver status as of 5/31/2024. There are a variety of ways to reach Silver status 
This information was shared with Employees at the outset of FY24 to ensure ample opportunity to successfully participate 
in the program.



Gila

PPO
Premium Amount Employer Subsidy Employee Subsidy Total

Employee $720.16 $648.14 $72.02 $720.16
Employee + Family $1,708.60 $1,298.54 $410.06 $1,708.60

HDHP
Premium Amount Employer Subsidy Employee Subsidy Total HSA Contribution

Employee $662.96 $596.66 $66.30 $662.96 $55.00
Employee + Family $1,594.32 $1,211.68 $382.64 $1,594.32 $110.00

Dental - PPO
Premium Amount Employer Subsidy Employee Subsidy Total

Employee $31.16 $28.04 $3.12 $31.16
Employee + Family $72.32 $54.96 $17.36 $72.32

Dental - Buy Up Plan
Premium Amount Employer Subsidy Employee Subsidy Total

Employee $34.44 $31.00 $3.44 $34.44
Employee + Family $80.60 $61.26 $19.34 $80.60

Vision
Premium Amount Employer Subsidy Employee Subsidy Total

Employee $8.96 $8.06 $0.90 $8.96
Employee + Family $20.82 $15.82 $5.00 $20.82

Short Term Disability
Premium Amount Employer Subsidy Employee Subsidy Total

Employee $4.42 $4.42 $0.00 $4.42

Basic Life/Dependent Life
Premium Amount Employer Subsidy Employee Subsidy Total

Employee $2.94 $2.94 $0.00 $2.94
Dependent $1.00 $1.00 $1.00

Additional Information
Number of Payroll Deductions 24
New Hire Waiting Period First day of month following 30 days of Hire
Eligible Hours 30



   
ARF-8613   Regular Agenda Item     4. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: James Menlove, County Manager/Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Sherry Grice, Management Associate
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Proclamation No. 2024-01 Proclaiming April 2024 as National
County Government Month in Gila County.

Background Information
Since 1991, the National Association of Counties has encouraged counties
to actively promote the services and programs they offer. National County
Government Month (NCGM), held each April, is an annual celebration of
county government. Since 1991, the National Association of Counties
(NACo) has encouraged counties to actively promote county roles and
responsibilities in serving residents. Counties can schedule activities at
any time during the month. NCGM is an excellent opportunity for your
county to highlight effective or innovative county programs and raise
public awareness of services provided to the community.  This year's
NCGM theme is consistent with NACo President Mary Jo McGuire’s focus
for the year, ForwardTogether. ForwardTogether is about connecting,
inspiring and leading – pillars of county government that build trust and
drive towards solutions. Counties are encouraged to reflect on this theme
as they choose how to celebrate NCGM. In particular, consider how NCGM
is so intrinsically connected to the responsibility of county leaders
to inspire our residents to take an interest in and engage with their
communities and how it presents an opportunity to lead in new and
growing ways. 

Evaluation
Each year the Board of Supervisors adopts a proclamation proclaiming
the month of April as National County Government Month in Gila County
and focuses on educating our citizens on the importance of county
government. Residents deserve to know about the many ways our work
touches their lives, and the broader framework of intergovernmental
partnership wherein we county leaders deploy local, state, and federal
programs on the ground.



Conclusion
It is appropriate to place this issue before the Board of Supervisors at this
time to adopt Proclamation No. 2024-01 to proclaim April 2024 as
National County Government Month in Gila County.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt Proclamation No.
2024-01 to proclaim April 2024 as National County Government Month in
Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2024-01
proclaiming April 2024 as National County Government Month in Gila
County with this year's theme of "ForwardTogether" to showcase how the
County achieves healthy, safe, and vibrant communities. (James
Menlove)

Attachments
NCGM Proclamation No. 2024-01
NCGM Press Release 2024



 

 
 

 

 

 

PROCLAMATION NO. 2024-01 

 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2024, AS 

NATIONAL COUNTY GOVERNMENT MONTH IN GILA COUNTY 

WITH THIS YEAR’S THEME OF “FORWARDTOGETHER.” 
 

 

WHEREAS,  the nation’s 3,069 counties serving more than 330 million Americans provide essential  

services to create healthy, safe, and vibrant communities; and  

 

WHEREAS, counties fulfill a vast range of responsibilities and deliver services that touch nearly every 

aspect of our residents’ lives; and   

 

WHEREAS, Gila County and all counties take pride in our responsibility to protect and enhance the 

health, wellbeing and safety of our residents in efficient and cost-effective ways; and  

 

WHEREAS, under the leadership of National Association of Counties President Mary Jo 

McGuire, NACo is highlighting county leadership through the lens ForwardTogether, 

celebrating the role of county governments in connecting, inspiring, and leading as 

intergovernmental partners; and   

WHEREAS, that role includes a responsibility to inspire county residents to engage with 

their communities, and to lead by highlighting our strength as intergovernmental partners; 

and 

WHEREAS, each year since 1991 the National Association of Counties has encouraged counties 

across the country to elevate awareness of county responsibilities, programs, and services; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT WE, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 

hereby proclaim the month of April 2024 as National County Government Month.  

 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 2nd day of April 2024.  

 

 

ATTEST:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

 

 

______________________________  _______________________________________  

James Menlove, Clerk of the Board  Steven Christensen, Chairman 



 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

 

 

 

 

CONTACT: Paul Wolterbeek  

(928) 402-4329  

pwolterbeek@gilacountyaz.gov 
 

 

 

 

Gila County to Celebrate National County Government Month  
Leaders to highlight county innovations in public health and safety, justice, other county programs 

 
Gila County, AZ (April 2, 2024) — Gila County will celebrate National County Government 

Month (NCGM) during the month of April to showcase how the county achieves healthy, safe, 

and vibrant communities. 

 

The theme for this year’s celebration of NCGM is “ForwardTogether,” inspired by the 

signature focus of National Association of Counties (NACo) President Mary Jo McGuire. The 

theme highlights the powerful role of county governments as intergovernmental partners that:  

▪ Connect, building bridges to advance excellence and networks in county government.  

▪ Inspire, driving community engagement and residents’ trust in county government, 

and 

▪ Lead, spearheading local, state, federal and tribal intergovernmental partnerships, and 

common-sense policy solutions. 

“Gila County is proud of the programs and services we provide to our residents,” said Board 

Chairman Steve Christensen. “This month we celebrate the ways our government connects, 

inspires, and leads every day – within our community and in collaboration with our state and 

federal partners. I encourage all county residents to participate in National County 

Government Month outreach events to learn about the important role of county government.”  

Since 1991, NACo has encouraged counties across the country to raise public awareness about 

county roles and responsibilities during the month of April. 

### 

 

mailto:pwolterbeek@gilacountyaz.gov


   

ARF-8632   Regular Agenda Item     4. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  

Submitted For: Carl Melford, Emergency Management Program Manager 
Submitted By: Stephanie Chaidez, Contracts Administrator
Department: Health & Emergency Management
Division: Emergency Management
Fiscal Year: FY2024 & FY2025 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

06-01-2024 to 06-30-2025 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Authorization to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 030324 - 
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Background Information
The 2019 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan was developed through
multi-jurisdictional response partners to ensure that all community
preparedness and response recommendations were met. The
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan ensures compliance with the
Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 that establishes requirements for local
governments to meet eligibility requirements to receive federal funding for both
pre-disaster and post-disaster mitigation project funding, a local government
must have a FEMA approved Local Hazard Mitigation Plan written in
accordance with Section 322 of the Act.

To maintain eligibility for the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
grants under the Hazard Mitigation Assistance program (HMA), the governing
board for each participating jurisdiction is required to adopt this
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan by adopting a resolution. The
resolutions from each participating jurisdiction (listed above) are attached for
review.

Evaluation
This Plan is designed to help jurisdictions identify specific actions to reduce loss
of life and property.  It is not intended to help jurisdictions establish procedures
to respond to disasters or replace an existing Emergency Operations Plan. The
goal of hazard mitigation is to decrease the need for response as opposed to
outlining a plan for responding to a disaster. Natural disasters cannot be



prevented from occurring; however, it is the intent of the
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan to steadily lessen the impacts
associated with future hazard events. This Plan presents comprehensive
approaches to mitigation hazards that cross jurisdictional boundaries. It also
includes appendices containing a detailed description of each jurisdiction (e.g.,
its history, economy, demographics, etc.), specific hazard information, and
proposed mitigation strategies for implementation.

Conclusion
It is the intent of this solicitation to secure consultation services for the
development of the 2024 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. The
selected vendor will facilitate planning meetings with Gila County and all of its
jurisdictional partners to gather valuable and relevant information and use the
gathered information to develop the 2024 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard
mitigation Plan. The selected vendor will also see that the plans receives
approval from the Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs
(DEMA) Emergency Management Division and the Federal Emergency
Management Agency.

Recommendation
The Gila County Emergency Management Department recommends that the
Board of Supervisors approve the advertisement for Request for Proposals No.
030324 - Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for
Proposals No. 030324 - Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. (Carl
Melford)

Attachments
Request for Proposal No. 030324 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation
Plan
Request to Advertise 030324



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO. 030324 
 
 

MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Stephen Christensen, Chairman 

Timothy Humphrey, Vice Chairman 
Woody Cline, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 
 

 

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 030324 

MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is seeking a qualified professional consulting firm specializing in 
hazard mitigation plans.  
 
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      11:00 AM, MST, APRIL 30, 2024 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY  
    FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the finance 
department Copper Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later than 
the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  The 
prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Copper Building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the request for sealed proposals forms included in this RFP No. 030324 package 
and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-8897 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire request for proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this Request for Proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Stephanie 
Chaidez, Contracts Administrator, at schaidez@gilacountyaz.gov. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila 
County Procurement Code.  A copy of the code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, 
AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Payson Roundup: April 9, 2024, and April 16, 2024 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Stephen Christensen, Chairman of the Board  
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office  
 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:schaidez@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 2 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

 

Section 1   Request for Proposals   

 

Section 2   Project Description 

 

Section 3   Scope of Work 

 

      Proposals 

       

      Task 1 

      Task 2 

      Task 3 

      Task 4 

      Task 5 

 

      RFP price sheet instructions 

 

Section 4   Statement of Proposals Selection Criteria 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 3 
 

 

INTENT 
                               

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR: MULTI-JUSRISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 

Section 1- Request for Proposals  

 
INTENT: 

 
     Gila County is seeking a qualified professional consulting firm for the development of the 2024 Multi-

Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 
 

 

 
 

 
For the purposes of this Request for Proposal, “Contractor” is defined as an individual or an entity 
who submits a bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 4 
 

SCOPE OF WORK:  
 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 2024 MULTI-

JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN  

 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for the DEVELOPMENT OF THE 2024 

MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN.   

 

Section 3 – Scope of Work 
 

Task 1. Project Initiation and Data Collection  

 

1.1 Kick-Off Meetings  

 

1.1a Kick-Off Meeting with jurisdictional partners – Vendor will facilitate a meeting with Gila 

County Emergency Management to present the purpose of the project and describe the scope and 

planning tasks. The meeting will formulate a project plan and identify county and municipal 

resources and stakeholders for subsequent coordination.  

 

1.1b Kick-Off Meeting with stakeholders – Vendor will facilitate a meeting with the county 

stakeholders (Gila County staff and municipal representatives, which may be later designated as the 

“Stakeholders”) to lay out a project plan. Municipal resources and stakeholders will be identified 

during the meeting.  

 

1.2 Local Advisory Committee Meetings – Within four weeks of the kick-off meetings, the vendor 

will meet with local coordinators to describe the purpose and need for hazard mitigation Plan, 

the planning process, potential outcomes and mitigation grant opportunities, and the types of 

information to be gathered. Potential members of these local advisory committees include:  

 

 • Chief Elected Officials or their designees 

 • Emergency Managers  

• Members of Local Emergency Planning Commissions (LEPCs)  

• Staff from Public Works or Highway Departments, Water Departments, Water Pollution Control 

etc.  

• Building Officials or Staff from Building Departments  

• Municipal Engineers  

• Fire Chiefs 

• Police Chiefs  

• Staff from Municipal Planning and Zoning/Land Use Departments  

• Staff from neighboring communities  

• Local stakeholders from the academic, environmental, and business communities, if applicable. 

 

1.3 Natural Hazard Mitigation Workshops – Vendor and Gila County staff will hold a series of 

hazard vulnerability and mitigation workshops based on appropriate geography to identify 

vulnerable areas, locate critical facilities, and discuss the effects and responses to past and recent 

natural events. Vendor will provide technical information and facilitate the workshops. Two types 

of workshops are proposed: workshops with the stakeholders and their invited guests, and public 

workshops. The public workshops will serve as the primary public meetings to review and identify 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 5 
 

potential project and receive comments about hazard effects and/or areas that should be included in 

the planning process.  

 

1.3a Vulnerability and Risk Assessment Workshop for RAC – Vendor will prepare for and facilitate 

a meeting of the stakeholders and invited guests to discuss the hazard profiles, vulnerability 

assessment, risk assessment, loss estimates, critical facilities, historic resources, and other 

components of the planning process aligned with Task 2. The purpose of the workshop will be to 

obtain input from the stakeholders. A central location will be selected for the workshop.  

 

1.3b Vulnerability and Risk Assessment Workshop for Public – Vendor will prepare for and 

facilitate a public meeting to discuss the hazard profiles, vulnerability assessment, risk assessment, 

loss estimates, critical facilities, historic resources, and other components of the planning process 

aligned with Task 2. The purpose of the workshop will be to obtain input from the public. A central 

location will be selected for the workshop.  

 

1.3c Mitigation Strategy Workshop for RAC –Vendor will prepare for and facilitate a meeting of 

the stakeholders and invited guests to discuss mitigation goals, objectives, strategies, and actions 

aligned with Task 3. Statewide mitigation initiatives will be included. The purpose of the workshop 

will be to obtain input from the stakeholders. A central location will be selected for the workshop, 

but different than the location of Task 1.3a.  

 

1.3d Mitigation Strategy Workshop for Public – Vendor will prepare for and facilitate a public 

meeting to discuss mitigation goals, objectives, strategies, and actions aligned with Task 3. 

Statewide mitigation initiatives will be included. The purpose of the workshop will be to obtain 

input from the public. A central location will be selected for the workshop, but different than the 

location of Task 1.3b. (Virtual and online public outreach surveys are acceptable) 

 

1.3 Data Collection – Vendor will gather available data, mapping, information, and reports from 

relevant state and federal agencies, utility companies, municipal agencies, available news 

articles, and non-government organizations. The following is a preliminary list:  

 

• Existing Hazard Mitigation Plans for nearby communities  

• Local, Regional, and State plans of conservation and development  

• Municipal codes  

• Zoning Regulations  

• Subdivision Regulations  

• Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Regulations  

• Other regulations or ordinances that may be related to hazard mitigation  

• Building department records  

• Emergency Operations Plans (EOPs) and regional EOPs  

• Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs)  

• Flood Insurance Studies (FIS)  

• Wildfire and post-fire flooding mapping  

• Evacuation routes and critical facilities  

• American Red Cross sheltering plans  

 • Public Works complaint logs and files  

• Snowplow routing and priorities  

• Snow and ice management policies  



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 6 
 

• Lists of floods, earthquakes, tornadoes, downbursts, hurricanes, tropical storms, nor’easters, 

hailstorms, blizzards, and other severe events  

• National Climate Data Center (NCDC) storm event data from the National Centers for 

Environmental Information (NCEI)  

• Publicly available information regarding losses in the region from the disaster declarations that 

have occurred since prior plans were adopted A-5  

• The Arizona Hazard Mitigation Plan  

• The State Water Plan  

 

1.5 Public Outreach and Engagement – Vendor will engage the public through public meetings, 

a survey, and story map to provide information to the public and solicit input and comments 

from the public.  

 

1.5a Public Meetings –Vendor will prepare for and lead up public informational meetings in 

Gila County that will be additional to the two public workshops described in Task 1.3. These 

public meetings will be tailored to the overall planning phase and scope occurring at the time of 

the meeting, but they can at a minimum present the history and purpose of hazard mitigation 

planning, the FEMA mitigation funding programs, and the project scope of work; and be used 

to receive comments about hazard effects and/or areas that should be included in the planning 

process. Gila County and the individual communities will be responsible for posting of public 

notices to their constituents. Public comments will be assembled by the Vendor, and meeting 

minutes will be appended to the Plan.  

 

1.5b Internet-Based Public Survey – Vendor will prepare, deploy, and maintain a web-based 

survey to gather comments for the hazard mitigation plan update process. Availability of the 

survey will be publicized simultaneously with the public meetings of Task 1.3 and 1.5, and 

through various internet-based news services.  

 

1.5c Story Map - Vendor will prepare a Story Map to augment public engagement tasks listed 

above and enhance public participation.  

 

1.6 Administration and Reporting – Vendor will provide progress reports and updates to Gila 

County as needed.  

 

1.6a Administration – Vendor will participate in regularly scheduled calls to discuss project 

status and any problems, issues, or challenges. The intent of the calls is to maintain the schedule. 

Vendor will also provide progress reports with invoices.  

 

1.6b Project Updates and Quarterly Reporting – Vendor will contribute narratives to Gila County 

for quarterly reporting to FEMA and for other purposes that may be required.  

 

1.7 Project Webpage – Vendor will provide content to the project web page. This may include 

maps, graphics, tables, copies of presentations, links to the survey, etc.  

 

 Task 2. Vulnerability and Risk Assessment  

 

2.1 Mapping of Land Use and Zoning – Vendor and Gila County will work with the 

municipalities to review existing zoning and development trends and develop GIS-based land 

use and zoning maps. Future potential areas of development will be identified and mapped by 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 7 
 

Vendor, including developments under review by local land use commissions and others that 

have been speculated.  

 

2.2 Historical Summary of Recent Hazard Events – Vendor will summarize recent natural events 

that have occurred in the region and describe the extent to damage caused and the response to 

the events.  

 

2.3 Flood Hazard Areas – FEMA-designated floodplains and floodways will be mapped by 

Vendor. Areas of potential flooding and vulnerable land/structures will be identified/reviewed 

by Vendor and municipalities. Land use and zoning mapped as part of Task 2.1 will be overlaid 

onto these layers as well. Drainage basins within the study area will be evaluated via GIS and 

described in narrative form. 

 

2.4 Historical Flooding - A history of flooding problems will be compiled by Vendor from 

available information and interviews with municipal staff and others. Known flood-prone areas 

(referenced relative to streets, neighborhoods, and/or drainage basins) will be identified and 

described, including areas affected by nuisance flooding and other flood-related issues. Critical 

and known problem areas will be visually surveyed and photographed by the consultant as part 

of this effort (and as part of Tasks 1.2 and 1.4 above).  

 

2.5 Facilities and Historic Resources  

 

2.5a Critical Facilities - Critical facilities will be identified, described, and mapped by Vendor 

(if allowed by local representatives). Critical facilities will include municipal offices; hospitals 

and medical facilities; designated primary and backup shelters; other places where people may 

congregate (i.e. schools); facilities that cannot be easily evacuated such as assisted-living homes; 

power generation, communication, and transmission facilities; and some infrastructure such as 

roads, wastewater, and water system components. Critical facilities will be counted and assessed 

values will be tabulated in each hazard risk area as an exposure analysis.  

 

2.5b Historic Resources – Historic resources will be identified, described, and mapped by 

Vendor using point data available for Gila County. Where point data is available, historic 

resources will be counted and assessed values will be tabulated in each hazard risk area as an 

exposure analysis. Where point data is not available, polygons will be used to approximate this 

information. 

 

2.6 Wildfire History - An inventory of high-risk wildfire areas will be conducted based upon 

data and information available. 

 

2.7 Vulnerabilities to Flooding - Vendor will describe, evaluate, and map existing structures and 

infrastructure (including roads) vulnerable to flooding, as well as potential areas of development 

vulnerable to flooding; and organize structures and properties by type (residential, commercial, 

etc.) and characteristics (areas, locations). Potential flooding problems from upstream 

communities, and Repetitive Loss Properties and Severe Repetitive Loss Properties will be 

tabulated. Future climate impacts will also be evaluated. Buildings, critical facilities, and historic 

resources will be counted and assessed values will be tabulated in each flood risk area as an 

exposure analysis. Loss estimates will be prepared for flood-related hazards using the State 

Hazard Mitigation Plan, Public Assistance (PA) reimbursements, and National Flood Insurance 

Program (NFIP) statistics for each municipality.  

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 8 
 

2.8 Existing Capabilities and Mitigation - Vendor will describe existing flood loss reduction and 

mitigation capabilities, inclusive of all six standards categories (prevention, property protection, 

structural projects, public education and awareness, natural resource protection, and emergency 

services). Regulations will be included as well. These measures will be evaluated along with the 

capabilities and resources to implement such measures. Existing flood management capabilities 

will be identified. These may include education, Emergency Notification System (ENS)- type 

warning systems such as ReadyGila Alerts, community notification systems, flood insurance, 

Community Rating System (CRS) participation, detention/retention, stream channel 

modifications, bridge and culvert replacement, wet and dry floodproofing, regulation revisions 

or amendments, structure relocation or elevation, etc. Capabilities related to other hazards will 

be similarly described.  

 

2.9 Wind Hazards - The wind hazards events (winter storms, summer storms and tornadoes, 

hurricanes, and tropical storms) and hazard effects will be described. Vulnerabilities will be 

evaluated based upon historic climatological data, as well as written and verbal documentation 

of past occurrences and responses to such events. Loss estimates will be prepared for wind-

related hazards using the State Hazard Mitigation Plan and Public Assistance (PA) 

reimbursements. Buildings, critical facilities, and historic resources will be counted and assessed 

values will be tabulated as an exposure analysis. Similar to flooding, the history, future climate 

impacts, existing mitigation capabilities, and objectives and actions will be developed.  

 

2.10 Wildfire Hazards - Wildfires and their effects (fire, heat, and smoke) will be described. 

Vulnerabilities will be evaluated based upon historic records, as well as written and verbal 

documentation of past occurrences and responses to such events. Potential risks due to 

capabilities in neighboring communities will be tabulated. Loss estimates will be prepared using 

the State Hazard Mitigation Plan. Buildings, critical facilities, and historic resources will be 

counted and assessed values will be tabulated in each risk area as an exposure analysis. History, 

future climate impacts, existing mitigation measures, and objectives and actions will be 

developed.  

 

 2.11 Earthquake Hazards - Earthquakes and their effects (shaking and liquefaction) will be 

described. Vulnerabilities will be evaluated based upon historic records, as well as written and 

verbal documentation of past occurrences and responses to such events. Loss estimates will be 

prepared using the State Hazard Mitigation Plan. Buildings, critical facilities, and historic 

resources will be counted and assessed values will be tabulated as an exposure analysis. History, 

existing mitigation measures, and objectives and actions will be developed.  

 

2.12 Landslide Hazards - Landslides and their effects will be described if applicable to the 

particular community. Vulnerabilities will be evaluated based upon historic records, as well as 

written and verbal documentation of past occurrences and responses to such events. Areas of 

steep and severe slopes will be identified. Loss estimates will be prepared using the State Hazard 

Mitigation Plan. Buildings, critical facilities, and historic resources will be counted and assessed 

values will be tabulated as an exposure analysis. History, existing mitigation measures, and 

objectives and actions will be developed such as regulations to protect steep slopes.  

 

2.13 Hazardous Materials – Hazardous materials shall be addressed due to the high presence of 

hazardous materials transportation in Gila County. 

 

2.14 Climate Vulnerability Assessment - Vendor will perform a climate vulnerability 

assessment.  



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 9 
 

 

2.15 Tornado Assessment – Tornado risk assessment will be conducted and addressed. Although 

this item was not addressed in previous plans, recent tornado activity in Gila County has 

presented a risk that must be addressed.  

 

2.16 HAZUS Wind - The HAZUS-MH model will be run for calculation of hurricane wind event 

losses and damage estimates for each community. Actual hurricane data and probable wind 

events will be included.  

 

2.17 HAZUS Earthquakes - The HAZUS-MH model will be run for calculation of earthquake 

losses and damage estimates. Four potential earthquakes will be modeled based on the four 

potential scenarios presented in the State Hazard Mitigation Plan.  

 

2.18 Hazard Rankings - The consultant will rank all hazard events and hazard effects using a 

standardized quantitative system like the methods used for other hazard mitigation plans.  

 

2.19 Project Meeting – Vendor will attend quarterly meetings with the stakeholders to provide 

updates on the project status. One such meeting is likely to occur as part of the Vulnerability 

and Risk Assessment (Task 2).  

 

 Task 3. Mitigation Strategies and Plan Development  

 

3.1 Progress and Strategies  

 

3.1a Document Progress of Prior Actions – Progress toward previous mitigation actions will be 

described. Prior actions will be removed, de-listed due to completion, migrated to the capability 

narratives, or carried forward as needed.  

 

3.1b Formulate Strategies and Actions - Under this phase of work, mitigation strategies and 

actions will be developed for each hazard and area of vulnerability identified under Task 2. The 

anticipated effectiveness of such measures will be provided and recommendations for future 

evaluation, assessment, and action will be offered. Strategies to be evaluated will be grouped 

into the categories: prevention, protection of property, protection of natural resources, 

emergency services, structural projects, and public information/education efforts. Statewide 

mitigation initiatives such as historic resource resiliency, spills at small businesses, use of low 

impact development in rural towns, and green infrastructure will be screened and included as 

appropriate. All mitigation actions will be assigned to fiscal year or calendar year timeframes 

over the lifespan (look-ahead) of the hazard mitigation plan update.  

 

3.2 STAPLEE and Basic BCA - Although formal benefit-cost analysis (BCA) will not be 

completed for each mitigation action proposed, Vendor will utilize its experience with FEMA’s 

BCA toolkit and process to estimate the likelihood of a project being cost-effective with regards 

to a formal BCA. Cost effectiveness will be incorporated into the STAPLEE analysis.  

 

3.3 Ranking of Actions - The consultant will then rank recommendations using STAPLEE in 

combination with the likelihood of qualifying for federal funding. Recommendations that could 

be easily fit into the three mitigation funding programs (HMGP, PDM, and FMA) will be noted 

and those that are most easily processed for funding applications will be additionally tagged for 

ease of Hazard Mitigation Plan use. Staff from each municipality will provide input to this task. 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 10 
 

Funding sources will be identified for those actions that do not fit into the mitigation funding 

programs.  

 

3.4 Produce Draft Plan - The methods, analysis, and mitigation strategies and actions from 

previous tasks will be assembled into multi-jurisdiction plan organized as follows (alternate 

organizational structures are permissible and can be worked out with Gila County and the 

planning team):  

 

 Introduction (Purpose, Authority, Description of Funding Programs, Scope, Documentation 

of Planning Process, and Identification of Hazards)  

 Community Profiles (Geographical, Historical, Cultural, Development Trend  

 Climate Trends and Climate Vulnerability Assessment  

 Critical Facilities, Historic Resources, and Other Areas of Concern A-10  

 Flooding (Setting; Hazard Assessment; Historic Record; Future Climate Impact; and  

 Potential Mitigation Strategies and Actions)  

 Hurricanes and Tropical Storms (Setting; Hazard Assessment; Historic Record; Future  

 Climate Impact; and Potential Mitigation Strategies and Actions)  

 Summer Storms and Tornados (Setting; Hazard Assessment; Historic Record; Future  

 Climate Impact; and Potential Mitigation Strategies and Actions)  

 Winter Storms (Setting; Hazard Assessment; Historic Record; Future Climate Impact; and  

Potential Mitigation Strategies and Actions)  

 Earthquakes (Setting; Hazard Assessment; Historic Record; and Potential Mitigation 

Strategies and Actions)  

 Dams (Setting; Hazard Assessment; Historic Record; and Potential Mitigation Strategies and 

Actions)  

 Wildfires (Setting; Hazard Assessment; Historic Record; Future Climate Impact; and 

Potential Mitigation Strategies and Actions)  

 Landslides (Setting; Hazard Assessment; Historic Record; and Potential Mitigation Strategies 

and Actions)  

 Sinkhole Hazards (Setting; Hazard Assessment; Historic Record; and Potential Mitigation 

Strategies and Actions)  

 Proposed Mitigation Strategies and Actions  

• By Municipality  

• For the Region  

 Implementation Table and Schedule (Proponent Agency or Department, Priority Mitigation 

Strategies, Monitoring, Evaluating and Updating the Plan, Plan for Continued Public 

Involvement)  

• Review of Gila County Programs that Support Mitigation  

• Regional Prioritization  

 Technical and Financial Resources  

 Appendices including Documentation of the planning process (meeting minutes, public 

meeting announcements, copies of power point presentations, etc.), FEMA plan maintenance 

worksheets, HAZUS-MH documentation, and Records of Adoption.  

 

3.5 Draft Plan Review - Vendor will provide electronic copies (via email or ftp site) to the RAC 

members and identified representative of each of Gila County’s member municipalities for 

review by staff and other interested parties as described above. The local Hazard Mitigation 

Planning Team representative will be responsible for coordinating local review, collecting staff 

comments, and submitting the comments to Vendor.  

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 11 
 

3.6 Draft Plan Meeting – As noted in Task 2.19, Vendor will attend quarterly meetings with the 

planning team to provide updates on the project status. One such meeting is included as part of 

the plan review. Comments will be described, and remaining conflicts will be addressed.  

3.7 Final Draft Plan - Upon receipt of comments, the draft plan will be revised per each 

municipality’s input and a “final draft plan” will be produced. The final draft plan will be posted 

to the applicable municipal websites and the Gila County website to allow for public comments, 

including any additional comments by the local review team. Gila County and the local 

communities will be responsible for public notification of the availability of the plan.  

 

3.8 Public Discussion – Public comments will be sent to the municipal contact person in each of 

the municipalities in written or electronic format and then forwarded to vendor for processing 

and documentation.  

 

3.9 Final Draft for Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs (DEMA) Emergency 

Management Division Review – Vendor will incorporate applicable edits and additions to the 

document based on public comments. At this point, the hazard mitigation plan will be considered 

a “final draft” for State review.  

 

Task 4. DEMA and FEMA Review and Approval  

 

4.1 DEMA Review - One electronic (PDF) copy of the final draft plan will be submitted to 

DEMA for review. Vendor will fill out the Local Plan Review Tool (which is used for single 

and multi-jurisdiction hazard mitigation plans) and provide it to DEMA for its use.  

 

4.2 Incorporate Comments/Edits - Upon receipt of comments from DEMA (if any), the final 

draft plan will be revised (if necessary) and sent back to DEMA to forward to FEMA. The Local 

Plan Review Tool will be revised if needed and included with the plan.  

 

4.3 FEMA Review – DEMA will provide a PDF of the plan to FEMA as noted above. Upon 

receipt of comments from FEMA (if any), the final draft plan will be revised (if necessary) and 

sent back to DEMA to forward to FEMA.  

 

4.4 Conditional Approval - Vendor will secure the “Approval Pending Adoption” (APA) from 

FEMA. At this time, the plan will be ready for adoption by each legislative body of the respective 

municipality.  

 

4.5 Local Adoptions - Vendor and Gila County will attend one public hearing in each 

municipality to adopt the plan. The local meetings will likely be Board of Supervisors, Town 

Council, City Council, or equivalent. During these meetings, Vendor and Gila County will 

briefly present the planning process and explain the need for adopting and maintaining the plan. 

Signed resolutions will be provided by the municipal clerks to Gila County who will forward to 

Vendor.  

 

4.6 Final Approval – Vendor will insert copies of the signed resolutions into the plan document 

and provide it to DEMA for FEMA. Vendor will secure final approval letters from FEMA.  

 

4.7 Hard Copies of Plan - Upon municipal approval, three hard copies of the plan will be 

provided to each respective municipality for in-house filing, as well as an electronic copy of the 

final plan (included with each plan on CD or thumb drive).  
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 12 
 

INFORMATION REQUESTS 

All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Stephanie  

Chaidez, Contracts Manager, at  schaidez@gilacountyaz.gov.  

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR 
INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT 
“C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE 
APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The county seeks sealed proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this request for sealed proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its proposal and qualification form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

scope of work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the proposal and Proposals forms provided in this request for proposal 

package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the proposal and to be 
submitted at the time of bid and made a part of this contract.  The county will use the proposal and 
Proposals form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the scope of services as set forth 
in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the price sheet and signature and 
offer page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of the 
Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the request for proposal shall be listed on the 
proposal. 

 
F. No alterations in proposals, or in the printed forms therefor, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the 
county may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:schaidez@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 13 
 

 

Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this request for sealed proposal must be acknowledged by all 
Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the bidder checklist & addenda acknowledgment form, page 29. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this request for proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the notice.  
The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to 
a Request for Proposals should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposals number, page, and paragraph 
number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the request for proposal number on the outside of an 
envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and may not be 
opened until after the official request for proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 3:00 P.M., 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024, will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be 
binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the notice for sealed proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late proposal shall be so notified. 
 

 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and One (1) copy (2 TOTAL) with original signatures on both of the proposals 
and all forms shall be submitted.  The county will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation of 
proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy these 
forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound proposals are not permitted. 
Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the offer and acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, county, 
city, town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the proposal.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at the 

place and prior to the time designated for receipts of proposals. 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 14 
 

 
3. The county is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Two (2) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL 
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN”, Proposal No., “030324”, Date “APRIL 30, 2024”, and time “11:00 AM” of proposal 
opening shall be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at 
the location designated in the notice.  Spiral bound proposals are not permitted.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 15 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interests 
of, and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any other provisions of the RFP, the county reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a request for proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the county contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature or providing similar services. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this request for proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose proposals are most advantageous to the county may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the county, within ten (10) days after the 

date of the notice of intent to award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a timely proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona 85501. 

 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be governed and enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state and local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable 
federal regulations under the act. 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 16 
 

EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, its agents, subcontractors, 
or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the county, i.e. by submitting proposals to 
this solicitation requiring sealed proposals, it does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 21 through 
30. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The county maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the county any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the request for proposal issued by the county and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP.  The county reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and 
shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement 
that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila County in the form of an 
official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency 
is a violation of the county procurement code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies 
available to the county inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and debarment of the 
Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
Contract Default 

A. The county, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or deliverables, or to perform the services 

within the times specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the county terminates this contract in whole or part, the county may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the county for any excess costs 
for such similar supplies or services. 

 
 

 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 17 
 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the event 
that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat 
this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisition 
and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be 
requested by other parties of said active purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to purchase 
supplies, equipment, and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the terms and 
conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations of 
the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The county, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.  The county at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the county shall be liable only for 
payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received 
by the county before the effective date of termination. 
 
The county reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The county will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor attempts to impose on the county material products, or 
workmanship, for services which are of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the county a positive indication that Contractor will perform to 
the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the county created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of county, state and 
federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
If funds are not allocated by the county and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the county at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The county shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the county in the event this provision is exercised, and the county 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under 
this paragraph. 
 

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 18 
 

Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ 
Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, 
statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Contractor 
will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to the 
bidder submitting this request. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this contract and do not limit the indemnity 
covenants contained in this contract.  The county does not warrant that the minimum limits contained herein 
are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under 
this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor may 
purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 19 
 

 

 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 

not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

• General Aggregate $2,000,000 

• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of 
Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 

3. Automobile Liability 
Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 20 
 

 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or 
endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  
Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 
or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
county does not warrant that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the county with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the county) as required by this contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 

E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov. The county project and contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The county reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured under 

its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the county separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified 
above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this contract shall be made 

by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal contract 
amendment but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 21 
 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Purpose 
It is the intent of this invitation for proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide 
PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES SPECIALIZING IN MUTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN for 
Gila County.  
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

 
1.1 All proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the proposal specifications. 
 
1.2 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of county needs and in no event shall the county be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The county does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.3 Contractor shall review its proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

 
1.3.1 One (1) original and one (1) copy, total of two (2), all with original signatures, shall be 

submitted at time of bid opening. 
1.3.2 Qualification and Certification Form (page 23-24) 
1.3.3 Price Sheet (page 25) 
1.3.4 References List (page 26) 
1.3.5 No Collusion Certification (page 27) 
1.3.6 Certification of Debarment (page 28) 
1.3.7 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 29) 
1.3.8 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance (page 30) 
1.3.9 Israel Boycott Certification (page 31) 
1.3.10 Certification of no Forced Labor (page 32) 
1.3.11 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment (page 33) 
1.3.12 Offer Page (page 34) 
1.3.13 Acceptance of Offer (page 35) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 22 
 

SECTION 2.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

2.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all profit 
and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied to the 
contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price reduction. 

 

2.2 Term: All aspects of the contract deliverables must be completed by June 30, 2025.  
 
 

SECTION 3.0 

3.1 Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 

The finance director may appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 
recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the Request for Proposals.  The board of supervisors 
shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on the factors set forth 
in the Request for Proposals. 

 
For the purpose of conducting negotiations, the county shall determine what proposals are susceptible 
for being selected for award.  A determination that a proposal is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 
the basis of the determination and be retained in the county files.  If it is determined a proposal is not 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall not be 
afforded an opportunity to modify its proposal. 
 

3.2 Negotiations with Individual Contractors 

▪ Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting negotiations.  Disclosure of a 
contractors’ price or any information derived from competing proposal prices or any information 
derived from competing proposals is prohibited.   

▪  
a.    Any response to a request for clarification of a proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
▪ For the purposes of conducting negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 

following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and or contract award.  

b. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the director to enter into exclusive 
negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose proposal is determined in the selection 
process to be most advantageous to the county. 

 
▪ Exclusive negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent negotiations or may be 

conducted without requiring previous concurrent negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive negotiations shall not constitute a contract award nor 
shall it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

b. If exclusive negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the county may 
enter into exclusive negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the need to 
repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 
 

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 23 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Proposals and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the Proposals of Contractors 
under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 030324 MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 
The applicant submitting this proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractor’s disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
4. Has Contractor ever terminated a contract for cause with any individual or entity, government or 

otherwise, (under Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, 
give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the 
narrative part of this contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A cost proposal shall be submitted on the price sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the scope 

of services described herein; shall be submitted on the reference list, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific Proposals the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 24 
 

 
 
 
 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed 
loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower 
losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 25 
 

 

PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 030324 MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL 
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN.   

 

 

Contractor Name:  _____________________________________            Phone No.:  __________________ 
 

 

    
 

 

 
 

COSTS 

 

Annual Rate 
 
(Contractor shall be paid per 
monthly expenditure report.  
Monthly expenditure report shall be 
submitted to Gila County by the 15th 
of the following month) 
 
 

 

$ _________________ 
 
 

  

 

TOTAL COST 

 

$ _________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
**All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 
 

      
 ________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 26 
 

REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the Proposals of the Contractor under 
consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts, entered into or completed, of similar size and scope, 
as this Request for Proposals during the past twenty-four (24) months.  Bidder may attach further reference 
information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
        ________________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

                                                                                                     ________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

                                                                                                    ________________________________________ 
           Title 

 

 

 

 

 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 27 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he or she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________ and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he or she is submitting a proposal on MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN, RFP 
NO. 030324 and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he or she certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he or she nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly, or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free-competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2024. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 28 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 
 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 .................................................... I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 29 
 

 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 030324 MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION 
PLAN, my intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the 
proposal.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona Registrar of 
Contractors License Number.  List must be provided in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO, it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 30 
 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the state and 
federal immigration laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the state and federal immigration laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the state and federal 
immigration laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of county’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further 
agrees that county may inspect the subcontractor’s books and records to insure that subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 31 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this 
agreement, engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by 
Contractor may result in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 

 

 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 

       

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 32 
 

Certification of No Forced Labor: 

 

The Company does not currently, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement that the 

Company will not use: 

1. The forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; 

2. Any goods or services produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the 

People’s Republic of China; and, 

3. Any contractors, subcontracts, or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or 

services produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic 

of China.  

 

The Company further agrees that if the Company becomes aware, during the term of the 

Agreement, that the Company is not in compliance with this Certification, the Company 

shall notify the County within 5 business days after becoming aware of the non-

compliance. If the Company does not remedy the non-compliance within 180-days after 

sending notice of non-compliance, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.  
 

 

 
  

  Date:  __________________________________________  
 
 
      Vendor ______________________________________ 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 33 
 

BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all bid documents shall be completed and executed and submitted with this RFP.  
If Contractor fails to complete and execute any portion of the bid documents, all with original signatures, the 
RFP may be determined to be non-responsive and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

ISRAEL BOYCOT CERTIFICATION           ______________ 

Certification of no Forced Labor           ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2024 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                   Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                       By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals:  Bid No. 030324 MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD 
MITIGATION PLAN.  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department Division in the Copper Building at 
1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before, April 30, 2024, by 11:00AM. 

 
 
 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 34 
 

 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this request for proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  030324 MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 030324/MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN Page 35 
 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

(For Gila County use only) 
 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                  is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in RFP No.: 030324, including all terms and conditions, specifications, and amendments, and the contractor’s 

offer as accepted by Gila County. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as Contract No. 030324. The Contractor has been cautioned not 

to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor receives 

written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this contract, each of which shall include original 
signatures, and for all purposes shall be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _____________________, 2024. 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:     
 
 
         
Steve Christensen, Chairman, Board of Supervisors   
 
 
ATTEST:             
    
 
         
James Menlove, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 

 





   
ARF-8636   Regular Agenda Item     4. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Assistant County Manager 
Submitted By: Michael O'Driscoll, Assistant County Manager
Department: Assistant County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2024 - 2025 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2024 - June
30, 2025

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Policy No. BOS-HRS-018 - Employee Tuition Reimbursement
Policy.

Background Information
The purpose of the Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy (ETRP) is to:
(1) encourage and support employees’ professional development, provide
for optimal potential for advancement within the County, and attract and
retain the best individuals as County employees; (2) provide an
opportunity for Gila County to build a qualified workforce through
education, training, and collaborative partnerships that supports current
and future business needs; and (3) enhance employee productivity and
job performance to improve the quality of services provided to the public.
 

Evaluation
The purpose of the Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy (ETRP) is to:
(1) encourage and support employees’ professional development, provide
for optimal potential for advancement within the County, and attract and
retain the best individuals as County employees; (2) provide an
opportunity for Gila County to build a qualified workforce through
education, training, and collaborative partnerships that supports current
and future business needs; and (3) enhance employee productivity and
job performance to improve the quality of services provided to the public.

This new Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy will allow staff the



opportunity to enhance their education and skills needed for Gila County
jobs and in return, provide better qualified employees and improve
retention rates.

Conclusion
This new Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy will allow staff the
opportunity to enhance their education and skills needed for Gila County
jobs and in return, provide better qualified employees and improve
retention rates.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Gila County Board of Supervisors consider
approving the new Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Policy No. BOS-HRS-018 -
Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy. (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
BOS-HRS-018 - Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy.



  

                         

Gila County Human Resources Department | Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy  

 Policy Level: Countywide Policy No.  BOS-HRS-018 Rev. No. 0 

Policy Title: Employee Tuition 
Reimbursement Policy 

Policy Owner:  Human Resources 

BOS Adopted: 4/2/2024  Revision Date: N/A  Replaces: N/A 

Department Approval: 4/2/2024  

I. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of the Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy (ETRP) is to (1) encourage 
and support employees’ professional development, provide for optimal potential for 
advancement within the County, and attract and retain the best individuals as County 
employees; and (2) provide an opportunity for Gila County to build a qualified 
workforce through education, training, and collaborative partnerships that supports 
current and future business needs; and (3) enhance employee productivity and job 
performance to improve the quality of services provided to the public. 
 

II. SCOPE 
 
The Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy is administered by the Human 
Resources Department. 
 
The ETRP is contingent upon the annual appropriation of funds for this purpose and 
is subject to availability of funds. Additionally, this program is open to eligible 
employees who desire to pursue educational courses or training from an accredited 
college, university, or trade school for both credit and education courses. Note: This 
program does not apply to training courses, licenses, or certifications that are 
required by the employee's department or the County.  
 

III. APPLICABILITY 
 
This policy applies to all regular status full-time employees meeting the criteria outlined 
in this policy. Temporary employees, part-time consultants, and judge pro-tempores are 
not covered under this policy.  
 

IV. LEGAL AUTHORITIES 
 
Higher Education Act of 1965 (HEA) [Pub. L. 89–329] 
Internal Revenue Code [26 USC 127] 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Regulations [26 CFR 1.127-2]  



  

         

Gila County Human Resources Department | Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy  

 Policy Level: Countywide Policy No.   Page 2 of 7 

Policy Title: Employee Tuition 
Reimbursement Policy  

Policy Owner:  Human Resources  

V. BACKGROUND 
 
The Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy is intended to financially support Gila 
County employees in their continued professional development.  
 
The goals and purpose of this program are to increase employee effectiveness, 
operational efficiency, and to assist employees in preparing themselves for positions of 
increasing complexity and responsibility. Employee participation in this program is 
voluntary and must be pre-approved in accordance with this policy. 

 
VI. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES 
 

A. Must be a regular full-time employee. 
 

B. Meet the performance expectations of his/her current position by having not less 
than 3.0, meets expectations, overall rating on their most recent annual 
performance review. 

 
C. The Elected Official, or Department Director, may authorize participant 

employee’s use of accumulated compensatory or vacation leave to attend classes 
during regular work hours if the course is not available during non-work hours 
provided the employee's absence does not diminish the Office’s/Department’s 
ability to perform their duties or provide services.  

 
D. Employees must also meet the following requirements to be eligible to receive 

educational assistance under this program:  
 
1. Regular active full-time employees. 

2. Must have satisfactorily completed original probationary period with Gila 
County.  

3. Employees must provide any and all required application information to the 
Human Resources Department. 

VII. CONFIDENTIALITY  

All employee information regarding applications and program participation will be 
kept confidential in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 



  

         

Gila County Human Resources Department | Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy  

 Policy Level: Countywide Policy No.   Page 3 of 7 

Policy Title: Employee Tuition 
Reimbursement Policy  

Policy Owner:  Human Resources  

VIII. COURSE ELIGIBILITY 

A. Eligible Course Requirements 

1. Courses must be taken through a college, university, or trade school accredited 
by one of the National or Regional Accreditation Councils for the U.S. 
Department of Education. 

2. Courses must be for credit or certification. Audited classes are not eligible. 

3. The course(s) must meet the following condition(s) as determined by the 
Department Head or designee: 

a. It is directly related to the employee’s current job or related to a field in 
which the County normally recruits. 

b. It will increase the employee's knowledge, skills, and abilities relative to 
potential advancement opportunities available within Gila County. 

 
4. Degrees in which the County normally recruits include Associates, Bachelors, 

Masters or other specialized degree programs as it is deemed appropriate to 
meet the needs of the County.   

 

IX. APPROVAL PROCESS   

Note: Approval of educational assistance requests are contingent upon the availability 
of funds. Available funding is allocated and/or approved on a case-by-case basis. 

 
A. Pre-Approval Required   

 
1. No more than sixty (60) but no later than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the 

start of the education course work at a university, college, trade school, or 
technical institution, etc., for which the employee will seek tuition 
reimbursement, the employee must complete an Employee Tuition 
Reimbursement Pre-Approval Form and submit this form to the Human 
Resources department to determine eligibility for enrollment in the ETRP.  

 
2. Alternatively, when enrolling in a degree program, the employee is required 

to submit an outline of all courses required (along with the corresponding 
descriptions) for advance approval. Once the degree program is approved, the 
employee will follow the process for individual class approval. There is no 



  

         

Gila County Human Resources Department | Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy  

 Policy Level: Countywide Policy No.   Page 4 of 7 

Policy Title: Employee Tuition 
Reimbursement Policy  

Policy Owner:  Human Resources  

need to provide the course description(s) as the courses are approved in 
advance.   

 
3. After approval is obtained from the Department Director, Finance Department 

Director, Human Resources Director, and County Administration, the 
employee shall register for the course(s). 

 
X. REIMBURSEMENT 

Reimbursement under this program shall be limited to tuition reimbursement as 
defined by the IRS Regulation Section 1.127-2(c).  

 

A. Reimbursement Eligibility 
 

Reimbursement eligibility is subject to the conditions, requirements, and 
processes, as defined below: 
 
1. To participate, the employee must submit a request by filling out the 

Educational Assistance Pre-Approval Form and submit it to his/her 
Department Head or designee. 

2. Reimbursement is limited to $5,250 per calendar year, per employee.  

3. Upon completion, tuition reimbursement will be made based on the following:  

a) Completion of course or program with minimum grade of 2.0, or 
C. 
 

b) Submit an Employee Tuition Reimbursement Form to the Human 
Resources Department within thirty (30) days of completion of the 
course as set forth in Section B below.  

 
4. Employees MUST report any and all financial assistance he/she receives or 

shall receive for tuition from ANY other source(s). Such amount shall be 
deducted from reimbursement provided pursuant to this program.  

 
B. Processing a Claim for Reimbursement 

 
Within thirty (30) calendar days of the last day of class and after successful 
completion of eligible course work, employees must submit a complete 



  

         

Gila County Human Resources Department | Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy  

 Policy Level: Countywide Policy No.   Page 5 of 7 

Policy Title: Employee Tuition 
Reimbursement Policy  

Policy Owner:  Human Resources  

application packet to the Human Resources Department.  
 
The application packet must include: 
 
1. A completed Employee Tuition Reimbursement Form signed by the employee 

and his/her Office/Department Director shall be submitted to the Human 
Resources Department for approval by Finance Department Director, Human 
Resources Director, and County Administration. 
 

2. Official receipt from the institution containing the following:  
 

a. School name  
 

b. Term or session  
 

c. Method of payment 
  

d. Reimbursement is not provided for tuition paid by amount Veteran’s 
Administration, GI Bill, grants, scholarships, etc. 

 
3. Documentation from institution with grade (numerical or letter), or certificate 

of successful completion for pass/fail course(s) taken.  
 

4. Documentation from institution with course/training/instruction date. Note: 
Must include the start date and end date of the course(s) term or session. 

 
5. If the employee’s tuition reimbursement request is denied, the Human 

Resources Department shall provide the employee written notice and the basis 
for the denial within thirty (30) business days of the receipt of the request.  

 
XI. TAX LIABILITY 

 
A. Reimbursements is limited to $5,250 per employee, per year, to comply with IRS 

limitations concerning tax consequences for employees.  
 

B. Necessary audit tracking records will be maintained for all program participants. 
All participant files will be confidential. For IRS Tax Policies on Employer- 
Provided Education Assistance, see Chapter 11 of IRS Publication 970. 

 
 



  

         

Gila County Human Resources Department | Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy  

 Policy Level: Countywide Policy No.   Page 6 of 7 

Policy Title: Employee Tuition 
Reimbursement Policy  

Policy Owner:  Human Resources  

 
XII. RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
A. Gila County Administration 

 
The Gila County Manager shall make the final determination concerning 
reimbursement requests and interpretation of this policy. 

 
B. Human Resources 
 

The ETRP shall be administered by the Gila County Human Resources 
Department. The Human Resources Department shall be responsible for the 
following:  
 
1. Determining that all documents were received in compliance with this policy. 

 
2. Maintaining a record of employee’s documents for this program.  

 
3. Reviewing all supporting documents submitted by departments to ensure 

proper accountability for reimbursement disbursement. 
 

4. Viewing the accuracy of employee reimbursement requests.  
 

5. Providing verified reimbursement requests to County Administration for 
approval.  

 
Note: If any of the supporting documents are missing by the deadline or the 
claim form is incomplete, the claim may be denied. 

 
C. Finance Department 

 
The Finance Department is responsible for disbursing all reimbursements and 
maintaining supporting documentation confirming costs. 
 

D. Office/Department Director or designee 
 

The employee’s Office/Department Director shall verify that all approved 
coursework is in compliance with this policy and sign the employee’s 
Reimbursement Request.   

 



  

         

Gila County Human Resources Department | Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy  

 Policy Level: Countywide Policy No.   Page 7 of 7 

Policy Title: Employee Tuition 
Reimbursement Policy  

Policy Owner:  Human Resources  

E. Employee 
 
1. Review ETRP Policy and obtain written authorization prior to registering for 

any program in this policy. 
 

2. Upon approval, sign and submit required documentation to the Human 
Resources Department. 

 
3. Unless otherwise approved by a Department Director, or Elected Official, 

classes and assignments are to be completed outside of regular working hours 
and may not interfere with the employee’s job duties.  

 
4. Submit a Tuition Reimbursement Form as indicated in this policy. 

 
5. The ETRP is a discretionary employee benefit. If an employee’s job 

performance is negatively impacted by his/her participation in this program 
the employee may be disqualified from continued participation in this 
program.  

 
6. Grade Requirements: 

 
a. To qualify for reimbursement for tuition under ETRP, an employee must 

receive a 2.0, C, grade or higher. 
 

b. For courses taken on a “Pass/Fail” basis, a grade of “Pass” must be 
awarded to be eligible for reimbursement.  

 
c. Reimbursement will NOT be provided for courses in which the employee 

does not receive a grade or credit hours from the approved institution. 

 
SIGNATURES: 

 
 

       _________________________                                                    __________________ 
       CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS                                       DATE 



   
ARF-8639   Regular Agenda Item     4. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Joseph Dickison, Facilities Management Director 
Submitted By: Stephanie Chaidez, Contracts Administrator
Department: Facilities Management
Fiscal Year: FY24 & FY25 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

04-02-2024 to
03-07-2025

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to use State of Arizona Contract No. CTR061840 with The SJ
Anderson Company for the Fairgrounds Roll-Up Doors Project.

Background Information
Gila County is currently focusing on enhancing the overall experience at
the Fairgrounds, with a special emphasis on improving facilities for
community and private events. Among the main venues, the Exhibit Hall
stands out as a popular choice for various occasions, including weddings,
4H events, school fundraisers, and more. The hall is frequently used by
the local community and during the annual Fair.
 
The Fairground Exhibit Hall is equipped with three roll-up doors. One of
them is located near the main entrance at the front of the building, while
the other two are situated at the back. However, these doors are more
than 30 years old and can only be operated manually. Moreover, the guide
rails are damaged, the doors are not insulated, and they are in poor
condition due to weathering and age. They also lack wind locks, which
poses safety concerns during windy conditions. Due to manual operation,
the hall can become noisy, which is another issue that needs to be
addressed.

Evaluation
The roll-up doors that currently secure the entrance to the Fairgrounds



The roll-up doors that currently secure the entrance to the Fairgrounds
Exhibit Hall are showing signs of significant wear and tear after serving
the facility for over 30 years. The guide rails that support the doors are
bent and warped, making it challenging to close them securely. Moreover,
the doors are not insulated, which means that the temperature inside the
hall can be affected by external weather conditions, and this can lead to
discomfort for visitors and occupants alike.
 
Additionally, the doors are manually operated, which poses a safety
hazard and makes it challenging to control the speed at which they open
and close. This can be particularly dangerous for small children and the
elderly, who may not have the strength or agility to move away from the
doors quickly enough.

Furthermore, the doors lack wind locks, causing them to rattle loudly
during high winds, which can significantly distract and annoy those
within the facility.
 
To solve these problems and enhance the overall experience of the
Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall, it has been determined that replacing the
existing 3 doors with new, modern ones is the best course of action. The
new doors will be more reliable, insulated, have safety features and
noise-reducing options, and be efficient, making them safer and more
comfortable for everyone who uses the facility.

Conclusion
Based on the issues outlined above, it is clear that the current roll-up
doors at the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall are not meeting the necessary
standards for safety, comfort, and efficiency. The wear and tear of the
guide rails, lack of insulation, manual operation, and absence of wind
locks are all significant problems that need to be addressed. Therefore, it
is highly recommended to replace the current doors with new, modern
ones that are reliable, insulated, and have safety features and
noise-reducing options. This upgrade will make the facility safer, more
comfortable, and more efficient for everyone who uses it, ultimately
enhancing the overall experience of the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall.

Recommendation
The Facilities Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the use of the State of Arizona Contract No.
CTR061840 with The SJ Anderson Company in the amount of
$118,963.71 

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of the State of Arizona
Contract Agreement No. CTR061840 with The SJ Anderson Company in
the amount of $118,963.71 for the Fairgrounds Roll-Up Doors
project. (Joseph Dickison) 

Attachments
Contract Agreement No. CTR061840
The SJ Anderson Company Proposal
State of Arizona Contract No. CTR061840









www.eziqc.com

Summary Of Costs 

Statewide General Contracting JOC

R/R Two 16x14 & One 12x14 Roll Up DoorsJOC Project Name:

24-GilaCounty-FAC-0010.00JOC Project Number:

Amount of Proposal: $118,963.71 Purchase Order Amount to Contractor

The SJ Anderson CompanyContractor:

Contractor:

The SJ Anderson Company

CTR061840Contract #:

2/29/2024



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

www.eziqc.com

Statewide JOC Contract

R/R Two 16x14 & One 12x14 Roll Up DoorsJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

GC-CTR061840-ez

24-GilaCounty-FAC-0010.00

February 29, 2024

Gila County Fairgrounds Roll Up Door R/R

Allowance for permit fees and engineering services is included on this proposal. 
Door Demo/ Install
DEMO AND DISPOSE OF EXISTING DOORS

Install 3 SERIES 625 INSULATED ROLLING STEEL DOOR AS MANUFACTURED BY THE OVERHEAD DOOR 

CORPORATION

24 GAUGE STEEL PRIMED WHITE CURTAIN 

FACE MOUNTED TO STEEL E-GUIDE 

FRONT OF HOOD RIGHT HAND OPERATION 

RSX 3/4HP SINGLE PHASE OPERATOR (CONSTANT CONTACT) 

DOUBLE ANGLE BOTTOM BAR 

DOUBLE FLARED ENTRY 

WEATHER STRIP ONE SIDE 

HOOD ROUND STEEL PRIMED WHITE 

BRACKETS STEEL STANDARD

PAINT TO MATCH EXISTING DOOR COLORS UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE BY THE OWNER 

Alternating Wind Slats to be included on all 3 doors, per Owner request. 

Install necessary electrical to power door operators
Run from home runs from existing exterior 3R panel to 3 doors locations.

Install 3 new breakers in existing panel on east side exterior or building. 

Install local service disconect at operator motor.

Any unforseen conditions or required work above and beyond the scope detailed above will placed on a suplimental job order to be 

signed by the owner. 

Detailed Scope:

Proposal Name:

Proposal Value:

Proposal created by 

Contractor:

R/R Two 16x14 & One 12x14 Roll Up Doors

The SJ Anderson Company

$118,963.71

01 - General Requirements: $34,925.10

05 - Metals: $352.04

08 - Openings: $60,598.05

09 - Finishes: $11,076.65

26 - Electrical: $12,011.87

$118,963.71Proposal Total

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

PO should be directly issued to the Contractor and not Gordian or The State of Arizona .

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 8.15%

 1.00

Page 1 of 1

2/29/2024

Price Proposal Summary - CSI



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

February 29, 2024

24-GilaCounty-FAC-0010.00

GC-CTR061840-ez

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

R/R Two 16x14 & One 12x14 Roll Up Doors

1.0750-Non-State ezIQC Reimbursable Fee, 1.2173-Non State Agency - NWH - Owner FundedAdjustment Factor(s) Used:

Proposal created 

by Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: R/R Two 16x14 & One 12x14 Roll Up Doors

The SJ Anderson Company

$118,963.71

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesReimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for eligible 

costs as directed by Owner.  Insert the appropriate quantity to adjust the base 

cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee. If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, 

list each one separately and add a comment in the "note" block to identify the 

Reimbursable Fee (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended 

warranty, expedited shipping costs, etc.). A copy of each receipt, invoice, or 

proof of payment shall be submitted with the Price Proposal.

1 $9,137.50EA

Installation =x x $9,137.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0750$1.00 8,500.00

User Note: Engineering Allowance

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesReimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for eligible 

costs as directed by Owner.  Insert the appropriate quantity to adjust the base 

cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee. If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, 

list each one separately and add a comment in the "note" block to identify the 

Reimbursable Fee (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended 

warranty, expedited shipping costs, etc.). A copy of each receipt, invoice, or 

proof of payment shall be submitted with the Price Proposal.

2 $4,837.50EA

Installation =x x $4,837.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0750$1.00 4,500.00

User Note: Permit allowance

01  22   16   00 0005 TaxesThe Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other similar taxes 

required by Law for which an exemption does not exist. If the Contractor is 

required to pay sales tax on non-exempt material, equipment, services or other 

items purchased in connection with a Purchase Order, the Member will 

reimburse the Contractor for such tax, without mark-up, provided the Contractor 

submits the appropriate documentation therefore.

3 $6,962.42EA

Installation =x x $6,962.42
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0750$1.00 6,476.67

User Note: Tax

01  22   23   00 0059 25' Electric, Scissor Platform Lift4 $1,194.95WK

Installation =x x $1,194.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$490.82 2.00

User Note: man lift for electrical install, door install and painting

01  22   23   00 0868 2,000 PSI Pressure Washer With Full-Time Operator5 $1,113.10DAY

Installation =x x $1,113.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$457.20 2.00

User Note: Cleaning roll up doors prior to paint

01  22   23   00 1014 6,000 LB Telescopic Boom, Hi-Reach, Rough Terrain Construction Forklift With 

Full-Time Operator

6 $9,290.43WK

Installation =x x $9,290.43
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$3,816.00 2.00

User Note: Reach lift fork for door install, electrical install

 2.00

Page 1 of 5

2/29/2024

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



R/R Two 16x14 & One 12x14 Roll Up Doors

24-GilaCounty-FAC-0010.00Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  71   13   00 0002 Equipment Delivery, Pickup, Mobilization And Demobilization Using A Rollback 

Flatbed TruckIncludes loading, tie-down of equipment, delivery of equipment, off 

loading on site, rigging, dismantling, loading for return and transporting away. 

For equipment such as trenchers, skid-steer loaders (bobcats), industrial 

warehouse forklifts, sweepers, scissor platform lifts, telescoping and articulating 

boom man lifts with up to 40' boom lengths, etc.

7 $302.90EA

Installation =x x $302.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$248.83 1.00

User Note: Transportation for man lift

01  71   13   00 0003 Standard Equipment Delivery, Pickup, Mobilization And Demobilization Using A 

Tractor Trailer With Up To 53' BedIncludes loading, tie-down of equipment, 

delivery of equipment, off loading on site, rigging, dismantling, loading for return 

and transporting away. For equipment such as bulldozers, motor scrapers, 

hydraulic excavators, gradalls, road graders, loader-backhoes, heavy duty 

construction loaders, tractors, pavers, rollers, bridge finishers, straight mast 

construction forklifts, telescoping boom rough terrain construction forklifts, 

telescoping and articulating boom man lifts with >40' boom lengths, etc.

8 $1,466.69EA

Installation =x x $1,466.69
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$1,204.87 1.00

User Note: Transportation for fork lift

01  74   19   00 0015 20 CY Dumpster (3 Ton) "Construction Debris"Includes delivery of dumpster, 

rental cost, pick-up cost, hauling, and disposal fee. Non-hazardous material.

9 $619.61EA

Installation =x x $619.61
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$509.00 1.00

User Note: dumpster for debris

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $34,925.10

05 - Metals

05  05   21   00 0003 Welding Minimum ChargeFor projects where the total welding charge is less 

than the minimum charge, use this task exclusively. This task should not be 

used in conjunction with any other tasks in this section.

10 $352.04EA

Installation =x x $352.04
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$289.20 1.00

User Note: Mounting brackets for doors and motors

Subtotal for 05 - Metals: $352.04

08 - Openings

08  00   00   02 1224 Alternating Wind Locks 16x14 Roll up Door11 $6,858.50Ea

Installation =x x $6,858.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0750$3,190.00 2.00
NPP Task

User Note: 2 Ea alternating wind locks

08  00   00   02 1324 Alternating Wind Locks 12x14 Roll up Door12 $2,838.00Ea

Installation =x x $2,838.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0750$2,640.00 1.00
NPP Task

User Note: 1 Ea alternating wind locks

08  33   23   11 0115 14' x 12', 18 Gauge Galvanized Steel Overhead Coiling Door, Chain Lift13 $6,129.81EA

Installation =x x $5,064.59
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$4,160.51 1.00

Demolition x x = $1,065.22 1.2173$875.07 1.00

User Note: 12x14 door install - to match existing opening

Page 2 of 5

2/29/2024

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



R/R Two 16x14 & One 12x14 Roll Up Doors

24-GilaCounty-FAC-0010.00Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

08 - Openings

08  33   23   11 0115 For 3/4" Insulated Slats, Add14 Mod $2,360.39EA

Installation =x x $2,360.39
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$1,939.04 1.00

08  33   23   11 0124 16' x 14', 18 Gauge Galvanized Steel Overhead Coiling Door, Chain Lift15 $15,612.31EA

Installation =x x $13,075.58
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$5,370.73 2.00

Demolition x x = $2,536.73 1.2173$1,041.95 2.00

User Note: 16x14 door install - to match existing opening (qty 2)

08  33   23   11 0124 For 3/4" Insulated Slats, Add16 Mod $6,382.08EA

Installation =x x $6,382.08
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$2,621.41 2.00

08  33   23   11 0244 Top Of Door (Lintel), Weather Strip Seal For Coiling Doors17 $1,654.51LF

Installation =x x $1,654.51
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$30.89 44.00

User Note: Weather strip top of door

16 x 2 + 12 = 44

08  33   23   11 0245 Side Of Door (Guides), Weather Strip Seal For Coiling Doors18 $3,005.22LF

Installation =x x $3,005.22
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$29.39 84.00

User Note: Weather strip verticals = 14' x 6=84

08  33   23   11 0246 Cylinder Lock For Coiling Doors19 $727.42EA

Installation =x x $727.42
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$199.19 3.00

User Note: Locks for doors x3

08  33   23   11 0250 >12' To 18' Height, 3/4 HP Motorized Jackshaft Operator For Coiling Doors And 

GrillesIncludes three button inside station controls and mounting hardware.

20 $8,177.55EA

Installation =x x $8,177.55
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$2,239.26 3.00

User Note: motor operators x3

08  33   23   11 0253 Safety Edge Bottom Bar Obstruction Detection Device, Electric For Coiling 

Doors And Grilles

21 $5,939.94LF

Installation =x x $5,939.94
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$110.90 44.00

User Note: safety bars = 16 x 2 + 12 = 44

08  33   23   11 0254 Remote Transmitter Kit For Coiling Door Operators22 $912.32EA

Installation =x x $912.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$249.82 3.00

User Note: remote for door operators x 3

Subtotal for 08 - Openings: $60,598.05

09 - Finishes

09  53   23   00 0019 Removal And Reinstallation Of Acoustical Ceiling Tile And Grid , 2' x 2' Or 2' x 

4'Suspension system tie wire, wall angles and bracing to remain in place.

23 $6,981.26SF

Installation =x x $6,981.26
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$1.74 3,296.00

User Note: 24ft x 8ft = 192 x 3 doors = 576SF Roll up door demo/ install

home runs 8ft x 340 LF = 2720SF

Page 3 of 5

2/29/2024

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



R/R Two 16x14 & One 12x14 Roll Up Doors

24-GilaCounty-FAC-0010.00Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  53   23   00 0019 For >2,500 To 4,000, Deduct24 Mod -$160.49SF

Installation =x x $-160.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$-0.04 3,296.00

09  53   23   00 0019 For Ceilings >10' High, Add25 Mod $521.59SF

Installation =x x $521.59
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$0.13 3,296.00

09  91   13   00 0242 1 Coat Primer, Sprayed, Paint Exterior Metal Overhead, Sectional Door, Or Roll 

Up Door

26 $1,207.27SF

Installation =x x $1,207.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$1.61 616.00

User Note: 16x14 x 2 = 448 sf

12 x 14 = 168 sf

09  91   13   00 0244 2 Coats Paint, Sprayed, Paint Exterior Metal Overhead, Sectional Door, Or Roll 

Up Door

27 $2,527.02SF

Installation =x x $2,527.02
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$3.37 616.00

User Note: 16x14 x 2 = 448 sf

12 x 14 = 168 sf

Subtotal for 09 - Finishes: $11,076.65

26 - Electrical

26  05   33   13 0010 3/4" Electrical Metallic Tubing (EMT) Conduit Assembly With 3 #12 Copper 

THHN And 1 #12 Copper Insulated Grounding ConductorIncludes conduit, set 

screw connectors, set screw couplings, straps, wire as indicated. Not for use 

where detail is available.

28 $7,603.37CLF

Installation =x x $7,603.37
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$694.01 9.00

User Note: home runs

26  05   33   16 0120 1.594" Diameter Receptacle, 4" x 2" Steel Handy Box Exposed Work Cover29 $44.92EA

Installation =x x $44.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$6.15 6.00

User Note: means and meathods for home runs

26  05   83   00 0076 #22 To #10 Wire Size, 12 Point, 600 Volt Terminal Block30 $903.44EA

Installation =x x $903.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$247.39 3.00

User Note: low volt operator connection

26  27   26   00 0155 20 Amperes, 120/277 Volt, DPDT Switch31 $120.95EA

Installation =x x $120.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$33.12 3.00

User Note: operation control overide

26  27   26   00 0231 4" Square Box Cover Units With 1 Fuseholder And 1 Switch32 $310.16EA

Installation =x x $310.16
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$84.93 3.00

User Note: local current supressor for equipment protection

26  28   16   13 0122 35 To 60 Amperes, 2 Pole, 240 Volt, Branch Circuit Breaker, 42,000 Amperes 

Interrupting Capacity

33 $1,164.88EA

Installation =x x $1,164.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$318.98 3.00

User Note: feeder ocp to each operator

Page 4 of 5

2/29/2024

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



R/R Two 16x14 & One 12x14 Roll Up Doors

24-GilaCounty-FAC-0010.00Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  29   13   13 0012 NEMA 3R, 7 And 9, Handle Guard/Lockoff, 2 Pole, Toggle Operator, Up To 1 HP, 

Manual Motor Starter With Thermal Overload Protection (Square D 2510FR2)

34 $1,864.15EA

Installation =x x $1,864.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2173$510.46 3.00

User Note: operator control local disconnect

Subtotal for 26 - Electrical: $12,011.87

$118,963.71Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

PO should be directly issued to the Contractor and not Gordian or The State of Arizona .

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 8.15%

Page 5 of 5

2/29/2024

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

















































































































































































































   
ARF-8638   Regular Agenda Item     4. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Joseph Dickison, Facilities Management Director 
Submitted By: Amber Martinez, Executive Administrative Assistant
Department: Facilities Management

Information
Request/Subject
Approve an architectural and design concept for the Gila County Go Kart
Track.

Background Information
Gila County is currently working on improving the overall experience at
the Fairgrounds, with a particular focus on enhancing facilities for the
community. One area the Facilities and Land Management Department is
looking to improve is the Gila County Go Kart Track, which is situated at
the western end of the fairgrounds. The aim is to make the track safe,
expanded, accessible, and usable for everyone to enjoy.

Evaluation
Joseph Dickison, Facilities and Land Management Department Director
will be presenting the proposed design concept for the Gila County Go
Kart Track in partnership with the Gila Monster Racing Committee, a 501
(C) (3) organization. Over the years, there have been several raceways
throughout the region that have shut down due to the urbanization of
what used to be rural locations for outdoor events such as raceways. The
proposal involves investing in the racing program to expand the track
while simultaneously establishing safety barriers, ADA (Americans with
Disabilities Act) restrooms, announcers, concession booths, and lighting,
as well as improving and expanding the parking to accommodate the
sport and the addition of mid-size race cars. This expansion will create a
racing hub for the region and provide local racers with a safe location to
race, eliminating the need to travel each weekend. The plan also includes
attracting racers from out of town, and with the ideal climate for nearly
year-round racing, it's the perfect opportunity to establish a new racing
destination. Currently, the closest similar racetrack catering to mid-size
cars and Karts is the Adobe Mountain Speedway in Peoria.

Conclusion



Joseph Dickison, Facilities and Land Management Department Director
has partnered with Gila Monster Go-Karts to re-establish a non-profit
racetrack at the Gila County Fairgrounds. The track is made possible
through the use of land provided by Gila County and countless volunteer
hours from board members, community sponsors, racers, and their
families. As the sport of racing continues to grow and evolve, there are
now more opportunities for both youth and adults to race in alternative
Race Karts and Car classes. However, the current track is limited by size,
which restricts the number of classes that can be accommodated.
Therefore, there is a plan to expand the facility to offer more classes,
which will benefit the community by increasing demand for the
Fairgrounds RV Park and generate additional revenue for local
businesses, including hotels, restaurants, gas stations, and others.

Recommendation
Joseph Dickison and his team recommend that the Board of Supervisors
approve an architectural and design concept for the Gila County Go Kart
Track, which will cost $49,146.57. The proposed new design is modern,
reliable, and comes equipped with advanced safety features, which will
significantly enhance the safety, comfort, and efficiency of the facility.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an architectural and design
concept for the Gila County Go Kart Track. (Joseph Dickison)

Attachments
Go Kart Track Presentation 4-2-24



Gila County Raceway Go-Kart Track



Primary 
Goals



Facility 
Improvements 



Thank you



   
ARF-8629   Regular Agenda Item     4. K.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Melanie Mendez, Recycling & Landfill Manager 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2024 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

One year from
signature

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award in Response to Request for Proposals No. 120423 - 
Professional Consulting Services Specializing in Solid Waste
Operations.

Background Information
On January 2, 2024, the Board of Supervisors authorized the
advertisement of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) No. 120423 - 
Professional Consulting Firms Specializing in Solid Waste Operations. 
The RFQ was advertised in the Payson Roundup newspaper on January
9, 2024, and January 16, 2024 with a bid due date of January 31, 2024.
IFB No.120423 was emailed to eight contractors. The bid was also
advertised on the Gila County website under Procurement and at Dodge
Data & Analytics.

Evaluation
Sealed bids were accepted at the Gila County Finance Department
through 3:00 P.M. on January 31, 2024. There was one competitive bid
received in response to RFP No. 120423.  The bid was evaluated in
accordance with A.R.S. § 41-2533,  Competitive Bidding. Blue Ridge
Services, Montana, Inc. met all bid specifications and offered a bid price
of $65,510.

Conclusion
The Recycling and Landfill Management Division is seeking a high-level



The Recycling and Landfill Management Division is seeking a high-level
review of Gila County landfills, an assessment of health and safety,
operational efficiency, landfill documentation, and on-site/on-demand
training. Blue Ridge Services Montana, Inc. fulfills the required
specifications.

Recommendation
The Recycling and Landfill Management Division Manager recommends
that the Board of Supervisors award a contract to Blue Ridge Services,
Montana, Inc. in the amount of $65,510.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review the bid submitted for Request
for Qualifications No. 120423 - Professional Consulting Firms
Specializing in Solid Waste Operations; and award Contract No. 120423
to  Blue Ridge Services, Montana, Inc. in the amount of $65,510. 
(Melanie Mendez)

Attachments
Request for Proposals No. 120423 with Award Contract
Addendum 1





































































REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS #120423 – CONSULTING SERVICES LANDFILL 
ADDENDUM #1 

 
 
 
  

 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 120423 

CONSULTING SERVICES LANDFILL 

ADDENDUM #1:   
DATE: 01/24 

01/24/24 
 
CLARIFICATIONS:  
Question: RFQ Page No. 4-5, Task 1-Will the documents be provided in a digital format prior to 
the commencement of the Site Visits?  
 
Answer: Contractor needs to request the specific documents to overlook. Time will be 
allotted for Gila County to provide documents. Site visit will take place at an agreed time 
after the documents have been reviewed by the contractor. need to be requested from Gila 
County and the documents will be provided before site visit. 
  
Question: RFQ Page No. 5, Task 2- Are the Site Visits to be scheduled for two days per landfill, 
or is two days the total duration for both landfills?  
 
Answer: One day per landfill will be scheduled. 
 
Question:  RFQ Page No. 6, Task 5- Will a virtual option suffice for on-demand training?  
Answer: Yes 
 



   

ARF-8655   Regular Agenda Item     4. L.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  

Submitted For: Stephen Christensen, Board of Supervisors-District 1 
Submitted By: Melissa Wile, Executive Assistant
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 1
Fiscal Year: 2023-2024 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

04/02/2024-04/02/2025 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Economic Development Agreement No.031424 with Strawberry
Patchers Inc.

Background Information
Every year funds are budgeted to support economic development activities.
Strawberry Patchers has applied to Gila County for an economic development
grant in the amount of $250 to support Strawberry Patchers 26th Annual Quilt
Show.

Under A.R.S. §11-254, contributions may be made to any governmental agency
or to a non-profit corporation that enjoys and maintains federal tax-exempt
status as long as all monies are utilized for the purpose determined to be public
by the Board. Strawberry Patchers will provide the direct benefit of advertising
the County.

Strawberry Patchers has requested funding to support Strawberry Patchers'
26th Annual Quilt Show.  The proceeds from the sales at the quilt show will be
used to provided funds and resources for various charitable organizations
throughout Gila County. These organizations include, but are not limited to,
Lacey Oldland Memorial Scholarship, National Association on Mental Illness,
Warming Center, and Whispering Hope Ranch.

The organization will advertise Gila County by placing a Gila County Banner
prominently at the event.

Evaluation
Funds are available. After reviewing the application/agreement and asking any



Funds are available. After reviewing the application/agreement and asking any
necessary questions, the Board shall determine if the request is for the benefit
of the public. The Board may approve Economic Development Agreement No.
031424 if the Board determines it to be for the benefit of the public. The funds
shall be used for the specific purpose described above.

Conclusion
Funds are available, and after evaluation, the Board may approve the Economic
Development Agreement No. 031424 that the Board has determined to be for
the benefit of the public. All grant monies awarded to the non-profit shall be
used for the purpose determined to be public by the Board.
 
District 1 Supervisor Christensen would like to provide Strawberry Patchers,
Inc. with an economic development grant in the amount of $250 for Strawberry
Patchers' 26th Annual Quilt Show.

Recommendation
After evaluation, the Board may approve the Economic Development Agreement
No. 031424 with Strawberry Patchers Inc., if the Board has determined that the
contribution will be utilized for the benefit of the public. The economic
development grant will be funded through District 1 constituent funds.  
 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Economic Development  Agreement
No.031424 between Gila County and Strawberry Patchers, Inc. in the amount
of $250 to sponsor Strawberry Patchers' 26th Annual Quilt Show, which the
Board has determined to be for the benefit of the public.  (Stephen Christensen)

Attachments
Economic Development Agreement No. 031424
Request Letter
W9
501(c)3



































   
ARF-8661   Regular Agenda Item     4. M.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted By: Samantha Trimble, Deputy Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Sealed bid for the purchase of Assessor's parcel number 207-05-003B.

Background Information
On June 25, 1992, the Gila County Treasurer deeded parcel number
207-05-003B to the State of Arizona c/o Board of Supervisors because the
previous owner did not pay taxes on the subject property for 7
consecutive years.  The lien amount for this property is $337.70.

The property adjoins Gila County Assessor's parcel number 207-05-003A,
which is owned by Veneta Molina; however, the deed is under the name of
Veneta Courtney.  Ms. Molina has submitted a sealed bid for the Board of
Supervisors' consideration. If the Board accepts Ms. Molina's bid, she
intends to request that the Gila County Assessor combine the parcels,
which is a win-win for both parties.  

Evaluation
Each year the Board of Supervisors conducts an online auction through
Public Surplus to sell properties that were newly deeded to the State of
Arizona in care of the Board of Supervisors.  Any properties that did not
sell at the auction could be sold by the Clerk of the Board's office over the
counter.  Several years ago, the Board of Supervisors stopped selling state
tax-deeded properties over the counter.  Those properties may be sold an
another online auction of the Board of Supervisors through Public
Surplus. The only exception where a property may be sold by the Board of
Supervisors for less than the lien amount is through the County's sealed
bid process.  Only an owner of land that adjoins a state tax-deeded
property may submit a sealed bid for the Board's consideration; however,
at the time they place the bid, they must show proof of adjoining
ownership.  The Board may consider selling a property for less than the
lien amount from an adjoining land owner.

On March 12, 2024, Ms. Molina submitted a sealed bid to the Deputy
Clerk of the Board to purchase the subject parcel.



Clerk of the Board to purchase the subject parcel.

Conclusion
It would be advantageous for the Board of Supervisors to consider a
sealed bid from Ms. Molina.  If the Board accepts the offer, the property
will go back on the County's tax rolls.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors consider the sealed bid
for the purchase of tax parcel number 207-05-003B.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase
of Assessor's tax parcel number 207-05-003B and, if accepted, authorize
the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. (Samantha Trimble)

Attachments
207-05-003B Info











   
ARF-8673   Consent Agenda Item     5. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted By: Samantha Trimble, Deputy Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Bandits Restaurant & the Dirty Cowboy Saloon's Application for
Temporary Extensions of Premise/Patio Permit on Various Dates.

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an
Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing
body of the city, town, or county where the establishment is located. The
application can be submitted to temporarily or permanently extend the
premises/patio where serving liquor is permitted by the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC). The local governing
body usually has established internal procedures for the review and
approval of the application. The DLLC has final approval of all
recommendations submitted by the local governing body.

Katie Lynn Parks of Bandits Restaurant & the Dirty Cowboy Saloon
submitted one application to temporarily extend the premises/patio where
liquor is permitted to be sold from May 18, 2024, to September 30, 2024.

Evaluation
The application has been reviewed by the Clerk of the Board and by the
Building Official of the Community Development Department regarding
the proposed extended area for liquor to be served. The application clearly
indicates that the extended area will be to include the patio/parking lot
and the staff of Bandits Restaurant, LLC will be provided the required
training.

Conclusion
The application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a
decision. The Board's recommendation for approval or disapproval will
then be sent to the DLLC for final decision.

Recommendation



It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval
recommendation to the DLLC.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Extension of Premises/Patio Permit Application submitted
by Katie Lynn Parks to temporarily extend the premises from May 18,
2024, through September 30, 2024, where liquor is permitted to be served
at Bandits Restaurant & the Dirty Cowboy Saloon located in Strawberry.

Attachments
Extension of premises application- Bandits Restaurant & the Dirty
Cowboy Saloon
Com Dev response











   
ARF-8658   Consent Agenda Item     5. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: David LaForge, Public Works General Services Manager 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works Division: Auto Shop
Fiscal Year: 2023-2024 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

11-01-22 to 04-30-24 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan
Ford Partners, LLC 

Background Information
The State of Arizona Procurement Office has an agreement with San Tan
Ford Partners, LLC, of which the County is able to use that agreement. 
On November 1, 2022, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract
Agreement No. CTR059323 between Gila County and San Tan Ford
Partners, LLC for the purchase of one (1) new 2023 Ford F-550 Super
Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab. The contract expired on April 30, 2023.  Due to
the needed time to complete the project, the Public Works Department
would like to extend the contract date through April 30, 2024.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan
Ford Partners, LLC extends the term of the contract through April 30,
2024, due to the need for time to complete the project.

The vehicle mentioned in the agenda request will be needed for the Gila
County General Services Globe Shop to be a better-suited and equipped
vehicle to use for field repairs as well as making for a more effective
emergency response vehicle. We would be replacing C-083, a 2001 Dodge
1 ton flatbed, which is 21 years of age with 55k miles. With the low
mileage, C-083 will be re-purposed to the Buckhead Mesa Landfill, and
B-028 a 2002 Chevrolet ½ Ton 4x4 Pickup with 120k will be turned in



and sold at auction to prevent increasing the size of the fleet.

Conclusion
The Public Works Department Director wishes to execute Amendment No.
1 to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan Ford Partners,
LLC to extend the term of the contract through April 30, 2024, for the
purchase of one (1) new Ford F-550 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No.
CTR059323 with San Tan Ford Partners, LLC to extend the agreement to
April 30, 2024, in the amount of $121,497.60 for the purchase of one (1)
new 2023 Ford F-550 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab as outlined in the
specifications.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323
with San Tan Ford Partners, LLC to extend the contract through April 30,
2024. 

Attachments
Amendment No 1 to Contract Agreement CTR059323
Contract Agreement CTR59323 with San Tan Ford Partners
State Contract_San Tan_CTR059323_Contract_Documents











DocuSign Envelope ID: 7AE6D603-F496-4243-9920-A7948B4C771C

 March17th 22

 CTR059323

3/10/2022



Rev. 04/2020 

 

                         
 

Procurement 
 

STATE OF ARIZONA 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

1739 W. Jackson St., Ste. A 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

 
 
 
 
SOLICITATION NUMBER:  BPM004157 
 
DESCRIPTION: New Vehicle Purchases  
 
QUESTIONS:  Inquiries regarding the solicitation are to be submitted online through the State’s e-Procurement 
system, Arizona Procurement Portal (APP) (https://app.az.gov/) using the Discussion Forum tab. 
 

OFFERORS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  
Thomas Kornell 
Procurement Officer 
Phone:  602-712-8520 
Email: Tkornell@azdot.gov     
 

 
This solicitation is issued in accordance with A.R.S. §41-2534 and A.A.C. R2-7-C301 et seq., Competitive Sealed 
Proposals. 

 
 
 
 

“An Equal Opportunity Agency” 
 
The Arizona Department of Transportation, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252.42 U.S.C. §§ 
2000d-4) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into 
pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this 
invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
Persons that require a reasonable accommodation based on language or disability should contact ADOT’s Procurement Office by phone (602) 
712-2089. Requests should be made as early as possible to ensure the State has an opportunity to address the accommodation. 
 
Las personas que requieran asistencia (dentro de lo razonable) ya sea por el idioma o discapacidad deben ponerse en contacto con ADOT (602) 
712-2089. 

 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 2 of 81 

 

Procurement 

SECTION          PAGE 
 
 Notice 1 

 Table of Contents 2 

Scope of Work 3 

 Special Terms and Conditions 7 

 Uniform Terms and Conditions 19 

 Federal Provisions 29 

 

EXHIBITS  

 1 -  Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances Appendix A 73 
 2 -  Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances Appendix E 74 

 3-    Usage Report Exhibit 3 75 
4-    On-site Manufacturer inspection Compliance Certification Exhibit 4  76 
5-     Pre-Award Audit and Certification Exhibit 5   77 

 6-   Purchaser’s Pre-Award Requirements Certification Exhibit 6  78  
 7-    Post-Award Certification and Requirements Exhibit 7 79 
 8-    Purchaser’s Post-Award Requirements Certification Exhibit 8  81  
   

 

  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SCOPE OF WORK  

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 3 of 81 

 

Procurement 

1. Statement of Need 
 

1.1. Pursuant to the Arizona Procurement Code, A.R.S. §41-2501 et seq., the State of Arizona 
Department of Transportation (Department), has a requirement for New Vehicle Purchase.  

 
2. Introduction and Background 

 

2.1 The State of Arizona Department of Transportation (Department) is seeking to contract with a 
qualified vendor(s) who can provide new vehicles (all fuel types, hybrid, and full electric) including 
but not limited to: Sedans, Trucks up to 19,500 GVWR, Vans, Sport Utility Vehicles (SUVs), and 
Crossovers for the State of Arizona and participating Eligible Agencies. These vehicles will be used to 
support official organizational goals. These vehicles will be used on highways, city/county roads and 
shall be designed to operate under typical Arizona ambient temperatures.  

 

2.2 Background: The State and its Eligible Agencies currently spend an estimated twenty-one million 
dollars in the purchase of new vehicles annually.  

 
2.3 The following are the Three Categories covered in this Scope of Work: 

 Category One: Phase One (1) Vehicle Purchases 

 Category Two: Phase Two (2) Vehicle Purchases 

 Category Three: FTA Funded Vehicles 
 

3 General Requirements 

3.1  Vehicles shall be new and supplied with all equipment and accessories indicated as standard 
equipment in the manufacturer’s published literature (or website). Optional equipment necessary 
to meet the minimum requirements shall be included.  

3.2  All vehicles ordered through Phase 1 (off the line) shall be Manufacturer's current year models in 
production throughout the term of this contract and shall be serviced completely by the vendor 
before delivery and ready in all respects for use. For the initial contract period; vehicles shall be 
new model year 2022 or greater.  

3.3  Vehicles ordered through Phase 2 (on the lot) shall have less than 100 original odometer miles and 
be new (have never been previously owned) unless pre-approved in writing by the Eligible Agency.  

3.4  All vehicles shall meet requirements of applicable Arizona Motor Vehicle laws and all other 
applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (including the Federal Bridge Formula), 
whether or not such requirements are specified in detail.  

3.5  For Phase Two (2) vehicles, the Contractor shall supply a quote within five (5) calendar days after 
receiving a request from the Eligible Agency. The quotation shall include but not be limited to the 
following information: State contract number, vehicle availability and delivery lead-time, Vehicle 
Identification Number (VIN), dealer stock number, vehicle base bid price, itemized options, 
applicable tax, delivery cost, total price, and point of contact. For vehicles requiring up-
fit/modifications, all applicable cost may be included in quotation or as a separate quotation. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SCOPE OF WORK  

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 4 of 81 

 

Procurement 

3.6  Delivery location shall be identified on the issuing agency purchase order. Deliveries shall be made 
within 120 days of receipt of purchase orders, unless factory delays make this impossible. Dealer 
shall notify the ordering agency of such delays along with a revised delivery estimate from the 
factory immediately after it becomes known. If the manufacturer has a website available to check 
order status, this information will be shown in space provided on Offer Response Form. 

3.7  All deliveries shall be made Monday through Friday from 8:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M. The Contractor 
shall be required to give the using agency a minimum of 24-hour notification prior to delivery with 
the anticipated time of delivery and number of units to be delivered.  

3.8  All vehicles shall be delivered with four (4) entrance tools and a full tank(s) of fuel, less delivery 
fuel.  

3.9  The following documents shall be provided upon delivery of the vehicle(s):  

3.9.1 M.S.O. (Manufacturer Statement of Origin) that includes the odometer statement  
3.9.2 Warranty Document  
3.9.3 Manufacturers unaltered invoice  
3.9.4 Delayed warranty / in service start request form (if requested by ordering entity)  
3.9.5 Level 1 Inspection if applicable, completed before delivery  

3.10  For Phase One (1) the Contractor shall provide the Eligible Agency copies of the manufacturer's 
vehicle identification numbers (VIN#) to confirm vehicles have been ordered unless impossible 
due to manufacture delay within ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of a purchase order. If 
confirmation of manufacturer’s VIN #(s) is not received within this timeframe the Eligible Agency 
has the option to award to the second lowest bidder meeting specifications. This shall be 
considered a mandatory requirement and the timeframe must be met unless there is a 
manufacture delay. Failure to provide this document for each vehicle ordered may be cause for 
determination of default of contract. 

 
4 Specific Requirements 

4.1  The Contractors are encouraged to provide a full line of new vehicles (gasoline, hybrid, full 
electric) including but not limited to the following categories: Sedans, Trucks up to 19,500 GVWR, 
Vans (cargo, passenger, transit, etc.), Sport Utility Vehicles (SUVs), and Crossovers. Eligible 
Agencies throughout the State will have varying vehicle needs. Contractors are to provide a full 
line of manufactured new vehicles and all subsequent variants of each vehicle; including but not 
be limited to: models and manufacturer options, trim package, etc. to meet each need of an 
Eligible Agency.  

4.2  As new model year vehicles become available, vendor shall submit pricing at either the same rate 
as the previous model, or submit a request for an increase or decrease based only on the 
manufacturer’s increase or decrease. Documentation must be submitted to the Procurement 
Officer within 30 days of the effective date of change. New model year vehicles cannot be offered 
without approval from the Procurement Officer.  

4.3  The following fuel types are allowable under this contract are to include but are not limited too.  

4.3.1 Flexible Fuel Vehicles (FFV) also called Ethanol or E85  
4.3.2 Diesel  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SCOPE OF WORK  

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 5 of 81 

 

Procurement 

4.3.3 Gasoline  
4.3.4 Compressed Natural Gas (CNG): CNG systems must be O.E.M. or O.E.M. approved  
4.3.5 Hybrid-Electric Vehicles (HEV)  
4.3.6 Plug-in Hybrid Electric Vehicles (PHEV)  
4.3.7 Electric Vehicles (EV) also called Battery Electric Vehicles (BEV)  
4.3.8 Fuel Cell Vehicles (FCV)  

4.4 Vehicle Up-fit / Modifications  

4.4.1 The Eligible Agency may request the awarded Contractor(s) to up-fit/modify any vehicle for 
specific organizational needs. For example, the cab and chassis of ½ ton, ¾ ton, and/or up to 
19,500 GVW trucks may require a specialized body (i.e.: dump body, landscape body, etc.). 
Other vehicles may require interior and/or exterior modifications per the individual Eligible 
Agency.  

4.4.2 The Eligible Agency will supply all up-fit/modification requests to the Contractor. The 
Contractor shall identify any conditions that apply to the up-fit/modification on a quotation 
to the Eligible Agency for review before any work commences.  

4.5 Minimum Vehicle Requirements: All prices shall include the following equipment: 
 

4.5.1 All standard factory equipment  

4.5.2 Automatic transmission [maximum towing/payload capacity shall be provided upon request)  

4.5.3 Bluetooth capabilities  

4.5.4 AM/FM radio  

4.5.5 Cruise Control  

4.5.6 Power Door Locks/Power Windows  
4.5.7 Power Mirrors when available  

4.5.8 Four (4) entrance tools (in any combination allowed; keyless entry remotes, integrated or 
smart keys, standard cut keys) per vehicle.  
a. Type of keys to be provided shall be indicated on quote.  

4.5.9 Air conditioning  
a. Rear air conditioning on all vehicles, when available  

4.5.10 Cloth seats  

4.5.11 Rear view mirrors including on driver and passenger doors  
a.  FOR TRUCKS: Rear view mirrors on driver front and passenger front doors, largest 

available without upgrading vehicle options package.  

b. Back up Camera 

4.5.12 Spare tire  
a.  Full size standard steel wheel with matching Original Equipment Manufacturer spare tire 

identical to standard equipment with the trim level of the delivered vehicle.  

b. If full spare is not available due to space or manufacturer standards, an alternative shall 
be provided and noted on quote provided.  

4.5.13 Floor Mats  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SCOPE OF WORK  

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 6 of 81 

 

Procurement 

a.  O.E.M. floor mat sets installed in all seating rows where the vehicle comes with 
carpeted floors.  

b. Fixed driver floor mat  

4.5.14 Arizona legal tinted glass  

4.5.15 Minimum of 2 USB charging Ports 

4.6 Specific Requirements for Trucks (when available)  
4.6.1 Anti-slip differential for two-wheel drive pickup trucks, ¾ ton, up to 19,500 GVW.  

4.6.2 Skid plate package and anti-slip differential for four-wheel drive vehicles  

4.6.3 Front tow hooks 

 
5 Contractor’s Responsibilities 

Contractor shall be responsible for processing the registration, licensing, title and plating of all new 
vehicles ordered only if requested by the Eligible Agency. 

6 Department’s Responsibilities 

The Eligible Agencies will provide final acceptance and approval of any equipment and services delivered 

 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 7 of 81 

 

Procurement 

1. CONTRACT TERM 
 
The term of any resultant contract shall commence on the effective day of award and shall continue for 
a period of twelve months (12) thereafter, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise 
provided herein. 
 

2. CONTRACT EXTENSION 
 
By mutual written contract amendment, any resultant contract may be extended for supplemental 
periods of up to a maximum of forty-eight (48) months. 
 

3. ELIGIBLE AGENCIES 
 
This contract shall be for the use of all State of Arizona departments, agencies and boards. In addition, 
eligible universities, political subdivisions and nonprofit educational or public health institutions may 
participate at their discretion. In order to participate in any resultant contract, a university, political 
subdivision or nonprofit educational or public health institution must have entered into a cooperative 
purchasing agreement with the State Procurement Office as required by Arizona Revised Statutes §41-
2632. 
 

4. NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT 
 
This contract shall be for the sole convenience of the Department. The Department reserves the right to 
obtain like goods or services from another source when necessary. The Off-Contract Purchase 
Authorization and subsequent procurement shall be consistent with the Arizona Procurement Code. 
 

5. ORDERING PROCESS 
 
The Department shall issue a purchase order to the Contractor. Each purchase order must cite the 
contract number. This purchase order shall be the only document required for the Department to order 
and the Contractor to deliver the material and/or service. 
 
Any attempts to represent any material and/or service not specifically awarded as being under contract 
is a breach of the contract and a violation of the Arizona Procurement Code. Any such action is subject 
to the legal and contractual remedies available to the State inclusive of but not limited to contract 
cancellation, suspension and/or debarment of the Contractor. 
 

6. SHIPPING TERMS 
 
Delivery shall be F.O.B. Destination to the location designated herein. Contractor shall retain title and 
control of all goods until they are delivered. All risk of transportation and related charges shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the 
Contractor. The Department will notify the Contractor promptly of any damaged goods and shall assist 
the Contractor in arranging for inspection. 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 8 of 81 

 

Procurement 

7. DELIVERY 

Contract prices shown for each vehicle include delivery cost within a sixty (60) mile radius of Phoenix.  

For the purpose of this contract, the address used for mapping the radius within Phoenix will be as 
follows:  

Equipment services shop/ADOT 
2225 S 22nd Ave, Phoenix, AZ 85009 

 

Delivery costs for each county outside of the Phoenix area shall be indicated on Offer Response form. 

This will be an added cost to the contract price.  

Deliveries shall be completed In accordance with the requirements of the contract.  
Delivery of the product does not constitute acceptance. 
 

8. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE 
 
Each item delivered shall be subject to a complete inspection by the Department within 10 days after 
delivery. Inspection criteria shall include, but not be limited to, conformity to the specifications, 
workmanship, quality and materials. 
 
If the delivered product is not accepted and returned for corrective action, an additional fifteen (15) 
calendar days shall be allowed for inspection of the corrected or replacement product. 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for the transport of the material to and from the Department for the 
correction of items or workmanship not in compliance with the specifications. 
 
Product returned for corrective action may delay payment. Invoices will be processed for payment only 
after the product is accepted. 
 

9. INVOICING and PAYMENT 
 
Contractor shall submit all billing notices or invoices to the Eligible Agency or Co-Op Buyer at the address 
Indicated on the applicable Order document.  
 
Separate invoices are required for each shipment of product or delivery of service and shall include at a 
minimum: 
 

 Department Location’s Name and Address 

 Vendor Name, Remit to Address and Contact Information 

  Contract Number 

 Purchase Order Number 

 Invoice Number and Date 

 Date the items were shipped to the Department 

 Applicable payment terms 

 Contract Line Item Number 

 Line Item Description or Item or Service 

 Quantity Purchased 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 9 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 Line Item Unit of Measure 

 Price per Unit and Total per Unit 

 Catalog or Other Discount (if applicable) 

 Net Unit Price and Total per Unit (if applicable) 

 Applicable taxes (as a separate invoice line item) 

 Applicable Shipping/Freight Charges etc. (as a separate invoice line item) Materials only. 

 Total Invoice Amount Due 
 
Invoices not sent to the proper address, or not containing the necessary and required information may 
delay payment. A Contractor whose payments are delayed due to improper invoicing shall make no claim 
against the Department or the State for late or finance charges. 
 
The Department will make every effort to process payment for the purchase of product within thirty (30) 
calendar days after the Department has conducted the necessary reviews, inspections and acceptance as 
described herein.  
 
The department acceptance date will be the valid date for starting the thirty (30) calendar day payment 
period. 
 
Payment due dates, including discount periods, will be computed from the date of acceptance or date of 
correct invoice (whichever is later) to the date the Department’s warrant is mailed. 
 

10. ESTIMATED USAGE 
 
The Department anticipates considerable usage under this contract. The Department reserves the right 
to increase or decrease actual quantities ordered as circumstances may require. No guarantees are 
made concerning actual purchases under this contract. 
 

11. PRICING 

1 Phase 1 and 2 pricing for vehicles shall be a minimum Percentage off MSRP, less the manufacturer’s 
rebates and any additional discounts available for that model/power-train combination. 

  
a. Contractor shall provide a copy of manufacturer’s invoice to the ordering agency upon request. 

The manufacturer’s invoice shall be unaltered to include original pricing from the manufacturer.  
b.  Transportation costs to transfer a vehicle from another dealer for a Phase 2 or purchase from 

stock may be added to the cost of the vehicle. The justification for this cost is at the discretion of 
the Eligible Agency.  

c.  Any reference to Phase 1 pricing shall be in reference to vehicles ordered prior to the factory 
cut-off date.  

d.  Any reference to Phase 2 pricing shall be in reference to vehicles purchased from stock or “on 
the lot”.  

e.  Phase 2 pricing shall receive the same cost considerations as Phase 1 pricing, all discounts and 
rebates should be passed onto the Eligible Agency. 

f.  All vehicles are to be billed at prices in effect at the time of order, not the date of shipment.  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 10 of 81 

 

Procurement 

g. Pricing for vehicles shall include all discounts and deductions, less Federal and State taxes. 
Pricing shall be firm for life of contract unless amended by way of contract change order.  

 
 

2 CONTRACTOR’S BEST PRICING: Supplier warrants that, for the term of the Contract, the prices and 
discounts set out in the Pricing Documents, including any subsequent agreed amendment to it (the 
“Contract Pricing”), will be equal to or better than the lowest prices and largest discounts, both 
separately and in combination, at which Contractor sells equivalent items of equipment and 
materials. 

  
2.1 That price-plus-discount equivalence (“Contractor’s Best Pricing”) is intended to be irrespective 

of whether or not those other sales have special purchase terms, conditions, rebates or 
allowances.  

2.2 If Contractor’s Best Pricing for equivalent items of equipment and materials is better than the 
Contract Pricing, then Contractor agrees to adjust the Contract Pricing to match the Contractor’s 
Best Pricing for all sales related to the Contractor made after the date when the Contractor’s 
Best Pricing was first better than the Contract Pricing.  

2.3  For clarification of intent, that date is intended to be the date when the difference first 
occurred, which might have been before the difference was first identified. If it was before, then 
Supplier agrees to charge at less than the Contract Pricing until the extended difference that 
would have been realized (i.e., if the Contractor’s Best Pricing had been applied when it should 
have been) has been settled.  

 
3 PRICING-ALL-INCLUSIVE: Pricing is all-inclusive, including any ancillary fees and costs required to 

accomplish the Scope of Work and all aspects of Contractor’s offer as accepted by State. Details of 
service not explicitly stated in the Scope of Work or in Contractor’s Offer, but necessarily a part of, 
are deemed to be understood by Contractor and included herein. All administrative, reporting, or 
other requirements, all overhead costs and profit and any other costs toward the accomplishment 
of the requirements in the Contract are included in the pricing provided. 

 
4 LARGE VOLUME DISCOUNT PRICING: An Eligible Agency may seek to obtain additional volume 

discount pricing for large orders provided Contractor is willing to offer additional discounts for large 
volume orders. No amendment to this Contract is necessary for Contractor to offer discount pricing 
to an Eligible Agency for large volume purchases. 

 
5  A price reduction adjustment may be offered at any time during the term of a contract and shall 

become effective upon notice through a written contract amendment. 
 
 

12. PRICE INCREASE  
 
The Department will review fully documented requests for price increases for any contract which will or 
has been in effect for twelve (12) months. The request shall be submitted no less than 60 days prior to 
the contract renewal date. The Contractor shall provide fully documented information which supports 
the price increase request. Fully documented means that the request shall present detailed information 
and calculations that make it clear how the claimed increase has an impact on the contract unit prices. 
All assumptions regarding cost factors that have an impact on the requested increase shall also be 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 11 of 81 

 

Procurement 

clearly identified and justified. The requested price increase must be based upon a cost increase that 
was clearly unpredictable at the time of the offer and can be shown to directly affect the price of the 
item concerned. Any price increase adjustment request prior to the time of contract extension will be a 
factor in the extension review process. The Department will determine whether the requested price 
increase or an alternate option, is in the best interest of the State. All pricing should reflect the 
minimum percentage of MSRP. 
 

13. SAFETY STANDARDS 
 

Items supplied under this contract shall comply with all current applicable safety standards and 
regulations including the Occupational Safety and Health Standards of the State of Arizona Industrial 
Commission, the National Electric Code and the National Fire Protection Association Standards. 
 

14. WARRANTY 
 
The Contractor warrants: 
 
1. That all services performed hereunder shall conform to the requirements of this contract and shall be 

performed by qualified personnel in accordance with the highest professional standards. 
 

2  At a minimum all equipment supplied under these specifications shall be fully warranted by the 
vehicle manufacturer against mechanical and electrical defects for a minimum period of thirty-six 
(36) months from the date vehicle is placed in service. 

3  This warranty shall cover such items as actual repair labor, parts, and shipping charges to and from 
the nearest service facility or other designated repair depot.  

4 Any defects of design, workmanship or material, shall be fully corrected by the vendor without cost 
to the state agency or political subdivision.  

5  The written warranty shall be included with the delivered vehicles to the Eligible Agency. The 
warranty terms shall be stated on Attachment 3-A, where indicated. Failure to provide this general 
information may result in the offer being rejected.  

6 Hybrid / Electric Vehicle Warranty: Hybrid-related components including catalytic convertor, 
electronic control unit, onboard emissions diagnostic device, high voltage battery, transmission, 
DC/DC convertor for hybrid vehicles shall be covered for 8 years/100,000 miles, battery for electric 
vehicles shall be 8/years/100,000 miles and bidder shall indicate limitation of warranty due to 
voltage and amps. The warranty terms shall be stated where indicated on Attachment 3-A. Failure to 
provide this general information may result in the bid being rejected.  

15. CURRENT PRODUCTS 
 
All products supplied under this contract shall be in current and ongoing production; shall have been 
formally announced for general marketing purposes; shall be a model or type currently functioning in a user 
(paying customer) environment and capable of meeting or exceeding all specifications and requirements set 
forth in the contract. 
 

16. PRODUCT DISCONTINUANCE 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 12 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
In the event that a product or model is discontinued by the manufacturer, the Department at its sole 
discretion may allow the Contractor to provide a substitute for the discontinued item. The Contractor 
shall request authorization to substitute a new product or model and provide the following: 
 
1. A formal announcement from the manufacturer that the product or model has been 

discontinued. 
 
2. Documentation from the manufacturer that names the replacement product or model. 
 
3. Documentation that provides clear and convincing evidence that the replacement meets or 

exceeds all specifications required by the original solicitation. 
 
4. Documentation that provides clear and convincing evidence that the replacement will be 

compatible with all the functions or uses of the discontinued product or model. 
 
5. Documentation confirming that the price for the replacement is the same as or less than the 

discontinued product or model. 
 

17. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The Contractor shall contact the assigned Procurement Officer for guidance or direction in matters of 
contract interpretation or questions regarding the terms, conditions or scope of the contract.  
 

18. NOTICES 
 
All notices, requests, demands, consents, approvals, and other communications which may or are 
required to be served or given hereunder (for the purposes of this provisions collectively called 
“Notices”), shall be in writing and shall be sent by certified United States mail, return receipt requested, 
or by any other method that provides evidence of receipt, addressed to the party or parties to receive 
such notice as follows: 
 
A. If intended for the State, to: 
 

Arizona Department of Transportation, Procurement Group 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007-3276 

 
B. If intended for the Contractor, to the address as identified in the Contractor’s electronic vendor 

profile. Or to such other address as either party may from time to time furnish in writing to the other 
by notice hereunder. Any notice so mailed shall be deemed to have been given as of the date such 
notice is received as shown on the return receipt. Furthermore, such notice may be given by 
delivering personally such notice, if intended for the State, to the Arizona Department of 
Transportation, Procurement Officer and, if intended for the Contractor, to the person named on the 
Offer & Contract Award of this contract, or to such other person as either party may from time to 
time furnish in writing to the other by notice hereunder. Any notice so delivered shall be deemed to 
have been given as of the date such notice is personally delivered to the other party. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 13 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
19. CANCELLATION FOR POSSESSION OF WEAPONS ON ADOT PROPERTY 

 
This contract may be cancelled if Contractor or any subcontractors or others in the employ or under the 
supervision of the Contractor or subcontractors is found to be in possession of weapons. 
 
Possession of weapons (firearms, explosive device, knife or blade of more than three inches, or any 
other instrument designed for lethal or disabling use) is prohibited on ADOT property. 
 
Further, if the Contractor or any subcontractors or others in the employ or under the supervision of the 
Contractors or subcontractors are asked by an ADOT official to leave the ADOT property, they are 
advised that failure to comply with such a request shall result in cancellation of the contract and anyone 
who refuses, whether armed or not, is subject to prosecution under A.R.S. § 13-1502, "Criminal trespass 
in the third degree; classification."  
 

20. INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE 

  
 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State 

of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim 
processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal 
injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be 
caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its 
owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or subcontractors. This indemnity includes any claim or 
amount arising out of, or recovered under, the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure 
of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state, or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, or 
court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except 
for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified 
by Contractor from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that Contractor will be responsible for 
primary loss investigation, defense, and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable. In 
consideration of the award of this contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation 
against the State of Arizona, its officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from the work 
performed by the Contractor for the State of Arizona. This indemnity shall not apply if the contractor or 
sub-contractor(s) is/are an agency, board, commission or university of the State of Arizona. 
 

21. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

21.1 Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain, until all of their obligations have 
been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract, insurance against claims 
for injury to persons or damage to property arising from, or in connection with, the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees 
or subcontractors. 
 

21.2 The Insurance Requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way 
limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract. The State of Arizona in no way 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 14 of 81 

 

Procurement 

warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the Contractor 
from liabilities that arise out of the performance of the work under this Contract by the 
Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, and the Contractor is 
free to purchase additional insurance. 
 

21.3 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of 
liability not less than those stated below. 
 
21.3.1 Commercial General Liability (CGL) – Occurrence Form 

  The Contractor shall furnish Certificate(s) of Insurance inclusive of the following 
requirements to the Department.  Certificate(s) shall be received within 10 calendar 
days of notification of contract award by the Procurement Officer. 

 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, and broad form 

 
contractual liability coverage. 
 
• General Aggregate $2,000,000 
• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
• Damage to Rented Premises $50,000 
• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 
 
a. The policy shall be endorsed, as required by this written agreement, 
to include the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, 
commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees 
as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the 
activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement, as required 
by this written agreement, in favor of the State of Arizona, and its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, 
officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 
 

21.3.2 Business Automobile Liability 
 

Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or non-owned 
automobiles used in the performance of this Contract. 
 
• Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 
 
a. Policy shall be endorsed, as required by this written agreement, to 
include the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, 
commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees 
as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the 
activities performed by, or on behalf of, the Contractor involving 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 15 of 81 

 

Procurement 

automobiles owned, hired and/or non-owned by the Contractor. 
 
b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement as required 
by this written agreement in favor of the State of Arizona, and its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, 
officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 
 

21.3.3 Workers’ Compensation and Employers' Liability 
• Workers' Compensation                                       Statutory 
• Employers' Liability 
o Each Accident                                                  $1,000,000 
o Disease – Each Employee                              $1,000,000 
o Disease – Policy Limit                                     $1,000,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement, as required by this written 
agreement, in favor of the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, 
commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses arising 
from work performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 
 

b. This requirement shall not apply to each Contractor or subcontractor that is exempt 
under A.R.S. § 23-901, and when such Contractor or subcontractor executes the 
appropriate waiver form (Sole Proprietor or Independent Contractor).  
 

21.4 Additional Insurance Requirements The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, as 
required by this written agreement, the following provisions:  

 
21.4.1 The Contractor's policies, as applicable, shall stipulate that the insurance afforded the 

Contractor shall be primary and that any insurance carried by the Department, its 
agents, officials, employees or the State of Arizona shall be excess and not contributory 
insurance, as provided by A.R.S. § 41-621 (E).  

21.4.2 Insurance provided by the Contractor shall not limit the Contractor’s liability assumed 
under the indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
21.5   Notice of Cancellation Applicable to all insurance policies required within the Insurance 

Requirements of this Contract, Contractor’s insurance shall not be permitted to expire, be 
suspended, be canceled, or be materially changed for any reason without thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the State of Arizona. Within two (2) business days of receipt, Contractor 
must provide notice to the State of Arizona if they receive notice of a policy that has been or 
will be suspended, canceled, materially changed for any reason, has expired, or will be 
expiring. Such notice shall be sent directly to the Department and shall be mailed, emailed, 
hand delivered or sent by facsimile transmission to (State Representative’s Name, Address & 
Fax Number). 

 
21.6   Acceptability of Insurers Contractor’s insurance shall be placed with companies licensed in the 

State of Arizona or hold approved non-admitted status on the Arizona Department of 
Insurance List of Qualified Unauthorized Insurers. Insurers shall have an “A.M. Best” rating of 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 16 of 81 

 

Procurement 

not less than A- VII. The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the above-required minimum 
insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
21.7   Verification of Coverage Contractor shall furnish the State of Arizona with certificates of 

insurance (valid ACORD form or equivalent approved by the State of Arizona) evidencing that 
Contractor has the insurance as required by this Contract. An authorized representative of the 
insurer shall sign the certificates. 

 
21.7.1 All such certificates of insurance and policy endorsements must be received by the 

State before work commences. The State’s receipt of any certificates of insurance or 
policy endorsements that do not comply with this written agreement shall not waive 
or otherwise affect the requirements of this agreement.  

 
21.7.2 Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at, or prior to, 

commencement of work under this Contract. Failure to maintain the insurance 
policies as required by this Contract, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material 
breach of contract. 

 
21.7.3 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to the Department. The 

State of Arizona project/contract number and project description shall be noted on 
the certificate of insurance. The State of Arizona reserves the right to require 
complete copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract at any time. 

 
21.8 Subcontractors Contractor’s certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its 

policies or Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring and/or verifying that all subcontractors 
have valid and collectable insurance as evidenced by the certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to the 
minimum Insurance Requirements identified above. The Department reserves the right to 
require, at any time throughout the life of the Contract, proof from the Contractor that its 
subcontractors have the required coverage. 

 
21.9 Approval and Modifications the Contracting Agency, in consultation with State Risk, reserves 

the right to review or make modifications to the insurance limits, required coverages, or 
endorsements throughout the life of this contract, as deemed necessary. Such action will not 
require a formal Contract amendment but may be made by administrative action. 

 
21.10 Exceptions In the event the Contractor or subcontractor(s) is/are a public entity, then the 

Insurance Requirements shall not apply. Such public entity shall provide a certificate of self-
insurance. If the Contractor or subcontractor(s) is/are a State of Arizona agency, board, 
commission, or university, none of the above shall apply. 

 
22. USAGE REPORT 

 
The Contractor shall furnish Two (2) Usage reports, the first to the Department on a quarterly basis 
showing purchasing activity under this contract.  This usage report shall be provided in a form 
substantially equivalent to Exhibit 03.  Usage reports shall be submitted to the Procurement Officer no 
later than 30 days after the end of each quarter. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 17 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
Usage report quarters shall be defined as follows: 

 January through March – Report due April 30 

 April through June – Report due July 30 

 July through September – Report due October 30 

 October through December – Report due January 30 
 
Contractor shall submit the second to the State documenting all Contract sales to both Eligible Agencies 
and Co-Op Buyers, itemized separately. A Quarterly Usage Report shall still be submitted; even if there 
have been no sales to either Eligible Agencies and/or Co-Op Buyers. Contractor shall further itemize 
divisions, groups or areas within a given Eligible Agency if they place Orders independently of each 
other. Failure to submit the report is a material breach of contract, and will entitle State to its remedies 
under Article 8 and its right to terminate for default under Article 9. Contractor shall submit the report 
using the forms and following the instructions on the State Procurement Office website:  
 

https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee 
 

23. CONTRACT ORDER OF PRECEDENCE  
 
In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the Contract, as accepted by the Department and as 
they may be amended, the following shall prevail in the order set forth below:  

 Federal Provisions 

 Special Terms and Conditions 

 Uniform Terms and Conditions 

 Statement or Scope of Work 

 Specifications 

 Attachments 

 Exhibits 

 Special Instructions to Offerors 

 Uniform Instructions to Offerors 

 Other documents referenced or included in the Solicitation 

24. LICENSES, PERMITS, CERTIFICATIONS  
 
Contractor, at their expense, shall maintain in current status without any violations, complaints, or 
suspensions during the term of this contract all Federal, State and Local licenses, permits and 
certifications required for the operation of a business conducted by the Contractor. 
 

25. CO-OP USAGE 
 

Contractor shall verify if an ordering entity is a bona fide Co-Op Buyer before selling Materials to or 
providing Services for them under the Contract. The current list of Co-Op Buyers is available on the State 
Procurement Office website: 
 

https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee 

https://app.az.gov/
https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee
https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee


         
 

      

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 18 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
Contractor shall sell to Co-Op Buyers at the same price, and with the same lead times and other terms 
and conditions under which it sells to Eligible Agencies. With the sole exception of any legitimate 
additional costs for extraordinary shipping, or delivery requirements, if the Co-Op Buyer is having 
Materials delivered or installed or Services performed at locations not contemplated in the contracted 
pricing (e.g. delivery to a location outside Arizona). 
 
Contractor shall acknowledge each Order from Co-Op Buyers in conformance with each buyer’s 
instructions given at the time of ordering or in any supplemental participating agreement Contractor 
might have with them. Orders from Co-Op Buyers create no obligation on State’s part, since they are 
entirely between the Co-Op Buyer and Contractor. That notwithstanding, Contractor’s obligation under 
the Contract is to service Co-Op Buyers commercially as though they were with an Eligible Agency, and 
Contractor’s refusal to do so would be a material breach of the Contract. 
 
 

26. POST AWARD MEETING 
 
At the discretion of the Department, the Contractor, at their expense, shall attend and participate in 
post award meetings as scheduled by the Procurement Officer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 19 of 81 

 

Procurement 

1. Definition of Terms 

As used in this Solicitation and any resulting Contract, the terms listed below are defined as 
follows: 

 1.1. “Attachment” means any item the Solicitation requires the Offeror to submit as part of 
the Offer. 

1.2. “Contract” means the combination of the Solicitation, including the Uniform and Special 
Instructions to Offerors, the Uniform and Special Terms and Conditions, and the 
Specifications and Statement or Scope of Work; the Offer and any Best and Final Offers; 
and any Solicitation Amendments or Contract Amendments. 

1.3. "Contract Amendment" means a written document signed by the Procurement Officer 
that is issued for the purpose of making changes in the Contract. 

1.4. “Contractor” means any person who has a Contract with the State. 

1.5. “Days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 

1.6. “Exhibit” means any item labeled as an Exhibit in the Solicitation or placed in the 
Exhibits section of the Solicitation.   

1.7. “Gratuity” means a payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services, or 
anything of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of 
substantially equal or greater value is received. 

1.8. “Materials” means all property, including equipment, supplies, printing, insurance and 
leases of property but does not include land, a permanent interest in land or real 
property or leasing space. 

1.9. “Procurement Officer” means the person, or his or her designee, duly authorized by the 
State to enter into and administer Contracts and make written determinations with 
respect to the Contract. 

1.10. “Services” means the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a contractor or subcontractor 
which does not involve the delivery of a specific end product other than required 
reports and performance, but does not include employment agreements or collective 
bargaining agreements. 

1.11. “Subcontract” means any Contract, express or implied, between the Contractor and 
another party or between a subcontractor and another party delegating or assigning, in 
whole or in part, the making or furnishing of any material or any service required for the 
performance of the Contract. 

1.12. “State” means the State of Arizona and Department or Agency of the State that 
executes the Contract. 

1.13. “State Fiscal Year” means the period beginning with July 1 and ending June 30.  

2. Contract Interpretation 

2.1. Arizona Law.  The Arizona law applies to this Contract including, where applicable, the 
Uniform Commercial Code as adopted by the State of Arizona and the Arizona 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 20 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Procurement Code, Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) Title 41, Chapter 23, and its 
implementing rules, Arizona Administrative Code (A.A.C.) Title 2, Chapter 7. 

2.2. Implied Contract Terms.  Each provision of law and any terms required by law to be in 
this Contract are a part of this Contract as if fully stated in it. 

2.3. Contract Order of Precedence.  In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the 
Contract, as accepted by the State and as they may be amended, the following shall 
prevail in the order set forth below: 

 Federal Provisions 

 Special Terms and Conditions 

 Uniform Terms and Conditions 

 Statement or Scope of Work 

 Specifications 

 Attachments 

 Exhibits 

 Special Instructions to Offerors 

 Uniform Instructions to Offerors 

 Other documents referenced or included in the Solicitation 

2.4. Relationship of Parties.  The Contractor under this Contract is an independent 
Contractor. Neither party to this Contract shall be deemed to be the employee or agent 
of the other party to the Contract. 

2.5. Severability.  The provisions of this Contract are severable.  Any term or condition 
deemed illegal or invalid shall not affect any other term or condition of the Contract. 

2.6. No Parole Evidence.  This Contract is intended by the parties as a final and complete 
expression of their agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no 
usage of the trade shall supplement or explain any terms used in this document and no 
other understanding either oral or in writing shall be binding. 

2.7. No Waiver.  Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition 
of the Contract shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party 
accepting or acquiescing in the nonconforming performance knows of the nature of the 
performance and fails to object to it. 

3. Contract Administration and Operation 

3.1. Records.  Under A.R.S. § 35-214 and § 35-215, the Contractor shall retain and shall 
contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data and other “records” relating 
to the acquisition and performance of the Contract for a period of five years after the 
completion of the Contract.  All records shall be subject to inspection and audit by the 
State at reasonable times.  Upon request, the Contractor shall produce a legible copy of 
any or all such records. 

3.2. Non-Discrimination.  The Contractor shall comply with State Executive Order No. 2009-
09 and all other applicable Federal and State laws, rules and regulations, including the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 21 of 81 

 

Procurement 

3.3. Audit.  Pursuant to ARS § 35-214, at any time during the term of this Contract and five 
(5) years thereafter, the Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s books and records shall be 
subject to audit by the State and, where applicable, the Federal Government, to the 
extent that the books and records relate to the performance of the Contract or 
Subcontract. 

3.4. Facilities Inspection and Materials Testing.  The Contractor agrees to permit access to its 
facilities, subcontractor facilities and the Contractor’s processes or services, at 
reasonable times for inspection of the facilities or materials covered under this Contract.  
The State shall also have the right to test, at its own cost, the materials to be supplied 
under this Contract.  Neither inspection of the Contractor’s facilities nor materials 
testing shall constitute final acceptance of the materials or services.  If the State 
determines non-compliance of the materials, the Contractor shall be responsible for the 
payment of all costs incurred by the State for testing and inspection. 

3.5. Notices.  Notices to the Contractor required by this Contract shall be made by the State 
to the person indicated on the Offer and Acceptance form submitted by the Contractor 
unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  Notices to the State required by the Contract 
shall be made by the Contractor to the Solicitation Contact Person indicated on the 
Solicitation cover sheet, unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  An authorized 
Procurement Officer and an authorized Contractor representative may change their 
respective person to whom notice shall be given by written notice to the other and an 
amendment to the Contract shall not be necessary. 

3.6. Advertising, Publishing and Promotion of Contract.  The Contractor shall not use, 
advertise or promote information for commercial benefit concerning this Contract 
without the prior written approval of the Procurement Officer. 

3.7. Property of the State.  Any materials, including reports, computer programs and other 
deliverables, created under this Contract are the sole property of the State.  The 
Contractor is not entitled to a patent or copyright on those materials and may not 
transfer the patent or copyright to anyone else.  The Contractor shall not use or release 
these materials without the prior written consent of the State. 

3.8. Ownership of Intellectual Property.  Any and all intellectual property, including but not 
limited to copyright, invention, trademark, trade name, service mark, and/or trade 
secrets created or conceived pursuant to or as a result of this contract and any related 
subcontract (“Intellectual Property”), shall be work made for hire and the State shall be 
considered the creator of such Intellectual Property.  The agency, department, division, 
board or commission of the State of Arizona requesting the issuance of this contract 
shall own (for and on behalf of the State) the entire right, title and interest to the 
Intellectual Property throughout the world.  Contractor shall notify the State, within 
thirty (30) days, of the creation of any Intellectual Property by it or its subcontractor(s). 
Contractor, on behalf of itself and any subcontractor(s), agrees to execute any and all 
document(s) necessary to assure ownership of the Intellectual Property vests in the 
State and shall take no affirmative actions that might have the effect of vesting all or 
part of the Intellectual Property in any entity other than the State. The Intellectual 
Property shall not be disclosed by contractor or its subcontractor(s) to any entity not the 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 22 of 81 

 

Procurement 

State without the express written authorization of the agency, department, division, 
board or commission of the State of Arizona requesting the issuance of this contract.  

3.9. Federal Immigration and Nationality Act.  The contractor shall comply with all federal, 
state and local immigration laws and regulations relating to the immigration status of 
their employees during the term of the contract. Further, the contractor shall flow down 
this requirement to all subcontractors utilized during the term of the contract. The State 
shall retain the right to perform random audits of contractor and subcontractor records 
or to inspect papers of any employee thereof to ensure compliance. Should the State 
determine that the contractor and/or any subcontractors be found noncompliant, the 
State may pursue all remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to; suspension 
of work, termination of the contract for default and suspension and/or debarment of 
the contractor. 

 
3.10 E-Verify Requirements.  In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor warrants 

compliance with all Federal immigration laws and regulations relating to employees and 
warrants its compliance with Section A.R.S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
3.11 Offshore Performance of Work Prohibited. 

Any services that are described in the specifications or scope of work that directly serve 
the State of Arizona or its clients and involve access to secure or sensitive data or 
personal client data shall be performed within the defined territories of the United 
States. Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications, this paragraph does not 
apply to indirect or 'overhead' services, redundant back-up services or services that are 
incidental to the performance of the contract.  This provision applies to work performed 
by subcontractors at all tiers. 

4. Costs and Payments 

4.1. Payments.  Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Titles 35 and 41, Net 
30 days.  Upon receipt and acceptance of goods or services, the Contractor shall submit 
a complete and accurate invoice for payment from the State within thirty (30) days. 

4.2. Delivery.  Unless stated otherwise in the Contract, all prices shall be F.O.B. Destination 
and shall include all freight delivery and unloading at the destination. 

4.3. Applicable Taxes. 

4.3.1. Payment of Taxes.  The Contractor shall be responsible for paying all applicable 
taxes. 

4.3.2. State and Local Transaction Privilege Taxes.  The State of Arizona is subject to all 
applicable state and local transaction privilege taxes.  Transaction privilege taxes 
apply to the sale and are the responsibility of the seller to remit.  Failure to 
collect such taxes from the buyer does not relieve the seller from its obligation 
to remit taxes. 

4.3.3. Tax Indemnification.  Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay all Federal, 
state and local taxes applicable to its operation and any persons employed by 
the Contractor.  Contractor shall, and require all subcontractors to hold the 
State harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 23 of 81 

 

Procurement 

applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or state and local laws 
and regulations and any other costs including transaction privilege taxes, 
unemployment compensation insurance, Social Security and Worker’s 
Compensation. 

4.3.4. IRS W9 Form.  In order to receive payment the Contractor shall have a current 
I.R.S. W9 Form on file with the State of Arizona, unless not required by law. 

4.4. Availability of Funds for the Next State fiscal year.  Funds may not presently be available 
for performance under this Contract beyond the current state fiscal year.  No legal 
liability on the part of the State for any payment may arise under this Contract beyond 
the current state fiscal year until funds are made available for performance of this 
Contract.   

4.5. Availability of Funds for the current State fiscal year.  Should the State Legislature enter 
back into session and reduce the appropriations or for any reason and these goods or 
services are not funded, the State may take any of the following actions:   

4.5.1. Accept a decrease in price offered by the contractor;   

4.5.2. Cancel the Contract; or  

4.5.3. Cancel the contract and re-solicit the requirements.  

5. Contract Changes 

5.1. Amendments.  This Contract is issued under the authority of the Procurement Officer 
who signed this Contract.  The Contract may be modified only through a Contract 
Amendment within the scope of the Contract.  Changes to the Contract, including the 
addition of work or materials, the revision of payment terms, or the substitution of work 
or materials, directed by a person who is not specifically authorized by the procurement 
officer in writing or made unilaterally by the Contractor are violations of the Contract and 
of applicable law.  Such changes, including unauthorized written Contract Amendments 
shall be void and without effect, and the Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim 
under this Contract based on those changes. 

5.2. Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract under this Contract for 
the performance of this contract without the advance written approval of the 
Procurement Officer.  The Contractor shall clearly list any proposed subcontractors and 
the subcontractor’s proposed responsibilities.  The Subcontract shall incorporate by 
reference the terms and conditions of this Contract.  

5.3. Assignment and Delegation.  The Contractor shall not assign any right nor delegate any 
duty under this Contract without the prior written approval of the Procurement Officer.  
The State shall not unreasonably withhold approval. 

6. Risk and Liability 

6.1.  Risk of Loss:  The Contractor shall bear all loss of conforming material covered under this 
Contract until received by authorized personnel at the location designated in the 
purchase order or Contract.  Mere receipt does not constitute final acceptance.  The risk 
of loss for nonconforming materials shall remain with the Contractor regardless of 
receipt. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 24 of 81 

 

Procurement 

6.2. Indemnification 

6.2.1. Contractor/Vendor Indemnification (Not Public Agency)  The parties to this 
contract agree that the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards and 
commissions shall be indemnified and held harmless by the contractor for the 
vicarious liability of the State as a result of entering into this contract.  However, 
the parties further agree that the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, 
boards and commissions shall be responsible for its own negligence.  Each party 
to this contract is responsible for its own negligence.  

6.2.2. Public Agency Language Only  Each party (as 'indemnitor') agrees to indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the other party (as 'indemnitee') from and against 
any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable 
attorney's fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as 'claims') arising out of 
bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage but only to the 
extent that such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the 
indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other 
fault of the indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees, or volunteers." 

6.3. Indemnification - Patent and Copyright. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the State against any liability, including costs and expenses, for infringement of 
any patent, trademark or copyright arising out of Contract performance or use by the 
State of materials furnished or work performed under this Contract.  The State shall 
reasonably notify the Contractor of any claim for which it may be liable under this 
paragraph.  If the contractor is insured pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-621 and § 35-154, this 
section shall not apply. 

6.4. Force Majeure. 

6.4.1 Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor 
deemed in default under this Contract if and to the extent that such party’s 
performance of this Contract is prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term 
“force majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party 
affected and occurs without its fault or negligence.  Without limiting the 
foregoing, force majeure includes acts of God; acts of the public enemy; war; 
riots; strikes; mobilization; labor disputes; civil disorders; fire; flood; lockouts; 
injunctions-intervention-acts; or failures or refusals to act by government 
authority; and other similar occurrences beyond the control of the party 
declaring force majeure which such party is unable to prevent by exercising 
reasonable diligence. 

6.4.2. Force Majeure shall not include the following occurrences:   

6.4.2.1. Late delivery of equipment or materials caused by congestion at a 
manufacturer’s plant or elsewhere, or an oversold condition of the 
market;   

6.4.2.2. Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a 
force majeure occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term 
and condition; or 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 25 of 81 

 

Procurement 

6.4.2.3. Inability of either the Contractor or any subcontractor to acquire or 
maintain any required insurance, bonds, licenses or permits. 

6.4.3. If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force 
majeure, the delayed party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay, 
as soon as is practicable and no later than the following working day, of the 
commencement thereof and shall specify the causes of such delay in such 
notice.  Such notice shall be delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and 
shall make a specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions.  
The delayed party shall cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and 
shall notify the other party in writing when it has done so.  The time of 
completion shall be extended by Contract Amendment for a period of time 
equal to the time that results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party 
from performing in accordance with this Contract. 

6.4.4. Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute 
default hereunder or give rise to any claim for damages or loss of anticipated 
profits if, and to the extent that such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

6.5. Third Party Antitrust Violations.  The Contractor assigns to the State any claim for 
overcharges resulting from antitrust violations to the extent that those violations 
concern materials or services supplied by third parties to the Contractor, toward 
fulfillment of this Contract. 

7. Warranties 

7.1. Liens.  The Contractor warrants that the materials supplied under this Contract are free 
of liens and shall remain free of liens. 

7.2. Quality.  Unless otherwise modified elsewhere in these terms and conditions, the 
Contractor warrants that, for one year after acceptance by the State of the materials, 
they shall be:   

7.2.1. Of a quality to pass without objection in the trade under the Contract 
description;   

7.2.2. Fit for the intended purposes for which the materials are used;   

7.2.3. Within the variations permitted by the Contract and are of even kind, quantity, 
and quality within each unit and among all units;   

7.2.4. Adequately contained, packaged and marked as the Contract may require; and   

7.2.5. Conform to the written promises or affirmations of fact made by the Contractor. 

7.3. Fitness.  The Contractor warrants that any material supplied to the State shall fully 
conform to all requirements of the Contract and all representations of the Contractor, 
and shall be fit for all purposes and uses required by the Contract. 

7.4. Inspection/Testing.  The warranties set forth in subparagraphs 7.1 through 7.3 of this 
paragraph are not affected by inspection or testing of or payment for the materials by 
the State. 

7.5. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The materials and services supplied under this 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 26 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Contract shall comply with all applicable Federal, state and local laws, and the 
Contractor shall maintain all applicable license and permit requirements. 

7.6. Survival of Rights and Obligations after Contract Expiration or Termination. 

7.6.1. Contractor's Representations and Warranties.  All representations and 
warranties made by the Contractor under this Contract shall survive the 
expiration or termination hereof.  In addition, the parties hereto acknowledge 
that pursuant to A.R.S.  § 12-510, except as provided in A.R.S.  § 12-529, the 
State is not subject to or barred by any limitations of actions prescribed in 
A.R.S., Title 12, Chapter 5. 

7.6.2. Purchase Orders.  The Contractor shall, in accordance with all terms and 
conditions of the Contract, fully perform and shall be obligated to comply with 
all purchase orders received by the Contractor prior to the expiration or 
termination hereof, unless otherwise directed in writing by the Procurement 
Officer, including, without limitation, all purchase orders received prior to but 
not fully performed and satisfied at the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 

8. State's Contractual Remedies 

8.1. Right to Assurance.  If the State in good faith has reason to believe that the Contractor 
does not intend to, or is unable to perform or continue performing under this Contract, 
the Procurement Officer may demand in writing that the Contractor give a written 
assurance of intent to perform.  Failure by the Contractor to provide written assurance 
within the number of Days specified in the demand may, at the State’s option, be the 
basis for terminating the Contract under the Uniform Terms and Conditions or other 
rights and remedies available by law or provided by the contract. 

8.2. Stop Work Order.   

8.2.1. The State may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the 
Contractor to stop all or any part, of the work called for by this Contract for 
period(s) of days indicated by the State after the order is delivered to the 
Contractor.  The order shall be specifically identified as a stop work order issued 
under this clause.  Upon receipt of the order, the Contractor shall immediately 
comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence 
of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the period of work 
stoppage. 

8.2.2. If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled or the period of the 
order or any extension expires, the Contractor shall resume work.  The 
Procurement Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the delivery 
schedule or Contract price, or both, and the Contract shall be amended in 
writing accordingly. 

8.3. Non-exclusive Remedies.  The rights and the remedies of the State under this Contract 
are not exclusive. 

8.4. Nonconforming Tender.  Materials or services supplied under this Contract shall fully 
comply with the Contract.  The delivery of materials or services or a portion of the 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 27 of 81 

 

Procurement 

materials or services that do not fully comply constitutes a breach of contract.  On 
delivery of nonconforming materials or services, the State may terminate the Contract 
for default under applicable termination clauses in the Contract, exercise any of its 
rights and remedies under the Uniform Commercial Code, or pursue any other right or 
remedy available to it. 

8.5. Right of Offset.  The State shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the 
Contractor, any expenses or costs incurred by the State, or damages assessed by the 
State concerning the Contractor’s non-conforming performance or failure to perform 
the Contract, including expenses, costs and damages described in the Uniform Terms 
and Conditions. 

9. Contract Termination 

9.1. Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the State may cancel 
this Contract within three (3) years after Contract execution without penalty or further 
obligation if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting 
or creating the Contract on behalf of the State is or becomes at any time while the 
Contract or an extension of the Contract is in effect an employee of or a consultant to 
any other party to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract.  The 
cancellation shall be effective when the Contractor receives written notice of the 
cancellation unless the notice specifies a later time.  If the Contractor is a political 
subdivision of the State, it may also cancel this Contract as provided in A.R.S. § 38-511. 

9.2. Gratuities.  The State may, by written notice, terminate this Contract, in whole or in 
part, if the State determines that employment or a Gratuity was offered or made by the 
Contractor or a representative of the Contractor to any officer or employee of the State 
for the purpose of influencing the outcome of the procurement or securing the 
Contract, an amendment to the Contract, or favorable treatment concerning the 
Contract, including the making of any determination or decision about contract 
performance.  The State, in addition to any other rights or remedies, shall be entitled to 
recover exemplary damages in the amount of three times the value of the Gratuity 
offered by the Contractor. 

9.3. Suspension or Debarment.  The State may, by written notice to the Contractor, 
immediately terminate this Contract if the State determines that the Contractor has 
been debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully prohibited from participating in any 
public procurement activity, including but not limited to, being disapproved as a 
subcontractor of any public procurement unit or other governmental body.  Submittal of 
an offer or execution of a contract shall attest that the contractor is not currently 
suspended or debarred.  If the contractor becomes suspended or debarred, the 
contractor shall immediately notify the State. 

9.4. Termination for Convenience.  The State reserves the right to terminate the Contract, in 
whole or in part at any time when in the best interest of the State, without penalty or 
recourse.  Upon receipt of the written notice, the Contractor shall stop all work, as 
directed in the notice, notify all subcontractors of the effective date of the termination 
and minimize all further costs to the State.  In the event of termination under this 
paragraph, all documents, data and reports prepared by the Contractor under the 
Contract shall become the property of and be delivered to the State upon demand.  The 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 28 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for work in 
progress, work completed and materials accepted before the effective date of the 
termination.  The cost principles and procedures provided in A.A.C. R2-7-701 shall apply. 

9.5. Termination for Default. 

9.5.1. In addition to the rights reserved in the contract, the State may terminate the 
Contract in whole or in part due to the failure of the Contractor to comply with 
any term or condition of the Contract, to acquire and maintain all required 
insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits, or to make satisfactory progress 
in performing the Contract.  The Procurement Officer shall provide written 
notice of the termination and the reasons for it to the Contractor. 

9.5.2. Upon termination under this paragraph, all goods, materials, documents, data 
and reports prepared by the Contractor under the Contract shall become the 
property of and be delivered to the State on demand. 

9.5.3. The State may, upon termination of this Contract, procure, on terms and in the 
manner that it deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those under 
this Contract.  The Contractor shall be liable to the State for any excess costs 
incurred by the State in procuring materials or services in substitution for those 
due from the Contractor. 

9.6. Continuation of Performance Through Termination.  The Contractor shall continue to 
perform, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract, up to the date of 
termination, as directed in the termination notice. 

10. Contract Claims 

All contract claims or controversies under this Contract shall be resolved according to A.R.S. Title 
41, Chapter 23, Article 9, and rules adopted thereunder. 

11. Arbitration 

The parties to this Contract agree to resolve all disputes arising out of or relating to this contract 
through arbitration, after exhausting applicable administrative review, to the extent required by 
A.R.S. § 12-1518, except as may be required by other applicable statutes (Title 41).   

12. Comments Welcome 

The State Procurement Office periodically reviews the Uniform Terms and Conditions and 
welcomes any comments you may have. Please submit your comments to: State Procurement 
Administrator, State Procurement Office, 100 North 15th Avenue, Suite 201, Phoenix, Arizona, 
85007. 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 29 of 81 

 

Procurement 

1. INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS 
 

The following provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, 
whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions 
required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220 available at: 
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-
guidance are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, 
all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions 
contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or 
refuse to comply with any (name of grantee) requests which would cause (name of grantee) to be 
in violation of the FTA terms and conditions. 

 
The Federal Terms and Conditions under this Contract shall be incorporated in any sub-contractor, 
or lower-tier agreement for any federally-funded task assignment / project awarded under this 
Contract. 

 
2. NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS TO THIRD PARTIES 

 
The Department and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence b 
the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, 
absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a 
party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Department, 
Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter 
resulting from the underlying contract. 

 

The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part 
with Federal assistance provided by Federal Funding Agency. It is further agreed that the clause 
shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 

 
3. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS 

 
Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as 
amended, 31 USC 3801 et seq. and USDOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR 31, 
apply to its actions pertaining to this project. 

 

Upon execution of the underlying contract, contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and 
accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to 
the underlying contract or FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In 
addition to other penalties that may be applicable, contractor further acknowledges that if it 
makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submittal, or 
certification, the US Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud 
Civil Remedies Act (1986) on contractor to the extent the US Government deems appropriate. 

https://app.az.gov/
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 30 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a 
contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance 
originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the 
right to impose the penalties of  18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) (5323(I)) on the 
Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. 

 
Contractor shall include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part 
with FTA assistance. The clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who 

will be subject to the provisions. 
 

4. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS 
 

The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract: 
 

1. Where the Purchaser is not a State but a local government and is the FTA Recipient or a 
subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C. F. R. 18.36(i), the Contractor shall - 
provide the Purchaser, the FTA, the US Comptroller General or their authorized representatives 
access to any books, documents, papers and contractor records which are pertinent to this 
contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. 
Contractor shall also , pursuant to 49 C. F. R. 633.15, provide authorized FTA representative 
including any PMO Contractor access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining 
to a capital project, defined at 49 
U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 
5307, 5309 or 5311. 

 

2. Where the Purchaser is a State and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in 
accordance with 49 C.F.R. 633.15, Contractor shall provide the Purchaser, authorized FTA 
representatives, including any PMO Contractor, access to the Contractor's records and 
construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which 
receives FTA assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311. By 
definition, a major capital project excludes contracts of less than the simplified acquisition 
threshold currently set at 
$250,000.00. 

 
3. Where the Purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or 

under the simplified acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital 
or other non- profit organization and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient 
in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 19.48, Contractor shall provide the Purchaser, FTA, the US 
Comptroller General or their authorized representatives with access to any books, documents, 
papers and record of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the 
purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 31 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

4. Where a Purchaser which is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient 
in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project 
or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1) through other than competitive 
bidding, the Contractor shall make available records related to the contract to the 
Purchaser, the Secretary of USDOT and the US Comptroller General or any 
authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an 
audit and inspection. 

 

5. Contractor shall permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means 
whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 

 
6. The Contractor shall retain, and shall require its subcontractors at all tiers, all 

books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of 
not less than five years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, 
except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the 
performance of this contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same 
until the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of 
their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, 
claims or exceptions related thereto. Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11). 

 

5. TERMS OF THE MASTER AGREEMENT AND COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable Federal Funding Agency laws, 
regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those 
listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement, available at 
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/sample-fta- agreements/fta-
grant-agreements, between the Department and FTA, as they may be amended or 
promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. This Master 
Agreement does not have an Expiration Date. This Master Agreement continues to 
apply to the Recipient and its Underlying Agreement, until modified or superseded by 
a more recently enacted or issued applicable federal law, regulation, requirement, or 
guidance, or amendment to this Master Agreement or the Underlying Agreement. To 
assure compliance the Recipient must take measures to assure that other participants 
in its Underlying Agreements (e.g., Third Party Participants) comply. Contractor's 
failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract. 

 

All contractual provisions required by the U.S. Department of Transportation are 
hereby incorporated by reference. In the event of additional funding provided by 
FHWA, the applicable requirements of the Stewardship Agreement, available at 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/federalaid/stewardship, between the Department and 
FHWA are incorporated by reference. 

 

6. CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 
 

The AGENCY is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the AGENCY agrees to comply 

https://app.az.gov/
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/sample-fta-agreements/fta-grant-agreements
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/sample-fta-agreements/fta-grant-agreements
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/sample-fta-agreements/fta-grant-agreements
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/federalaid/stewardship


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 32 of 81 

 

Procurement 

with all applicable Federal civil rights laws and implementing regulations. Apart from 
inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the AGENCY 
agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(h) (3) by not using any 
Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or 
discriminatory specifications. 

 
Under this Agreement, the Contractor shall at all times comply with the following 
requirements and shall include these requirements in each subcontract entered into 
as part thereof. 

 
Equal Employment Opportunity 

 

1. Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 
42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 
42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 
U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees 
that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex(including sexual orientation 
and gender identity), age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to 
comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing 
requirements Federal Funding Agency may issue. 

 

2. Race, Color, religion, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 
5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment 
opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, 
"Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, 
Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive 
Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive 
Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal 
Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable 
Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in 
the future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project. 
The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to 
their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include, but 
not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In 
addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements 
Federal Funding Agency may issue. 

 
3. Age - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 

1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the 
Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective 
employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with 
any implementing requirements Federal Funding Agency may issue. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 33 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

4. Disabilities - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as 
amended, 42 
U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the 
Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. 
Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, the 
Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements Federal Funding 
Agency may issue. 

 
The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided, modified only if 
necessary to identify the affected parties. 

 
7. TERMINATION 

 

Termination of the contract shall be in accordance with the Uniform Terms and 
Conditions, Section 9., paragraph 9.1 through 9.6. 

 
8. DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION 

 
This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, the 
contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals, as defined at 
49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified 
as defined at 49 CFR 29.940and 29.945. The contractor is required to comply with 49 
CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, 
Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 

 

As such, the Contractor shall verify that its principals, affiliates, and subcontractors are 
eligible to participate in this federally funded contract and are not presently declared 
by any Federal department or agency to be: 

 
a) Debarred from participation in any federally assisted Award; 

b) Suspended from participation in any federally assisted Award; 

c) Proposed for debarment from participation in any federally assisted Award; 

d) Declared ineligible to participate in any federally assisted Award; 

e) Voluntarily excluded from participation in any federally assisted Award; or 

f) Disqualified from participation in ay federally assisted Award. 
 

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows: 
 

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the 
Department. If it is later determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered 
an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to the Department, the 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 34 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to 
suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the 
requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the 
period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further 
agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered 
transactions. 

 
8.1  GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT) 

 
The Contractor agrees to the following: 

 

(1) It will comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subpart C, as 
adopted and supplemented by U.S. DOT regulations at 2 C.F.R. part 1200, 
which include the following: 

 
(a) It will not enter into any arrangement to participate in the development or 

implementation of the Project with any Third Party Participant that is 
debarred or suspended except as authorized by: 1 U.S. DOT regulations, 
“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” 2 C.F.R. part 1200, 2 
U.S. OMB, “Guidelines to Agencies on Government wide Debarment and 
Suspension (Nonprocurement),” 2 C.F.R. part 180, including any 
amendments thereto, and 3 Executive Orders Nos. 12549 and 12689, 
“Debarment and Suspension,” 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, 

 

(b) It will review the U.S. GSA “System for Award Management,” 
https://www.sam.gov, if required by U.S. DOT regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 
1200, and 

 
(c) It will include, and require each of its Third Party Participants to include, a 

similar provision in each lower tier covered transaction, ensuring that each 
lower tier Third Party Participant: 

 
(1) Will comply with Federal debarment and suspension 

requirements, and 2 Reviews the “System for Award 
Management” at https://www.sam.gov, if necessary to 
comply with U.S. DOT regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 1200, and 

 

If the Department suspends, debars, or takes any 
similar action against a Third Party Participant or 
individual, the Department will provide immediate 
written notice to the: 

 

(a) FTA Regional Counsel for the Region in which 
the Recipient is located or implements the 
Project, 

(b) FTA Project Manager if the Project is 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.sam.gov/
http://www.sam.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 35 of 81 

 

Procurement 

administered by an FTA Headquarters Office, 
or 

(c) FTA Chief Counsel. 

9. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER 

POLLUTION CONTROL ACT Clean Water 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC 1251 et seq. 
Contractor shall report each violation to the recipient and understands and agrees 
that the recipient shall, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the 
appropriate EPA Regional Office. Contractor shall include these requirements in each 
subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance. 

 
Clean Air 

1) Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
pursuant to the Clean Air Act, 42 USC 7401 et seq. Contractor shall report each 
violation to the recipient and understands and agrees that the recipient will, in 
turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA 
Regional Office. 

 

2) Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding 
$150,000 financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance. 

 
10. BUY AMERICA 

 
In any task assignment / project for construction, acquisition of goods, or rolling stock 
valued at more than $150,000, the contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) 
and 49 C.F.R. part 661, which provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless 
all steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA funded projects are produced in 
the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to 
a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. § 661.7. Separate 
requirements for rolling stock are set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 C.F.R. § 
661.11. 

 

Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5323(j) and 49 CFR 661, stating that Federal funds 
may not be obligated unless steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA-
funded projects are  produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted 
by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 
CFR 661.7, and include software, microcomputer equipment and small purchases 
(currently less than $150,000) made with capital, operating, or planning funds. 
Separate requirements for rolling stock are stated at 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 CFR 
661.11. Rolling stock must be manufactured in the US and have a minimum 65% 
domestic content for FY2019 and a minimum 70% domestic content for FY2020 and 
beyond. A bidder or offeror shall submit appropriate Buy America certification to the 
recipient with all bids on FTA-funded contracts, except those subject to a general 
waiver. Proposals not accompanied by a completed a certification shall be rejected as 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 36 of 81 

 

Procurement 

nonresponsive. This requirement does not apply to lower tier subcontractors. 
 

11. BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and 
remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No 
action or failure to act by the (Recipient), (Architect) or Contractor shall constitute a 
waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any 
such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach 
thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

 

Disputes arising in the performance of this contract which are not resolved by 
agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the Department. This decision 
shall be final and conclusive unless within ten days from the date of receipt of its copy, 
contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the Department. In 
connection with such appeal, contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard 
and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the Department shall 
be binding upon contractor and contractor shall abide by the decision. FTA has a 
vested interest in the settlement of any violation of Federal law including the False 
Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729. 

 
Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by the recipient, contractor 
shall continue performance under this contract while matters in dispute are being 
resolved. Claims for Damages - Should either party to the contract suffer injury or 
damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of 
its employees, agents or others for whose acts it is legally liable, a claim for damages 
therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within ten days after the first 
observance of such injury or damage. 

 
Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes 
and other matters in question between the Department and contractor arising out of 
or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties 
mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the residing State. 

 

Rights and Remedies - Duties and obligations imposed by the contract documents and 
the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a 
limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or 
available by law. No action or failure to act by the Department or contractor shall 
constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the contract, nor 
shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any 
breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

 

12. LOBBYING 
 

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Title 31, U.S. C 1352 as 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 37 of 81 

 

Procurement 

amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 
U.S.C. 1601, et seq.] and (Public Law 101.121) as codified in Title 48, Federal 
Acquisition Regulations Subpart 3.8 and Subpart 52.203-11. The legislation prohibits 
Federal funds from being expended by a recipient or any lower tier sub- recipients of 
a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence a Federal agency or Congress in connection 
with the award of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant or loan, or 
entering into any cooperative agreement, including the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or 
cooperative agreement. All disclosure statements are to be furnished to the 
Department. 

 
Contractors who apply or propose/bid for an award of $100,000 or more in value shall 
file the attached Lobbying Certification {01Lobbying Certification document} required 
by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier above 
that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or 
organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any 
other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any 
registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts 
on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or 
award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up 
to the recipient. 

 
13. FLY AMERICA 

 
The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the "Fly America" Act) in 
accordance with the General Services Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part 
301-10, which provide that recipients of Federal funds and their contractors are 
required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S Government- financed international air 
travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such 
service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as 
defined by the Fly America Act. The Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier 
was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why 
service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not  
available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, 
provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. The 
Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that 
may involve international air transportation. 

 
14. ENERGY CONSERVATION 

 
The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to 
energy efficiency, stated in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance 
with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 38 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

15. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST / EMPLOYMENT OF FEDERAL PERSONNEL 
 

Contractors will maintain a written code of standards of conduct governing the 
performance of their employees engaged in the award and administration of 
contracts. No employee, officer or agent of the Department or the Federal funding 
agency shall participate in selection, or in the award or administration of a contract 
supported by Federal funds if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be 
involved. Such a conflict would arise when: The employee, officer or agent, any 
member of his immediate family, His or her partner, or an organization which 
employs, or is about to employ, any of the above, has a financial or other interest in 
the firm selected for award. Department officers, employees or agents will neither 
solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors, 
potential contractors, or parties to subagreements. 

 
16. COPYRIGHT AND PATENT 

 
To the extent permitted by A.R.S. § 41-621 and § 35-154, the Contractor shall 
indemnify and hold harmless ADOT against any liability, including costs and expenses, 
for infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright arising out of this contract 
performance or use by ADOT of materials furnished or work performed under this 
contract. ADOT shall reasonably notify the Contractor of any claim for which it may be 
liable under this paragraph. 

 
Copyrights pursuant to 23 CFR 420.121 (b): The Department, as a State DOT may 
copyright any books, publications, or other copyrightable materials developed in the 
course of the project, and does herein exercise that right. The federal funding agency 
reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or 
otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the work for Government purposes. 

 

Patents pursuant to 23 CFR 420.121 (i): The Department, as a State DOT is subject to 
the provisions of  37 CFR part 401 governing patents and inventions and must include 
or cite the standard patent rights clause at 37 CFR 401.14, except for §401.14(g), in all 
subgrants or contracts. In addition, State DOTs must include the following clause, 
suitably modified to identify the parties, in all subgrants or contracts, regardless of 
tier, for experimental, developmental or research work: “The subgrantee or contractor 
will retain all rights provided for the State in this clause, and the State will not, as part 
of the consideration for awarding the subgrant or contract, obtain rights in the 
subgrantee's or contractor's subject inventions.” 
 
Standard Patent Rights required pursuant to 37 CFR 401.14: 

 

(a) Definitions 

 
(1) Invention means any invention or discovery which is or may be patentable or 
otherwise protectable under Title 35 of the United States Code, or any novel variety of 
plant which is or may be protected under the Plant Variety Protection Act (7 U.S.C. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 39 of 81 

 

Procurement 

2321 et seq.). 
 

(2) Subject invention means any invention of the contractor conceived or first actually 
reduced to practice in the performance of work under this contract, provided that in 
the case of a variety of plant, the date of determination (as defined in section 41(d) of 
the Plant Variety Protection Act, 7 U.S.C. 2401(d)) must also occur during the period of 
contract performance. 

 
(3) Practical Application means to manufacture in the case of a composition or 
product, to practice in the case of a process or method, or to operate in the case of a 
machine or system; and, in each case, under such conditions as to establish that the 
invention is being utilized and that its benefits are, to the extent permitted by law or 
government regulations, available to the public on reasonable terms. 

 
(4) Made when used in relation to any invention means the conception or first actual 
reduction to practice of such invention. 

 
(5) Small Business Firm means a small business concern as defined at section 2 of Pub. L. 

85-536 (15 
U.S.C. 632) and implementing regulations of the Administrator of the Small Business 
Administration. For the purpose of this clause, the size standards for small business 
concerns involved in government procurement and subcontracting at 13 CFR 121.3-8 
and 13 CFR 121.3-12, respectively, will be used. 

 
(6) Nonprofit Organization means a university or other institution of higher education 
or an organization of the type described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954 (26 U.S.C. 501(c) and exempt from taxation under section 501(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (25 U.S.C. 501(a)) or any nonprofit scientific or educational 
organization qualified under a state nonprofit organization statute. 

 
(7) The term statutory period means the one-year period before the effective filing 
date of a claimed invention during which exceptions to prior art exist per 35 U.S.C. 
102(b) as amended by the Leahy-Smith America Invents Act, Public Law 112-29. 

 
(8) The term contractor means any person, small business firm or nonprofit 
organization, or, as set forth in section 1, paragraph (b)(4) of Executive Order 12591, 
as amended, any business firm regardless of size, which is a party to a funding 
agreement. 

 
(b) Allocation of Principal Rights 

 
The Contractor may retain the entire right, title, and interest throughout the world to 
each subject invention subject to the provisions of this clause and 35 U.S.C. 203. With 
respect to any subject invention in which the Contractor retains title, the Federal 
government shall have a nonexclusive, nontransferable, irrevocable, paid-up license to 
practice or have practiced for or on behalf of the United States the subject invention 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 40 of 81 

 

Procurement 

throughout the world. 

 
(c) Invention Disclosure, Election of Title and Filing of Patent Application by Contractor 

 
(1) The contractor will disclose each subject invention to the Federal Agency within 
two months after the inventor discloses it in writing to contractor personnel 
responsible for patent matters. The disclosure to the agency shall be in the form of a 
written report and shall identify the contract under which the invention was made and 
the inventor(s). It shall be sufficiently complete in technical detail to convey a clear 
understanding to the extent known at the time of the disclosure, of the nature, 
purpose, operation, and the physical, chemical, biological or electrical characteristics 
of the invention. The disclosure shall also identify any publication, on sale or public use 
of the invention and whether a manuscript describing the invention has been 
submitted for publication and, if so, whether it has been accepted for publication at 
the time of disclosure. In addition, after disclosure to the agency, the Contractor will 
promptly notify the agency of the acceptance of any manuscript describing the 
invention for publication or of any on sale or public use planned by the contractor. 

 
(2) The contractor will elect in writing whether or not to retain title to any such 
invention by notifying the Federal agency within two years of disclosure to the Federal 
agency. However, in any case where a patent, a printed publication, public use, sale, 
or other availability to the public has initiated the one year statutory period wherein 
valid patent protection can still be obtained in the United States, the period for 
election of title may be shortened by the agency to a date that is no more than 60 
days prior to the end of the statutory period. 

 
(3) The contractor will file its initial patent application on a subject invention to which 
it elects to retain title within one year after election of title or, if earlier, prior to the 
end of any statutory period wherein valid patent protection can be obtained in the 
United States after a publication, on sale, or public use. If the contractor files a 
provisional application as its initial patent application, it shall file a non-provisional 
application within 10 months of the filing of the provisional application. The contractor 
will file patent applications in additional countries or international patent offices 
within either ten months of the first filed patent application or six months from the 
date permission is granted by the Commissioner of Patents to file foreign patent 
applications where such filing has been prohibited by a Secrecy Order. 

 
(4) For any subject invention with Federal agency and contractor co-inventors, where 
the Federal agency employing such co-inventor determines that it would be in the 
interest of the government, pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 207(a)(3), to file an initial patent 
application on the subject invention, the Federal agency employing such co-inventor, 
at its discretion and in consultation with the contractor, may file such application at its 
own expense, provided that the contractor retains the ability to elect title pursuant to 
35 U.S.C. 202(a). 

 
(5) Requests for extension of the time for disclosure, election, and filing under 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 41 of 81 

 

Procurement 

paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) of this clause may, at the discretion of the Federal agency, 
be granted. When a contractor has requested an extension for filing a non-provisional 
application after filing a provisional application, a one-year extension will be granted 
unless the Federal agency notifies the contractor within 60 days of receiving the 
request. 

 
(d) Conditions When the Government May Obtain Title 

 
The contractor will convey to the Federal agency, upon written request, title to any subject 
invention— 

 

(1) If the contractor fails to disclose or elect title to the subject invention within the 
times specified in paragraph (c) of this clause, or elects not to retain title. 

 
(2) In those countries in which the contractor fails to file patent applications within the 
times specified in paragraph (c) of this clause; provided, however, that if the 
contractor has filed a patent application in a country after the times specified in 
paragraph (c) of this clause, but prior to its receipt of the written request of the 
Federal agency, the contractor shall continue to retain title in that country. 

 
(3) In any country in which the contractor decides not to continue the prosecution of 
any non- provisional patent application for, to pay a maintenance, annuity or renewal 
fee on, or to defend in a reexamination or opposition proceeding on, a patent on a 
subject invention. 

 
(e) Minimum Rights to Contractor and Protection of the Contractor Right to File 

 
(1) The contractor will retain a nonexclusive royalty-free license throughout the world 
in each subject invention to which the Government obtains title, except if the 
contractor fails to disclose the invention within the times specified in (c), above. The 
contractor's license extends to its domestic subsidiary and affiliates, if any, within the 
corporate structure of which the contractor is a party and includes the right to grant 
sublicenses of the same scope to the extent the contractor was legally obligated to do 
so at the time the contract was awarded. The license is transferable only with the 
approval of the Federal agency except when transferred to the sucessor of that party 
of the contractor's business to which the invention pertains. 

 
(2) The contractor's domestic license may be revoked or modified by the funding 
Federal agency to the extent necessary to achieve expeditious practical application of 
the subject invention pursuant to an application for an exclusive license submitted in 
accordance with applicable provisions at 37 CFR part 404 and agency licensing 
regulations (if any). This license will not be revoked in that field of use or the 
geographical areas in which the contractor has achieved practical application and 
continues to make the benefits of the invention reasonably accessible to the public. 
The license in any foreign country may be revoked or modified at the discretion of the 
funding Federal agency to the extent the contractor, its licensees, or the domestic 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 42 of 81 

 

Procurement 

subsidiaries or affiliates have failed to achieve practical application in that foreign 
country. 

 
(3) Before revocation or modification of the license, the funding Federal agency will 
furnish the contractor a written notice of its intention to revoke or modify the license, 
and the contractor will be allowed thirty days (or such other time as may be 
authorized by the funding Federal agency for good cause shown by the contractor) 
after the notice to show cause why the license should not be revoked or modified. The 
contractor has the right to appeal, in accordance with applicable regulations in 37 CFR 
part 404 and agency regulations (if any) concerning the licensing of Government-
owned inventions, any decision concerning the revocation or modification of the 
license. 

 

(f) Contractor Action to Protect the Government's Interest 

 
(1) The contractor agrees to execute or to have executed and promptly deliver to the 
Federal agency all instruments necessary to (i) establish or confirm the rights the 
Government has throughout the world in those subject inventions to which the 
contractor elects to retain title, and (ii) convey title to the Federal agency when 
requested under paragraph (d) above and to enable the government to obtain patent 
protection throughout the world in that subject invention. 

 
(2) The contractor agrees to require, by written agreement, its employees, other than 
clerical and nontechnical employees, to disclose promptly in writing to personnel 
identified as responsible for the administration of patent matters and in a format 
suggested by the contractor each subject invention made under contract in order that 
the contractor can comply with the disclosure provisions of paragraph (c) of this 
clause, to assign to the contractor the entire right, title and interest in and to each 
subject invention made under contract, and to execute all papers necessary to file 
patent applications on subject inventions and to establish the government's rights in 
the subject inventions. This disclosure format should require, as a minimum, the 
information required by paragraph (c)(1) of this clause. The contractor shall instruct 
such employees through employee agreements or other suitable educational 
programs on the importance of reporting inventions in sufficient time to permit the 
filing of patent applications prior to U.S. or foreign statutory bars. 

 
(3) For each subject invention, the contractor will, no less than 60 days prior to the 
expiration of the statutory deadline, notify the Federal agency of any decision: Not to 
continue the prosecution of a non- provisional patent application; not to pay a 
maintenance, annuity or renewal fee; not to defend in a reexamination or opposition 
proceeding on a patent, in any country; to request, be a party to, or take action in a 
trial proceeding before the Patent Trial and Appeals Board of the U.S. Patent and 
Trademark Office, including but not limited to post-grant review, review of a business 
method patent, inter partes review, and derivation proceeding; or to request, be a 
party to, or take action in a non-trial submission of art or information at the U.S. 
Patent and Trademark Office, including but not limited to a pre-issuance submission, a 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 43 of 81 

 

Procurement 

post-issuance submission, and supplemental examination. 

 
(4) The contractor agrees to include, within the specification of any United States 
patent applications and any patent issuing thereon covering a subject invention, the 
following statement, “This invention was made with government support under 
(identify the contract) awarded by (identify the Federal agency). The government has 
certain rights in the invention.” 

 
(g) Subcontracts 

 
(1) The contractor will include this clause, suitably modified to identify the parties, in 
all subcontracts, regardless of tier, for experimental, developmental or research work 
to be performed by a subcontractor.. The subcontractor will retain all rights provided 
for the contractor in this clause, and the contractor will not, as part of the 
consideration for awarding the subcontract, obtain rights in the subcontractor's 
subject inventions. 

 

(2) The contractor will include in all other subcontracts, regardless of tier, for 
experimental developmental or research work the patent rights clause required by 
(cite section of agency implementing regulations or FAR). 

 
(3) In the case of subcontracts, at any tier, when the prime award with the Federal 
agency was a contract (but not a grant or cooperative agreement), the agency, 
subcontractor, and the contractor agree that the mutual obligations of the parties 
created by this clause constitute a contract between the subcontractor and the 
Federal agency with respect to the matters covered by the clause; provided, however, 
that nothing in this paragraph is intended to confer any jurisdiction under the Contract 
Disputes Act in connection with proceedings under paragraph (j) of this clause. 

 
(h) Reporting on Utilization of Subject Inventions 

 
The Contractor agrees to submit on request periodic reports no more frequently than 
annually on the utilization of a subject invention or on efforts at obtaining such 
utilization that are being made by the contractor or its licensees or assignees. Such 
reports shall include information regarding the status of development, date of first 
commercial sale or use, gross royalties received by the contractor, and such other data 
and information as the agency may reasonably specify. The contractor also agrees to 
provide additional reports as may be requested by the agency in connection with any 
march-in proceeding undertaken by the agency in accordance with paragraph (j) of 
this clause. As required by 35 U.S.C. 202(c)(5), the agency agrees it will not disclose 
such information to persons outside the government without permission of the 
contractor. 

 
(i) Preference for United States Industry 

 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this clause, the contractor agrees that neither 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 44 of 81 

 

Procurement 

it nor any assignee will grant to any person the exclusive right to use or sell any subject 
inventions in the United States unless such person agrees that any products 
embodying the subject invention or produced through the use of the subject invention 
will be manufactured substantially in the United States. However, in individual cases, 
the requirement for such an agreement may be waived by the Federal agency upon a 
showing by the contractor or its assignee that reasonable but unsuccessful efforts 
have been made to grant licenses on similar terms to potential licensees that would be 
likely to manufacture substantially in the United States or that under the 
circumstances domestic manufacture is not commercially feasible. 

 
(j) March-in Rights 

 
The contractor agrees that with respect to any subject invention in which it has 
acquired title, the Federal agency has the right in accordance with the procedures in 
37 CFR 401.6 and any supplemental regulations of the agency to require the 
contractor, an assignee or exclusive licensee of a subject invention to grant a 
nonexclusive, partially exclusive, or exclusive license in any field of use to a responsible 
applicant or applicants, upon terms that are reasonable under the circumstances, and 
if the contractor, assignee, or exclusive licensee refuses such a request the Federal 
agency has the right to grant such a license itself if the Federal agency determines 
that: 

 
(1) Such action is necessary because the contractor or assignee has not taken, or is not 
expected to take within a reasonable time, effective steps to achieve practical 
application of the subject invention in such field of use. 

 
(2) Such action is necessary to alleviate health or safety needs which are not 
reasonably satisfied by the contractor, assignee or their licensees; 

 
(3) Such action is necessary to meet requirements for public use specified by Federal 
regulations and such requirements are not reasonably satisfied by the contractor, 
assignee or licensees; or 

 
(4) Such action is necessary because the agreement required by paragraph (i) of this 
clause has not been obtained or waived or because a licensee of the exclusive right to 
use or sell any subject invention in the United States is in breach of such agreement. 

 
(k) Special Provisions for Contracts with Nonprofit Organizations 
 
If the contractor is a nonprofit organization, it agrees that: 
 
(1) Rights to a subject invention in the United States may not be assigned without the 
approval of the Federal agency, except where such assignment is made to an 
organization which has as one of its primary functions the management of inventions, 
provided that such assignee will be subject to the same provisions as the contractor; 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 45 of 81 

 

Procurement 

(2) The contractor will share royalties collected on a subject invention with the 
inventor, including Federal employee co-inventors (when the agency deems it 
appropriate) when the subject invention is assigned in accordance with 35 U.S.C. 
202(e) and 37 CFR 401.10; 

 
(3) The balance of any royalties or income earned by the contractor with respect to 
subject inventions, after payment of expenses (including payments to inventors) 
incidental to the administration of subject inventions, will be utilized for the support 
of scientific research or education; and 

 
(4) It will make efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to attract 
licensees of subject inventions that are small business firms and that it will give a 
preference to a small business firm when licensing a subject invention if the contractor 
determines that the small business firm has a plan or proposal for marketing the 
invention which, if executed, is equally as likely to bring the invention to practical 
application as any plans or proposals from applicants that are not small business firms; 
provided, that the contractor is also satisfied that the small business firm has the 
capability and resources to carry out its plan or proposal. The decision whether to give 
a preference in any specific case will be at the discretion of the contractor. However, 
the contractor agrees that the Federal agency may review the contractor's licensing 
program and decisions regarding small business applicants, and the contractor will 
negotiate changes to its licensing policies, procedures, or practices with the Federal 
agency when the Federal agency's review discloses that the contractor could take 
reasonable steps to implement more effectively the requirements of this paragraph 
(k)(4). In accordance with 37 CFR 401.7, the Federal agency or the contractor may 
request that the Secretary review the contractor's licensing program and decisions 
regarding small business applicants. 

 
17. RECOVERED MATERIALS 

 
The Contractor agrees to provide a preference for those products and services that 
conserve natural resources, protect the environment, and are energy efficient by 
complying with and facilitating compliance with Section 6002 of the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6962, and U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), “Comprehensive Procurement Guideline for Products 
Containing Recovered Materials,” 40 C.F.R. part 247. 

 

18. SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES 
 

a. Seat Belt Use. The Recipient agrees to implement Executive Order No. 13043, 
“Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States,” April 16, 1997, 23 U.S.C. § 402 note, 
(62 Fed. Reg. 19217), by: 

 
(1) Adopting and promoting on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for 
its employees and other personnel that operate company-owned vehicles, 
company-rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles, and 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 46 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

(2) Including a “Seat Belt Use” provision in each third party agreement related to the 
Award. 

 
b. Distracted Driving, Including Text Messaging While Driving. The Recipient agrees to comply 

with: 
 

(1) Executive Order No. 13513, “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text 
Messaging While Driving,” October 1, 2009, 23 U.S.C. § 402 note, (74 Fed. 
Reg. 51225), 

 

(2) U.S. DOT Order 3902.10, “Text Messaging While Driving,” December 30, 2009, and 
 

(3) The following U.S. DOT Special Provision pertaining to Distracted Driving: 
 

(a) Safety. The Recipient agrees to adopt and enforce workplace 
safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, 
including policies to ban text messaging while using an electronic 
device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns 
or rents, a vehicle Recipient owns, leases, or rents, or a privately-
owned vehicle when on official business in connection with the 
Award, or when performing any work for or on behalf of the Award, 

 

(b) Recipient Size. The Recipient agrees to conduct workplace safety 
initiatives in a manner commensurate with its size, such as 
establishing new rules and programs to prohibit text messaging while 
driving, re-evaluating the existing programs to prohibit text messaging 
while driving, and providing education, awareness, and other outreach 
to employees about the safety risks associated with texting while 
driving, and 

 

(c) Extension of Provision. The Recipient agrees to include the 
preceding Special Provision of section 34.b(3)(a) – (b) of this Master 
Agreement in its third party agreements, and encourage its Third Party 
Participants to comply with this Special Provision, and include this 
Special Provision in each third party subagreement at each tier 
supported with federal assistance. 

 

19. CERTIFICATION AND ASSURANCES 
 

The FTA Certifications and Assurances are incorporated herein by reference. Upon 
award or contract renewal, the Contractor must agree to comply with the most 
current FTA Certifications and Assurances by signing and submitting the signature 
page provided by the Department. In the event FTA issues new Certifications and 
Assurances, the Department reserves the right to require submission of a new 
signature page agreeing to comply; to be added to the terms and conditions by 
Amendment. All such requests are a condition of continued award. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 47 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
20. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES 

 
1.0 Policy: 

 
The Arizona Department of Transportation (hereinafter the Department) has 
established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program in accordance with 
the regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT), 49 CFR Part 26. The 
Department has received Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of 
Transportation and as a condition of receiving this assistance, the Department has 
signed an assurance that it will comply with 49 CFR Part 26. 

 

It is the policy of the Department to ensure that DBEs, as defined in Part 26, have an 
equal opportunity to receive and participate in USDOT-assisted contracts. It is also the 
policy of the Department: 

 
1. To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-assisted 

contracts; 
2. To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for USDOT-assisted 

contracts; 
3. To ensure that the DBE program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable law; 
4. To ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR Part 26 eligibility standards 

are counted as DBEs; 

5. To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in USDOT-assisted contracts; 
6. To assist in the development of firms that can compete successfully in the 

market place outside the DBE program; and 

7. To promote the use of DBEs in all types of federally-assisted contracts and 
procurement activities. 

 

It is also the policy of the Department to facilitate and encourage participation of 
Small Business Concerns (SBCs), as defined herein, in USDOT-assisted contracts. The 
Department encourages contractors to take reasonable steps to eliminate obstacles to 
SBCs’ participation and to utilize SBCs in performing contracts. 

 
2.0 Assurances of Non-Discrimination: 

 
The contractor, subrecipient, or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of 
race, color, sex or national origin in the performance of this contract. The contractor 
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and 
administration of DOT assisted contracts. Failure by  the contractor to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination 
of this contract or such other remedy as the Department deems appropriate, which 
may include, but are not limited to: 

 
1. Withholding monthly progress payments; 
2. Assessing sanctions; 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 48 of 81 

 

Procurement 

3. Liquidated damages; 
4. Suspension or Debarment per Uniform Terms and Conditions Paragraph 9.3 of 

the contractor from future bidding; and/or 
5. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part. 

 
The contractor, subrecipient, or subcontractor shall ensure that all subcontract 
agreements contain this non-discrimination assurance. 

 
3.0 Definitions: 

 
(A) Commercially Useful Function (CUF): Commercially Useful Function is 

defined fully in 49 CFR 26.55, which definition is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
(B) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE): a for-profit small business 

concern which meets both of the following requirements: 
 

(1) Is at least 51 percent owned by one or more socially and economically 
disadvantaged individuals or, in the case of any publicly owned 
business, at least 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more 
such individuals; and, 

 

(2) Whose management and daily business operations are controlled by 
one or more of the socially and economically disadvantaged 
individuals who own it.  

(C) NAICS Code: The North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) is 
the standard used by Federal statistical agencies in classifying business 
establishments for the purpose of collecting, analyzing, and publishing 
statistical data related to the U.S. business economy. 

 
(D) Non-DBE: any firm that is not a DBE. 

 
(E) Race-Conscious (RC): a measure or program focused specifically on 

assisting only DBEs, including women-owned DBEs. 
 

(F) Race-Neutral (RN): a measure or program used to assist all small 
businesses. For the purposes of this part, race-neutral includes gender-
neutrality. 

 

(G) Small Business Concern (SBC): a business that meets all of the following 
conditions: 

 
(1) Operates as a for-profit business registered to do business in Arizona; 

 
(2) Operates a place of business primarily within the U.S., or makes a 

significant contribution to the U.S. economy through payment of taxes 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 49 of 81 

 

Procurement 

or use of American products, materials, or labor; 
 

(3) Is independently owned and operated; 
 

(4) Is not dominant in its field on a national basis; and 
 

(5) Does not have annual gross receipts that exceed the Small Business 
Administration size standards average annual income criteria for its 
primary North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code. 

 
(H) Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals: any individual who 

is a citizen (or lawfully admitted permanent resident) of the United States 
and who is: 

 

(1) Any individual who is found to be a socially and economically 
disadvantaged individual on a case-by-case basis. 

 
(2) Any individual in the following groups, members of which are 

rebuttably presumed to be socially and economically disadvantaged: 
 

(i) "Black Americans," which includes persons having origins in any of 
the Black racial groups of Africa; 

 
(ii) "Hispanic Americans," which includes persons of Mexican, Puerto 

Rican, Cuban, Dominican, Central or South American, or other 
Spanish or Portuguese culture or origin, regardless of race; 

 

(iii) "Native Americans," which includes persons who are enrolled 
members of federally or State recognized Indian tribe, Alaskan 
Natives or Native Hawaiians; 

 

(iv) “Asian-Pacific Americans,” which includes persons whose origins 
are from Japan, China, Taiwan, Korea, Burma (Myanmar), 
Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia (Kampuchea), Thailand, Malaysia, 
Indonesia, the Philippines, Brunei, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust 
Territories of the Pacific Islands (Republic of Palau), the Republic 
of the Northern Marianas Islands, Macao, Fiji, Tonga, Kiribati, 
Tuvalu, Nauru, Federated States of Micronesia, or Hong Kong; 

 
(v) “Subcontinent Asian Americans,” which includes persons whose 

origins are from India, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Bhutan, the Maldives 
Islands, Nepal or Sri Lanka; 

 

(vi) "Women;" 
 

(vii) Any additional groups whose members are designated as socially 
and economically disadvantaged by the Small Business 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 50 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Administration (SBA), at such time as the SBA designation 
becomes effective. 

 
4.0 Working with DBEs: 

 
The Department works with DBEs and assists them in their efforts to participate in the 
highway construction. All proposers should contact the Department’s Business 
Engagement and Compliance Office (BECO) by phone, through email, or at the address 
shown below, for assistance in their efforts to use DBEs in the highway construction 
industry. BECO contact information is as follows: 

 

Arizona Department of 
Transportation Business 
Engagement and Compliance 
Office 1801 W. Jefferson St., 
Ste. 101, Mail Drop 154A 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Phone (602) 712-7761 
FAX (602) 712-8429 
Email: contractorcompliance@azdot.gov Website: www.azdot.gov/bec 

 

4.01 Mentor-Protégé Program: 
 

The Department has established a Mentor- Protégé program as an initiative to 
encourage and develop disadvantaged businesses in the highway construction 
industry. The program encourages prime contractors to provide certain types of 
assistance to certified DBE subcontractors. ADOT encourages contractors and certified 
DBE subcontractors to engage in a Mentor-Protégé agreement under certain 
conditions. Such an agreement must be mutually beneficial to both parties and to 
ADOT in fulfilling requirements of 49 CFR Part 23. For guidance regarding this program 
refer to the Mentor-Protégé Program Guidelines available on the BECO website. 

 

The Mentor-Protégé program is intended to increase legitimate DBE activities. The 
program does not diminish the DBE rules or regulations, and participants may not 
circumvent these rules. 

 
5.0 Applicability: 

 
The Department has established an overall annual goal for DBE participation on 
Federal aid contracts. The Department intends for the goal to be met with a 
combination of race conscious efforts and race neutral efforts. Race conscious 
participation occurs when the contractor uses a percentage of DBEs, as defined herein, 
to meet the contract specified goal. Race neutral efforts are those that are, or can be, 
used to assist all small businesses or increase opportunities for all small businesses. 
The regulation, 49 CFR 26, defines race neutral as when a DBE wins a prime contract 
through customary competitive procurement procedures or is awarded a subcontract 

https://app.az.gov/
mailto:contractorcompliance@azdot.gov
http://www.azdot.gov/bec


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 51 of 81 

 

Procurement 

on a prime contract that does not carry a DBE contract goal. 
 

Prime contractors are encouraged to obtain DBE participation even if a DBE goal was 
not established on a contract. 

 
The DBE provisions are applicable to all contractors including DBE contractors. 

 
6.0 Certification and Registration: 

 

6.1 DBE Certification: 
 

Certification as a DBE shall be predicated on: 
 

(1) The completion and execution of an application for certification as a "Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise". 

 
(2) The submission of documents pertaining to the firm(s) as stated in the application(s), 

including but not limited to a statement of social disadvantage and a personal financial 
statement. 

 

(3) The submission of any additional information which the Department or the applicable 
Arizona Unified Certification (UCP) agency may require to determine the firm's 
eligibility to participate in the DBE program. 

 
(4) The information obtained during the on-site visits to the offices of the firm and to active 

job-sites. 
 

Applications for certification may be filed online with the Department or the 
applicable UCP agency at any time through the Arizona Unified Transportation 
Registration and Certification System (AZ UTRACS) website at 
http://www.azutracs.com. 

  

DBE firms and firms seeking DBE certification shall cooperate fully with requests for 
information relevant to the certification process. Failure or refusal to provide such 
information is a ground for denial or removal of certification. 

 

ADOT is a member of the AZ Unified Certification Program (AZUCP). Only DBE firms 
that are certified by the AZUCP are eligible for credit on ADOT projects. A list of DBE 
firms certified by AZUCP is available on the internet at http://www.azutracs.com/. The 
list will indicate contact information and specialty for each DBE firm, and may be 
sorted in a variety of ways. However, ADOT does not guarantee the accuracy and/or 
completeness of this information, nor does ADOT represent that any licenses or 
registrations are appropriate for the work to be done. 

 
The Department’s certification of a DBE is not a representation of qualifications and/or 
abilities nor does it mean that a DBE firm is guaranteed or entitled to receive or be 
awarded a contract. Being certified simply means that a firm has met the criteria for 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.azutracs.com/
http://www.azutracs.com/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 52 of 81 

 

Procurement 

DBE certification as outlined in 49 CFR Part 26. The contractor bears all risks of 
ensuring that DBE firms selected by the contractor are able to perform the work. 

 

6.2 SBC Registration: 
 

To comply with 49 CFR Part 26.39, ADOT’s DBE Program incorporates contracting 
requirements to facilitate participation by Small Business Concerns (SBCs) in federally 
assisted contracts. SBCs are for- profit businesses authorized to do businesses in 
Arizona that meet the Small Business Administration (SBA) size standards for average 
annual revenue criteria for its primary North American Industry Classification System 
(NAICS) code. 

 

While the SBC component of the DBE program does not require utilization of goals on 
projects, ADOT strongly encourages contractors to utilize small businesses that are 
registered in AZ UTRACS on their contracts, in addition to DBEs meeting the 
certification requirement. The contractor may use the AZ UTRACS website to search 
for certified DBEs and registered SBCs that can be used on the contract. However, 
SBCs that are not DBEs will not be counted toward DBE participation. 

 

SBCs can register online at the AZ UTRACS website. 
 

The Department’s registration of SBCs is not a representation of qualifications and/or 
abilities nor does it mean that an SBC firm is guaranteed or entitled to receive or be 
awarded a contract. Being SBC registered simply means that a firm has met the 
criteria for SBC registration as outlined in 49 CFR Part 
26. The contractor bears all risks of ensuring that SBC firms selected by the contractor 
are able to perform the work. 

 

7.0 DBE Financial Institutions: 
 

The Department thoroughly investigates the full extent of services offered by financial 
institutions owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged 
individuals in its service area and makes reasonable efforts to use these institutions. 
The Department encourages prime contractors to use such institutions on USDOT 
assisted contracts. However, use of DBE financial institutions will not be counted 
toward DBE participation. 

 
The Department encourages prime contractors to research the Federal Reserve Board 
website at www.federalreserve.gov to identify minority-owned banks in Arizona 
derived from the Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income filed quarterly by 
banks (FFIEC 031 and 041) and from other information on the Board’s National 
Information Center database. 

 

8.0 Time is of the Essence: 
 

TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN RESPECT TO THE DBE PROVISIONS. 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.federalreserve.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 53 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
9.0 Computation of Time: 

 
In computing any period of time described in this DBE special provision, such as 
calendar days, the day from which the period begins to run is not counted, and when 
the last day of the period is a Saturday, Sunday, or Federal or State holiday, the period 
extends to the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or Federal or State holiday. In 
circumstances where the Department’s offices are closed for all or part of the last day, 
the period extends to the next day on which the Department’s offices are open. 

 
10.0 Contractor and Subcontractor Requirements: 

 
10.1 General: 

 
Each contractor shall establish a program that will ensure nondiscrimination in the 
award and administration of contracts and subcontracts. 

 

Agreements between the bidder and a DBE in which the DBE promises not to provide 
subcontracting quotations to other bidders are prohibited. 

 
10.2 DBE Liaison: 

 
The contractor shall designate a DBE Liaison responsible for the administration of the 
contractor’s DBE program. The name of the designated DBE Liaison shall be included in 
the DBE Intended Participation Affidavit Summary. 

 

11.0 DBE Goals 
 

The Department has not established contract goals for DBE participation in this contract. 
 

Contractors are still encouraged to employ reasonable means to obtain DBE 
participation. Contractors must retain records in accordance with these DBE 
specifications. The contractor is notified that this record keeping is important to the 
Department so that it can track DBE participation where only race neutral efforts are 
employed. 

 
11.1 Race Neutral Contract (With No DBE Goal) 

 
The Department has established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program 
in accordance with the regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT), 
49 CFR Part 26. ADOT has received federal financial assistance from the USDOT and as 
a condition of receiving this assistance, ADOT has  signed an assurance that it shall 
comply with 49 CFR Part 26. 

 

It is ADOT’s policy to ensure that DBEs, as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, have an equal 
opportunity to receive and participate in federally-funded contracts. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 54 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
NO CONTRACT DBE GOAL HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED FOR DBE PARTICIPATION ON THIS 
CONTRACT. 

 
Contractors are still encouraged to employ reasonable means to obtain DBE 
participation. Contractors must retain records in accordance with these DBE 
specifications. The consultant is notified that this record keeping is important to the 
Department so that it can track DBE participation where only race neutral efforts are 
employed. 

 

12.0 Bidders/Proposers List and AZ UTRACS Registration Requirement: 
 

Under Title 49 CFR of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26.11, DOTs are required 
to collect certain information from all contractors and subcontractors who seek to 
work on federally-assisted contracts in order to set overall and contract DBE goals. 
ADOT collects this information when firms register their companies on the Arizona 
Unified Transportation Registration and Certification System (AZ UTRACS) web portal 
at http://www.azutracs.com/ a centralized database for companies that seek to do 
business with ADOT. This information will be maintained as confidential to the extent 
allowed by federal and state law. 

 

Prime contractors and all subcontractors, including DBEs listed in the offer must be 
registered in AZUTRACS. Proposers may verify that their firm and each subcontractor 
is registered using the AZUTRACS website. 

 
Proposers may obtain additional information at the AZ UTRACS website or by contacting BECO.  
 

All proposers shall create a Bidders/Proposers list in the AZ UTRACS by selecting all 
firms, service providers, and vendors that expressed interest or submitted proposals 
or quotes for this contract. The Bidders/Proposers List form must be complete and 
must include the names for all subcontractors, service providers, and vendors that 
submitted proposals or quotes on this project regardless of the proposer’s intentions 
to use the those firms on the project. 

 

All proposers must complete and submit the Bidders/Proposers List online at AZ 
UTRACS prior to Offer submittal. A confirmation email will be generated by the 
system. This email confirmation shall be submitted with the Offer. 

 
13.0 Payment Reporting: 

 
The contractor shall report on a monthly basis indicating the amounts paid to all 
subcontractors, of all tiers, working on the project. Reporting shall be in accordance 
with below. 

 
Subcontracts: 

 

a. Sub-Contract Terms: 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.azutracs.com/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 55 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
1. The Contractor agrees to execute a written Contract with all Subcontractors 

for work to be completed under this Contract. The executed Contract shall 
include Subcontractor’s Scope of Work and all the Uniform Terms and 
Conditions set forth in this Contract. 

 
2. The Contractor shall provide electronic copies of signed subcontract 

agreements with all Subcontractors to ADOT Business Engagement and 
Compliance Office (BECO) by uploading them to the BECO’s online DBE 
Contract & Labor Compliance Management System (DBE System) at 
https://adot.dbesystem.com. Subcontract agreements shall include all 
required assurances and required clauses as outlined in this Contract. Each 
agreement and required attachment shall be dated and signed by the 
Subcontractor in order for the subcontract to be considered valid. 

 
3. The Contractor may be in breach of this Contract if the Contractor materially 

modifies the federal regulations and State statutes in its subcontract 
agreements terms and conditions with its Subcontractors. Deviations from 
the terms of this Contract may result in termination of the Contract, or any 
other such remedy as deemed appropriate by the Department. 

 

b. Sub-Contract Payments 
 

1. Retention: If the prime contract does not provide for retention, the 
contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall not withhold retention 
on any subcontract. If the prime contract provides for retention, the prime 
contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall not retain a higher 
percentage than the Department may retain under the prime contract. 
Retainage shall be paid to the subcontractor within 7 days of satisfactory 
completion of the work performed by the subcontractor. 

 
2. No Set-offs Arising from Other Contracts: If a subcontractor is performing 

work on multiple contracts for the same contractor or subcontractor of any 
tier, the contractor or  subcontractor of any tier shall not withhold or reduce 
payment from its subcontractors on the contract because of disputes or 
claims on another contract. 

 
3. Partial Payment: The contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall 

make prompt partial payments to its subcontractors within seven days of 
receipt of payment from the Department. Notwithstanding any provision of 
Arizona Revised Statutes Section 28-411, the parties may not agree 
otherwise. 

 
4. Final Payment: The contractor and each subcontractor of any tier shall make 

prompt final payment to each of its subcontractors. The contractor and each 
subcontractor of any tier shall pay all monies, including retention, due to its 
subcontractor within seven days of receipt of payment. Notwithstanding any 
provision of Arizona Revised Statutes Section 28-411, the parties may not 
agree otherwise. 

 
5. Payment Reporting: For the purposes of this subsection “Reportable 

Contracts” means any subcontract, of any tier, DBE or non-DBE, by which 
work shall be performed on behalf of the contractor and any contract of any 

https://app.az.gov/
https://adot.dbesystem.com/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 56 of 81 

 

Procurement 

tier with a DBE material or service supplier. 
 

The requirements of this subsection apply to all Reportable Contracts. 
 

Payment Reporting for all Reportable Contracts shall be done through the 
Department’s web- based DBE System. The DBE System can be accessed 
from the Department’s BECO website. No later than fifteen calendar days 
after the Notice to Proceed is issued, the contractor shall log into the 
Department’s web based DBE System and enter or verify the name, contact 
information, and subcontract amounts for Reportable Contracts on the 
project. As Reportable Contracts are approved over the course of the 
contract, the contractor shall enter them in the system. Reportable 
contracts shall be entered into the system no later than five calendar days 
after approval by the Department. 

 
The contractor shall report on a monthly basis indicating the amounts 
actually paid and the dates of each payment under any Reportable Contract 
on the project. In addition, the contractor shall require that all participants 
in any Reportable Contract electronically verify receipt of payment on the 
contract by the last day of the month and the contractor shall actively 
monitor the Department’s DBE System to ensure that the verifications are 
input. The contractor shall proactively work to resolve any payment 
discrepancies in the DBE System between payment amounts it reports and 
payment confirmation amounts reported by others. 

 

The contractor shall ensure that all Reportable Contract activity is reported 
to the Department. This includes all lower-tier Reportable Contracts, 
regardless of whether a DBE is involved or not. 

 
The contractor shall maintain records for each payment explaining the 
amount requested by the subcontractor, and the amount actually paid 
pursuant to the request, which may include but are not limited to, 
estimates, invoices, pay requests, copies of checks or wire transfers, and lien 
waivers in support of the monthly payments in the DBE System. 

 
The contractor shall provide information for payments made on all 
Reportable Contracts during the previous month by the 15th day of the 
current month. In the event that no payments were made during a given 
month, the contractor shall identify that by entering a dollar value of zero. If 
the contractor does not pay the full amount of any invoice from a 
subcontractor, the contractor shall note that and provide the reasons in the 
comment section of the Monthly Payment Audit of the DBE System. 

 
For each Reportable Contract on which the contractor fails to submit timely 
payment information the Department will retain $1,000.00 as liquidated 
damages, from the monies due to the contractor. Liquidated damages will 
be deducted each month for each Reportable Contract on which the 
contractor fails to submit payment information until the contractor provides 
the required information as described herein. After 90 consecutive days of 
non- reporting, the liquidated damages will increase to $2,000.00 for each 
subsequent month, for each Reportable Contract on which the contractor 
fails to report until the information is provided. These liquidated damages 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 57 of 81 

 

Procurement 

shall be in addition to all other retention or liquidated damages provided for 
elsewhere in the contract. 

 

Payment reporting requirements apply to all contracts, federal and non-federal 
funded. 

 
The contractor shall ensure that a copy of this Subsection is included in 
every Reportable Contract of every tier. 

 

(a) Sanctions for Inadequate Reporting: 
 

For each Reportable Contract on which the contractor fails to submit timely 
and complete payment information the Department will retain $1,000.00 as 
liquidated damages, from the monies due to the contractor. Liquidated 
damages will be deducted each month for each Reportable Contract on 
which the contractor fails to submit payment information until the 
contractor provides the required information as described herein. After 90 
consecutive days  of non-reporting, the liquidated damages will increase to 
$2,000.00 for each subsequent month, for each Reportable Contract on 
which the contractor fails to report until the information is provided. These 
liquidated damages shall be in addition to all other retention  or liquidated 
damages provided for elsewhere in the contract. 

 
6. Completion of Work: A subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed 

when all the tasks called for in the subcontract have been accomplished, 
documented, and accepted by the Department. 

 

7. Disputes: If disputes arise regarding payment of subcontractors, the 
contractor shall immediately provide the ADOT Project Manager with a 
written, verifiable explanation if: 

 

 The contractor does not pay the full amount of any invoice from a 
subcontractor within seven days of receipt of a progress payment from 
the Department, or 

 The monthly estimate does not include all work claimed by a 
subcontractor to have been performed. 

 
The Department will determine whether the contractor has acted in good 
faith concerning any such explanations. The Department reserves the right 
to request and receive documents from the contractor and all 
subcontractors of any tier, in order to determine whether termination 
requirements were met. The contractor shall implement and use the dispute 
resolution process outlined in the subcontract, as described in Uniform 
Terms and Conditions Paragraph, to resolve payment disputes. 

 
8. Non-Compliance: Failure to make prompt partial payment or prompt final 

payment including any retention, within the time frames established in this 
contract, will result in remedies, as the Department deems appropriate, 
which may include, but are not limited to: 

 

 Liquidated Damages: These liquidated damages shall be in addition to all 
other retention or liquidated damages provided for elsewhere in the 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 58 of 81 

 

Procurement 

contract. 
 

(i) The Department will withhold two times the disputed dollar 
amount not paid to each subcontractor. 

(ii) If full payment is made within 30 days of the Department’s 
payment to the contractor, the amount withheld by the 
Department will be released. 

(iii) If full payment is made after 30 days of the Department’s 
payment to the contractor, the Department will release 75 
percent of the funds withheld. The Department will retain 25 
percent of the monies withheld as liquidated damages. 

 

 Additional Remedies: If the contractor fails to make prompt payment for 
three consecutive months, or any four months over the course of one 
project, or if the contractor fails to make prompt payment on two or 
more contracts within 24 months, the Department may, in addition, 
invoke the following remedies: 

 
(i) Withhold monthly progress payments until the issue is resolved 

and full payment has been made to all subcontractors and 
vendors subject to the requirements outlined under “Liquidated 
Damages” above, 

(ii) Terminate the contract for default in accordance with this Contract, 
and/or 

(iii) Suspension or Debarment per Uniform Terms and Conditions 
Paragraph 9.3 of the contractor from future bidding temporarily 
or permanently, depending on the number and severity of 
violation. 

(iv) Reflect the contractor’s performance in submitting payment 
reports and making subcontractor payments utilizing the 
Department’s Vendor Performance Report. 

 

14.0 Crediting DBE Participation: 
 

14.01 General Requirements: 
 

To count toward DBE participation, the DBE firms must be certified at the time of Offer 
submission in each NAICS code applicable to the kind of work the firm will perform on 
the contract. NAICS for each DBE can be found on the AZ UTRACS website. General 
descriptions of all NAICS codes can be found at http://www.naics.com/search/. 

 

Credit is given only after the DBE has been paid for the work performed. 
 

The entire amount of a contract that is performed by the DBE’s own forces, including 
the cost of supplies and materials purchased by the DBE for the work on the contract 
and equipment leased by the DBE will be credited toward DBE participation. Supplies 
and equipment the DBE subcontractor purchases or leases from the prime contractor 
or its affiliate will not be credited toward DBE participation. 

 
The contractor bears the responsibility to determine whether the DBE possesses the 

https://app.az.gov/
http://www.naics.com/search/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 59 of 81 

 

Procurement 

proper contractor’s license(s) to perform the work and, if DBE credit is requested, that 
the DBE subcontractor is certified for the requested type of work. 

 
The Department’s certification is not a representation of a DBE’s qualifications and/or 
abilities. The contractor bears all risks that the DBE may not be able to perform its 
work for any reason. 

 
A DBE may participate as a prime contractor, subcontractor, or as a vendor of 
materials or supplies. The dollar amount of work to be accomplished by DBEs, 
including partial amount of a lump sum or other similar item, shall be on the basis of 
subcontract, purchase order, hourly rate, rate per ton, etc., as agreed to between 
parties. 

 
DBE credit may be obtained only for specific work done for the project, supply of 
equipment specifically for physical work on the project, or supply of materials to be 
incorporated in the work. DBE credit will not be allowed for costs such as overhead 
items, capital expenditures (for example, purchase of equipment), and office items. 

 

The contractor may credit second-tier subcontracts issued to DBEs by non-DBE 
subcontractors. Any second-tier subcontract to a DBE must meet the requirements of 
a first-tier DBE subcontract. 

 
A prime contractor may credit the entire amount of that portion of a contract that is 
performed by the DBE’s own forces. The cost of supplies and materials obtained by 
the DBE for the work of the contract can be included so long as that cost is reasonable. 
Leased equipment may also be included. No credit is permitted for supplies purchased 
or equipment leased from the prime contractor or its affiliate(s). 

 

When a DBE subcontracts a part of the work of its contract to another firm, the value 
of the subcontract may be credited towards DBE participation only if the DBE’s 
subcontractor is itself a DBE and performs the work with its own forces. Work that a 
DBE subcontracts to a non-DBE firm does not count toward DBE participation. 

 

A prime contractor may credit the entire amount of fees or commissions charged by a 
DBE firm for providing a bona fide service, such as professional, technical, consulting, 
or managerial services, or for providing bonds or insurance specifically required for the 
performance of a USDOT-assisted contract, provided the fees are reasonable and not 
excessive as compared with fees customarily allowed for similar services. 

 
14.02 DBE Prime Contractor: 

 

When a certified DBE firm proposes on a contract/Task Assignment all the work that is 
performed by the DBE contractor or any other DBE subcontractors and DBE suppliers 
will count toward DBE participation. 

 
14.03 Effect of Loss of DBE Eligibility: 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 60 of 81 

 

Procurement 

For On-Call Task Assignment contracts, if a DBE is deemed ineligible (decertified) or 
suspended by ADOT or one of its UCP Partner Agencies in accordance with 49 CFR 
26.87 and 26.88, the DBE may not be count toward DBE participation on a new Task 
Assignment, but may be considered for the contract/Task Assignment DBE 
participation if a subcontract or contract modification for the work to be completed on 
the Task Assignment was executed before the DBE suspension or decertification is 
effective. 

 

A subcontract or contract modification for work on the task assignment means, any 
subcontract or agreement for the task assignment, which includes a specific ADOT 
TRACS/Project Number, defined scope, duration and budget for the work to be 
completed under the Task Assignment that is duly signed by the contractor/contractor 
and subcontractor/subcontractor. 

 
When the contractor/contractor intents to use an ineligible DBE firm or ADOT made a 
commitment to use an ineligible DBE prime contractor/contractor, but a subcontract 
or Contract Modification for the work to be completed on the Task Assignment has 
not been executed before a decertification notice is issued to the DBE firm by its 
certifying agency, the ineligible firm does not count toward DBE participation. When a 
subcontract or contract modification is executed with the DBE firm for the work to be 
completed on the Task Assignment before ADOT notified the firm of its ineligibility, 
the DBE’s work on the Task Assignment may continue to be credited toward DBE 
participation for the firm’s work. 

 

14.04 Notifying the Contractor of DBE Certification Status: 
 

Each DBE contract at any tier shall require any DBE subcontractor or supplier that is 
either decertified or certified during the term of the contract to immediately notify the 
contractor and all parties to the DBE contract in writing, with the date of 
decertification or certification. The contractor shall require that this provision be 
incorporated in any contract of any tier in which a DBE is a participant. 

 

14.05 Commercially Useful Function: 
 

A prime contractor can credit expenditures to a DBE subcontractor only if the DBE 
performs a Commercially Useful Function (CUF). 

 
A DBE performs a CUF when it is responsible for execution of the work of a contract 
and carries out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising 
the work involved. To perform a commercially useful function, the DBE must also be 
responsible, with respect to materials and supplies on the contract, for negotiating 
price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material, and installing (where 
applicable) and paying for the material itself that it uses on the project. To determine 
whether a DBE is performing a commercially useful function, the Department will 
evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry practices, whether the amount 
the firm is to be paid under the contract is commensurate with the work it is actually 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 61 of 81 

 

Procurement 

performing and the DBE credit claimed for its performance of the work, and other 
relevant factors. 

 

A DBE will not be considered to perform a commercially useful function if its role is 
limited to that of an extra participant in a transaction, contract, or project through 
which funds are passed in order to obtain the appearance of DBE participation. In 
determining whether a DBE is such an extra participant, the Department will examine 
similar transactions, particularly those in which DBEs do not participate. 

 
If a DBE does not perform or exercise responsibility for at least 30 percent of the total 
cost of  its contract with its own work force, or if the DBE subcontracts a greater 
portion of the work of a contract than would be expected on the basis of normal 
industry practice for the type of work involved, the Department will presume that the 
DBE is not performing a commercially useful function. 

 
When a DBE is presumed not to be performing a commercially useful function as 
provided above, the DBE may present evidence to rebut this presumption. The 
Department will determine if the firm is performing a CUF given the type of work 
involved and normal industry practices. 

 
The Department will notify the contractor, in writing, if it determines that the 
contractor’s DBE subcontractor is not performing a CUF. The contractor will be 
notified within seven calendar days of the Department’s decision. 

 

Decisions on CUF may be appealed to the Chief Procurement Officer (CPO). The appeal 
must be in writing and personally delivered or sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the CPO. The appeal must be received by the CPO no later than seven 
calendar days after the decision of BECO. BECO’s decision remains in place unless and 
until the CPO reverses or modifies BECO’s decision. CPO will promptly consider any 
appeals under this subsection and notify the contractor of CPO’s findings and 
decisions. Decisions on CUF matters are not administratively appealable to USDOT. 

 
The BECO may conduct project site visits on the contract to confirm that DBEs are 
performing a CUF. The contractor shall cooperate during the site visits and the BECO’s 
staff will make every effort not to disrupt work on the project. 

 

15.0 Required Provisions for DBE Subcontracts: 
 

All subcontracts of any tier, all supply contracts, and any other contracts in which a 
DBE is a participant shall include as a physical attachment, DBE Subcontractor 
Compliance Assurances refer to the Federal Attachments and Exhibits. 

 
Contractors executing agreements with subcontractors, DBE or non-DBE, that 
materially modify federal regulation and state statutes such as, prompt payment and 
retention requirements, through subcontract terms and conditions will be found in 
breach of contract which may result in termination of the contract, or any other such 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 62 of 81 

 

Procurement 

remedy as the deemed appropriate as outlined in DBE Subsection 2.0 of these DBE 
provisions. 

 

The Department reserves the right to conduct random reviews of DBE and non-DBE 
subcontract documentation to ensure compliance with federal requirements. 

 
The contractor shall ensure that all subcontracts or agreements with DBEs to supply 
labor or materials require that the subcontract and all lower tier subcontracts be 
performed in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26 provisions. 

 
The Contractor shall provide electronic copies of subcontract agreements with all 
Subcontractors by uploading them within 15 calendar days of an executed contract to 
the ADOT DBE System. Subcontract agreements shall include all required assurances 
and clauses as outlined in DBE Subcontractor Compliance Assurances refer to the 
Federal Attachments and Exhibits of the Contract. Each agreement and required 
attachment shall be dated and signed by the Subcontractor in order for the 
subcontract to be considered valid. 

 

The Contractor shall be in breach of this Contract if the Contractor materially modifies 
the federal regulations and State statutes in its subcontract agreements terms and 
conditions with its Subcontractors. Deviations from the terms of this Contract may 
result in termination of the Contract, or any other such remedy as deemed 
appropriate by the Department 

 

16.0 Certification of Final DBE Payments: 
 

DBE participation on the contract is measured by actual payments made to the DBEs. 
The contractor shall submit the “Certification of Final DBE Payments” form for each 
DBE firm working on the contract. This form shall be signed by the contractor and the 
relevant DBE, and submitted to the Engineer no later than 30 days after the DBE 
completes its work. 

 
The contractor will not be released from the obligations of the contract until the 
”Certification of Final DBE Payments” forms are received and deemed acceptable by 
the Engineer and BECO. 

 

17.0 False, Fraudulent, or Dishonest Conduct: 
 

In addition to any other remedies or actions, the Department will bring to the 
attention of the US Department of Transportation any appearance of false, fraudulent, 
or dishonest conduct in connection with the DBE program, so that USDOT can take 
steps such as referral to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral to 
the USDOT Inspector General for possible initiation of suspension and debarment 
proceedings against the offending parties or application of “Program Fraud and Civil 
Penalties” rules provided in 49 CFR Part 31. 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 63 of 81 

 

Procurement 

21. NONDISCRIMINATION 
 

1. During the performance of this Contract, the Consultant, for itself, its 
Subconsultants, assignees and successors shall: 

 
a. Not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex and shall 

carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the performance of this 
Contract. Failure by the Consultant to carry out these requirements is a 
material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this 
Contract, disqualification from proposing on other Contracts or other remedy 
as the State deems appropriate. 

 
b. Comply with Executive Order 2009-09, "Prohibition of Discrimination in 

Employment by Government Contractors and Subcontractors," which is 
hereby included in its entirety by reference and considered a part of this 
Contract. 

 

c. Comply with the provisions of Executive Order 11246, entitled "Equal 
Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as 
supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Part 60). Said 
provisions are made applicable by reference and are hereinafter considered a 
part of this Contract. 

 
d. Post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 

employment, the following notice: 
 

“It is the policy of this company not to discriminate against any employee, or 
applicant for employment, because of race, color, religion, creed, national 
origin, sex, age, handicapped, or disabled veterans and Vietnam era 
veterans. Such actions shall include, but are not limited to: employment, 
upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment, or recruitment advertising; 
laying- off or termination; rates of pay or other compensation; and selection 
for training, and on-the- job training. Also, it is the policy to ensure and 
maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation and 
coercion.” 

 

e. Comply with the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted 
programs of the 
U.S. Department of Transportation (hereinafter USDOT), 49 CFR Part 21, as 
they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the 
Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of 
this Contract. 

 
 

f. Not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the 
selection and retention of Subconsultants, including procurement of materials 
and leases of equipment. The Consultant shall not participate either directly or 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 64 of 81 

 

Procurement 

indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, 
including employment practices. 

 

g. In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the 
Consultant for work to be performed under a subcontract, including 
procurement of materials or leases of equipment, notify each potential 
Subconsultant or supplier of the Consultant’s obligations under this Contract 
and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the ground of race, color, 
or national origin. 

 
h. Provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives 

issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined 
by the State to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, 
orders and instructions. Where any information required of a Consultant is in 
the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this 
information, the Consultant shall so certify to the State as appropriate, and 
shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

 
2. In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with the NONDISCRIMININATION 

provision (Section A) of this Contract, the State shall impose such Contract 
sanctions as the State or FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including but 
not limited to: 

 

a. Withholding of payments to the Consultant under the Contract until the 
Consultant complies, 

 
and/or; 

 
b. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part. 

 

3. The Consultant shall include the provisions of paragraph 1.a. through 1.h. in every 
subcontract with Subconsultants, DBEs and non-DBEs, including procurement of 
materials and equipment leases, unless exempt by the Regulations or directives 
issued pursuant thereto. 

 
4. The Consultant shall take such action with respect to any Subconsultants or 

procurement as the State or the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), FHWA and 
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, however, that in the 
event the Consultant becomes involved in or is threatened with litigation with a 
Subconsultant or supplier as a result of such direction, the Consultant may request 
the State to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State, and in 
addition, the Consultant may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 65 of 81 

 

Procurement 

22. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 
 

Contractor shall take the following affirmative action steps with respect to securing 
supplies,  equipment, or services under the terms of this contract: 

 
a. Include qualified firms owned by socially and economically disadvantaged 

individuals on solicitation lists. 
 

b. Assure that firms owned by socially and economically disadvantaged 
individuals are solicited whenever they are potential sources. 

 
c. When economically feasible, divide total requirements into smaller tasks 

or quantities so as to permit maximum participation by firms owned by 
socially and economically disadvantaged individuals. 

 

d. Where the requirement permits, establish delivery schedules which will 
encourage participation by firms owned by socially and economically 
disadvantaged individuals. 

 
e. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, the 

Office of Minority Business Enterprise of the Department of Commerce, 
and the Community Services Administration, as required. 

 
 

 

23. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT 
 

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid contract in an amount in excess of 
$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses 
required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers 
and mechanics include watchmen and guards. 

 
Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of 
the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or 
mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in 
which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 
forty hours in such workweek. 

 

Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation 
of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, the contractor and any 
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, 
such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of 
work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such  District or 
to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 66 of 81 

 

Procurement 

with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, 
employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, in the 
sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted 
to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section. 

 

Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The FHWA or the contacting 
agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 
representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any 
moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor 
under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime 
contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such 
sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor 
or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause 
set forth in paragraph (2.) of this section. 

 
Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the 
clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) through (4.) of this section and also a clause 
requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. 
The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or 
lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1.) through (4.) of 
this section. 

 

24. FEDERAL CHANGES 
 

The Contactor and its sub-contractors shall comply with all applicable FTA regulations, 
policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or 
by reference in the Master Agreement between the Department and FTA, as they be 
amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of the contract. 
Contractor’s failure to comply shall constitute a material breach of the contract. 

 
25. PROMPT PAY 

 
The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for 
satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 30 days from the receipt of each 
payment the prime contract receives from the Recipient. The prime contractor agrees 
further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within 30 days after the 
subcontractors work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of 
payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause 
following written approval of the Recipient. This clause applies to both DBE and non-
DBE subcontracts. 

 

26. FULL AND OPEN COMPETITION 
 

In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5325(h) all procurement transactions shall be 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 67 of 81 

 

Procurement 

conducted in a manner that provides full and open competition. 
 

27. PROHIBITION AGAINST EXCLUSIONARY OR DISCRIMINATORY SPECIFICATIONS 
 

Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal statute or regulations, the 
contractor shall comply with the requirements of 49 USC 5323(h)(2) by refraining from 
using any FTA assistance to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory 
specifications. 

 
28. CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHITECTURE 

 
Contractor shall conform, to the extent applicable, to the National Intelligent 
Transportation Standards architecture as required by SAFETEA-LU Section 5307(c), 23 
U.S.C. Section 512 note and follow the provisions of FTA Notice, “FTA National 
Architecture Policy on Transit Projects,” 66 Fed. Reg.1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and 
any other implementing directives FTA may issue at a later date, except to the extent 
FTA determines otherwise in writing. 

 
29. ACCESS REQUIREMENTS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

 
Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5301(d), stating Federal policy that the elderly 
and persons with disabilities have the same rights as other persons to use mass 
transportation services and facilities and that special efforts shall be made in planning 
and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy. 

 
Contractor shall also comply with all applicable requirements of Sec. 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act (1973), as amended, 29 USC 794, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of handicaps, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as 
amended, 42 USC 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services 
be made available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments 
thereto. 

 
 

30. NOTIFICATION OF FEDERAL PARTICIPATION 
 

To the extent required by law, in the announcement of any third party contract award 
for goods and services (including construction services) having an aggregate value of 
$500,000 or more, contractor shall specify the amount of Federal assistance to be 
used in financing that acquisition of goods and services and to express that amount of 
Federal assistance as a percentage of the total cost of the third party contract. 

 

31. INTEREST OF MEMBERS OR DELEGATES TO CONGRESS 
 

No members of, or delegates to, the US Congress shall be admitted to any share or 
part of this contract nor to any benefit arising therefrom. 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 68 of 81 

 

Procurement 

32. INELIGIBLE CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

Any name appearing upon the Comptroller General’s list of ineligible contractors for 
federally-assisted contracts shall be ineligible to act as a subcontractor for contractor 
pursuant to this contract. If contractor is on the Comptroller General’s list of ineligible 
contractors (https://www.sam.gov/SAM/) for federally financed or assisted 
construction, the recipient shall cancel, terminate or suspend this contract. 

 
33. OTHER CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

 
To the extent not inconsistent with the foregoing Federal requirements, this contract 
shall also include those standard clauses attached hereto, and shall comply with the 
recipient’s Procurement Guidelines, available upon request from the Department. 

 
34. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REGULATIONS 

 
Any contract entered pursuant to this solicitation shall contain the following 
provisions: All USDOT- required contractual provisions, as set forth in FTA Circular 
4220, are incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, 
FTA mandated terms shall control in the event of a conflict with other provisions 
contained in this Agreement. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any 
act, or refuse to comply with any grantee request that would cause the recipient to be 
in violation of FTA terms and conditions. Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including, without limitation, 
those listed directly or incorporated by reference in the Master Agreement between 
the recipient and FTA, as may be amended or promulgated from time to time during 
the term of this contract. Contractor’s failure to so comply shall constitute a material 
breach of this contract. 

 
35. REAL PROPERTY 

 
Any contract entered into shall contain the following provisions: Contractor shall at all 
times comply with all applicable statutes and USDOT regulations, policies, procedures 
and directives governing the acquisition, use and disposal of real property, including, 
but not limited to, 49 CFR 18.31-18.34, 49 CFR 19.30-19.37, 49 CFR Part 24, 49 CFR 
5326 as amended by Map-21, 49 CFR part 18 or 19, 49 USC 5334, applicable FTA 
Circular 5010, and FTA Master Agreement, as they may be amended or promulgated 
during the term of this contract. Contractor’s failure to so comply shall constitute a 
material breach of this contract. 

 

36. ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY 
 

To the extent applicable and except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in 
writing, the Recipient agrees to comply with the policies of Executive Order No. 13166, 
"Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency," 42 U.S.C. § 
2000d 1 note, and with the provisions of U.S. DOT Notice, “DOT Guidance to 
Recipients on Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient (LEP) 

https://app.az.gov/
https://www.sam.gov/SAM/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 69 of 81 

 

Procurement 

Beneficiaries,” 70 Fed. Reg. 74087, December 14, 2005. 
  

37. ENVIROMENTAL JUSTICE 
 

Except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient 
agrees to promote environmental justice by following: (1) Executive Order No. 12898, 
“Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-
Income Populations,” February 11, 1994, 42 
U.S.C. § 4321 note, as well as facilitating compliance with that Executive Order, and (2) 
DOT Order 5610.2, “Department of Transportation Actions To Address Environmental 
Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations,” 62 Fed. Reg. 18377, 
April 15, 1997, and (3) The most recent and applicable edition of FTA Circular 4703.1, 
“Environmental Justice Policy Guidance for Federal Transit Administration Recipients,” 
August 15, 2012, to the extent consistent with applicable Federal laws, regulations, 
and guidance, 

 

38. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIONS 
 

Compliance is required with any applicable Federal laws imposing environmental and 
resource conservation requirements for the project. Some, but not all, of the major 
Federal laws that may affect the project include: the National Environmental Policy Act 
of 1969; the Clean Air Act; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; the 
comprehensive Environmental response, Compensation and  Liability Act; as well as 
environmental provisions with Title 23 U.S.C., and 49 U.C. chapter 53. The U.S. EPA, 
FHWA and other federal agencies may issue other federal regulations and directives 
that may affect the project. Compliance is required with any applicable Federal laws 
and regulations in effect now or that become effective in the future. 

 
39. GEORGRAPHIC INFORMATION RELATED TO SPATIAL DATA 

 
Any project activities involving spatial data or geographic information systems 
activities financed with Federal assistance are required to be consistent with the 
National Spatial Data Infrastructure promulgated by the Federal Geographic Data 
Committee, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. 

 
40. GEOGRAPHIC PREFERENCE 

 
Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.319(b), all procurements must be conducted in a manner that 
prohibits the use of statutorily or administratively imposed state, local, or tribal 
geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases 
where applicable Federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic preference. 
Nothing in this section preempts state licensing laws. When contracting for architectural 
and engineering (A/E) services, geographic location may be a selection criterion provided 
its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given the nature and size 

of the project, to compete for the contract). 
  

41. ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 70 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

The Recipient agrees that it will not enter into a procurement that involves a real or 
apparent organizational conflict of interest described as follows: 

 
(1) When It Occurs. An organizational conflict of interest occurs when the Project work, 

without appropriate restrictions on certain future activities, results in an unfair 
competitive advantage: 

 
(a) To that Third Party Participant or another Third Party Participant performing 

the Project work, and 
(b) That impairs that Third Party Participant’s objectivity in performing the Project 

work, or 
 

(2) Other. An organizational conflict of interest may involve other situations resulting in 
fundamentally unfair competitive conditions, 

 
(3) Disclosure Requirements. Consistent with FTA policies, the Recipient must disclose to 

FTA, and each of its Subrecipients must disclose to the Recipient: 
 

(a) Any instances of organizational conflict of interest, or 
(b) Violations of federal criminal law, involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity 

violations potentially affecting the federal award, and 
 

(4) Failure to Disclose. Failure to make required disclosures can result in remedies for 
noncompliance, including debarment or suspension. 

 
42. VETRANS PREFERENCE 

 
As provided by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(k), to the extent practicable, the Recipient agrees and 
assures that each of its Subrecipients: 

 
(1) Will give a hiring preference to veterans, as defined in 5 U.S.C. § 2108, who have the 

skills and abilities required to perform construction work required under a third party 
contract in connection with a Capital Project supported with federal assistance 
appropriated or made available for 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, and 

(2) Will not require an employer to give a preference to any veteran over any equally 
qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an 
individual with a disability, or a former employee. 

 

43. CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE  (CFDA) IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 
 

The municipal project sponsor is required to identify in its accounts all Federal awards 
received and expended, and the Federal programs under which they were received. 
Federal program and award identification shall include, as applicable, the CFDA title 
and number, award number and year, name of the Federal agency, and name of the 
pass-through entity. 

  

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 71 of 81 

 

Procurement 

44.  AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 
 
The contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301 (d), which 
states the Federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities have the same 
right as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special 
efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to 
implement that policy. The contractor also agrees to comply with all applicable 
requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 
794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which requires 
that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, 
including any subsequent amendments to that Act, and with the Architectural Barriers 
act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and 
public accommodations be accessible to persons with disabilities, including any 
subsequent amendments to that Act. In addition, the contractor agrees to comply with 
any and all applicable requirements issued by the FTA, DOT, DOJ, U.S. GSA, U.S. EEOC, 
U.S. FCC, any subsequent amendments thereto and any other nondiscrimination 
statute(s) that may apply to the Project. 
 

45.   BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT 
 
Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required 
certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used 
Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in 
connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 
31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with nonfederal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are 
forwarded from tier to tier up to the Agency.” 

 
46. NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES 

 
The Agency and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by 
the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying Contract, 
absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not 
a party to this Contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Agency, 
Contractor or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter 
resulting from the underlying Contract. The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in 
each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by the FTA. It is 
further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who 
will be subject to its provisions. 

 
44.    BUS TESTING 

 
The operator of the bust testing facility is required to provide the resulting test report 
to the entity that submits the bus for testing.  The manufacturer or dealer of a new bus 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 72 of 81 

 

Procurement 

model or a bus produced with a major change in component or configuration is 
required to provide a copy of the corresponding full bus testing report and any 
applicable partial testing report(s) to the Agency during the point in the procurement 
process specified by the Agency, but in all cases before final acceptance of the first bus 
by the Agency.  The complete bus testing report requirements are provide in 49 C.F.R. 
§ 665.11. 
 

45. CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
The contractor agrees: 
 

a. to use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 
50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry 
cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, 
material, or commodities pursuant to the underlying contract to the extent 
such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag 
commercial vessels; 

 
b. to furnish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments 

originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the 
date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible 
copy of a rated, "onboard" commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each 
shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of 
National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, 
Washington, DC 20590 and to the FTA Recipient (through the contractor in the 
case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.); and 

 
c.   to include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this 

contract when the   subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, 
material, or commodities by ocean vessel. 

 
46. PRE-AWARD AND POST-DELIVERY AUDITS OF ROLLING STOCK PURCHASES 

 
The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5323(m) and FTA's implementing regulation at 
49 C.F.R. part 663. The Contractor shall comply with the Buy America certification(s) submitted 
with its proposal/bid. The Contractor agrees to participate and cooperate in any pre-award and 
post-delivery audits performed pursuant to 49 C.F.R. part 663 and related FTA guidance. 

 
 
 

 

 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  1 
Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances 

Appendix A 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 73 of 81 

 

Procurement 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
(hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 
 
1. Compliance with Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Acts 

and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, as they may be amended from time to time, which are 
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

 
2. Non-discrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performance by it during the contract, will not 

discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of 
subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor will not 
participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including 
employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 
49 CFR Part 21. 

 
3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations, 

either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a 
subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or 
supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Acts 
and Regulations relative to Non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

 
4. Information and Reports: The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the 

Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, 
other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Recipient or the Federal 
Highway Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and 
instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who 
fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the Recipient or the Federal 
Highway Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the 
information. 

 
5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non-discrimination 

provisions of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Highway 
Administration ,may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

 
a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; 

and/or 
b. cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 
 

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every 
subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the 
Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor will take action with request to any 
subcontract or procurement as the Recipient or the Federal Highway Administration may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor becomes 
involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor or supplier because of such direction, the 
contractor may request the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the Recipient. In 
addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the 
United States. 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  2 
Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances 

Appendix E 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 74 of 81 

 

Procurement 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
(hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes 
and authorities; including but not limited to: 
 
Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities: 
• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on 

the basis of race, color, national origin): and 49 CFR Part 21. 
 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), 
(prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or 
Federal-aid programs and projects); 

 

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 etseq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex); 
 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination 
on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 

 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age); 

 

•  Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 

 

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of 
the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such 
programs or activities are Federally funded or not); 

 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability 
in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public 
accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of 
Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38; 

 

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low- 
Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, 
policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on 
minority and low-income populations; 

 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and 
resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English 
proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP 
persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating 
because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1687 et. seq).

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  3 
ADOT Procurement Quarterly Usage Report 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 75 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
This exhibit outlines the content required for the quarterly usage report. Usage reports will be submitted to the appropriate Procurement Officer in accordance with the 

requirements specified in Special Terms and Conditions. The Department reserves the right to make additions, deletions and changes as deemed necessary. 

    Reporting Period:  

      

Contract ID/Code:  Contact Name:  Alternate Contact Name:  

Contract 
Label/Description: 

 Contact Phone 
Number: 

 Alternate Contact Phone 
Number: 

 

Contractor:  Contact Email:  Alternate Contact Email:  

Contractor Address:      

      

 

Agency/Org/Unit 
Customer 

Name 
Delivery Address 

PO Number 
or Identify as 

“P-Card” 

Order 
Date 

Contract 
Item 

Number 

Contract Item 
Description 

Quantity 
Unit of 

Measure 

Contract 
Unit 
Price 

Contract 
Extended 

Price 

Invoice 
Number 

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            
            

            

            

            

            

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  4 
ON-SITE MANUFACTURER INSPECTION 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 76 of 81 

 

Procurement 

(Post-Delivery purchaser’s requirement, in compliance with the federal requirements of 49 U.S.C. Section 
5323(m)) 
 
ON-SITE MANUFACTURER INSPECTION COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 
 
(Rolling Stock Procurements for more than 10 vehicles for areas >200,000 in population) 
 
As required by 49 CFR Part 663Subpart C, the 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Recipient’s name) 
Certifies that a resident inspector, 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of inspector) 
Was at 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(the manufacturer’s) 
 
manufacturing site during the period of manufacture of the buses,  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(description of buses). 
 
The inspector visually inspecting the buses, the _________________________________________ (the 
recipient) has reviewed the inspection documentation, maintains a copy of this report, and certifies that the 
buses meet the contract specifications. 
 
ON-SITE MANUFACTURER INSPECTION COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 
 
(Rolling Stock Procurements for more than 20 vehicles for areas < 200,000 in population) 
 
As required by 49 CFR Part 663 Subpart C, the 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Recipient’s name) 
Certifies that a resident inspector, 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of inspector) 
Was at 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(the manufacturer’s) 
 
manufacturing site during the period of manufacture of the buses,  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(description of buses). 
The inspector visually inspecting the buses, the 
_____________________________________________________ (the recipient) has reviewed the inspection 
documentation, maintains a copy of this report, and certifies that the buses meet the contract specifications. 
 
Signature _________________________________________________ Date ______/ ______/ ______ 

Title ______________________________________________________________________________

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT  5 
PRE-AWARD AUDIT AND CERTIFICATION 

 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 77 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT 6       
PURCHASER'S PRE-AWARD REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 78 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT 7 
PURCHASER'S POST-AWARD REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 79 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT 7 
PURCHASER'S POST-AWARD REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 
Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at  

https://app.az.gov/ 
Page 80 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

 
 
 
 

https://app.az.gov/


         
 

      

EXHIBIT 8 
PURCHASER'S POST-AWARD REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFICATION 
 

Solicitation No:  BPM004157 Available online at 
https://app.az.gov/ 

Page 81 of 81 

 

Procurement 

 

https://app.az.gov/


             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  One (1) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchase 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

Pursuant to the Uniform Instructions to Offerors, Item B.6, Solicitation Amendments, the above referenced 
solicitation shall be amended as follows: 
 

1. The solicitation due date has been changed from January 17, 2022 at 3:00 PM MST to January 19, 2022 
at 3:00 PM MST. 
 

2. All other terms, conditions and provisions of this solicitation remain unchanged. 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 



             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Two (2) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

Pursuant to the Uniform Instructions to Offerors, Item B.6, Solicitation Amendments, the above referenced 
solicitation shall be amended as follows: 
 

1. Specifications 
The following sections are hereby modified to read: 
 

a. Paragraph 2.1 “The State of Arizona Department of Transportation (Department) is seeking to 
contract with a qualified vendor(s) who can provide new vehicles (all fuel types, hybrid, and full 
electric) including but not limited to: Sedans, Trucks up to 19,500 GVWR, Vans, Sport Utility 
Vehicles (SUVs), and Crossovers for the State of Arizona and participating Eligible Agencies. 
These vehicles will be used to support official organizational goals. These vehicles will be used 
on highways, city/county roads and shall be designed to operate under typical Arizona ambient 
temperatures.” 

b. Paragraph 3.3.1, 3.5.1 and 3.5.2 is hereby removed.  
c. Paragraph 4.1: “The Contractors are encouraged to provide a full line of new vehicles (gasoline, 

hybrid, full electric) including but not limited to the following categories: Sedans, Trucks up to 
19,500 GVWR, Vans (cargo, passenger, transit, etc.), Sport Utility Vehicles (SUVs), and 
Crossovers. Eligible Agencies throughout the State will have varying vehicle needs. Contractors 
are to provide a full line of manufactured new vehicles and all subsequent variants of each 
vehicle; including but not be limited to: models and manufacturer options, trim package, etc. to 
meet each need of an Eligible Agency.” 

d. Paragraph 4.1.1 is hereby removed.  
e. Paragraph 4.4.1:” The Eligible Agency may request the awarded Contractor(s) to up-fit/modify 

any vehicle for specific organizational needs. For example, the cab and chassis of ½ ton, ¾ ton, 
and/or up to 19,500 GVW trucks may require a specialized body (i.e.: dump body, landscape 
body, etc.). Other vehicles may require interior and/or exterior modifications per the individual 
Eligible Agency. “ 

f. Paragraph 4.6.1: ” Anti-slip differential for two-wheel drive pickup trucks, ¾ ton, up to 19,500 
GVW.”   

 
 

2. Special Terms and Conditions 
 
The following sections are hereby modified to read: 
 
a. Paragraph 11.1, (a-g): “Phase 1 and 2 pricing for vehicles shall be a minimum Percentage off MSRP, 
less the manufacturer’s rebates and any additional discounts available for that model/power-train 
combination. 

a. Contractor shall provide a copy of manufacturer’s invoice to the ordering agency upon 
request. The manufacturer’s invoice shall be unaltered to include original pricing from the 
manufacturer.  



             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Three (3) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

Pursuant to the Uniform Instructions to Offerors, Item B.6, Solicitation Amendments, the above referenced 
solicitation shall be amended as follows: 
 

1. Specifications 
The following sections are hereby modified to read: 
 

a. Paragraph 3.5 “For Phase Two (2) vehicles, the Contractor shall supply a quote within five (5) 
calendar days after receiving a request from the Eligible Agency. The quotation shall include but 
not be limited to the following information: State contract number, vehicle availability and 
delivery lead-time, Vehicle Identification Number (VIN), dealer stock number, vehicle base bid 
price, itemized options, applicable tax, delivery cost, total price, and point of contact. For 
vehicles requiring up-fit/modifications, all applicable cost may be included in quotation or as a 
separate quotation.” 
 

b. Paragraph 3.10: “For Phase One (1) the Contractor shall provide the Eligible Agency copies of 
the manufacturer's vehicle identification numbers (VIN#) to confirm vehicles have been ordered 
unless impossible due to manufacture delay within ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of a 
purchase order. If confirmation of manufacturer’s VIN #(s) is not received within this timeframe 
the Eligible Agency has the option to award to the second lowest bidder meeting specifications. 
This shall be considered a mandatory requirement and the timeframe must be met unless there 
is a manufacture delay. Failure to provide this document for each vehicle ordered may be cause 
for determination of default of contract.” 

 
 

2. All other terms, conditions and provisions of this solicitation remain unchanged. 
 



             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Two (2) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

b.  Transportation costs to transfer a vehicle from another dealer for a Phase 2 or purchase 
from stock may be added to the cost of the vehicle. The justification for this cost is at the 
discretion of the Eligible Agency.  

c.  Any reference to Phase 1 pricing shall be in reference to vehicles ordered prior to the 
factory cut-off date.  

d.  Any reference to Phase 2 pricing shall be in reference to vehicles purchased from stock or 
“on the lot”.  

e.  Phase 2 pricing shall receive the same cost considerations as Phase 1 pricing, all discounts 
and rebates should be passed onto the Eligible Agency. 

f.  All vehicles are to be billed at prices in effect at the time of order, not the date of 
shipment.  

g. Pricing for vehicles shall include all discounts and deductions, less Federal and State taxes. 
Pricing shall be firm for life of contract unless amended by way of contract change order. “ 

 
b. Paragraph 22 is hereby replaced with the following:  “The Contractor shall furnish Two (2) Usage 
reports, the first to the Department on a quarterly basis showing purchasing activity under this contract.  
This usage report shall be provided in a form substantially equivalent to Exhibit 03.  Usage reports shall 
be submitted to the Procurement Officer no later than 30 days after the end of each quarter. 

 
Usage report quarters shall be defined as follows: 

 January through March – Report due April 30 

 April through June – Report due July 30 

 July through September – Report due October 30 

 October through December – Report due January 30 
 
Contractor shall submit the second to the State documenting all Contract sales to both Eligible 
Agencies and Co-Op Buyers, itemized separately. A Quarterly Usage Report shall still be 
submitted; even if there have been no sales to either Eligible Agencies and/or Co-Op Buyers. 
Contractor shall further itemize divisions, groups or areas within a given Eligible Agency if they 
place Orders independently of each other. Failure to submit the report is a material breach of 
contract, and will entitle State to its remedies under Article 8 and its right to terminate for 
default under Article 9. Contractor shall submit the report using the forms and following the 
instructions on the State Procurement Office website:  
 

https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee” 
 
 
c. Paragraph 25: Co-op administrative fee has hereby been removed.   
 
 
 

https://spo.az.gov/contractor-resources/statewide-contracts-administrative-fee


             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Two (2) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

3. Offer Response Form is hereby replaced with Revision Two (2) attachment. 
 

4. All other terms, conditions and provisions of this solicitation remain unchanged. 
 



             
 

 Procurement 
 

 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1739 W. Jackson Street, MD 100P 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 
602.712.7211 

 

Solicitation Amendment Summary 
SOLICITATION NO.: BPM004157 AMENDMENT NO.:  Three (3) 

DESCRIPTION: New Vehicles Purchases 
 

Rev. 04/2020 

 

Pursuant to the Uniform Instructions to Offerors, Item B.6, Solicitation Amendments, the above referenced 
solicitation shall be amended as follows: 
 

1. Specifications 
The following sections are hereby modified to read: 
 

a. Paragraph 3.5 “For Phase Two (2) vehicles, the Contractor shall supply a quote within five (5) 
calendar days after receiving a request from the Eligible Agency. The quotation shall include but 
not be limited to the following information: State contract number, vehicle availability and 
delivery lead-time, Vehicle Identification Number (VIN), dealer stock number, vehicle base bid 
price, itemized options, applicable tax, delivery cost, total price, and point of contact. For 
vehicles requiring up-fit/modifications, all applicable cost may be included in quotation or as a 
separate quotation.” 
 

b. Paragraph 3.10: “For Phase One (1) the Contractor shall provide the Eligible Agency copies of 
the manufacturer's vehicle identification numbers (VIN#) to confirm vehicles have been ordered 
unless impossible due to manufacture delay within ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of a 
purchase order. If confirmation of manufacturer’s VIN #(s) is not received within this timeframe 
the Eligible Agency has the option to award to the second lowest bidder meeting specifications. 
This shall be considered a mandatory requirement and the timeframe must be met unless there 
is a manufacture delay. Failure to provide this document for each vehicle ordered may be cause 
for determination of default of contract.” 

 
 

2. All other terms, conditions and provisions of this solicitation remain unchanged. 
 



   
ARF-8635   Consent Agenda Item     5. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Submitted For: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Cassie Ornelas, Deputy Court Administrator
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to appointment of FY25 Superior Court Judge Pro Tempore.

Background Information
The Court is authorized, with approval from the Gila County Board of
Supervisors and upon appointment by the Arizona Supreme Court, to
employ Superior Court Judge Pro Tempore in the management of judicial
operations.  The Court is seeking the reappointment of Superior Court
Judge Pro Tempore, Mr. David E. Wolak.  Mr. Wolak would serve without
compensation; and would be utilized on an "as-needed" basis. 
Reappointment, if approved, would be effective for the period of July 1,
2024, to June 30, 2025.

Evaluation
The reappointment of the Superior Court Judge Pro Tempore would
expand the court's current capacity to hear cases and allow the court to
process matters in a timely manner.

Conclusion
The Court requires the Board of Supervisors' approval for the
appointment of the candidate to serve as Superior Court Judge Pro
Tempore for the period of July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025.

Recommendation
The Court respectfully recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve approve Presiding Judge Timothy M. Wright's request for the
reappointment of the Judge Pro Tempore candidate for the period stated
above.

Suggested Motion
Approval to appoint Mr. David E. Wolak as Superior Court Judge Pro



Approval to appoint Mr. David E. Wolak as Superior Court Judge Pro
Tempore for the period from July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025.

Attachments
Board of Supervisors Approval
FY25 Request Letter to AOC



APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT OF  

SUPERIOR COURT PRO TEMPORE 

 

 

 

 The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila County has requested the 

appointment of DAVID E. WOLAK as a Superior Court Judge Pro Tempore of the 

Superior Court in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025, 

pursuant to A.R.S. §12-141 through 12-144(B) for the purpose of enhancing the 

court’s ability to process cases.  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it known that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

approves such appointment.  

 

Dated   ________________________________________________  2024. 

 

 

 GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

 By:  _____________________________  

  Stephen Christensen, Chairman 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BRYAN C. CHAMBERS 

Judge, Division I 

Extension 8686 

 
JON BEARUP 

Court Administrator 

Extension 8672 

 
 

Superior 
Court 

of Gila County 

       TIMOTHY M. WRIGHT 

Presiding Judge, Division II 

Extension 8690 

 
Gila County Courthouse 

1400 East Ash 

Globe, Arizona 85501 

(928) 425-3231 

 

 

11 March 2024 

 

Ms. Noely Perez 

JNC Specialist 

Arizona Supreme Court 

1501 West Washington Street, Suite 221 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 

 

Dear Ms. Perez, 

 

I am respectfully requesting that the Chief Justice reappoint David E. Wolak, State Bar #16095 

as Judges Pro Tempore for the Superior Court in Gila County, for the period from July 1, 2024 to 

June 30, 2025.  

 

I confirm that Mr. Wolak meets all candidate qualifications and requirements as set forth in 

A.R.S. § 12 – 142. Mr. Wolak would serve without compensation.  

 

The Judge Pro Tempore, if appointed, would enhance the court’s ability to process cases. 

 

I further respectfully request that Mr. Wolak be authorized to conduct any type of hearing that 

regularly appointed or elected Superior Court Judges may hear. 

 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

/s/ Timothy M. Wright 

Hon. Timothy M. Wright, Division Two 

Presiding Judge 



   
ARF-8660   Consent Agenda Item     5. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for February 2024

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Charlotte Williams, Chief Deputy Recorder

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for February 2024

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2024 monthly activity report submitted
by the Recorder's Office. 

Attachments
Recorder's February 2024 Monthly Report



























   
ARF-8634   Consent Agenda Item     5. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Report for February 2024

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Mary Curiel, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's report for February 2024.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of February 2024 monthly activity report submitted by
Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
February 2024



























   
ARF-8633   Consent Agenda Item     5. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Report for February 2024

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's report for February 2024.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the monthly activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
February 2024

































   
ARF-8651   Consent Agenda Item     5. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Reporting
Period:

February 2024

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court Monthly Report for February 2024.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2024 monthly activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk's Report February 2024
Clerk's Summary Report February 2024



















   
ARF-8641   Consent Agenda Item     5. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Reporting
Period:

Monthly Report for February 2024 

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr. 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for February
2024.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2024 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for 2024









   
ARF-8644   Consent Agenda Item     5. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Reporting
Period:

Human Resources Department Monthly Reports for
January 2024

Submitted For: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr. 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.

Information
Subject
Human Resources Department Monthly Reports for January 2024.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the monthly activity reports submitted by the Human
Resources Department for January 2024.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
01/02/24 Human Resources Report
01/09/24 Human Resources Report
01/16/24 Human Resources Report
01/23/24 Human Resources Report
01/30/24 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 

Date Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24

Human	Resources	Action	Items

DEPARTURES 9 9

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 13 13

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 0 0

VOLUNTEERS 0 0

END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD 3 3

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 5 5

OTHER ACTIONS 29 29

REQUEST TO POST 7 7

 Total Transactions 66 66 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 
  

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 2, 2024 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Sandra Mozley – Clerk of Superior Court – Accounting Clerk Specialist – 01/03/24 – General Fund – 
DOH 08/28/23 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

2. Kayle Lathrop – Health and Community Services – From Director Community Services – To Public 
Health Equity Prevention Manager – 01/01/24 – From Various Funds – To Prescription Drug Overdose 
Prevention(.75/Health Equity Testing(.25) Funds – Replacing Stella Gore  

3. Stella Gore – Health and Community Services – From Public Health Equity Prevention Manager – To 
Community Services Manager – 01/01/24 – From COSSAP(.75)/Health Equity Testing(.25) Funds – To 
Various Funds – Replacing Kayle Lathrop 

4. Tiffiney Tarango – Treasurer’s Office – From Accountant – To Chief Deputy Treasurer – 01/01/24 – 
General Fund – Replacing Martha Gonzales 

5. Veda Cota – Treasurer’s Office – From Treasurer Services Specialist – To Treasurer Services 
Supervisor – 01/01/24 – General Fund – Replacing Vise Palmer 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

6. Debra Blevins – Health and Community Services – From Health Administrative Manager – To Fiscal 
Manager – 01/01/24 – General Fund – Reclassification 

7. James Lahti – Sheriff’s Office – From Acting Deputy Sgt. – To Patrol Commander Lt. – 01/02/24 – 
General Fund – Replacing Virgil Dodd 

8. Walter Wiley – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 12/06/23 – General Fund – Step increase 
9. Derek Bartling – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/03/23 – General Fund – 2.5% Adjustment to 

Step Program 
10. Nicholas Franco – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 01/06/24 – General Fund – Step increase 
11. Bret McDaniel – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 09/16/22 – General Fund – Step increase 
12. Bret McDaniel – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 07/03/23 – General Fund 2.5% Adjustment 

to Step Program 
13. Bret McDaniel – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 09/16/23 – General Fund – Step increase 
14. Matthew Havey – Sheriff’s Office – From Acting Lieutenant – To Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 01/02/24 – 

General Fund – End of special assignment 
15. Matthew Havey – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 01/04/24 – General Fund – Step increase  
16. Shawn Lowman – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/06/23 – General Fund - 2.5% Adjustment to 

Step Program 
17. Jared Osborn – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Lt. – 12/31/23 – General Fund – Extending 

temporary assignment an additional six months 
18. Cindy Roberts – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Lt. – 12/31/23 – General Fund – Extending 

temporary assignment an additional six months 
19. Violeta Worthey – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Lt. – 12/31/23 – General Fund – Extending 

temporary assignment an additional six months 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

20. Treasurer’s Office – Treasurer Services Specialist – Vacated by Veda Cota 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 9, 2024 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Stephanie Morris – Payson Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – 12/26/23 – General Fund – DOH 
10/23/23 

2. Andrea Brusuelas – Globe Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – 01/18/24 – General Fund – DOH 
09/11/23 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Steve Neil – Health and Community Services – Environmental Health Specialist – 01/16/24 – General 
Fund – Replacing Jeff Nafziger  

4. Laura De La Fuente – Health and Community Services – Community Health Specialist – 01/16/24 – 
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Fund – Replacing Janice Chesser 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Lacey Cline – Facilities and Land Management – Event Coordinator – 01/17/24 – General Fund  
6. Bianca Arrellin – Facilities and Land Management – Event Coordinator – 01/31/24 – General Fund  

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

7. Lisa Wilckens – Health and Community Services – From Fiscal Services Manager – To Fiscal 
Accountant – 01/01/24 – Various Funds – Reclassification 

8. Estelle Belarde – Health and Community Services – From Housing Services Program Manager – To 
Housing Services Program Coordinator – 01/01/24 – Various Funds – Reclassification 

9. Enrique Medina – Globe Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 01/01/24 – General Fund – Salary 
increase per ARS 22-152(D)(2) 

10. Reginald Winston – Globe Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 01/01/24 – General Fund – Salary 
increase per ARS 22-152(D)(2) 

11. Sherwood Johnston – Globe Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 01/01/24 – General Fund – Salary 
increase per ARS 22-152(D)(2) 

12. Charles Adornetto – Globe Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 01/01/24 – General Fund – Salary 
increase per ARS 22-152(D)(2) 

13. Francisco Sobampo – Globe Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 01/01/24 – General Fund – Salary 
increase per ARS 22-152(D)(2) 

14. John Martinez – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 01/16/24 – General Fund – Change in hire date 
from 01/02/24 to 01/16/24 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

15. Community Development – Code Enforcement Specialist – FY24 position 
16. Payson Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – Vacated by Stephanie Morris 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 16, 2024 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. David Wolak – Superior Court –Judge Pro Tempore – 02/02/24 – General Fund – DOH 07/01/20 
2. Raven Kitcheyan – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer I – 01/05/24 – Diversion Intake Fund – DOH 

07/17/23 
3. Megan Holley – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 01/23/24 – General Fund – DOH 

06/28/18 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Diana Kanon – Superior Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 02/05/24 – General Fund – Replacing David 
Wolak 

5. Raymond Vinck – Facilities and Land Management – Building Maintenance Technician Senior – 
01/16/24 – General Fund – Replacing Alex Cunningham 

6. Daniel Dettleoff – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer I – 01/29/24 – General(.75)/Juvenile Intensive 
Probation Supervision(.25) Funds – Replacing Scott Sheffer 

7. Jeremy Simko – Probation – Teen Center Coordinator – 01/29/24 – General Fund – Replacing Scott 
Thomas 

8. Robert LeDuc – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator – 01/16/24 – 
Public Works Fund – Replacing Ashley Boyse 

9. Ronald Woolwine – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator Senior – 
01/16/24 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – Replacing Johnathan Gilkison  

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

10. Donald Garvin – Payson Justice Court – Payson Justice of the Peace – 01/01/24 – General Fund – Salary 
increase per ARS 22-125 

11. James Lahti – Sheriff’s Office – Patrol Commander Lt. – 01/02/24 – General Fund – Continued Young 
Housing Allowance 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 23, 2024 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Cody Crisp – Public Works – Professional Land Surveyor – 01/19/24 – Public Works Fund – DOH 
04/10/23 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Justin Fletcher – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 01/29/24 – General Fund – Replacing Clayton 
Huggins 

3. Alexis Casillas – Recorder’s Office – Deputy Recording Clerk – 02/12/24 – General Fund – Replacing 
Elizabeth Beltran 

4. Brandy Moore – Recorder’s Office – Deputy Recording Clerk – 01/29/24 – General Fund – Replacing 
Bonnie Wolff 

5. Preston James – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 01/29/24 – Fleet Management Fund – 
Replacing Joshua Wampole 

6. Jeremiah Johnson – Health and Community Services – Animal Control Officer – 01/29/24 – General 
Fund – Replacing Erich Kenney 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. Kacey Heimer – Health and Community Services – From Community Health Specialist – To 
Administrative Assistant – 01/29/24 – From COSSAP Fund – To Homeless Coalition Fund – Replacing 
Richard Navarro 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

8. Daniel Dettloff – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer I – 01/29/24 – From General(.75)/Juvenile 
Intensive(.25) Funds – To Various Funds – Fund code change 

9. Robert Deck – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer II – 01/29/24 – From Adult Intensive Probation 
Supervision Fund – To Adult Intensive Probation Supervision(.75/State Aid Enhancement(.25) Funds – 
Fund code change 

10. Kassandra Navarro – Computer Services – From Health Desk Support Specialist – To IT Support 
Specialist – 01/29/24 – General Fund – Reclassification 

11. Aaron Myers – Computer Services – From IT Security Specialist – To IT Support Specialist – 01/29/24 
– General Fund – Reclassification  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

12. Public Works – Deputy Director Public Works – Vacated by Steve Sanders 
13. Public Works – Professional Land Surveyor – Vacated by Cody Crisp 
14. Library District – IT Support Specialist – Vacated by Zackary Pearson 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 30, 2024 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Erin Miller – Elections – Elections Assistant – 01/23/24 – General Fund – DOH 07/08/19 
2. Dan McKeen – Globe Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 01/05/24 – General Fund – DOH 09/18/23 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

3. Robert Johnston – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 01/31/24 – General Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

4. Savannah Barajas – Health and Community Services – From Public Health Epidemiologist – To Public 
Health Emergency Preparedness Manager – 02/12/24 – PHEP Fund – Replacing Ryan Cluff 

5. Zackary Pearson – From Library District – To Computer Services – IT Support Specialist – 02/12/24 – 
From Library Assistance Fund – To General Fund – Replacing Joseph Pacheco 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

6. Stephen Armstrong – Sheriff’s Office – From Acting Detention Sgt. – To Detention Officer – 01/18/24 
– General Fund – End of temporary assignment 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

7. Health and Community Services – Public Health Epidemiologist – Vacated by Savannah Barajas  



   
ARF-8645   Consent Agenda Item     5. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Reporting
Period:

Human Resources Department Monthly Reports for
February 2024

Submitted For: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr. 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.

Information
Subject
Human Resources Department Monthly Reports for February 2024.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the monthly activity reports submitted by the Human
Resources Department for February 2024.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
02/06/24 Human Resources Report
02/13/24 Human Resources Report
02/20/24 Human Resources Report
02/27/24 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 

Date Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24

Human	Resources	Action	Items

DEPARTURES 27 9 18

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 21 13 8

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 2 0 2

VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0

END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD 12 3 9

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 9 5 4

OTHER ACTIONS 37 29 8

REQUEST TO POST 20 7 13

 Total Transactions 128 66 62 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 
  

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 6, 2024 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. William Brittain – Facilities and Land Management – Construction Project Manager – 03/22/24 – 
General Fund – DOH 10/24/22 

2. Teri Stacey – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 01/30/24 – General Fund – DOH 05/02/17  
3. Catherine Levario – Public Works – Temporary Administrative Clerk Specialist – 01/30/24 – Waste 

Tire(.67)/Recycling and Landfill Management(.33) Funds – DOH 01/30/23 
4. Joseph Herzog – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 02/04/24 – General Fund – General Fund – DOH 

02/27/23 
5. Suzanne Parrack – Sheriff’s Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – 03/01/24 – General Fund – DOH 

08/28/23 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

6. Crystal Singleton – Elections – Elections Assistant – 02/12/24 – General Fund – Replacing Erin Miller 
7. Lorrie Andrade – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 02/12/24 – General Fund – Replacing Alyxx 

Hartman  
8. Katelynn Wilbanks – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 02/12/24 – General Fund – Replacing 

Courtney White 
9. Carrie Nawrocki – Health and Community Services – Housing Services Administrator – 02/12/24 – 

Various Funds – Replacing Lillie Vega 
 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

10. Nicholas McGill – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Worker – 02/12/24 – Constituent Services 3 Fund 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

11. Jolene Martinez – Health and Community Services – Dental Program Specialist – 01/17/24 – From 
Delta Dental Fund – To Community Health Grant Fund  

12. Dianna Hoey – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Bureau Supervisor – 02/13/24 – General Fund 
 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

13. Kacey Heimer – Health and Community Services – Administrative Assistant – 01/29/24 – Homeless 
Coalition Fund – Change in overtime fund 

14. Scott Thomas – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 11/30/23 – General Fund – Step increase 
15. Jorge Gomez – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 11/30/23 – General Fund – Step increase 
16. Brent Stamper – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 02/15/24 – General Fund – Step increase 
17. Kip Vidrine – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 02/24/24 – General Fund – Step increase 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

18. Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – Vacated by Jennifer Kimes 
19. Sheriff’s Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – Vacated by Suzanne Parrack 
20. Facilities and Land Management – Construction Project Manager – Vacated by William Brittain 
21. Assessor’s Office – Field Data Technician – Vacated by Teri Stacey 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 13, 2024 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Mayra Vera Rizo – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 02/02/24 – General Fund – 
DOH 08/14/23 

2. Jo Nelle Greenwalt – Administrative Services – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 04/08/24 – General 
Fund – DOH 11/16/83 

3. John Glover – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator – 02/08/24 – Public 
Works Fund – DOH 11/06/23 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Julianne Patterson – Treasurer’s Office – Treasurer Services Specialist – 01/29/24 – General Fund – 
Replacing Veda Cota 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

5. Ashley Pearson – From Clerk of Superior Court – To Finance – From Court Clerk – To Grant Analyst – 
02/26/24 – General Fund – Replacing Maryn Belling 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

6. Mark Joerns – Superior Court – Bailiff – 02/12/24 – General Fund – Reclassification 
7. Jolene Martinez – Health and Community Services – Dental Program Specialist – 12/18/23 – From 

Delta Dental Fund – To Community Health Grant Fund – Fund code change 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

8. Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Case Manager Specialist Senior – Vacated by Patricia Loos 
9. Health and Community Services – Community Health Policy Analyst – Vacated by Danielle Dewees 
10. Administrative Services – Administrative Clerk Specialist – Vacated by Jo Nelle Greenwalt 
11. Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator – Vacated by John Glover 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Dana True – Health and Community Services – Accounting Clerk Senior – 02/02/24 – Various Funds – 
DOH 09/2/96 

2. Len Stewart – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator – 02/05/24 – Public 
Works Fund – DOH 08/08/23 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Cassidy Phillips – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 03/11/24 – General Fund – Replacing 
Mariyah Pizano 

4. Jacob Ward – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 02/26/24 – General Fund – Replacing Douglass 
Bassler  

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Elle Swindell – Payson Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – 09/13/23 – General Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS:  
 

6. Roberta Reynoso – Clerk of Superior Court – From Courtroom Clerk Title IV-D – To Courtroom 
Technician – 02/26/24 – From IV-D Child Support Fund – To General Fund – Replacing Jennifer Kimes 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

7. Timothy Moore – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/21/23 – General Fund – Step increase 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

8. Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Title IV-D – Vacated by Roberta Reynoso 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 27, 2024 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Patricia Loos – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Case Manager Specialist Senior – 02/16/24 – 
General Fund – DOH 02/08/16 

2. Alexis Casillas – Recorder’s Office – Deputy Recording Clerk – 02/23/24 – General Fund – DOH 
02/12/24 

3. Katelyn Wilbanks – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 02/13/24 – General Fund – DOH 02/12/24 
4. Gretchen Goslin – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer(.48) – 02/28/24 – General Fund – DOH 03/01/21 
5. Madeline Miciotto – Library District – Electronic Resources Librarian and ILS Administrator – 

02/28/24 – Library Assistance Fund – DOH 05/09/22 
6. Ricardo Otero – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator – 02/20/24 – 

Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 11/06/23 
7. Timothy Branson II – Computer Services – IT Systems Administrator – 02/21/24 – General Fund – 

DOH 02/28/22 
8. Larry Pontel – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer II – 03/12/24 – Juvenile Intensive Probation 

Supervision(.25)/Juvenile Standards Probation(.75) Funds – DOH 11/01/04 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

9. Brittney Garcia – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 03/11/24 – General Fund – Replacing 
Megan Holley 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

10. Joseph Day – Recorder’s Office -Temporary Administrative Clerk – 02/19/24 – General Fund 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

11. Ryan Cluff – Health and Community Services – Assistant Environmental Engineer Manager – 02/20/24 
– General Fund 

12. Mackenzie Weaver – Public Works – Accountant – 03/11/24 – Public Works Fund 
13. Alexander Kendrick – Public Works – Civil Engineer – 02/28/24 – Public Works Fund 
14. William Sanders – Public Works – Engineering Technician – 01/03/24 – Public Works Fund 
15. Joel McDaniel – Public Works – Public Works Roads Supervisor – 01/23/24 – Public Works Fund 
16. Scott Sheffer – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer II – 03/27/24 – State Aid Enhancement Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS:  
 

17. Jessica Carbajal – From Sheriff’s Office – To Health and Community Services – From Civil Clerk – To 
Community Action Program Lead – 03/11/24 – From General Fund – To Various Funds – Replacing 
Elsa Bobier 

18. Lacey Hamlett – Sheriff’s Office – From Booking Clerk – To Detention Officer – 02/26/24 – General 
Fund – Replacing Amos Smith  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

19. Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator – Vacated by Ricardo Otero 
20. Library District – Electronic Resources and Library Outreach Administrator – Vacated by Madeline 

Miciotto 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 27, 2024 
PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

21. Computer Services – IT Support Technician – Vacated by Timothy Branson II 
22. Sheriff’s Office – Civil Clerk – Vacated by Jessica Carbajal 



   
ARF-8672   Consent Agenda Item     5. K.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2024  
Reporting
Period:

February 20, 2024 Meeting Minutes

Submitted By: Samantha Trimble, Deputy Clerk of the Board

Information
Subject
Board of Supervisors' February 20, 2024 Meeting Minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Board of Supervisors' February 20, 2024 meeting minutes.

Attachments
02-20-24 BOS meeting minutes



Page 1 of 10 
 

GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
 
Date:  February 20, 2024 
 
STEPHEN CHRISTENSEN     JAMES MENLOVE 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TIM R. HUMPHREY       By: Samantha Trimble 
Vice-Chairman       Deputy Clerk 
                                                             
WOODY CLINE               Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Stephen Christensen, Chairman; Tim R. Humphrey, Vice-
Chairman; and Woody Cline, Member 
 
STAFF PRESENT: James Menlove, County Manager; Jefferson Dalton, Deputy 
County Attorney and Civil Bureau Chief; Jessica Scibelli, Senior Civil Deputy 
County Attorney; and Samantha Trimble, Deputy Clerk of the Board. 

Item 1 - CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION: 

The Board of Supervisors met in a Regular Meeting at 10:00 a.m. this date 
in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room. Maryn Belling led the Pledge of 
Allegiance, and Nick Montague delivered the invocation. 

 
Item 2 - PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A. Recognition of Gila County employees who have been employed for 5, 10, 15, 

20, 25, 30, 35, and 40 years as of 2023. (Erica Raymond)  
 
Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Senior read aloud the names of 
the employees who received an award from the Board of Supervisors for their 
years of service to the County as follows: 
    

5 YEARS OF SERVICE 
Alcorn, Ryan County Attorney Carbajal, Candice Sheriff 
Anderson, Jamilyn Health Cervantes, Melissa Facilities 
Armstrong, Stephen Sheriff Dillman, Kenneth JR Probation 
Arrellin, Bianca Facilities Espinoza, Stacey Library Districts 
Avalos, Eric Sheriff Gayle, Daniel Public Works 
Belling, Maryn Finance Gillespie, Jessen Sheriff 
Boyse, Ashley Public Works Judd, Katie Recorder 
Holley, Megan County Attorney Levario, Ann Marie Community Services 
Mohr, Lacy Clerk of the Court Mojica, Dylan Assessor 



Page 2 of 10 
 

Morell-Stancil, Terri Community Development O’Rourke, Kimberly Juvenile Detention 
Phillips, Rebecca Clerk of the Court Pluimer, Randall Community Development 
Rocha, Destiny Globe Justice Court Rodriguez, Dan Globe Constable 
Sandoval, Chebel Sheriff Spalink, Charles Facilities 
Staten, Aimee Finance Whiting, Karen Finance 
Wolterbeek, Paul Administrative Services   

 
10 YEARS OF SERVICE 

Beauchamp, Bradley County Attorney Chaidez, Stephanie Finance 
Hill, Michael Sheriff Hurst, Betty Finance 
Irish, Daniel Computer Services Lowe, Daniel Probation 
McFarland, Steve Public Works Miller, Paul County Attorney 
Montano, Krystal Finance Ostrom, Janet Community Services 
Pfeiffer, Patricia County Attorney Rogers, Brian Facilities 
Rosales, Christian County Attorney Shepherd, John A Sheriff 
Taylor, Jeff Public Works Taylor, Rebecca Facilities 
Torres, Allison Community Services Warren, Scott Public Works 

15 YEARS OF SERVICE 
Cova, Brenda County Attorney King, Lisa County Attorney 
McGroarty, 
Christopher 

Sheriff Nudson, Thor Sheriff 

McDaniel, Joel Public Works Rutherford, Nancy Health 
 

20 YEARS OF SERVICE 
Belarde, Estelle Community Services Garrett, Christine J Sheriff 
Gooding, Athena County Attorney Guadiana, Rebecca Superior Court 
Hoffman, Yvette Payson Justice Court Horn, Paula Health 
Solberg Terry Public Works White, Sarah Sheriff 

 
25 YEARS OF SERVICE 

Castenada, Cynthia Clerk of the Court Measeles, Roilene Public Works 
Trimble, LynnDee Probation   

 
30 YEARS OF SERVICE 

Baxley, Amelia Sheriff Bocardo-Homan, Juley Human Resources 
Castaneda, John Heath Guevara, Tammy Health 
Scott, Tim Sheriff   

 
35 YEARS OF SERVICE 

Hernandez, Sylvia Probation 
 

40 YEARS OF SERVICE 
Greenwalt, Jo Nelle Administrative Services 

       
The Supervisors thanked Ms. Raymond and congratulated the awarded 
employees. 
 
Item 3 - PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 



Page 3 of 10 
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously recessed as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convened as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors to 
address item 4A. 
 
A. (Motion to recess as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene 
as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors.) 
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the amended Gila County 
Floodplain Management Ordinance. (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County 
Flood Control District Board of Directors and reconvene as the Board of 
Supervisors.)  
 
Darde de Roulhac, Flood Control District Chief Engineer explained that the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has produced new floodplain 
management guidelines requiring the County to amend its current Floodplain 
Management Ordinance (Ordinance). He stated that there has been one Board 
of Supervisors’ Work Session to discuss the changes.  
 
Supervisor Humphrey stated that he would like for the changes to be published 
on the County website for the public. Supervisor Cline stated that he would 
like to meet with Mr. de Roulhac to further discuss the Ordinance. Mr. de 
Roulhac explained further that the main Ordinance change is that the public 
cannot use Ordinance variances to rectify violations, and staff should not 
suggest it. Supervisor Cline stated, “Variances are very rare; I understand the 
statutes, and I don’t agree. We have a lot of floodplains in Gila County, and I 
don’t want to circumvent the policy and the statute, but the public should be 
informed of their options.” Chairman Christensen stated that the County needs 
to work with its constituents to give them the best options to move forward.  
 
Mr. de Roulhac explained that the process for abatements would be handled by 
the County’s Hearing Officer. Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney and 
Civil Bureau Chief explained the difference between a legislative process and a 
judicial process for abatements.  
 
Mr. de Roulhac stated that based on the directive of the Board of Directors of 
the Gila County Flood Control District during this meeting, the Board accepted 
all proposed changes except that under the definition of “Hardship” the word 
“difficulty” will be replaced with the word “hardship.”  The other change was to 
accept the proposed changes to Section 3.9 (B); however, all wording after 
“Such information must be provided to the Floodplain Administrator within 
thirty (30) days of such order,” shall be removed except the last word in the 
paragraph, which is “or.”  
 
 
 



Page 4 of 10 
 

Chairman Christensen opened the public hearing.  There were not any public 
comments, so he closed the public hearing and asked for a motion from the 
Board. 
 
Vice-Chairman Humphrey made a motion to adopt the amended Gila County 
Floodplain Management Ordinance, which was seconded by Supervisor Cline.  
Chairman Christensen asked for the vote.  Both Supervisors Humphrey and 
Christensen voted in favor of the motion, and Supervisor Woody against the 
motion.  The vote passed 2 to 1.   
 
Jessica Scibelli, Senior Civil Deputy County Attorney advised that Vice-
Chairman Humphrey’s motion should be clarified to include the changes to the 
Ordinance.  Vice-Chairman Humphrey restated his motion to adopt the 
amended Gila County Floodplain Management Ordinance with the changes as 
discussed and agreed upon during the meeting, which was seconded by 
Supervisor Cline.  Both Supervisors Humphrey and Christensen voted in favor 
of the motion, and Supervisor Woody against the motion.  The vote passed 2 to 
1.  (A copy of the ordinance is attached to these minutes and is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Flood Control District Board 
of Directors and reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors to 
address the remaining agenda items.  
 
Item 4 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A. Information/Discussion/Action to receive a presentation by the Globe-
Miami Chamber of Commerce (Chamber), and to approve or not approve 
paying the invoice submitted by the Chamber for 2024 in the amount of 
$10,250, which is $250 over the amount budgeted by the Board of 
Supervisors for FY 2024.  
 
Maryn Belling, Finance Department Director stated that this item is being 
presented due to an increase of $250 over the previously budgeted amount, so 
it requires Board approval.  She introduced Angel Ruiz, Globe-Miami Regional 
Chamber of Commerce (GMRCC) Executive Director, and Phil Stewart, GMRCC 
Board member. Mr. Steward showed the Board members the GMRCC website, 
which advertises Gila County through a direct hyperlink. Ms. Ruiz explained 
that the GMRCC hosts many local events, such as the Annual Poppy Fest and 
Apache Jii Day, which bring abundant revenue to the Globe-Miami area. 
Supervisor Cline asked Ms. Ruiz the reason for the fee increase, to which she 
replied that the fees have increased across the board. James Menlove, County 
Manager and Clerk of the Board stated that he feels this item should go 
forward as an economic development agreement as there is a direct benefit to 
the public and the County.  



Page 5 of 10 
 

 
Ms. Scibelli advised that at the end of the vote, it should be noted that the 
Board determines this agreement to be for the benefit of the public. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously approved paying the invoice submitted by the GMRCC for 
FY 2024 in the amount of $10,250, which the Board determines to be for the 
benefit of the public. 
 
B. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 011224 - Cost Allocation Plan Services and CFR 
(Federal) Cost Allocation Plan Services.  
 
Ms. Belling advised that the most recent Cost Allocation Plan preparation firm 
is no longer providing Cost Allocation Plan services. No vendors on Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreements provide Cost Allocation Plans as available contracted 
services. The Cost Allocation Plan is required to be a recipient of federal grant 
funds, so a new vendor for these services is required. 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the 
Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 
011224. 
 
C. Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of the State of 
Arizona Contract No. CTR059886 for the purchase of 16 laptop computers 
and 41 desktop computers from MicroAge in the amount of $81,952.50 as 
part of the IT Department's computer replacement plan for FY24.  
 
Carrie Bartling, Information Technology (IT) Department Director stated that to 
keep the County computer hardware up to date, the IT Department has 
identified 16 laptop computers and 41 desktop computers that need to be 
replaced. The funding for this purchase will come from the Capital Budget. 
Vice-Chairman Humphrey asked Ms. Bartling what happens to the old 
computers. She replied that they are donated to the schools. Vice-Chairman 
Humphrey asked legal counsel present if that was allowed, to which Ms. 
Scibelli replied that the Gift Clause, outlined in statute, does not apply to other 
governmental agencies. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously approved the use of State of Arizona Contract No. 
CTR059886, as presented.  
 
D. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize an online public auction 
through Public Surplus on March 29, 2024, to sell surplus or obsolete 
County vehicles and equipment after the notice of the auction has been 



Page 6 of 10 
 

published in the Arizona Silver Belt and the Payson Roundup newspapers 
thirty days before the auction date.  
 
Ms. Belling explained that the County has various surplus vehicles that can be 
sold at auction. The vehicles listed for auction are located at the County’s Star 
Valley impound lot. Vice-Chairman Humphrey asked if there was a way for the 
public to view the vehicles before bidding on them, to which Mark Highstreet, 
Gila County Deputy Sheriff Sergeant replied that he will add his contact 
information to the auction public notice.  Chairman Christensen asked Ms. 
Belling about the disbursement of funds generated by the auction. Ms. Belling 
replied that it varies for each vehicle, but the funds will go back to the 
originating department which had the vehicle. 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the 
Board unanimously authorized an online public auction through Public 
Surplus on March 29, 2024, to sell surplus or obsolete County vehicles and 
equipment, as presented. 
 
E. Information/Discussion/Action, to approve, by unanimous consent of 
the Board and without a public auction, Intergovernmental Agreement No. 
02162024 with the Superior Police Department, which authorizes the sale 
of three County vehicles for a total amount of $750, of which these 
vehicles have been identified as surplus or obsolete County equipment.  
 
Ms. Belling explained that there are three County-owned vehicles that the 
Superior Police Department has expressed an interest in purchasing. She 
added that the Police Department will use these vehicles for administrative and 
undercover operations, and the vehicles have been given a fair market value by 
the County Attorney’s Office. Ms. Scibelli confirmed Ms. Belling’s statement 
and said that the Board's vote must be unanimous to sell County-owned 
property without a public auction. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously approved Intergovernmental Agreement No. 02162024 with 
the Superior Police Department, as presented. 
 
F. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to a 
Funding Agreement (Contract No. 543-23) between the Arizona 
Department of Housing and the Gila County Public Health and 
Community Services Department to extend the contract to June 30, 
2024, and increase the contract by an additional $63,190.99 for a total 
contract amount of $189,572.97 of Housing Trust Funds.  
 
Joshua Beck, Public Health and Community Services Department Director 
advised that these funds are to be directed towards assisting homeless persons 
or to assist persons and families with transitional housing costs. 



Page 7 of 10 
 

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the 
Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to the Arizona Department of 
Housing Funding Agreement (Contract No. 543-23), as presented. 

 
Item 5 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A. Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Contract No. 
072120 with Policy Development Group to extend the term of the 
contract for one additional year, from January 5, 2024, to January 4, 
2025, in a not-to-exceed amount of $60,000 for professional lobbyist 
services. 
 
B. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. RFGA2022-002-02 with 
the Arizona Department of Health Services' Bureau of Women's and 
Children's Health in the amount of $50,000.01 to continue the Youth 
Councils in Gila County until January 27, 2027.    
 
C. Adoption of an Order designating polling places, the appointment of 
poll workers, and election board workers for the purpose of conducting 
the March 19, 2024, Presidential Preference Election. (A copy of the order 
is attached to these minutes and is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.) 
  
D. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the reporting period 
of January 1, 2024, through January 31, 2024.  
 
Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 
numbers 326728 through 326801, 326803 through 326924, 326926 through 
327040, and 327042 through 32760 totaling $5,416,001.15 for the period 01-
01-2 through 01-31-24.  
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(D), the published minutes shall include all 
demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 
dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 
individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 
thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 
listing of issued warrants and voided warrants is permanently attached to 
these minutes.) 
 



Page 8 of 10 
 

E. Approval of the Board of Supervisors' February 6, 2024, meeting 
minutes.  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 5A through 5E. 
 
Item 6 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute § 38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
Greg Barsness of Globe expressed a concern regarding election integrity, 
stating that he would like Gila County to do a hand count of ballots for the 
upcoming 2024 Presidential Preference Election.  
 
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on the information presented.  
 
County Manager James Menlove and each Supervisor provided a summary of 
current events.  
 
Item 8 - WORK SESSION ITEMS:  
 
A. Information/Discussion regarding the Pleasant Valley Veterans 
Retreat's draft policy   - Cost Schedule and Fees.   
 
Joseph Dickison, Facilities and Land Management Department Director 
advised that the Pleasant Valley Veterans Retreat (PVVR) needs to establish a 
cost and fee schedule. He presented the Board with a proposed policy that 
outlines proposed fees for the PVVR as follows: 

ELIGIBILITY:  

Facility rentals are available to active duty and all veterans of all eras. Eligible 
members are welcome to bring their immediate family. Immediate family is 
spouse, children, and parents.  



Page 9 of 10 
 

Verification of eligibility: Providing official Department of Defense (DOD) 
documentation must be submitted.  

A. Active, Reserve, Retired-Duty DOD Military ID B. MilitaryDD-214  

FEES AND PAYMENTS:  

Single Family Cabins is a flat rate of $230.00. Multi-Room Barracks costs are 
$58.00 per room. The Pleasant Valley Veterans Retreat offers a sliding-scale 
support program for qualified non-profit organizations directly supporting 
veterans. The program has four tiers of support, each with different 
qualifications.  

1. Tier 4: Non-profits that support 1-5 qualified veterans and have a 501c3 
qualification are eligible for a 25% relief.  

2. Tier 3: Non-profits that support 6-10 qualified veterans and have a 501c3 
qualifications are eligible for a 50% relief.  

3. Tier 2: Non-profits that support 11-14 qualified veterans and have a 
501c3 qualifications are eligible for a 75% relief.  

4. Tier 1: Non-profits that support 15 or more qualified veterans and have a 
501c3 qualification are eligible for an 85% relief.  

Supervisor Cline stated, “I don’t believe that we should charge our veterans. I 
want to clarify that this site can only be used for veterans. Veterans have 
already paid their price. This site was given to us, and we repurposed it. I 
would be fine if we did this by donation.” Chairman Christensen agreed. 

Cathy Melvin, Executive Assistant to Supervisor Cline stated that if the 
proposed prices were in effect last month when a large group of veterans stayed 
at the PVVR, it would have cost them over $10,000. She stated, “The donations 
suggested by Mr. Cline have been tried, but were unsuccessful.” 

Mr. Menlove stated, “I agree that we are indebted to our veterans.  
Unfortunately, we have a fee schedule in place as we are a government entity, 
and that could be considered gifting.” Ms. Scibelli advised that Jefferson Dalton 
has done extensive research regarding the Gift Clause, outlined in statute, and 
he has concluded that some sort of monetary system must be in place and the 
discount given to the veteran groups and visitors of the PVVR must somehow 
be made up.  

Supervisor Cline stated, “If we absolutely have to (charge fees), then it must be 
very, very low because these people have already paid the price. If we turn 
people away for not being able to pay, then we will hear about it.” 



Page 10 of 10 
 

Chairman Christensen stated that the sliding scale needs to be eliminated.  He 
added, “If we need to stay out of trouble and we must charge, then it needs to 
be extremely low.  That way anyone can afford to go out and see the site.”  

Vice-Chairman Humphrey stated, “I support the PVVR, and I agree that 
charging our veterans is rough, but if our own government is telling us we have 
to, then that puts us in a really bad spot. I would like to have another work 
session with more dense information.” 

 

Chairman Christensen re-addressed agenda Item 6-Call to the Public due to an 
audience member, who did not get to speak.  

Charlie Smith of California gave comments on various programs for veterans 
that could be of use to the PVVR. 

With no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, Chairman 
Christensen adjourned the meeting at 12:28 p.m.   
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Stephen Christensen, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 
 


	Agenda
	Gila County Spotlight on Employees Program for April 2024
	Att1_Patricia Johnson
	Att2_Manuel Riddle
	Att3_Taylor Perez
	Att4_IT Team
	Att5_Carter Tatum
	Att6_Chance Creasy
	Att7_Nick Montague
	Gila County Public Housing Authority Annual Plan Certifications (FY 2024)
	Att1_ Public Notice
	Att2_Resolution No. 24-04-01
	Att3_Certification of Compliance
	Att4_Civil Rights Certification
	Att5_HUD form 50077-SL
	Resolution No. 24-04-02 to name a section of road in Payson as South Rolling Rock Way
	Att1_Resolution No. 24-04-02
	RESOLUTION NO. 24-04-02
	Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

	Att2_Public Notice Cover Letter
	Att3_Area Map
	Att4_Public Notice
	Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan Partners, LLC
	Att1_8_8_22 Staff Report and Proposal
	Att2_Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement CTR059323
	Att3_State CTR059323
	Blank Page

	Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 012023 - On-Call Land Survey Services
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 112023
	Att2_Contract No. 012023 with D2 Surveying
	Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 110520 with Hawker & Evans Asphalt Co., Inc. 
	Att1_Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 110520
	Att2_Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 110520
	Att3_Amendment No. 1
	Att4_Contract No. 110520
	Approval of Purchase Agreement No. 031824 with Metalcraft Marine US, Inc.to Purchase of Stanley 21 Fast Responder
	Att1_Purchase Agreement No. 031824
	Att2_Metalcraft Marine US Quote
	Att3_Single Source Letter
	Establish employee contribution rates for employee and family coverage for FY 2025 for Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust (AZLGEBT) plans
	Att1_Schedule A Employee Insurance Contributions FY2025
	Att2_Premium Computation
	Adoption of Proclamation No. 2024-01 Proclaiming April 2024 as National County Government Month in Gila County.
	Att1_NCGM Proclamation No. 2024-01
	Att2_NCGM Press Release 2024
	Authorization to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 030324 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Att1_Request for Proposal No. 030324 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Att2_Request to Advertise 030324
	Adoption of Policy No. BOS-HRS-018 - Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy
	Att1_BOS-HRS-018 - Employee Tuition Reimbursement Policy.
	Approval to use State Contract No. CTR061840 with The SJ Anderson Company for the Fairgrounds Roll-Up Doors Project
	Att1_Contract Agreement No. CTR061840
	Att2_The SJ Anderson Company Proposal
	Att3_State of Arizona Contract No. CTR061840
	Approve an Architectural and Design Concept for the Gila County Go Kart Track
	Att1_Go Kart Track Presentation 4-2-24
	Gila County Raceway Go-Kart Track
	Primary Goals
	Facility Improvements 
	Thank you

	Contract Award in Response to Request for Proposals No. 120423-Professional Consulting Services Specializing in Solid Waste Operations
	Att1_Request for Proposals No. 120423 with Award Contract
	Att2_Addendum 1
	Economic Development Agreement No. 031424- Strawberry Patchers Inc.
	Att1_Economic Development Agreement No. 031424
	Att2_Request Letter
	Att3_W9
	Att4_501(c)3
	Sealed Bid for Purchase of Assessor's Parcel No. 207-05-003B
	Att1_207-05-003B Info
	Bandits Restaurant & the Dirty Cowboy Saloon Application for Temporary Extensions of Premises_Patio Permits
	Att1_Extension of premises application- Bandits Restaurant and the Dirty Cowboy Saloon
	Att2_Com Dev response
	Amendment No. 1 to Contract Agreement No. CTR059323 with San Tan Ford Partners, LLC
	Att1_Amendment No 1 to Contract Agreement CTR059323
	Att2_Contract Agreement CTR59323 with San Tan Ford Partners
	Att3_State Contract_San Tan_CTR059323_Contract_Documents
	Blank Page

	Approval to appointment FY25 Superior Court Judge Pro Tempore
	Att1_Board of Supervisors Approval
	Att2_FY25 Request Letter to AOC
	Recorder's Office Monthly Report for February 2024
	Att1_Recorder's February 2024 Monthly Report
	Globe Regional Constable's Report for February 2024
	Att1_February 2024
	Payson Regional Constable's Report for February 2024
	Att1_February 2024
	February 2024
	Att1_Clerk's Report February 2024
	Att2_Clerk's Summary Report February 2024
	Monthly Report for February 2024 
	Att1_Monthly Report for 2024
	Human Resources Department Monthly Reports for January 2024
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_01_02_24 Human Resources Report
	Att3_01_09_24 Human Resources Report
	Att4_01_16_24 Human Resources Report
	Att5_01_23_24 Human Resources Report
	Att6_01_30_24 Human Resources Report
	Human Resources Department Monthly Reports for February 2024
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_02_06_24 Human Resources Report
	Att3_02_13_24 Human Resources Report
	Att4_02_20_24 Human Resources Report
	Att5_02_27_24 Human Resources Report
	February 20, 2024 Meeting Minutes
	Att1_02-20-24 BOS meeting minutes

